
 

Meeting Notice 

 
Commission Chair 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, District 1 
 
Commission Vice Chair 
Councilmember Rebecca Kaplan, 
City of Oakland 
 
AC Transit 
Director Elsa Ortiz 
 
Alameda County 
Supervisor Richard Valle, District 2 
Supervisor Wilma Chan, District 3 
Supervisor Nate Miley, District 4 
Supervisor Keith Carson, District 5 
 
BART 
Director Thomas Blalock 
 
City of Alameda 
Mayor Marie Gilmore 
 
City of Albany 
Vice Mayor Peter Maass 
 
City of Berkeley 
Councilmember Laurie Capitelli 
 
City of Dublin 
Mayor Tim Sbranti 
 
City of Emeryville 
Vice Mayor Ruth Atkin 
 
City of Fremont 
Mayor Bill Harrison 
 
City of Hayward 
Mayor Barbara Halliday 
 
City of Livermore 
Mayor John Marchand 
 
City of Newark 
Councilmember Luis Freitas 
 
City of Oakland 
Vice Mayor Larry Reid 
 
City of Piedmont 
Mayor Margaret Fujioka 
 
City of Pleasanton 
Mayor Jerry Thorne  
 
City of San Leandro 
Councilmember Michael Gregory 
 
City of Union City 
Mayor Carol Dutra-Vernaci 
 
 
Executive Director 
Arthur L. Dao 

Alameda County  
Transportation Commission 
Thursday, October 23, 2014, 2:00 p.m. 
1111 Broadway, Suite 800 
Oakland, CA 94607 

Mission Statement 
The mission of the Alameda County Transportation Commission  
(Alameda CTC) is to plan, fund, and deliver transportation programs and 
projects that expand access and improve mobility to foster a vibrant and 
livable Alameda County. 

Public Comments 
Public comments are limited to 3 minutes. Items not on the agenda are 
covered during the Public Comment section of the meeting, and items 
specific to an agenda item are covered during that agenda item discussion.  
If you wish to make a comment, fill out a speaker card, hand it to the clerk of 
the Commission, and wait until the chair calls your name. When you are 
summoned, come to the microphone and give your name and comment. 

Recording of Public Meetings 
The executive director or designee may designate one or more locations from 
which members of the public may broadcast, photograph, video record, or 
tape record open and public meetings without causing a distraction. If the 
Commission or any committee reasonably finds that noise, illumination, or 
obstruction of view related to these activities would persistently disrupt the 
proceedings, these activities must be discontinued or restricted as determined 
by the Commission or such committee (CA Government Code Sections 
54953.5-54953.6). 

Reminder 
Please turn off your cell phones during the meeting. Please do not wear 
scented products so individuals with environmental sensitivities may attend  
the meeting. 

Glossary of Acronyms 

A glossary that includes frequently used acronyms is available on the  
Alameda CTC website at www.AlamedaCTC.org/app_pages/view/8081. 

http://www.alamedactc.org/app_pages/view/8081


 

 

Location Map 

Alameda CTC 
1111 Broadway, Suite 800 
Oakland, CA  94607 

Alameda CTC is accessible by multiple 
transportation modes. The office is 
conveniently located near the 12th Street/City 
Center BART station and many AC Transit bus 
lines. Bicycle parking is available on the street 
and in the BART station as well as in electronic 
lockers at 14th Street and Broadway near 
Frank Ogawa Plaza (requires purchase of key 
card from bikelink.org). 

Garage parking is located beneath City Center, accessible via entrances on 14th Street between  
1300 Clay Street and 505 14th Street buildings, or via 11th Street just past Clay Street.  
To plan your trip to Alameda CTC visit www.511.org. 

 
Accessibility 

Public meetings at Alameda CTC are wheelchair accessible under the Americans with Disabilities 
Act. Guide and assistance dogs are welcome. Call 510-893-3347 (Voice) or 510-834-6754 (TTD)  
five days in advance to request a sign-language interpreter. 

     
 
Meeting Schedule 

The Alameda CTC meeting calendar lists all public meetings and is available at 
www.AlamedaCTC.org/events/upcoming/now. 
 
Paperless Policy 

On March 28, 2013, the Alameda CTC Commission approved the implementation of paperless 
meeting packet distribution. Hard copies are available by request only. Agendas and all 
accompanying staff reports are available electronically on the Alameda CTC website at 
www.AlamedaCTC.org/events/month/now. 
 
Connect with Alameda CTC 

www.AlamedaCTC.org facebook.com/AlamedaCTC 
 @AlamedaCTC 
 youtube.com/user/AlamedaCTC 

http://www.511.org/
http://www.alamedactc.org/events/upcoming/now
http://www.alamedactc.org/events/month/now
http://www.alamedactc.org/
http://www.facebook.com/AlamedaCTC
https://twitter.com/AlamedaCTC
http://www.youtube.com/user/AlamedaCTC


 
 
 

 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

Commission Meeting Agenda 
 Thursday, October 23, 2014, 2 p.m. 

1. Pledge of Allegiance Chair: Supervisor Scott Haggerty,  
Alameda County, District 1 

Vice Chair: Councilmember Rebecca Kaplan,  
City of Oakland 

Executive Director: Arthur L. Dao 

Clerk: Vanessa Lee 

2. Roll Call 

3. Public Comment 

4. Chair/Vice Chair Report 

5. Executive Director Report  

6. Approval of Consent Calendar 
On October 13, 2014 Alameda CTC standing committees approved all 
action items on the consent calendar, except Item 6.1. 

Page A/I* 

6.1. Approval of September 25, 2014 Minutes 1 A 
Recommendation: Approve the September 25, 2014 meeting 
minutes. 

  

6.2. I-580 Express Lanes Education and Outreach Schedule 7 I 

6.3. I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle/Express Lane Projects (PN 
720.4/720.5/724.1/724.4/724.5): Monthly Progress Report 

11 I 

6.4. Congestion Management Program: Summary of Alameda CTC’s 
Review and Comments on Environmental Documents and General Plan 
Amendments 

33 I 
 

6.5. Legislative Update  35 I 
6.6. Congestion Management Program (CMP): Elements, Scope, and 

Schedule for the 2015 CMP Update and Implementation of Travel 
Demand Management and Annual Conformity Findings 

43 A 

Recommendation: Approve the 2015 CMP update scope and 
schedule, augmentation and extension of the Travel Demand 
Management Program contract for Guaranteed Ride Home program, 
and 2013-2014 CMP conformity findings 

  

6.7. Lifeline Transportation Program Cycle 4 Guidelines 59 A 
Recommendation: Approve the project evaluation criteria and 
weighting to be used for the project selection process of the Cycle 4 
Lifeline Transportation Program. 

  

6.8. Safe Routes to Schools Program Annual Report 91 I 

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14689/6.1_combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14690/6.2_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14692/6.3_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14692/6.3_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14693/6.4_combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14693/6.4_combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14693/6.4_combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14694/6.5_combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14695/6.6_combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14695/6.6_combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14695/6.6_combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14696/6.7_combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14697/6.8_Combo.pdf


 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

6.9. East Bay Greenway Project  - Coliseum BART to 85th Avenue (635.1): 
Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) A12-0029 
with San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District and the City of 
Oakland 

109 A 
 

Recommendation: Authorize the Executive Director or designee of the 
Executive Director, to: 1) Amend MOU A12-0029 to modify limits of 
maintenance responsibilities, and 2) modify and/or execute any 
necessary agreements to fulfill the stipulations of the amended MOU 

  

6.10. I-880 Southbound HOV Lane Project (730.1/730.2): Hardscape 
Component 

113 A 

Recommendation: Approve the programming actions and authorize 
the Executive Director to execute agreements required to advance 
the Hardscape component of the project 

  

6.11. Various Projects: Time Extension Only Amendments 119 A 
Recommendation: Approve and authorize the Executive Director, 
or his designee, to execute amendments for requested time 
extensions in support of the Alameda CTC’s Capital Projects and 
Program delivery commitments 

  

6.12. Alameda CTC’s participation in the Special District Risk Management  
Authority (SDRMA) Risk Management Program 

123 A 

Recommendation: Approve Resolution 14-015 approving the form of 
and authorizing the execution of a Sixth Amended Joint Powers 
Agreement and Authorizing participation in the Special District Risk 
Management Authority’ Risk Management Program, and Resolution    
14-016 authorizing application to the Director of Industrial Relations, 
State of California for a Certificate of Consent to Self-Insure Workers’ 
Compensation Liabilities 

  

6.13. Community Advisory Appointments 155 A 
Recommendation: Approve the Alameda CTC Community Advisory 
Appointments. 

  

7. Community Advisory Committee Reports  
(Time limit: 3 minutes per speaker) 

  

7.1. Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee - Midori Tabata, Chair 157 I 
7.2. Citizens Watchdog Committee – James Paxson, Chair 163 I 
7.3. Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee – Sylvia Stadmire, Chair 165 I 

8. Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee Action Items 
On October 13, 2014, the Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee 
approved the following action items, unless otherwise noted in the 
recommendations. 

  

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14698/6.9_combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14698/6.9_combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14698/6.9_combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14698/6.9_combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14699/6.10_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14699/6.10_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14700/6.11_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14701/6.12_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14701/6.12_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14702/6.13_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14703/7.1_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14704/7.2_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14705/7.3_Combo.pdf


 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

8.1. Transportation Expenditure Plan Update (Verbal)  
8.2. Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) I-880 Express Lane 

Project 

 
177 

I 
I 

8.3. Comprehensive Investment Plan 181 A 
Recommendation: Approve the Comprehensive Investment Plan’s 
guiding principles, development process, and programming  
fund estimate. 

  

9. Programs and Projects Committee Action Items 
On October 13, 2014, the Programs and Projects Committee approved the 
following action items, unless otherwise noted in the recommendations. 

  

9.1. Alameda CTC Semi-Annual Programs and Projects Update 195 I 

10. Member Reports (Verbal)   

11. Adjournment   

 

Next meeting: December 4, 2014 

All items on the agenda are subject to action and/or change by the Commission. 

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14706/8.2_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14706/8.2_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14707/8.3_combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14708/9.1_Combo.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 



 
 
 

 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

Alameda County Transportation Commission 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, September 25, 2014, 2:00 p.m. 6.1 

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Roll Call 
The Clerk conducted a roll call. All members were present with the exception of: 
Commissioner Richard Valle, Commissioner Margaret Fujioka, Commissioner Tim Sbranti, 
Commissioner Jerry Thorne, Commissioner Larry Reid,Commissioner Keith Carson and 
Commissioner Luis Frietas 
 
Commissioner Pauline Cutter was present as the Alternate for Commissioner Wilma Chan. 
Commissioner Marvin Piexoto was present as an alternate for Commissioner Barbara 
Halliday. 
Commissioner Kirk Brinkham was present as an alternate for Commissioner Ruth Atkin.  
 
Subsequent to the roll call: 
Commissioners Richard Valle, Commissioner Tim Sbranti, Commissioner Luis Frietas arrived 
prior to the vote on item 6.  
 
Commissioner Keith Carson arrived during item 8.1. 

3. Public Comment 
A public comment was heard by Dave Campbell. 

4. Chair/Vice Chair Report 
Councilmember Piexoto presented the Commission with a Resolution of Support for 
Measure BB from the City of Hayward.   

5. Executive Director Report 
Art Dao stated that the CTC awarded the agency with a $2.6 million grant for the East Bay 
Greenway project. Art noted progress on the I-80 Integrated Corridor Mobility Project that 
included gantry installation and informed the Commission that phots of the gantry 
installation were provided.  He also informed the Commission that a spreadsheet outlining 
pavement conditions in each city could be found in their folders. Art stated that the CWC 
12thAnnual Report in the Commission folder, found for the 12th year in a row concurrence 
with the auditors that funds have been spent as approved by voters.  He concluded by  
inviting the Commissioners as well as members of the public to attend PAPCO’s Annual 
Mobility Workshop at the Ed Roberts Campus on October 17, 2014.   

6. Approval of Consent Calendar 

Page 1



 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

6.1. Approval of July 24, 2014 Minutes 
6.2. I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle/Express Lane Projects (PN 

720.4/720.5/724.1/724.4/724.5): Monthly Progress Report 
 

6.3. Congestion Management Program: Summary of Alameda CTC’s Review and 
Comments on Environmental Documents and General Plan Amendments 

6.4. 2014 Update to the Alameda County Priority Development Area (PDA) Investment and 
Growth Strategy 

6.5. Alameda CTC Annual Report Including the Vehicle Registration Fee Program 
6.6. California Transportation Commission August 2014 Meeting Summary 
6.7. FY 2014-15 Transportation Fund For Clean Air (TFCA) Program 
6.8. Measure B Special Transportation for Seniors and People with Disabilities (Paratransit) 

Gap Grant Cycle 5 Funding 
6.9. Regional Measure 2 Program Update 
6.10. I-580 Express Lanes Project (PN 720.4/724.1): Contract Amendments to Professional 

Services Agreements with Electronic Transaction Consultants Corporation (Agreement 
No. A09-007 and Agreement No. A13-0092) 

6.11. Route 84 – Expressway Widening (624.1/624.2): Contract Amendment to the 
Professional Services Agreement (Agreement No. A05-004) with URS Corporation 

6.12.  I-880/Broadway - Jackson Interchange Improvements Project(610.0): Professional 
Services Contract for the Project Approval and Environmental Document (PA/ED) 
Phase 

6.13. Time Extension Only Amendments 
6.14. Alameda CTC FY13-14 Year-End Investment Report 
6.15. Update on Banking Services Analysis and Activities - Local Banks 
6.16. Legislative Update  

 
Commissioner Ortiz moved to approve the Consent Calendar. Commissioner Dutra-Vernaci 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously (Carson, Thorne, Reid absent).   

  
7.  Community Advisory Committee Reports 

7.1. Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) 
There was no one present from BPAC.  
   

7.2. Citizens Watchdog Committee (CWC) 
There was no one present from CWC.  
 

7.3. Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee (PAPCO) 
Sylvia Stadmire, Chair of PAPCO stated that the committee met twice since the last 

Page 2

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14548/6.13_Combo.pdf


 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

report to the Commission. She stated that PAPCO was preparing for the Annual 
Mobility Workshop which will be held October 17, 2014 at the Ed Robert Campus. Sylvia 
stated that the Access Alameda Guide was printed and copies were provided to the 
Commission and she concluded by reviewing vacancies on the committee.  

8. I-580 Express Lane Committee Action Items 

8.1. I-580 Express Lanes Education and Outreach Update and Report on Research Findings 
Heather Barber presented the I-580 Express Lane Education and Outreach Update. 
She provided an overview of the schedule for the education and outreach plan over 
the next 18-months. She stated that a draft outreach and education plan was 
developed and that staff had done research through polling and focus groups that 
will be used to inform finalization of the plan.   
 
Heather introduced Daniel Sparling from Frank Wilson & Associates who presented 
more detailed information on the research findings. Daniel stated that there were four 
focus group held in the Tri-Valley area as well as a quantitative telephone survey of 
400 respondents. He covered awareness and favorability findings, as well as the top 
five questions and concerns. He also covered perceptions around lane operations, 
time savings finding and cost-benefits. He concluded by stating that the findings will 
be incorporated into the express lane education and outreach plan and used to 
finalize the outreach timeline.  
 
Commissioner Ortiz wanted specific project details and an explanation on what is 
being developed in the corridor. Art Dao stated that in the eastbound direction the 
Project will convert the newly constructed eastbound HOV lane to a double 
express lane facility while in the westbound direction it will convert the westbound 
HOV lane (currently under construction) to a single express lane facility.  
 
Commissioner Capitelli wanted to know if the toll rate would be establioshed by 
dynamic pricing. Art stated that the toll will be dynamic pricing based on traffic 
congestion in the corridor. 
 
Commissioner Capitelli wanted to know if it was possible to charge different toll 
amounts for drivers from outside of Alameda County. Art stated that the technology 
we are implementing is the newest and most updated technological system and he 
indicated that staff will research future options  and respond to the Commission.    

9. Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee Action Items 

9.1. Transportation Expenditure Plan Update 
Tess Lengyel updated the Commission on the Transportation Expenditure Plan. She 
stated that the measure had been placed on the ballot and is known as Measure BB. 
Tess also stated that there is one argument against the Measure and a rebuttal was 
submitted. Tess stated that the 2014 plan has garnered support from the East Bay 

Page 3

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14556/8.1_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14045/8.2_Combo.pdf


 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

Express as well as many more organizations throughout the county including the Sierra 
Club, League of Women Voters, Alameda County Taxpayers Association, United 
Seniors, Transform, Labor Council, the Port of Oakland and many others.  
 
This item was for information only.  
 

9.2. Multimodal Plans Update 
Tess Lengyel recommended that the Commission approve creation of an Ad Hoc 
Committee to provide focused input into the Countywide Transit Plan and provided 
an update on the Countywide Modal Plans. She stated that ACTC is on the forefront 
with six different modal plans that inform the development of the long-range 
countywide plan and Regional Transportation Plan (RTP). She covered the 
development and process timeline for the modal plans. She stated that ACTAC will 
serve as the technical advisory committee for the plans and she utlined public and 
stakeholder outreach process for the plans.  
 
Tess introduced Matthew Ridgeway, consultant Project Manager from Fehr & Peers to 
discuss the countywide multimodal arterial plans. Matthew covered project successes 
to date, and updated the Commission on the project design framework including the 
stakeholder engagement plan, data collection plan and travel demand forecasting.  
 
Tess then introduced Rebecca Kohlstand, consultant Project Manager from Parson 
Brinckerhoff to provide an update on the Countywide Transit Plan. Rebecca covered 
the scope of work and development process for the Transit Plan as well as the 
stakeholder engagement.  She stated that this study also integrated the AC Transit 
major corridor studies (MCS) and briefly covered the MCS development and benefits.  

 
Commissioner Miley wanted to know what the three transit networks were. Rebecca 
stated that the framework is still being development and will be discovered through 
communication with the Commission and the public.  
 
Commissioner Miley wanted to know the amounts of the consultant contracts. Tess 
stated that the contracts total three million dollars over the next two years and 
funding for the development of the plan was previously approved by the Commission.  
 
 
Commissioner Haggerty wanted to know what emphasis was placed on the Tri-Valley 
when developing this plan. Art stated that I-580 is a major goods movement corridor 
and the transit and arterials plans are inclusive to the eastern part of the county.  
 
This item was for information only.  

10. Member Reports  

Page 4



 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

There were no member reports.  

11. Adjournment 
The next meeing is: 

Date/Time:    October 23, 2014 @ 2:00 p.m. 
Location:       Alameda CTC Offices, 1111 Broadway, Suite 800, Oakland, CA 94607 

 

Attested by: 

 

____________________ 

Page 5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 6



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.2_I580_EductionOutreach_Update\6.2_I580_El_Eduction_Outreach_Schedule_Final_20141006.doc 

  

Memorandum  6.2 

 

DATE: October 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: I-580 Express Lanes Education and Outreach Schedule  

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on the I-580 Express Lanes Education and 
Outreach Schedule. 

 

Summary  

Alameda CTC will open new Express Lanes on the I-580 corridor in the Tri-Valley in fall 2015. A 
comprehensive research-based education and outreach approach has commenced that 
will inform motorists about the lanes and their safe and proper use, and will be a model for 
future projects.  New primary research has been completed to test commuter perceptions 
about the lanes. The results of the research are being integrated into the Outreach and 
Education Plan and messages are being refined in order to best prepare and educate the 
public for the opening of the express lanes.  
 
The next phase of education and outreach planning for the launch of the I-580 Express Lanes 
consists of developing a message strategy which adheres to and is responsive to the key 
findings from the research. How the lanes are introduced to the public, and the materials 
used to describe the lanes will be developed with the insight gained from research, ensuring 
that the messaging is on point.  
 
Background 

In December 2013, the Alameda CTC Commission approved the execution of a contract for 
I-580 Express Lanes Public Outreach and Education Services with Frank Wilson and Associates 
(FW&A) who have extensive experience promoting the benefits of managed lanes.  A draft 
Outreach and Education Plan has been developed and a research plan was implemented 
over the summer.  In September staff presented research findings and a comprehensive 
research-based approach to education and outreach that will be implemented throughout 
the Tri-Valley and in Contra Costa and San Joaquin Counties.   

 
 
 

Page 7



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.2_I580_EductionOutreach_Update\6.2_I580_El_Eduction_Outreach_Schedule_Final_20141006.doc 
 

Education and Outreach Schedule 
The 580 Express Lane communications will be implemented through a systematic process 
that result in positive word of mouth for the project, safe and proper use of the lanes, 
manageable enforcement and a model for future projects in the planned regional Bay Area 
Express Lanes network.  The following provides a project schedule and approach to these 
tasks. 
 
October – December 2014 
Major Milestones: 

• I-580 Express Lanes opening in thirteen months 
• New FasTrak transponder  

 
Key Communications Activities: 

• Develop and refine messaging that ensures easy understanding and access, as 
identified in research.  

• Develop and launch an outreach effort to begin to raise awareness about the 
project to build a positive perception of Alameda CTC and the project within the 
marketing areas.  

o Develop key stakeholder list and outreach event priority list 
o Develop branding and messaging for I-580 Express Lanes 
o Prepare talking points and project fact sheet 
o Develop press kit materials, FAQs and media list 
o Design and produce print materials 
o Develop website content develop “B-roll” and “How To” video for website  

• Develop speaking engagements list and schedule: 
o Develop project powerpoint  
o Conduct one-on-one meetings with key stakeholders/connectors 
o Meet with key stakeholders 
o Attend key community events 

• Promote Alameda CTC and Bay Area express lanes leaders in providing 
transportation solutions in the county and region.  

• Work with partners (MTC/BATA) to develop plan for outreach and education of 
FasTrak Flex to promote early acquisition of new tag by I-580 corridor users.  

• Coordinate with MTC/PIWG to integrate I-580 Express Lanes education and 
outreach with Bay Area Express Lanes Network 
 

January – March 2015 
Major Milestones: 

• Express Lane system integration construction activities to commence  
• FasTrak Flex to become available in April 

 
 

Page 8



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.2_I580_EductionOutreach_Update\6.2_I580_El_Eduction_Outreach_Schedule_Final_20141006.doc 
 

Key Communications Activities: 
• Begin outreach to key stakeholders, including government, business and 

community groups in Alameda, Contra Costa and San Joaquin Counties 
• Develop and launch Social Media Tools for Express Lanes to begin building a 

following 
• Plan media event/photo opportunities to mark the completion of gantry 

installation 
• Continued coordination with regional partners 

 
April – August 2015 
Major Milestones: 

• FasTrak Flex becomes available for distribution in the Bay Area 
• I-580 systems integration and testing 
 

Key Communications Activities: 
• Launch grass-roots community outreach effort to support early adoption of express 

lanes and FasTrak Flex, including understanding of benefits 
• Staff and attend spring/summer community events, including providing 

opportunities to obtain FasTrak Flex 
• Coordinate and attend transportation fairs at major employment centers 
• Continue outreach to key stakeholders, including government, business and 

community groups in Alameda, Contra Costa and San Joaquin Counties 
• Continue media outreach:  Project Status Report/How To’s 
• Coordinate with CHP to ensure safety and enforcement and to support grace 

period and violator education 
• Develop Risk Communications Protocols for opening of new lanes 
• Continued coordination with regional partners 

 
September - December 2015 
Major Milestones: 

• Completion of systems integration and testing 
• Launch I-580 Express Lanes 

 
Key Communications Activities: 

• Press Conference and Media Tour 
o Introduce “How to use the I-580 Express Lanes” Video 
o Interviews with Alameda CTC Commissioners and CHP 

• Outreach to carpoolers to reinforce and support carpooling 
• Continue marketing campaign for FasTrak Flex tolls tags  
• Grand Opening/Ribbon Cutting Event  

Page 9



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.2_I580_EductionOutreach_Update\6.2_I580_El_Eduction_Outreach_Schedule_Final_20141006.doc 
 

• Continued coordination with CHP to ensure safety and enforcement and to support 
grace period and violator education to offer violators opportunities to become 
customers 

• Continued coordination with regional partners 
 

January – March 2016 
Major Milestones: 

• Post-Launch success  
 
Key Communications Activities: 

• Ongoing education to drivers and close coordinate with CHP to ensure drivers 
understand rules of the road 

• Continue marketing campaign for FasTrak Flex tolls tags  
• Collect and promote testimonials  of new users of I-580 lanes  
• Promote statistics on growing usage tied to milestones (first month, first ninety days) 
• Develop messaging around travel time saved by the Express Lanes 
• Document public feedback and effectiveness of targeted outreach and marketing 

and define next steps 
 
Next Steps 
 
Staff will continue to bring outreach and education updates to the I-580 Express Lane Policy 
Committee throughout the coming year as staff plans and implements public education and 
outreach tasks to ensure the successful launch and post-launch use of the I-580 Express 
Lanes.  Topics will include: 

1. Education and outreach implementation and regional coordination –January 2015 

2. Transponder user education and marketing – March 2015 

3. Outreach and education for Express Lanes launch – June 2015 

4. Update on launch activities – Sept 2015 

 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no fiscal impact to the Alameda CTC budget due to this item. This is 
information only.  

Staff Contact  

Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy 
Heather Barber, Communications Manager 

  

Page 10

mailto:tlengyel@alamedactc.org
mailto:hbarber@alamedactc.org


 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent Items\6.3_I580_HOV_EL_Update\6.3_I580_HOV_EL_Update.docx 

  

Memorandum  6.3 

 

DATE: October 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle/Express Lane Projects (PN 
720.4/720.5/724.1/724.4/724.5): Monthly Progress Report 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive a monthly status update on the I-580 Corridor High 
Occupancy Vehicle/Express Lane Projects. 

 

Summary  

The Alameda CTC is sponsoring the I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV)/Express 
Lane Projects along the I-580 corridor in the Tri-Valley. The Eastbound I-580 Express Lane 
Project will convert the newly constructed eastbound HOV lane, from Hacienda Drive to 
Greenville Road, to a double express lane facility.  The I-580 Westbound Express Lane 
Project will convert the westbound HOV lane (currently under construction) to a single 
express lane facility from Greenville Road to San Ramon Road/Foothill Road.   

The environmental and civil design work for the express lanes is complete for both 
eastbound and westbound.   Civil construction is being implemented through multiple 
contract change orders (CCO’s) on the on-going HOV Lane construction contracts. The I-
580 Eastbound and Westbound Express Lane civil construction work will construct the 
necessary infrastructure, such as signing, sign gantries for dynamic messaging and toll 
reading, electrical conduit for connecting power and communication sources, and 
striping to accommodate the express lanes.  The System Integrator contractor will install 
the required communication equipment, toll hardware and integrate the toll subsystems, 
utilizing emerging technologies/software development.  The express lane facility is 
scheduled to open for public use in November 2015.   

For detailed information on project funding, schedule and status of each corridor project, 
including the Eastbound HOV Lane Project (Segment 3 Aux Lanes), the Westbound HOV 
Lane Project (Segments 1 and 2), the Eastbound I-580 Express Lane Project, Westbound I-
580 Express Lane Project and Toll System Integration activities, see Attachments A, B, C, D 
and E of this report. This item is for information only. 

Background 

The projects in the I-580 Corridor will provide increased capacity, safety and efficiency for 
commuters and freight along the primary corridor connecting the Bay Area with the 
Central Valley.  In its role as project sponsor, the Alameda CTC has been working in 

Page 11



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.3_I580_HOV_EL_Update\6.3_I580_HOV_EL_Update.docx 
 

partnership with Caltrans, California Highway Patrol, the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC), Alameda County, and the cities of Livermore, Dublin, and Pleasanton 
to deliver the projects. 

The I-580 Corridor HOV Lane Projects will be completed with the construction of three final 
projects in the Livermore Valley (two westbound HOV segments and one eastbound 
auxiliary (AUX) lanes project).  All of these projects are currently in construction and are 
being administered by Caltrans. Construction activity began in March 2013 and will 
complete by late 2015 in parallel with completion of express lane infrastructure. 

For efficiency purposes, the I-580 Eastbound and Westbound Express Lane Projects have 
been combined into one construction project. All the contract change orders (CCO’s) for 
express lane-civil infrastructure construction have already been issued to the on-going 
construction contracts along I-580 (I-580 Westbound HOV, I-580 Eastbound Auxiliary Lane 
and Freeway Performance Project). The benefit of implementing CCO’s is to avoid 
working in the environmentally sensitive areas, minimize additional traffic disruptions to 
the traveling public, reduce or eliminate re-work and potentially finish construction 
sooner.  Specific items in CCOs include: 

• Electrical Conduit – across and along I-580  

• Service and controller cabinets 

• Striping – stripe to final express lane configuration  

• Install K-rail along median at sign locations  

• Median concrete barrier 

• Fiber Optics Cable 

• Sign structures including tolling gantries, dynamic messaging signs, lighting 
standards and other sign structures. 

The system integration for express lane implementation is currently in design phase.  
Construction activities of express lane-system integration are expected to commence in 
March 2015 with electronic toll system, fully operational in November 2015. 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no significant fiscal impact to the Alameda CTC budget due to this 
item. This is information only.  

Attachments 

A.  I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane Project Monthly Progress Report (PN 720.5) 

B. I-580 Westbound HOV Lane Projects Monthly Progress Report (PN 724.4/724.5) 

C.  I-580 Eastbound Express Lane Project Monthly Progress Report (PN 720.4) 

Page 12



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.3_I580_HOV_EL_Update\6.3_I580_HOV_EL_Update.docx 
 

D.  I-580 Westbound Express Lane Project Monthly Progress Report (PN 724.1) 

E.  I-580 Express Lanes System Integration Monthly Progress Report 

F.  I-580 Corridor HOV Lane Projects – Location Map 

G. I-580 Corridor Express Lane Projects – Location Map 

 

Staff Contact  

Stewart Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 

Stefan Garcia, Project Controls Team 

Kanda Raj, Project Controls Team 

  

Page 13

mailto:stewartng@alamedactc.org
mailto:sgarcia@alamedactc.org
mailto:kraj@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 14



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20141013\4.2_I580_HOV_EL_Update\4.2A_I580EBHOVLaneStatusUpdate.doc 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane Project (PN 720.5) 

Monthly Progress Report 

September 2014 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

The Eastbound I-580 HOV Lane Project is completing one final construction segment, 

Segment 3 Auxiliary (AUX) Lanes, between Hacienda Drive and Greenville Road. The 

Project scope includes: 

 Construction of auxiliary lanes from Isabel Avenue to First Street; 

 Pavement width necessary for a double express (high occupancy toll lane 

facility); 

 Final lift of asphalt concrete (AC) pavement and striping for entire eastbound 

project limits from Hacienda Drive to Portola Avenue; 

 The soundwall that was deleted from the I-580/Isabel Avenue Interchange 

Project; and 

 The widening of two bridges at Arroyo Las Positas in the eastbound direction. 

 

CONSTRUCTION STATUS  

 

Traffic Handling & Night Work 

Construction activities include both day and night work. Significant work is involved in 

rehabilitating the existing pavement which requires closing traffic lanes; however, no 

complete freeway closures are anticipated. Due to heavy daytime traffic volumes, 

closing traffic lanes in the daytime is not feasible. For this reason, pavement 

rehabilitation work can only be done during nighttime hours. Night work will include 

setting lane closures and shifting traffic lanes (placement of safety barrier (k-rail) and 

striping work), existing pavement rehabilitation work (crack and seat, slab replacement 

and overlay) and electrical work.  Caltrans lane closure charts permit the contractor to 

perform this work at night between 9pm and 4am. Work behind k-rail and all bridge 

work is expected to occur during daytime hours. 

 

Construction Challenges 

Alameda CTC staff is working in close coordination with Caltrans to implement the 

project within limited funding.  Challenges and managed risks for this project include: 

 Bird Nesting on structures and in adjacent field areas 

 Installation of future express Lane components to facilitate express lane 

completion.  Project staff is working to combine HOV and express lane 

construction work in a manner that will keep the single HOV lane open until the 

double lane HOT/HOV express facility is completed 

 

Completed Activities – 74% of the contract work was completed as of 9/20/14 

Construction activities began in April 2013.  Work completed to date includes: 

 Las Positas Creek (EB and WB) bridge widening  

 Widening of major box culvert at Arroyo Seco and modification of drainage 

facilities.  Creek diversion is removed and area restored. 

 Most retaining walls on the outside of the freeway corridor. 

 

 

6.3A 

 

Page 15



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20141013\4.2_I580_HOV_EL_Update\4.2A_I580EBHOVLaneStatusUpdate.doc 

 

Ongoing & Upcoming Activities 

Caltrans maintains a project website 

(http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/projects/i580wbhov/) and conducts public information 

and outreach efforts in cooperation with Alameda CTC. Ongoing and upcoming work 

activities include: 

 Backfill two remaining retaining walls 

 Install Lighting and Traffic Operation Systems 

 Install infrastructure to support express lane operations 

 Paving activities continuing between Hacienda Drive and Greenville Road 

through October 2014 

 

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS 

 

The I-580 Eastbound HOV Project is funded through federal, state and local funds. 

 

Funding Plan – SEGMENT 3  

 

Project 

Phase 

Funding Source ($ million) 

CMIA RM2 TVTC FED SHOPP Meas. B Total 

PA&ED      0.02 0.02 

PS&E  1.72 1.30 0.23   3.25 

ROW  0.17 0.08    0.28 0.53 

Construct 

Cap 

17.87 2.20 0.14  4.69 6.57 31.47 

Construct 

Sup 

2.53 1.12 0.10   0.71 4.46 

Total 20.40 5.21 1.62 0.23 4.69 7.58 39.73 

Total Project Cost: $39.7M 

 

 

SCHEDULE STATUS  

 

The Eastbound AUX Lane project between Hacienda Drive and Greenville Road was 

advertised on July 9, 2012; bids were opened on October 5, 2012. Caltrans awarded 

the contract to OC Jones & Sons (with a bid 6.33 percent below the Engineer’s 

Estimate) on November 16, 2012. With the inclusion of infrastructure to support express 

lane operations, construction is now planned to complete in late 2015. 

 

Project Approval December 2011 (A) 

RTL May 2012 (A) 

CTC Vote May 2012 (A) 

Begin Construction 

(Award) 

November 2012 (A) 

End Construction October 2015 (T) 

 

Page 16

http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/projects/i580wbhov/


 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20141013\4.2_I580_HOV_EL_Update\4.2B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

ATTACHMENT B 

I-580 Westbound HOV Lane Projects (PN 724.4/724.5) 

Monthly Progress Report 

September 2014 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

The Westbound I-580 HOV Lane Project includes three segments: 

 SEGMENT 1 – WB HOV Eastern Segment from Greenville Road to Isabel Avenue 

 SEGMENT 2 – WB HOV Western Segment from Isabel Avenue to San Ramon Road 

 SEGMENT 3 – Bridge widening at Arroyo Las Positas Creek.  This work is included in the 

construction contract for the EB HOV Lane Project (see Attachment A).   

 

CONSTRUCTION STATUS – SEGMENTS 1 & 2  

 

Traffic Handling & Night Work 

Construction activities include both day and night work. Significant work is involved in 

rehabilitating the existing pavement which requires closing traffic lanes; however, no 

complete freeway closures are anticipated. Due to heavy daytime traffic volumes, 

closing traffic lanes in the daytime is not feasible. For this reason, pavement 

rehabilitation work can only be done during nighttime hours. Night work will include 

setting lane closures and shifting traffic lanes (placement of safety barrier (k-rail) and 

striping work), existing pavement rehabilitation work (crack and seat, slab replacement 

and overlay) and electrical work.  Caltrans lane closure charts permit the contractor to 

perform this work at night between 9pm and 4am. Work behind k-rail and all bridge 

work is expected to occur during daytime hours. 

 

Construction Challenges 

Alameda CTC staff is working in close coordination with Caltrans to implement the 

project within limited funding.  Challenges and managed risks for the project include: 

 

SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment) 

 Installation of future express Lane components to facilitate express lane 

completion.  Project staff is working to combine HOV and express lane 

construction work in a manner that will allow the HOV/express lane facility to be 

opened concurrently 

 Additional widening of the North Livermore Avenue structure to accommodate 

express lane width requirements 

 New retaining wall to account for recent, accelerated erosion within the Arroyo 

Seco Creek adjacent to the widening necessary for westbound lanes 

 Coordination with concurrent Caltrans projects in the area to reduce cost 

 Bird Nesting on structures and in adjacent field areas 

 Revision of pavement slab replacements to prioritize in areas most in need 

 

SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment) 

 Installation of future express lane components to facilitate express lane 

completion.  Project staff is working to combine HOV and express lane 

6.3B 

 

Page 17



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20141013\4.2_I580_HOV_EL_Update\4.2B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

construction work in a manner that will allow the HOV/express lane facility to be 

opened concurrently 

 Elimination of a retaining wall to reduce project cost 

 Changes to the pavement cross section to reduce project cost 

 Bird Nesting on structures and in adjacent field areas 

 Revision of pavement slab replacements to prioritize in areas most in need 

 

Completed Activities 

Construction activities began in March 2013.  Work completed to date includes: 

 

SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment) – 51% of the contract work was completed as of 9/20/14 

 North Livermore Ave bridge widening 

 Bridge widening at Arroyo Las Positas (2 locations)  

 Arroyo Seco RCB culvert extension 

 Construct major drainage facilities (e.g. double box culvert) 

 Concrete pavement slab replacements  

 Excavate and construct retaining walls and soil nail walls 

 Paving of ramp and gore areas 

 

SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment – 77% of the contract work was completed as of 9/20/14 

 Median widening from Airway to Hacienda  

 BART Barrier modifications  

 Temporary striping, shift traffic lanes and placement of safety barrier (k-rail) to 

allow for Stage 2 outside widening 

 Bridge widening at Dougherty Undercrossing near Dublin BART station  

 Bridge widening at Tassajara Creek  

 Precast slab pavement replacements 

 Outside widening from Airway to Hacienda 

 

Ongoing & Upcoming Activities 

Caltrans maintains a project website 

(http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/projects/i580wbhov/) and conducts public information 

and outreach efforts in cooperation with Alameda CTC. Ongoing and upcoming work 

activities include: 

 

SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment) 

 Soundwall construction at Vasco Road 

 Install Lighting and Traffic Operation Systems 

 Install infrastructure to support express lane operations 

 Complete retaining walls 

 Median widening and barrier reconfiguration 

 Mainline paving will begin in spring 2015 

 

SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment) 

 Installation of drainage systems 

 Median barrier reconfiguration 

 Complete retaining walls 

 Install Lighting and Traffic Operation Systems 

 Install infrastructure to support express lane operations 

Page 18

http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/projects/i580wbhov/


 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20141013\4.2_I580_HOV_EL_Update\4.2B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

 Final paving and striping between Airway Boulevard and Hacienda Drive will 

begin in spring 2015. 

 

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS 

 

The I-580 Westbound HOV Lane Project is funded through federal, state and local funds 

available for the I-580 Corridor. The total project cost is $143.9M, comprised of 

programmed (committed) funding from federal, state and local sources.   

 

Funding Plan – SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment) 

 

Project 

Phase 

Funding Source ($  million) 

CMIA RM2 TCRP FED SHOPP Meas. B TVTC Total 

Scoping   0.53 0.04         0.57 

PA&ED   4.38           4.38 

PS&E   2.29 0.11 0.15   1.69 0.42 4.66 

ROW   1.16       0.04  1.20 

Utilities   0.32           0.32 

Const Cap 35.34   5.92 6.19 13.54 1.60   62.59 

Const. Sup 6.52   1.59     1.08   9.19 

Total 41.86 8.68 7.66 6.34 13.54 4.41 0.42 82.91 

Total Project Cost: $82.9M 

 

Funding Plan – SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment) 

 

Project 

Phase 

Funding Source ($  million) 

CMIA RM2 TCRP FED SHOPP Meas. B TVTC Total 

Scoping   0.36 0.02         0.38 

PA&ED   2.92           2.92 

PS&E   1.53 0.07 0.10   1.12 0.28 3.10 

ROW   0.77       0.03   0.80 

Utilities   0.21          0.21 

Const Cap 33.73   2.49   9.61 0.10 0.30 46.23 

Const. Sup 6.75         0.58   7.33 

Total 40.48 5.79 2.58 0.10 9.61 1.83 0.58 60.97 

Total Project Cost: $61.0M 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20141013\4.2_I580_HOV_EL_Update\4.2B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

SCHEDULE STATUS 

 

SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment): 

The Westbound HOV Eastern Segment from Greenville Road to Isabel Avenue was 

advertised on July 16, 2012 and bids were opened on September 19, 2012. Caltrans 

awarded the contract to Ghilotti Construction Company, Inc. (with a bid 16.33 percent 

below Engineer’s Estimate) on November 20, 2012. With the inclusion of infrastructure to 

support express lane operations, construction is now planned to complete in early 2016. 

 

Project Approval January 2010 (A) 

RTL May 2012 (A) 

CTC Vote May 2012 (A) 

Begin Construction (Award) November 2012 (A) 

End Construction January 2016 (T) 

 

SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment): 

The Westbound HOV Western Segment from Isabel Avenue to San Ramon Road was 

advertised on June 25, 2012 and bids were opened on August 29, 2012. Caltrans 

awarded the contract to DeSilva Gates Construction (with a bid 23.32 percent below 

Engineer’s Estimate) on October 29, 2012.  With the inclusion of infrastructure to support 

express lane operations, construction is now planned to complete in mid 2015. 

 

Project Approval January 2010 (A) 

RTL April 2012 (A) 

CTC Vote April 2012 (A) 

Begin Construction (Award) October 2012 (A) 

End Construction July 2015 (T) 

 

Page 20



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20141013\4.2_I580_HOV_EL_Update\4.2C_I580EBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

 

ATTACHMENT C 

I-580 Eastbound Express Lane Project 

Monthly Progress Report 

September 2014 
 

 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

The I-580 Eastbound Express Lane Project will convert the newly constructed eastbound 

HOV lane, from Hacienda Drive in Dublin/Pleasanton to Greenville Road in Livermore, to 

a double express lane facility, a distance of approximately 11 miles. 

 

PROJECT DELIVERY STATUS 

 

 The environmental phase is complete    

 Civil design is complete and combined with the westbound component as one 

contract package. The civil construction is being implemented through CCO’s 

under the three I-580 HOV lane projects currently in construction (I-580 Westbound 

HOV Lane - West Segment, I-580 Westbound HOV Lane - East Segment and I-580 

Eastbound HOV Lane - Segment 3 with Auxiliary Lanes). All the CCOs have been 

issued to the contractors 

 Electronic toll system design is in progress 

 

RECENT ACTIVITIES 

 

 Civil construction activities are progressing 

 See Attachment E for toll system design updates 

 

UPCOMING ACTIVITIES 

 

 Coordinate civil construction activities for completion by March 2015 

 See Attachment E for toll system design updates 

 

POTENTIAL ISSUES/RISKS 

 

The civil construction has to be completed by early March 2015 to allow ETCC to start 

the electronic toll system equipment so that express lanes can be opened by 

November 2015. This schedule is very aggressive. Staff will work closely with Caltrans and 

ETCC to monitor progress and take appropriate actions as necessary.  

 

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS 

 

See Attachment E for combined project funding and financial status. 

 

 

 

 

 

6.3C 

 

Page 21



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20141013\4.2_I580_HOV_EL_Update\4.2C_I580EBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

SCHEDULE STATUS 

 

I-580 Eastbound Express Lane Project Schedule: 
 

Project Approval March 2014  

Civil Design Completion April 2014 

Begin Construction June 2014 

End Construction 

(Civil and System 

Integration) 

November 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 22



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20141013\4.2_I580_HOV_EL_Update\4.2D_I580WBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

 

ATTACHMENT D 

I-580 Westbound Express Lane Project 

Monthly Progress Report 

September 2014 
 

 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

The I-580 Westbound Lane Project will convert the planned westbound HOV lane to a 

single express lane facility from Greenville Road in Livermore to San Ramon Road / 

Foothill Road in Dublin / Pleasanton, a distance of approximately 14 miles. 

 

PROJECT DELIVERY STATUS 

 

 The environmental phase is complete    

 Civil design is complete and combined with the eastbound component as one 

contract package. The civil construction is being implemented through CCO’s 

under the three I-580 HOV lane projects currently in construction (I-580 Westbound 

HOV Lane - West Segment, I-580 Westbound HOV Lane - East Segment and I-580 

Eastbound HOV Lane - Segment 3 with Auxiliary Lanes). All the CCOs have been 

issued to the contractors 

 Electronic toll system design is in progress 

 

RECENT ACTIVITIES 

 

 Civil construction activities are progressing 

 See Attachment E for toll system design updates 

 

UPCOMING ACTIVITIES 

 

 Coordinate civil construction activities for completion by March 2015 

 See Attachment E for toll system design updates 

 

POTENTIAL ISSUES/RISKS 

 

The civil construction has to be completed by early March 2015 to allow ETCC to start 

installation of the electronic toll system equipment so that express lanes can be opened 

by November 2015. This schedule is very aggressive. Staff will work closely with Caltrans 

and ETCC to monitor progress and take appropriate actions as necessary.  

 

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS 

 

See Attachment E for combined project funding and financial status. 

 

 

 

 

 

6.3D 

 

Page 23



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20141013\4.2_I580_HOV_EL_Update\4.2D_I580WBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

SCHEDULE STATUS 

 

I-580 Westbound Express Lane Project Schedule: 

 

Project Approval August  2013   

Civil Design Completion April 2014  

Begin Construction June 2014   

End Construction  

(Civil and System Integration) 

November 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 24



 

 

ATTACHMENT E 

I-580 Express Lanes System Integration 

Monthly Progress Report 

September 2014 
 

  
SYSTEM INTEGRATION SCOPE DESCRIPTION 

 

The I-580 Express Lane-civil contract will construct the necessary infrastructure, such as 

signing, sign gantries for dynamic messaging and toll reading, electrical conduit for 

connecting power and communication sources and pavement striping to 

accommodate express lanes. The System Integration will include communication and 

tolling hardware design, software development, factory testing of equipment/design, 

toll system equipment/hardware installation and toll system integration. It will also 

consist of field testing of the toll equipment and all subsystems including the interfaces 

to the Bay Area Toll Authority - Regional Customer Service Center and Caltrans prior to 

implementing the new express lanes. 

 

Detailed Discussion 

The system integration focuses on the most recent technologies including software, 

hardware and traffic detection that will be deployed to optimize the existing corridor 

capacity in order to effectively manage the current and forecasted traffic congestion 

in the corridor.  The system integrator, however, will continue to own the software while 

the implementing agency will pay for a license to allow for the use of the toll 

integrator’s software.   

 

Electronic Transaction Consultants Corporation (ETCC), the project toll system 

integrator, has been updating the electronic toll system design to support the “near 

continuous” access configuration in both directions of I-580. As reported in the 2013       

I-580 Workshops, the “near continuous” concept provides additional access 

opportunities while reducing the foot-print required for implementing a shared 

express/general purpose lane facility.  In addition, it looks and feels similar to a High 

Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) facility and, therefore, is expected to provide driver 

familiarity. 

 

Project Geometry and Electronic Toll System Design  

The latest version of the express lanes concept proposes the following: 

 

In the eastbound I-580 direction: 

• Buffer separated single-lane HOV/Express Lane will be installed from Hacienda Drive 

to Fallon Road 

• Continuous access dual-lane HOV/Express Lane will be installed from Fallon Road to 

west of Vasco Road 

• Continuous access single-lane HOV/Express Lane will be installed from west of Vasco 

Road to Greenville Road 

 

 

 

6.3E 

 

Page 25



 

In the westbound I-580 direction: 

• Continuous access single-lane HOV/Express Lane will be installed from Greenville 

Road to Hacienda Drive 

• A buffer separated single-lane HOV/Express Lane will be installed from Hacienda 

Drive to the I-580/I-680 Interchange 

 

PROJECT STATUS 

  

Software and hardware design   

The system integration is currently in the design phase. To support the near continuous 

access and curtail toll violation, the toll system design includes zone-based tolling and 

automated toll violation enforcement. Toll gantries will be placed at approximately ¾ 

mile intervals to support toll collection and violation enforcement. System design also 

includes tools to support the California Highway Patrol’s efforts in curtailing vehicle 

occupancy violation. 

 

Detailed Design Document (DDD), prepared by ETCC for system integration has been 

approved. The approval enabled ETCC to proceed with software development.  

Consistent with project concepts presented in 2013 I-580 Workshops, ETCC procured 

proto-type hardware, conducted field tests and shared the results with Alameda CTC 

staff. Through these tests ETCC verified how its toll system would successfully detect 

vehicles under different driving scenarios. Subsequently, ETCC will perform a series of 

factory and field tests and work with Alameda CTC staff to validate its hardware and 

software design prior to opening the new express lanes facility. Construction activities 

of express lane-system integration are expected to commence in March 2015 with 

electronic toll system, fully operational in November 2015. 
 

Agency staff is working to deploy a comprehensive public education and outreach 

program to support the implementation of the express lanes which will employ new and 

emerging technologies. Business rules have been developed for consistent driver 

experience within the Regional Bay Area Express Lane Network. In the October 2014 

meeting, staff will outline the schedule activities associated with the public education 

and outreach plan.   

 

RECENT ACTIVITIES   

  

 ETCC verified that the proposed  toll system will be capable of identifying and 

collecting tolls in single- and double-lane near continuous access express lanes, 

capturing license plate images and providing tools to enhance occupancy 

violation enforcement  

 Based on Commission’s approval in September 2014, staff is working with ETCC to 

include license plate image capture and review system (ICRS) in ETCC’s scope of 

services in its Agreement to enforce automated toll violation 

 

UPCOMING ACTIVITIES 

 

 Roll out the education and outreach campaign to the public in early 2015 to 

educate them about the benefits of express lanes, how to use the lanes, new 

technologies, including the use of switchable transponders, and how to gather 

additional information, etc.   

 Conduct factory acceptance test in February 2015 

Page 26



 Continue to coordinate with BATA to complete a customer services agreement by 

spring 2015 for collecting tolls and processing toll violation enforcement services 

 Continue to work with Caltrans to complete an Operations and Maintenance 

(O&M) Agreement by spring 2015 

 

 

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS 

 

Combined Eastbound & Westbound Funding Plan for “near continuous” access 

 

Project  

Phase 

Funding Source ($ million) 

ARRA 

 

Federal 

Earmark 

RM2 TVTC TCRP 

Deferred 

Local 

(Meas. B) 

Total 

PA&ED 

 

  1.39 2.17 0.10  3.66 

PS&E 

 

0.70  0.11 0.93 3.10  4.84 

Sys. Int. 6.80 1.00  0.68 1.47 7.05 17.00 

ROW 

 

   0.37   0.37 

Const. 

Support 

  2.55  0.05 1.47 

 

4.07 

Construct 

Cap 

   0.63 1.28 22.65 24.56 

O&M 

 

     0.48 0.48 

TOTAL 7.50 1.00 4.05 4.78 6.0 31.65 54.98 

Total Project Cost: $54.98M 

 

Page 27



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 28



58
0

58
0

68
0

84

84

68
0

Po
rto

la
 A

ve

A
irw

ay
   

   
 

La
s P

os
ita

s R
d

S Vasco Rd

Greenville Rd

N Vasco Rd

S L
ive

rm
ore

 A
ve

Hopyard   Rd

Hacienda  

Santa    Rita      RdTassajara    Rd

Fallon Rd

San Ramon Rd

Dougherty Rd

Foothill    

Pl
ea

sa
nt

on

D
ub

lin

Dr

Firs
t S

t

Isabel     Ave

NC
a

n
yo

n 

N Livermore Ave

El  C
ha

rro

 

Bl
vd

Rd

Po
rto

la
 

Ave
Liv

er
m

or
e

M
un

ic
ip

al
 A

irp
or

t

Liv
er

m
or

e

Al
ta

m
on

t P
as

s R
d

Rd

 I-
58

0 
C

or
rid

or
 H

O
V 

La
ne

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
- L

oc
at

io
n 

m
ap

 

 
I-5

80
 E

as
tb

ou
nd

 H
O

V 
La

ne
 (C

om
p

le
te

) 
 

 

 
I-5

80
 E

as
tb

ou
nd

 A
UX

 L
a

ne
 (P

N
 7

20
.5

) 
 

 

 
I-5

80
 W

es
tb

ou
nd

 H
O

V 
La

ne
 (W

es
t -

 P
N

 7
24

.4
) 

 
 

 
I-5

80
 W

es
tb

ou
nd

 H
O

V 
La

ne
 (E

a
st

 - 
PN

 7
24

.5
) 

6.3F

Page 29

sgarcia
Sticky Note
Accepted set by sgarcia

sgarcia
Sticky Note
Accepted set by sgarcia



       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 

Page 30



58
0

58
0

68
0

84

84

68
0

Po
rto

la
 

A
irw

ay
   

   
 

La
s P

os
ita

s  
   

Rd S Vasco Rd

Greenville Rd

N Vasco Rd

S L
ive

rm
ore

 A
ve

Hopyard   Rd

Hacienda  

Santa    Rita      RdTassajara    Rd

Fallon Rd

San Ramon Rd

Dougherty Rd

Foothill    

Pl
ea

sa
nt

on

D
ub

lin

Dr

Firs
t S

t

Isabel     Ave

N Livermore Ave

El  C
ha

rro

 

Bl
vd

Rd

Av
e

Liv
er

m
or

e
M

un
ic

ip
al

 A
irp

or
t

Liv
er

m
or

e

Al
tm

on
t P

as
s R

d

Rd

 
Bu

ffe
r S

ep
ar

at
ed

 1
-L

an
e 

Ex
pr

es
s L

an
e 

 
 

 
C

on
tin

uo
us

 A
cc

es
s 1

-L
an

e 
Ex

pr
es

s L
an

e 
 

 

 
C

on
tin

uo
us

 A
cc

es
s 2

-L
an

e 
Ex

pr
es

s L
an

e 

 I-
58

0 
Ex

pr
es

s 
La

ne
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

m
ap

 

6.3G

Page 31



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 32



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.4_EnvDocReview\6.4_EnvironmentalDocReview.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 6.4 

 

DATE: October 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Congestion Management Program (CMP): Summary of the Alameda 
CTC’s Review and Comments on Environmental Documents and 
General Plan Amendments 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on the Alameda CTC’s Review and Comments on 
Environmental Documents and General Plan Amendments. 

 

Summary  

This item fulfills one of the requirements under the Land Use Analysis Program (LUAP) element 
of the Congestion Management Program (CMP). As part of the LUAP, Alameda CTC reviews 
Notices of Preparations (NOPs), General Plan Amendments (GPAs), and Environmental 
Impact Reports (EIRs) prepared by local jurisdictions and comments on them regarding the 
potential impact of proposed land development on the regional transportation system.  

Since the last update on September 8, 2014, the Alameda CTC has not reviewed any 
environmental documents. 

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact. 

Staff Contact  

Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy 

Matthew Bomberg, Assistant Transportation Planner 

 

Page 33

mailto:TLengyel@AlamedaCTC.org
mailto:MBomberg@AlamedaCTC.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 34



 
 
 

 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 

Items\6.5_Legislation\6.5_LegislativeUpdate.docx 
 

Memorandum  6.5 

 

DATE: October 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Legislative Update 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on state and federal legislative activities 

 

This memo provides an update on federal, state and local legislative activities including 
an update on the federal budget, federal transportation issues, legislative activities and 
policies at the state level, as well as an update on local legislative activities.   

Alameda CTC’s legislative program was approved in December 2013 establishing 
legislative priorities for 2014 and is included in summary format in Attachment A.  The 2014 
Legislative Program is divided into six sections: Transportation Funding, Project Delivery, 
Multi-Modal Transportation and Land Use, Climate Change, Goods Movement and 
Partnerships. The program was designed to be broad and flexible to allow Alameda CTC 
the opportunity to pursue legislative and administrative opportunities that may arise 
during the year, and to respond to political processes in Sacramento and Washington, 
DC.  Each month, staff brings updates to the Commission on legislative issues related to 
the adopted legislative program, including recommended positions on bills as well as 
legislative updates. 

Background 

Federal Update 

The following updates provide information on activities and issues at the federal level and 
include information contributed from Alameda CTC’s lobbyist team (CJ Lake/Len Simon). 

Federal Budget Update and Fiscal Year 2015 Appropriations 

Prior to Congress going into recess in September, it passed a Continuing Resolution (CR) 
to fund the federal government into the new fiscal year that begins on October 1.  Since 
Congress has not passed a single FY 2015 appropriations bill, this CR was critical to ensure 
on-going operations of the nation. The short-term CR will fund most federal agencies 
through December 11, 2014 at current FY 2014 levels. The House approved the bill by a 
vote of 319-108 and the Senate passed the bill by a vote of 78-22. 

Page 35



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 

Items\6.5_Legislation\6.5_LegislativeUpdate.docx 
 

 

The House and Senate will return to Washington on November 12, following the mid-term 
elections. Both Majority Leader Reid (D-NV) and Speaker Boehner (R-OH) have stated that 
the completion of the FY 2015 bills is a priority in the lame duck session.  However, the way 
in which the bills will be completed will be determined by the outcome of the elections. If 
Republicans gain control of the Senate, they may want to make some changes to the 
already-written drafts making it less certain that there will be swift passage of a FY 2015 
omnibus appropriations bill. 

Policy 

Innovation in Surface Transportation Act of 2014: Senators Cory Booker (D-NJ) and Roger 
Wicker (R-MS) introduced the Innovation in Surface Transportation Act (S. 2891) on 
September 18.  The legislation would allow local jurisdictions to compete for a larger share 
of federal funds. The bill would set aside a share of various federal programs (National 
Highway Performance Program, Highway Safety Improvement Program, Congestion 
Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program, Surface Transportation Program, and 
the Transportation Alternatives Program) that flow directly to state departments of 
transportation. Local jurisdictions, metropolitan planning organizations (MPOs), transit 
providers, and others would be in charge of developing projects for consideration. A 
panel of local stakeholders would decide which projects to approve based on how the 
project could improve the transportation system, promote innovation, and spur economic 
development. The legislation has a bipartisan House companion, H.R. 4726. 

FY14 TIGER Grants: The Administration officially announced the recipients of the FY14 
TIGER awards on September 12.  A total of 72 grants were announced totaling $584 
million. DOT received 797 applications totaling $9 billion for an available funding amount 
in this TIGER round of approximately $600 million. Unfortunately, Alameda CTC’s 
application was not funded for the East Bay Greenway Project; however, it was funded at 
the state level under California’s Active Transportation Program.  The following link will is to 
the full list of TIGER awardees, including the award to MTC for a Bay Area Core Capacity 
Transit Study: 
http://www.dot.gov/sites/dot.gov/files/docs/TIGER14_Project_FactSheets.pdf 

FTA Administrator Nomination: The Senate Banking Committee scheduled a hearing for 
September 23, on the official nomination of Therese McMillan to be FTA Administrator. 
However, the hearing was postponed since the Senate adjourned on September 18, until 
after the mid-term elections.  The Banking Committee will likely reschedule the hearing for 
the lame duck session that will begin on November 12. 

Importance of Infrastructure Investment: Two new reports highlight the importance of 
transportation at both the federal and local levels. A report from the Pew Charitable Trusts 
(Pew Report) shows that between 2007 and 2011 the federal government share of 
average annual spending on highways and transit nationwide was just 25 percent, or $51 

Page 36

http://www.dot.gov/sites/dot.gov/files/docs/TIGER14_Project_FactSheets.pdf
http://www.dot.gov/sites/dot.gov/files/docs/TIGER14_Project_FactSheets.pdf
http://www.pewtrusts.org/en/research-and-analysis/reports/2014/09/intergovernmental-challenges-in-surface-transportation-funding


 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 

Items\6.5_Legislation\6.5_LegislativeUpdate.docx 
 

 

billion, of the total.  The second report from the National Association of Manufacturers 
shows how maintaining the status quo in infrastructure spending will not be enough to turn 
around the nation’s failing grade on infrastructure and move the U.S. economy toward a 
more competitive future.  More information on this report can be found at NAM Report.  

State Update 

The 2013-14 state legislative session ended almost two days before the August 31st 
midnight deadline.  Several major pieces of legislation were approved during the final 
hours, such as groundwater management, the plastic bag ban and paid sick leave, and 
past practices of gut and amends occurring in the final session hours did not materialize 
this year.  Both houses spent time in the days leading up to the end of session 
commemorating termed out members and other departing staff, including Senators Ellen 
Corbett, Mark DeSaulnier, and Assemblywomen Joan Buchanan and Nancy Skinner.  Next 
year there will be 23 new legislators as well as a new Pro Tem, Senator De León, and a 
(fairly) new Speaker, Toni Atkins.    

Governor Brown has until September 30th to sign or veto the bills sent to his desk during the 
final week of session, and the Legislature is gone until December 1st.  A major 
transportation related, SB 1077 (DeSaulnier), which creates a process to explore a vehicle 
miles traveled fee was signed by the Governor. Staff will report on other bills at the 
meeting, after the final outcome of the Governor’s deadline to sign or veto is known. 

Interim Events:  While the legislative session is recessed, there continues to be significant 
activity in Sacramento regarding the drafting of guidelines for the cap & trade programs 
funded in the budget.  In particular the Strategic Growth Council (SGC) released its draft 
guidelines for the Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities Program (AHSC).  The 
California State Transportation Agency (CalSTA) is expected to release its draft guidelines 
for the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program and the Transit and Intercity Rail Capital 
Program in early October.  The release of these draft guidelines triggers another round of 
statewide workshops and the solicitation of public comments.   

Interim Guidance:  The California Air Resources Board approved staff’s proposed “Interim 
Guidance to Agencies Administering Greenhouse Gas Monies.”  This document provides 
direction to those state agencies administering cap & trade funds as well as local entities 
expending these funds on issues of accountability and determining if a project benefits a 
disadvantage community.   

The adopted motion approved the Guidance document along with additional changes 
requested by Board members.  The motion also included direction to submit comments to 
CalEPA stating that the CalEnviroscreen process needs additional refinements to address 
issues on adequately identifying disadvantage communities (DAC).   

Since this is guidance and NOT guidelines, the Board was not required to take action on 

Page 37

http://www.nam.org/~/media/a48a50f643ee44a3947dd4ffaaec16de.ashx


 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 

Items\6.5_Legislation\6.5_LegislativeUpdate.docx 
 

 

this item.  However, given the importance of this document, the Board added it to its 
agenda and unanimously approved this document with additional direction to staff.  The 
next steps are for CARB staff to complete additional revisions and for CalEPA to finalize its 
identification of DAC. 

Several of the Board members expressed concerns about how many DACs do not register 
in the top 20% of the CalEnviroscreen process.  CARB staff attempted to address some of 
these concerns, by illustrating a definition of benefiting a disadvantage community by 
using transit corridors in the Bay Area.  The illustration used the top 20% of DAC’s per 
method 1 of the CalEnviroscreen process, then extended the boundaries first using the ½ 
mile radius for access to transit, and then further expanding the sphere of benefit by using 
zip codes instead of census tracts.  This substantially increased the area where a project 
would benefit a DAC, but it did not sufficiently address the Board’s concerns. 

Supervisor John Gioia proposed nearly all of the changes to the Guidance document, 
which the Board approved.  The changes include providing greater clarity and specifics 
on the reporting and accountability requirements, more specificity in each of the tables 
in the appendix to maximize benefits to disadvantage communities, and addition of anti-
displacement language to the table for AHSC projects.  There was also direction to clarify 
that affordable housing projects should not be restricted to a DAC in order to be 
considered a benefit to a DAC, or to at least use zip code areas rather than census tracts 
to determine this benefit.  Supervisor Gioia also raised questions about the need to clarify 
the link between a DAC and a transit project.  A copy of the guidance document can be 
found at the following link, but this document does not yet reflect the changes 
mentioned above:  
http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/capandtrade/auctionproceeds/workshops/arb-sb-535-
interim-guidance-08-22-2014.pdf  

SGC Guidelines:  The SGC released its draft guidelines for the AHSC Program on 
September 23rd, as well as draft guidelines for the Sustainable Agriculture and Land 
Conservation Program.  A series of workshops has been set for October 27th in 
Sacramento and October 24th in Oakland.  Additional workshops will be held in Merced 
and Los Angeles.  The time and location of these workshops has not been announced.  
Comments on the draft guidelines may be submitted anytime between now and October 
31st.  Alameda CTC is participating in discussions at the regional and state level on these 
guidelines. 

For the 2014-15 fiscal year there is $130 million available for these programs.  For the 
Sustainable Agriculture Program, $1 million is available, with individual grants capped at 
$100,000.  The balance is dedicated to the Affordable Housing & Sustainable 
Communities (AHSC) Program.  Under the AHSC program, grants are capped at $15 
million for a Transit Oriented Development (TOD) project, with the minimum award being 
$1 million, and for an Integrated Connectivity Project (ICP) the maximum award is $8 

Page 38

http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/capandtrade/auctionproceeds/workshops/arb-sb-535-interim-guidance-08-22-2014.pdf
http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/capandtrade/auctionproceeds/workshops/arb-sb-535-interim-guidance-08-22-2014.pdf


 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 

Items\6.5_Legislation\6.5_LegislativeUpdate.docx 
 

 

million, with a minimum award of $500,000. 

There are generally two categories of projects in the AHSC program.  A TOD project must 
include an affordable housing component and be located within a ½ mile of a High 
Speed Rail, Commuter or Light Rail station, or a Bus Rapid Transit or Express Bus corridor.  
The other category is the ICP, which would be for smaller projects aimed at enhancing 
access to transit or improving transit service, which can range from high speed rail, rail, 
BRT, bus and shuttle services. 

Applications must be submitted by the public entity that has jurisdiction over the project 
area, but the application can be in partnership with other public or private entities.  It is a 
two-step application process.  Applicants will first submit online a “concept proposal” and 
then those meeting minimum criteria will be asked to submit a full application.  SGC and 
MPOs will work with applicants to ensure that a proposed project is consistent with the 
Sustainable Communities Strategies.  SGC will also be seeking the advice of MPOs 
throughout the evaluation process.  The details of how this process will work are currently 
being defined.  A copy of the draft guidelines can be found at: 

Affordable Housing & Sustainable Communities Program 

http://www.sgc.ca.gov/docs/Draft_AHSC_Guidelines_for_posting_082314.pdf 

Sustainable Agriculture & Land Conservation Grants 

http://www.sgc.ca.gov/docs/Sustainable_Ag_Lands_Conservation_Program_Guidelines_0
92214_DRAFT.pdf 

Legislation 

Legislative coordination efforts:  Alameda CTC is leading and participating in many 
legislative efforts at the local, regional, state and federal levels, including coordinating 
with other agencies and partners as well as seeking grant opportunities to support 
transportation investments in Alameda County.  For the 2015 legislative platform, staff is 
coordinating with local partner agencies to discuss legislative priorities in Alameda 
County. In addition, staff is participating at MTC and CMA legislative discussions in 
October.  Staff will bring a proposed set of legislative priority concepts in November, 
reflecting local and regional discussions, for the Commission to consider.  A final 
legislative platform will be brought to the Commission for final approval at the December 
Commission meeting.   

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact.  

Attachments 

A. Alameda CTC 2014 Legislation Program 

Page 39

http://www.sgc.ca.gov/docs/Draft_AHSC_Guidelines_for_posting_082314.pdf
http://www.sgc.ca.gov/docs/Sustainable_Ag_Lands_Conservation_Program_Guidelines_092214_DRAFT.pdf
http://www.sgc.ca.gov/docs/Sustainable_Ag_Lands_Conservation_Program_Guidelines_092214_DRAFT.pdf


 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 

Items\6.5_Legislation\6.5_LegislativeUpdate.docx 
 

 

Staff Contact  

Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy 

Page 40

mailto:TLengyel@AlamedaCTC.org


 R
:\

A
la

C
TC

_
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s\

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

\
P

P
LC

\
2

0
1

4
0

2
0
3

\
5

.1
_
Le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
\

5
.1

A
_
2

0
1

4
_
Le

g
is

la
ti
v
e

_
P

la
tf

o
rm

_
Ta

b
le

.d
o

c
x
 

2
0
1
4

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
 L

e
g

is
la

ti
v

e
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 
Th

e
 le

g
is

la
ti
v

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

 h
e

re
in

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

s 
A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
’s

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 v

is
io

n
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 2

0
1

2
 C

o
u

n
ty

w
id

e
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 d
e

sc
ri
b

e
d

 b
e

lo
w

: 
  

“
A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

o
u

n
ty

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
e

rv
e

d
 b

y
 a

 p
re

m
ie

r 
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 s

y
st

e
m

 t
h

a
t 

su
p

p
o

rt
s 

a
 v

ib
ra

n
t 

a
n

d
 li

v
a

b
le

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 c
o

n
n

e
c

te
d

 a
n

d
 in

te
g

ra
te

d
 m

u
lt
im

o
d

a
l 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 s

y
st

e
m

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 s

u
st

a
in

a
b

ili
ty

, 
a

c
c

e
ss

, 
tr

a
n

si
t 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s,

 p
u

b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s.
 O

u
r 

v
is

io
n

 r
e

c
o

g
n

iz
e

s 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n

d
 o

p
e

ra
te

 

o
u

r 
e

xi
st

in
g

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 in

fr
a

st
ru

c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

w
h

ile
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
in

g
 n

e
w

 i
n

v
e

st
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
, 

e
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
, 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

lly
 s

o
u

n
d

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 la

n
d

 u
se

s.
 M

o
b

ili
ty

 

in
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

o
u

n
ty

 w
ill

 b
e

 g
u

id
e

d
 b

y
 t

ra
n

sp
a

re
n

t 
d

e
c

is
io

n
-m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
e

a
su

re
a

b
le

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
. 

O
u

r 
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 s

y
st

e
m

 w
ill

 b
e

: 
M

u
lt
im

o
d

a
l; 

A
c

c
e

ss
ib

le
, 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 

E
q

u
it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 o
f 

a
ll 

a
g

e
s,

 in
c

o
m

e
s,

 a
b

ili
ti
e

s 
a

n
d

 g
e

o
g

ra
p

h
ie

s;
 I
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 w

it
h

 la
n

d
 u

se
 p

a
tt

e
rn

s 
a

n
d

 lo
c

a
l d

e
c

is
io

n
-m

a
k
in

g
; 

C
o

n
n

e
c

te
d

 a
c

ro
ss

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ty

, 
w

it
h

in
 a

n
d

 a
c

ro
ss

 t
h

e
 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 o

f 
st

re
e

ts
, 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s 

a
n

d
 t

ra
n

si
t,

 b
ic

y
c

le
 a

n
d

 p
e

d
e

st
ri
a

n
 r

o
u

te
s;

 R
e

lia
b

le
 a

n
d

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
t;

 C
o

st
 E

ff
e

c
ti
v

e
; 

W
e

ll 
M

a
in

ta
in

e
d

; 
S
a

fe
; 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e

 o
f 

a
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 a

n
d

 C
le

a
n

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.
” 

 

Is
su

e
 

P
ri
o

ri
ty

 
S
tr

a
te

g
y

 C
o

n
c

e
p

ts
 

Tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

In
c

re
a

se
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

to
 lo

w
e

r 
th

e
 t

w
o

-t
h

ir
d

s-
v

o
te

r 
th

re
sh

o
ld

 f
o

r 
v

o
te

r-
a

p
p

ro
v

e
d

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 m

e
a

su
re

s.
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 in

c
re

a
si

n
g

 t
h

e
 b

u
y
in

g
 p

o
w

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 g
a

s 
ta

x
 a

n
d

/o
r 

in
c

re
a

si
n

g
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
v

e
n

u
e

s 
th

ro
u

g
h

 v
e

h
ic

le
 l
ic

e
n

se
 f

e
e

s,
 

v
e

h
ic

le
 m

ile
s 

tr
a

v
e

le
d

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

re
lia

b
le

 m
e

a
n

s.
 

P
ro

te
c

t 
a

n
d

 e
n

h
a

n
c

e
 v

o
te

r-
a

p
p

ro
v

e
d

 

fu
n

d
in

g
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 in

c
re

a
se

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 n
e

w
 a

n
d

/o
r 

fl
e

xi
b

le
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 s

o
u

rc
e

s 
to

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
 f

o
r 

o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
, 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

, 
re

st
o

ri
n

g
 

a
n

d
 im

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 in

fr
a

st
ru

c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s.

 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

th
a

t 
p

ro
te

c
ts

 a
g

a
in

st
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 d

iv
e

rs
io

n
s.

 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 in

c
re

a
se

s 
in

 f
e

d
e

ra
l, 

st
a

te
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
io

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 t
o

 e
xp

e
d

it
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s.
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

th
a

t 
g

iv
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 t
o

 v
o

te
r-

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 m

e
a

su
re

s 
a

n
d

 o
p

p
o

se
 t

h
o

se
 t

h
a

t 
n

e
g

a
ti
v

e
ly

 a
ff

e
c

t 
th

e
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
v

o
te

r-
a

p
p

ro
v

e
d

 m
e

a
su

re
s.

 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 r

e
w

a
rd

in
g

 S
e

lf
-H

e
lp

 C
o

u
n

ti
e

s 
a

n
d

 s
ta

te
s 

th
a

t 
p

ro
v

id
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 in

to
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 s

y
st

e
m

s.
 


 S

e
e

k
, 
a

c
q

u
ir
e

 a
n

d
 im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

g
ra

n
ts

 t
o

 a
d

v
a

n
c

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

 d
e

liv
e

ry
. 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

o
u

n
ty

 a
s 

th
e

 r
e

c
ip

ie
n

t 
o

f 
fu

n
d

s 
to

 im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
g

ra
n

ts
 a

n
d

 p
ilo

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
 

P
ro

je
c

t 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 

A
d

v
a

n
c

e
 in

n
o

v
a

ti
v

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l s

tr
e

a
m

lin
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

e
d

it
e

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e

liv
e

ry
. 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ti
n

g
 f

le
x
ib

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 in

n
o

v
a

ti
v

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 m

e
th

o
d

s.
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 H

O
T 

la
n

e
 e

xp
a

n
si

o
n

 in
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

o
u

n
ty

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 B
a

y
 A

re
a

, 
a

n
d

 e
ff

o
rt

s 
th

a
t 

p
ro

m
o

te
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
. 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

to
 a

llo
w

 lo
c

a
l a

g
e

n
c

ie
s 

to
 a

d
v

e
rt

is
e

, 
a

w
a

rd
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
te

r 
st

a
te

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
 s

y
st

e
m

 c
o

n
tr

a
c

ts
 la

rg
e

ly
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 

lo
c

a
ls

 

E
n

su
re

 c
o

st
-e

ff
e

c
ti
v

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

th
a

t 
re

d
u

c
e

 p
ro

je
c

t 
a

n
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 c

o
st

s 
b

y
 r

e
d

u
c

in
g

 o
r 

e
lim

in
a

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
st

a
te

 

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

a
g

e
n

c
y
 r

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c

ts
 o

n
 s

ta
te

/r
e

g
io

n
a

l s
y
st

e
m

s.
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

c
c

e
le

ra
ti
n

g
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
o

lic
ie

s 
to

 im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
h

a
t 

c
re

a
te

 j
o

b
s 

a
n

d
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

  

M
u

lt
im

o
d

a
l 

Tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

La
n

d
 U

se
 

R
e

d
u

c
e

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 la
n

d
 u

se
 i
n

v
e

st
m

e
n

ts
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
in

c
re

a
se

s 
fl
e

xi
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c

e
s 

te
c

h
n

ic
a

l a
n

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o

 in
v

e
st

m
e

n
ts

 li
n

k
in

g
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
, 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 a
n

d
 jo

b
s.

 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 lo

c
a

l f
le

x
ib

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 d

e
c

is
io

n
-m

a
k
in

g
 o

n
 la

n
d

-u
se

 f
o

r 
tr

a
n

si
t 

o
ri
e

n
te

d
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
re

a
s.

 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 in

n
o

v
a

ti
v

e
 f

in
a

n
c

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s 
to

 f
u

n
d

 T
O

D
 a

n
d

 P
D

A
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
  

E
x
p

a
n

d
 m

u
lt
im

o
d

a
l 
sy

st
e

m
s 

a
n

d
 f

le
xi

b
ili

ty
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

o
lic

ie
s 

th
a

t 
p

ro
v

id
e

 i
n

c
re

a
se

d
 f

le
xi

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 in

n
o

v
a

ti
v

e
, 
fl
e

x
ib

le
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
th

a
t 

a
d

d
re

ss
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s 
o

f 
c

o
m

m
u

te
rs

, 
y
o

u
th

, 
se

n
io

rs
, 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s 
a

n
d

 lo
w

-i
n

c
o

m
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 d
o

 n
o

t 
c

re
a

te
 u

n
fu

n
d

e
d

 

m
a

n
d

a
te

s.
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 in

v
e

st
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

tr
a

n
si

t-
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
th

a
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e

d
 a

c
c

e
ss

 t
o

 g
o

o
d

s,
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s,
 

jo
b

s 
a

n
d

 e
d

u
c

a
ti
o

n
. 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

a
ri
ty

 in
 p

re
-t

a
x
 f

ri
n

g
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 f
o

r 
p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n

si
t/

v
a

n
p

o
o

lin
g

 a
n

d
 p

a
rk

in
g

. 

1
1

1
1

 B
ro

a
d

w
a

y
, 
S
u

it
e

s 
8

0
0

 

O
a

k
la

n
d

, 
C

A
  

9
4
6
0
7

 

(5
1
0

) 
2

0
8

-7
4

0
0

 

w
w

w
.A

la
m

e
d

a
C

TC
.o

rg
  

 

6.5A

Page 41

http://www.alamedactc.org/


 R
:\

A
la

C
TC

_
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s\

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

\
P

P
LC

\
2

0
1

4
0

2
0
3

\
5

.1
_
Le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
\

5
.1

A
_
2

0
1

4
_
Le

g
is

la
ti
v
e

_
P

la
tf

o
rm

_
Ta

b
le

.d
o

c
x
 

Is
su

e
 

P
ri
o

ri
ty

 
S
tr

a
te

g
y

 C
o

n
c

e
p

ts
 

C
li
m

a
te

 C
h

a
n

g
e

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 c
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

in
n

o
v

a
ti
v

e
 i
n

fr
a

st
ru

c
tu

re
, 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s,

 a
n

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
th

a
t 

re
lie

v
e

 c
o

n
g

e
st

io
n

, 
im

p
ro

v
e

 a
ir
 q

u
a

lit
y
, 
re

d
u

c
e

 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 e
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t.
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 e
x
p

a
n

si
o

n
 o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
h

o
u

si
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
d

o
e

s 
n

o
t 

c
o

n
fl
ic

t 
w

it
h

 o
r 

re
d

u
c

e
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 c
a

p
-a

n
d

-t
ra

d
e

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 p

la
n

 

 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

a
p

 a
n

d
 t

ra
d

e
 f

u
n

d
s 

d
e

ri
v

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 f

u
e

ls
 f

o
r 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 p

u
rp

o
se

s.
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 e
m

e
rg

in
g

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

ie
s 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 in

c
e

n
ti
v

e
s 

fo
r 

e
m

e
rg

in
g

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

ie
s,

 s
u

c
h

 a
s 

a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v

e
 f

u
e

ls
 a

n
d

 f
u

e
lin

g
 t

e
c

h
n

o
lo

g
y
, 
a

n
d

 r
e

se
a

rc
h

 f
o

r 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s.

 

G
o

o
d

s 
M

o
v

e
m

e
n

t 
E
x
p

a
n

d
 g

o
o

d
s 

m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 

p
o

lic
y
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 


 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
 m

u
lt

i-
m

o
d

a
l 
g

o
o

d
s 

m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

sy
st

e
m

 a
n

d
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

th
a

t 
e

n
h

a
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

lo
c

a
l 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t,
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

. 


 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
 d

e
si

g
n

a
te

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 s

tr
e

a
m

 f
o

r 
g

o
o

d
s 

m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t.

  


 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 g
o

o
d

s 
m

o
v

e
m

e
n

t 
p

o
lic

ie
s 

th
a

t 
e

n
h

a
n

c
e

 B
a

y
 A

re
a

 g
o

o
d

s 
m

o
v

e
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

n
in

g
, 

fu
n

d
in

g
, 

d
e

liv
e

ry
, 

a
n

d
 a

d
v

o
c

a
c

y
. 


 

E
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

B
a

y
 A

re
a

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 s
y
st

e
m

s 
a

re
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 a
n

d
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

ze
d

 i
n

 s
ta

te
 a

n
d

 f
e

d
e

ra
l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 

p
ro

c
e

ss
e

s.
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s 
E
x
p

a
n

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s 

a
t 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l, 
re

g
io

n
a

l, 

st
a

te
 a

n
d

 f
e

d
e

ra
l l

e
v

e
ls

 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

th
a

t 
e

n
c

o
u

ra
g

e
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
, 
p

ro
m

o
te

 a
n

d
 f

u
n

d
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
s 

to
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
b

le
m

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

su
p

p
o

rt
 g

o
v

e
rn

m
e

n
ta

l e
ff

ic
ie

n
c

ie
s 

a
n

d
 c

o
st

 s
a

v
in

g
s 

in
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
. 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

o
lic

y
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
to

 in
fl
u

e
n

c
e

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
in

g
, 
p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 a
t 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

ty
, 

re
g

io
n

a
l, 

st
a

te
 a

n
d

 

fe
d

e
ra

l l
e

v
e

ls
. 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n

d
 e

xp
a

n
d

 lo
c

a
l-
, 
w

o
m

e
n

-,
 m

in
o

ri
ty

- 
a

n
d

 s
m

a
ll-

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 in

 c
o

m
p

e
ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c

ts
. 

 

Page 42



 
 
 

 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 

Items\6.6_CMP_GRH\6.6_CMP_Elements_and_Update.docx 
 

 

Memorandum 6.6 

 

DATE: October 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Congestion Management Program (CMP): Elements, Scope, and 
Schedule for the 2015 CMP Update and Implementation of Travel 
Demand Management and Annual Conformity Findings  

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the 2015 CMP update scope and schedule, augmentation 
and extension of the Travel Demand Management Program contract 
for Guaranteed Ride Home program, and 2013-2014 CMP conformity 
findings. 

 

Summary 

As the congestion management agency (CMA) for Alameda County, Alameda CTC is 
required to biennially update and implement the legislatively mandated Congestion 
Management Program (CMP) that identifies strategies to address congestion issues in 
Alameda County. Alameda CTC’s CMP goes beyond a mere legislative compliance 
program to being a forward-looking comprehensive strategy for congestion 
management that improves multimodal mobility and better connects transportation and 
land use in the county. Alameda CTC seeks approval for the next steps in development of 
the CMP, and an extension of a travel demand management program that is part of the 
CMP requirement, and local jurisdictions’ conformity with the CMP. 

Alameda CTC updates the CMP biennially and last updated and adopted its CMP in 
October 2013. The next update will be in 2015 and will occur from October 2014 through 
October 2015. The CMP’s five elements are implemented at various time periods between 
the biennial updates. The five core elements of the CMP are: 1) the biennial level of service 
monitoring on the CMP roadway network, 2) multimodal performance review and report;  
3) travel demand management (Alameda CTC’s Guaranteed Ride Home Program), 4) Land 
Use Analysis Program (ongoing review of land development projects and their effect on the 
transportation network); and 5) a Capital Improvement Program. Each of these is described 
further as follows. In addition, Alameda CTC assesses the conformance of jurisdictions in 
implementing the CMP elements, as applicable, with the CMP requirements. Conformity 
findings are also included in this report. 

  

Page 43



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 

Items\6.6_CMP_GRH\6.6_CMP_Elements_and_Update.docx 
 

 

Discussion 

Alameda CTC uses the CMP elements to achieve an in-depth understanding of the county’s 
multimodal transportation system, to make informed transportation investment decisions, and 
to facilitate addressing larger policy and regulatory requirements, such as climate change 
legislation.  

The CMP legislation stipulates that the following five specific elements (Attachment A) form 
the core CMP and specifies certain other requirements and exemptions for the CMP.  

• Traffic Level of Service Standards and the CMP Network 
• Multimodal Performance Element 
• Travel Demand Management Element 
• Land Use Analysis Program 
• Capital Improvement Program  

These five elements are described below. 

Alameda CTC’s Congestion Management Program Elements 

1. Traffic Level of Service Standards – Designation of the CMP roadway system. This element 
requires designation of the CMP roadway system, a regionally significant core roadway 
network for Alameda County to move  people and goods. This system is monitored 
biennially using the adopted level of service (LOS) standards, and if any segment fails to 
meet the minimum required standards (subject to application of mandated exemptions), 
then preparation of a deficiency plan is required to improve the segment.  

Attachment B shows the CMP roadway network for Alameda County. The law mandates 
that the designated CMP roadway network include all state highways and “principal 
arterials.” Alameda CTC and predecessor agencies adopted and monitored 
approximately 232 miles of CMP network Tier 1 roadways, from 1991 until 2010. 
Alameda CTC expanded the CMP network in 2010 by including approximately 90 miles of 
principal and major arterials across the county, known as Tier 2 roadways for informational 
monitoring. The 2014 monitoring cycle additionally monitored 84 miles of the managed 
lanes, also known as express lanes, for the first time. In 2014, Alameda CTC began to use 
commercial travel time data for nearly two thirds of the CMP network. Using commercial 
data provides robust data samples, cost efficiency, and performance analysis options.  

2. Multimodal Performance Element – Required application of performance measures.  
CMP law states that a set of performance measures are required to be adopted that will 
evaluate current and future multimodal transportation system performance for the 
movement of people and goods. At a minimum, these measures must incorporate 
highway and roadway system performance, and measures must be established for the 
frequency and routing of public transit and for the coordination of transit service provided 
by separate operators. Alameda CTC develops a Performance Report annually on the 

Page 44



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 

Items\6.6_CMP_GRH\6.6_CMP_Elements_and_Update.docx 
 

 

state of the countywide multimodal transportation system. Realizing the value of 
performance measurement in understanding the demand on and health of the 
multimodal transportation system in the county, Alameda CTC added new metrics in the 
2012 Performance Report related to alternative modes, equity, and environment, 
consistent with the 2012 Countywide Transportation Plan. The 2013 Performance Report 
released in April 2014 further expanded the performance measures for robust assessment 
of the performance of the multimodal system including information on broader commute 
patterns and goods movement that impact the multimodal transportation system in 
Alameda County.   

3. Travel Demand Management Element – Promoting alternative transportation methods. 
CMP legislation states that the travel demand management (TDM) element be adopted 
to promote alternative transportation methods, including but not limited to carpools, 
vanpools, bicycles, and park-and-ride lots; improvements in the balance between jobs 
and housing; and other strategies, including but not limited to flexible work hours, 
telecommuting, and parking management programs. To meet this requirement, 
Alameda CTC implements the Guaranteed Ride Home program and distributes a 
checklist to local jurisdictions to follow-up on their locally required elements as part of the 
annual conformity finding process. The Guaranteed Ride Home program has been 
successful and resulted in a reduction of 3,917 drive-alone round trips per week in 2013. 
Other Alameda CTC TDM-related programs include the Safe Routes to Schools Program, 
the Senior Travel Training Program, and Bicycle Education Training. The 2013 CMP 
included a countywide comprehensive TDM strategy with an inventory of TDM options 
available in the county, how they can be expanded, and identification of a 
comprehensive menu of TDM activities that can reduce automobile trips.  
 

4. Land Use Analysis Program – Assessment and mitigation of land use development impact 
on the transportation network. The intent of the legislation for the Land Use Analysis 
Program is to analyze the impacts of land use decisions made by local jurisdictions on the 
regional transportation systems, including estimating the costs associated with mitigating 
those impacts. It encourages, to the extent possible, identification of the impacts to the 
transportation system using the performance measures adopted in the CMP. The 
legislation also states that this program may be implemented through the California 
Environmental Quality Act analysis to avoid duplication. 

Alameda CTC’s CMP Land Use Analysis Program requires local jurisdictions to inform the 
agency about all (1) General Plan Amendments and (2) Notice of Preparations for 
Environmental Impact Reports for projects consistent with the General Plan. If 
Alameda CTC determines that a CMP analysis is required based on applying trip 
generation criteria, a separate CMP analysis must be included in the environmental 
document using the countywide model to analyze the impact of the project on  

Page 45



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 

Items\6.6_CMP_GRH\6.6_CMP_Elements_and_Update.docx 
 

 

selected regional roadways, the regional transit system, and countywide bicycle and 
pedestrian networks.  

• Countywide Travel Demand Model – Model database consistent with the regional 
planning agency’s database. CMP legislation requires that Alameda CTC, as the 
CMA, develop a computer model consistent with the databases and assumptions 
used by the regional planning agency, the Association of Bay Area Governments 
(ABAG) land use and socio-economic database and the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) regional model assumptions for the county. Local 
jurisdictions are required to use Alameda CTC’s model to determine the impacts of 
development on the transportation system.  

In addition to the CMP-related legislatively-mandated development impacts 
assessment on the transportation system, Alameda CTC’s countywide model is 
used for many planning studies and project transportation impact analyses by 
Alameda CTC and other agencies. Alameda CTC updates the Countywide Travel 
Demand Model every two years to be consistent with ABAG’s most recently 
adopted land use and socio-economic database, and the modeling assumptions 
in MTC’s regional model. Local jurisdictions are permitted to redistribute housing 
and employment data to be more consistent with their adopted land use plans. 
Alameda CTC continues to improve the Countywide Travel Demand Model as a 
reliable tool to develop multimodal forecasts. The countywide model was recently 
updated to include the Plan Bay Area assumptions, in addition to improving the 
sensitivity of the model to forecast alternative modes.    

5. Capital Improvement Program – Using performance measures. Legislation requires 
development of a Capital Improvement Program (CIP) using the adopted performance 
measures to determine effective projects that maintain or improve the performance of 
the multimodal system for the movement of people and goods and to mitigate 
transportation impacts identified pursuant to the CMP Land Use Analysis Program. 
Legislation also requires the program to conform to transportation-related vehicle 
emission air quality mitigation measures, and to include any project that will increase the 
capacity of the multimodal system. Alameda CTC ensures conformance of CIP-CMP 
projects to the air quality mitigation measures through MTC’s Regional Transportation 
Improvement Program, wherein the CIP is included.  

2015 CMP Update Scope and Schedule 

Alameda CTC’s CMP biennial update is scheduled for completion in 2015. This CMP update 
will incorporate progress made and relevant policy changes on all CMP elements since the 
adoption of the previous CMP in October 2013, and will identify appropriate next steps as 
action items. The update will occur from October 2014 through October 2015 as illustrated in 
the CMP schedule in Attachment C.   

Page 46



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 

Items\6.6_CMP_GRH\6.6_CMP_Elements_and_Update.docx 
 

 

2015 CMP Update Scope 

The following summarizes the proposed specific updates to the CMP elements and provides 
a general progress update.  

• LOS Monitoring and Network Update: Review and update the CMP network based on 
Countywide Multimodal Arterial Plan and 2014 LOS Monitoring Study results and 
recommendations. As appropriate, identify countywide facilities and metrics for 
monitoring alternative modes based on the modal plans deliverables and develop 
recommendations based on the Senate Bill 743 (SB 743) outcome, which is a change 
to determining thresholds for transportation impacts as part of land use developments.  

• Multimodal Performance: Review and consolidate performance measures and 
monitoring reports and timelines for reporting, including identifying multimodal 
performance measures based on the modal plans for tracking performance.  

• Travel Demand Management: Develop a strategic plan to encourage formation of 
new Transportation Management Associations. Also, update the TDM element 
regarding SB 743 outcome and how it relates to TDM programs in Alameda County. 

• Land Use Analysis Program: Provide a status update on the Land Use Analysis Program 
including an update on the SB 743 outcome and next steps, Sustainable Communities 
Technical Assistance Program-funded studies, regional priority development areas, 
and priority conservation areas. 

• Travel Demand Model: Incorporate information on the updated model.  

• Capital Improvement Program: Incorporate the Comprehensive Investment Plan, 
including the recommended projects for 2015 State Transportation Improvement 
Program.  

• Program Implementation and Monitoring: Update conformance for the Land Use 
Analysis Program regarding the SB 743 outcome.  

 
Update on Implementation of CMP Elements for Year 2014  

Travel Demand Management Element – Guaranteed Ride Home Program 

The Alameda County Guaranteed Ride Home (GRH) program is one TDM measure that 
Alameda CTC undertakes to meet state requirements in the CMP and to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions as required by state legislation including Senate Bill 375 and 
Assembly Bill 32. The GRH program is a TDM strategy that encourages people to reduce 
their vehicle trips by offering them a ride home for emergency situations or unscheduled 
overtime when they take alternative modes of transportation to work.  

The 2013 Annual Report for the program states that the GRH program enrollment was at 
an all-time high with 5,612 employees in 292 businesses in 2013. The program supported 
the reduction of 407,368 one-way vehicle trips in 2013, or 3,917 vehicle roundtrips per 

Page 47



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 

Items\6.6_CMP_GRH\6.6_CMP_Elements_and_Update.docx 
 

 

week. During 2013, the number of rides taken in the program was a record low of 41 rides. 
This represents less than 1 percent of eligible rides that employees could have taken and 
illustrates the insurance nature of the program. Estimates show that the program saved 
participants over $1 million annually on fuel expenses in 2013, which is the equivalent of 
saving 318,691 gallons of gas or 2,231 tons of CO21. These goals were accomplished at a 
cost of 27 cents per trip the GRH program removed. 

The Alameda County GRH program was initiated by Alameda CTC in 1998 and is one of 
the TDM measures that Alameda CTC undertakes to meet CMP requirements. Since its 
inception, the GRH program has been funded by the Transportation Fund for Clean Air 
(TFCA) program and received a TFCA award of $270,000 approved by the Commission on 
July 25, 2013 that covers fiscal year 2013-2014 (FY13-14) through FY14-15. This TFCA award 
is intended to cover GRH program operations for two years as well as the development of 
countywide TDM information services. 

Alameda CTC contracted with Nelson/Nygaard Consulting Associates to provide 
Guaranteed Ride Home program operational services on November 1, 2012 (contract 
A12-0007). The agreement and amendment covers a period through November 30, 2014, 
with an option to extend the agreement for up to five years, depending on program 
funding availability. Staff has negotiated a budget and scope of work for an additional 
year of Guaranteed Ride Home program operations and associated program 
enhancements with Nelson/Nygaard and seeks Commission approval for the one-year 
extension and associated budget of $60,000. The scope of work includes: 

• Ongoing program operations through November 30, 2015, 

• Program monitoring and evaluation, 

• Marketing and outreach enhancement and coordination with Alameda CTC, 

• Investigation of program expansion with additional transportation providers, and 

• On-call services to support the TDM website. 
  

                                                           
1Based on the calculated number of annual miles reduced, the annual US vehicle fuel economy reported by the 
US Bureau of Transportation Statistics (33.8 MPG), and the average Bay Area fuel price per gallon reported by the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission in 2013 ($3.93). Each gallon of gas produces about 14 pounds of carbon 
dioxide. 

 

Page 48



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 

Items\6.6_CMP_GRH\6.6_CMP_Elements_and_Update.docx 
 

 

2014 CMP Conformity Findings 

Annually, local jurisdictions must comply with four elements to be found in compliance 
with the CMP. Non-conformance with the CMP requirements means that respective local 
jurisdictions are at a risk of losing gas tax funding. The four elements are: 

1. Level of Service Monitoring Element: Prepare Deficiency Plans and Deficiency Plan 
Progress Reports, as applicable; 

2. Travel Demand Management Element: Complete the TDM Site Design Checklist; 
3. Land Use Analysis Element: 

a. Submit to Alameda CTC all Notice of Preparations, Environmental Impact 
Reports, and General Plan Amendments; 

b. Review the allocation of ABAG land use projections to Alameda CTC’s traffic 
analysis zones; 

c. Provide a list of land use approvals from the previous fiscal year and a copy 
of the most recent state Housing Element Progress Report; and 

4. Pay annual fees. 

As of October 15, 2014, all jurisdictions have provided necessary documentation to 
establish conformity with the CMP for 201. Attachment D summarizes the status of 
conformance documentation by jurisdiction. Activities undertaken to establish conformance 
and additional required documentation are described as follows. 

Level of Service Monitoring Element 

• New Deficiency Plans: following the 2014 Level of Service monitoring, 
Alameda CTC analyzed LOS F segments to determine if relevant exemptions 
applied, as outlined in the CMP statute. Based on this analysis, no new deficiency 
plans are required. 

• Deficiency Plan Progress Reports: Three existing Deficiency Plans are currently 
active in Alameda County. The status of these is summarized as follows: 

1. SR-260 Posey Tube Eastbound to I-880 Northbound Freeway Connection 
Lead Jurisdiction: City of Oakland 
Participating Jurisdictions: City of Alameda and City of Berkeley 
Status: Final Progress Report and letters of concurrence obtained. 

2. SR-185 (International Boulevard) Between 46th and 42nd Avenues 
Lead Jurisdiction: City of Oakland 
Participating Jurisdictions: City of Alameda 
Status: Final Progress Report and letters of concurrence obtained. 

3. Mowry Avenue Eastbound from Peralta Boulevard to SR-238 (Mission 
Boulevard) 
Lead Jurisdiction: City of Fremont 

Page 49



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 

Items\6.6_CMP_GRH\6.6_CMP_Elements_and_Update.docx 
 

 

Participating Jurisdictions: City of Newark 
Status: Final Progress Report and letters of concurrence obtained. 

Travel Demand Management Element 

Jurisdictions reviewed and updated the Site Design Checklists as needed. 

Land Use Analysis Element 

• Development project review: Jurisdictions reviewed a listing of land use projects that 
Alameda CTC had reviewed and commented on during FY13-14. Several additional 
projects were identified as missing from this list but were determined to be below the 
threshold for which Alameda CTC reviews the project. 

• Land use forecast review: Jurisdictions reviewed land use allocations as part of the 
recently concluded Alameda Countywide Travel Demand Model update. 

• Land use database: This item was deferred until next year to allow coordination 
with regional agencies on data collection. As part of 2015 conformity findings, 
local jurisdictions will be required to provide this documentation. 

Fiscal Impact: The fiscal impact for approving this item is $60,000, which was included in the 
budget adopted for FY14-15 as part of the Alameda CTC approved 2013 TFCA program. 

Attachments 

A. CMP and Elements 
B. CMP Roadway Network 
C. 2015 CMP Update Schedule 
D. 2014 CMP Conformance 

Staff Contacts 

Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy 

Saravana Suthanthira, Senior Transportation Planner 

Laurel Poeton, Assistant Transportation Planner 

Matthew Bomberg, Assistant Transportation Planner 

Page 50

mailto:TLengyel@AlamedaCTC.org
mailto:ssuthanthira@alamedactc.org
mailto:lpoeton@alamedactc.org
mailto:MBomberg@AlamedaCTC.org


Congestion Management Program and Elements 

 

6.6A

Page 51



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 52



SA
N

 
JO

A
Q

UI
N

 
C

O
UN

TY

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o
Ba

y

C
O

N
TR

A
 C

O
ST

A
 C

O
UN

TY A
LA

M
ED

A
 C

O
UN

TY

SA
N

TA
 C

LA
RA

 C
O

UN
TY

§̈ ¦88
0

§̈ ¦58
0

§̈ ¦58
0

§̈ ¦68
0

§̈ ¦68
0

§̈ ¦58
0

§̈ ¦88
0

§̈ ¦88
0

§̈ ¦88
0

§̈ ¦68
0

∙}þ9
2

§̈ ¦58
0

∙}þ12
3

∙}þ2
4

∙}þ1
3

∙}þ6
1

∙}þ18
5

∙}þ8
4

∙}þ23
8
∙}þ8

4

∙}þ8
4

§̈ ¦80

§̈ ¦58
0

Fre
mo

nt

Oa
kla

nd

Ha
yw

ard
Live

rmo
re

Ple
asa

nto
n

Du
blin

Uni
on 

Cit
y

Ne
wa

rk

Ber
kel

ey

San
 Le

and
ro

Ala
me

daAlb
any

Pie
dm

ont
Em

ery
ville

0
1

2
3 Mi

les

¯

CO
NG

ES
TIO

N 
MA

NA
GE

ME
NT

 PR
OG

RA
M 

RO
AD

WA
Y N

ETW
OR

K

LEG
EN

D Int
ers

tat
e/F

ree
wa

y (
Tie

r 1
)

Sta
te 

Hig
hw

ay
 an

d P
rin

cip
al 

Ar
ter

ial
 (T

ier
 1)

Pr
inc

ipa
l A

rte
ria

l (T
ier

 2)

6.6B

Page 53



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 54



\\
A

ct
cf

s0
1\

sh
a

re
d

\C
om

m
un

ic
a

tio
ns

\R
es

ea
rc

h\
W

or
k 

Pl
a

n
Pa

ge
 1

 o
f 1

20
14

20
15

O
ct

ob
er

 -D
ec

em
be

r
Ja

nu
ar

y
Fe

br
ua

ry
M

ar
ch

A
pr

il 
M

ay
Ju

ne
Ju

ly
A

ug
us

t
Se

pt
em

be
r

O
ct

ob
er

20
15

 U
pd

at
e 

Pr
oc

es
s

A
p

p
ro

ve
 b

y 
C

om
m

iss
io

n 
sc

op
e 

a
nd

 
sc

he
d

ul
e

A
p

p
ro

ve
 b

y 
C

om
m

iss
io

n 
20

15
 C

M
P

Pr
ep

a
re

 a
nd

 
su

b
m

it 
re

p
or

t 
to

 M
TC

1
C

M
P-

de
sig

na
te

d 
Ro

ad
w

ay
 S

ys
te

m

2 3
M

ul
tim

od
al

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 E
le

m
en

t

4 5
La

nd
 U

se
 A

na
ly

sis
 P

ro
gr

am

6
C

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
Tr

av
el

 D
em

an
d 

M
od

el

7
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

8
Pr

og
ra

m
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

M
on

ito
rin

g

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 in
co

rp
or

a
te

 th
e 

C
om

p
re

he
ns

iv
e 

In
ve

st
m

en
t P

la
n 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

s f
or

 S
TI

P

Up
d

a
te

 c
on

fo
rm

a
nc

e 
fo

r t
he

 L
a

nd
 U

se
 

A
na

ly
sis

 P
ro

gr
a

m
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

 S
B 

74
3 

ou
tc

om
es

Tr
af

fic
 L

ev
el

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 (L

O
S)

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

El
em

en
t

Tr
av

el
 D

em
an

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t (
TD

M
) T

rip
 

Re
du

ct
io

n

 D
ev

el
op

 re
co

m
m

en
d

a
tio

ns
 

b
a

se
d

 o
n 

SB
 7

43
 o

ut
co

m
es

D
ev

el
op

 a
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
a

n 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 fo

rm
a

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 

Tr
a

ns
p

or
ta

tio
n 

M
a

na
ge

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
ns

Pr
ov

id
e 

st
a

tu
s u

p
d

a
te

 o
n 

La
nd

 U
se

 A
na

ly
sis

 P
ro

gr
a

m
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

up
d

a
te

s r
eg

a
rd

in
g 

SB
 7

43
 

ou
tc

om
es

 a
nd

 n
ex

t s
te

p
s, 

SC
-T

A
P 

fu
nd

ed
 p

la
ns

, a
nd

 re
gi

on
a

l P
D

A
 a

nd
 P

C
A

 p
ro

gr
a

m
s

Up
d

a
te

 in
co

rp
or

a
tin

g 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

n 
on

 th
e 

ne
w

 m
od

el

Up
d

a
te

 T
D

M
 e

le
m

en
t o

n 
p

ro
gr

es
s m

a
d

e 
sin

ce
 2

01
3 

C
M

P 
a

d
op

tio
n 

a
nd

 a
lso

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
SB

 7
43

 o
ut

oc
m

e 
a

nd
 

ho
w

 it
 re

la
te

s t
o 

TD
M

 p
ro

gr
a

m
s i

n 
A

la
m

ed
a

 C
ou

nt
y.

Re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 c

on
so

lid
a

te
 p

er
fo

rm
a

nc
e 

m
ea

su
re

s a
nd

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

p
or

ts
 a

nd
 ti

m
el

in
es

 
fo

r r
ep

or
tin

g,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 m

ul
tim

od
a

l p
er

fo
rm

a
nc

e 
m

ea
su

re
s b

a
se

d
 o

n 
th

e 
m

od
a

l p
la

ns
 fo

r t
ra

ck
in

g 
p

er
fo

rm
a

nc
e

DR
A

FT
 2

01
5 

C
on

ge
st

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

ro
gr

am
 (C

M
P)

 U
pd

at
e 

Sc
he

du
le

A
ct

iv
ity

Us
e 

co
un

ty
w

id
e 

m
od

a
l P

la
ns

 to
 in

d
en

tif
y 

co
un

ty
w

id
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s a
nd

 m
et

ric
s f

or
 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
a

lte
rn

a
tiv

e 
m

od
es

Re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
rte

ria
l n

et
w

or
k 

b
a

se
d

 o
n 

C
ou

nt
yw

id
e 

M
ul

tim
od

a
l A

rte
ria

l P
la

n 
a

nd
 

20
14

 L
O

S 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

re
su

lts

Re
vi

ew
 a

p
p

lic
a

tio
n 

of
 re

co
m

m
en

d
a

tio
ns

 fr
om

 
th

e 
20

14
 L

O
S 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
St

ud
y

6.6C

Page 55



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 56



 
 

 
Ta

bl
e 

1 
 

 
 

20
14

 C
M

P 
C

O
N

FO
R

M
AN

C
E 

La
nd

 U
se

 A
na

ly
si

s,
 S

ite
 D

es
ig

n,
 P

ay
m

en
t o

f F
ee

s 
an

d 
D

ef
ic

ie
nc

y 
Pl

an
s 

  
La

nd
 U

se
 A

na
ly

si
s 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
TD

M
 

El
em

en
t 

Pa
ym

en
t 

of
 F

ee
s 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Se
rv

ic
e 

El
em

en
t 

M
ee

ts
 A

ll 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 
Ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 
Ad

op
tio

n 

G
PA

 &
 

N
O

P 
Su

bm
itt

al
s 

La
nd

 U
se

 
Fo

re
ca

st
 

R
ev

ie
w

* 

Si
te

 
D

es
ig

n 
C

he
ck

lis
t 

Pa
ym

en
ts

 
th

ru
 4

th
 

Q
ua

rte
r 

FY
 1

3/
14

 

D
ef

ic
ie

nc
y 

Pl
an

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
R

ep
or

ts
 o

r 
C

on
cu

rr
en

ce
 

Al
am

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

N
/A

 
Ye

s 
C

ity
 o

f A
la

m
ed

a 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
C

ity
 o

f A
lb

an
y 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

N
/A

 
Ye

s 
C

ity
 o

f B
er

ke
le

y 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
C

ity
 o

f D
ub

lin
 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

N
/A

 
Ye

s 
C

ity
 o

f E
m

er
yv

ille
 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

N
/A

 
Ye

s 
C

ity
 o

f F
re

m
on

t 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
C

ity
 o

f H
ay

w
ar

d 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
N

/A
 

Ye
s 

C
ity

 o
f L

iv
er

m
or

e 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
N

/A
 

Ye
s 

C
ity

 o
f N

ew
ar

k 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
C

ity
 o

f O
ak

la
nd

 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
C

ity
 o

f P
ie

dm
on

t 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
N

/A
 

Ye
s 

C
ity

 o
f P

le
as

an
to

n 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
N

/A
 

Ye
s 

C
ity

 o
f S

an
 L

ea
nd

ro
 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

N
/A

 
Ye

s 
C

ity
 o

f U
ni

on
 C

ity
 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

N
/A

 
Ye

s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
/A

 in
di

ca
te

s 
th

at
 th

e 
ci

ty
 is

 n
ot

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r a

ny
 d

ef
ic

ie
nc

y 
pl

an
 in

 th
e 

pa
st

 fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r. 

 
 

* T
hi

s 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
m

et
 th

ro
ug

h 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

ns
 re

vi
ew

 o
f l

an
d 

us
e 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
in

 2
01

3-
14

 tr
av

el
 d

em
an

d 
m

od
el

 u
pd

at
e 

 

6.6D

Page 57



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 58



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.7_Lifeline_Cycle4\6.7_Lifeline_Program_Memo.docx  

 

 

Memorandum 6.7 

 

DATE: October 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Lifeline Transportation Program - Cycle 4 Programming Process 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the project evaluation criteria and weighting to be used for 
the project selection process of the Cycle 4 Lifeline Transportation 
Program. 

Summary  

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is scheduled to release guidelines for 
the Cycle 4 Lifeline Transportation Program on October 22, 2014.  As with Cycle 3, the 
Alameda County Transportation Commission (Alameda CTC) will be administering the call 
for projects. A proposed schedule for Cycle 4 programming is attached (Attachment C). 
The MTC guidelines allow for additional evaluation criteria and weighting to be added to 
MTC’s standard evaluation criteria (Attachment D). Adopted county programs are 
tentatively due to MTC in March 2015.  

Background 

MTC established the Lifeline Transportation Program in 2006 to address the mobility needs 
of low-income residents of the San Francisco Bay Area. The Lifeline Program is intended to 
support community-based transportation projects that: 

• Are developed through a collaborative and inclusive planning process that 
includes broad partnerships among a variety of stakeholders. 

• Expand the range of transportation choices by adding a variety of new or 
expanded services. 

• Address transportation gaps and/or barriers identified through a Community-Based 
Transportation Plan (CBTP) or other substantive local planning efforts involving 
focused outreach to low-income populations. 

Lifeline projects are selected at the county level and are tailored to meet locally 
identified needs, including fixed-route transit, transit stop improvements, senior and 
children’s transportation, community shuttles, auto loan programs, and mobility 
management activities. Three funding cycles have been completed, providing $162 
million for 213 projects regionally. 

  

Page 59



  

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.7_Lifeline_Cycle4\6.7_Lifeline_Program_Memo.docx 

 

 

Cycle 4 Program 

For Cycle 4, MTC is proposing an estimated $65 million in funding for the region from the 
following mix of state and federal funds:  

• Proposition 1B Transit,  
• State Transit Assistance (STA), and  
• Section 5307/Job Access and Reverse Commute (JARC) 

Attachment B, prepared by MTC, provides an overview of the funding available, of which 
$8.9 million is estimated for Alameda County from STA and JARC sources with an additional 
$8.9 million of Proposition 1B funds going to eligible transit operators in the county by formula. 
Appendix 1 of the MTC Guidelines provides detailed information by fund source, including 
sponsor and project eligibility, local match, timing of funds, and reporting requirements.   

Generally, the Cycle 4 guidelines are similar to the Cycle 3 guidelines, however, key issues for 
this cycle and proposed changes from the previous cycle include the following: 

• Non-transit sponsors. Unlike previous cycles of the Lifeline Transportation Program, the 
funds in the Cycle 4 program are predominantly restricted to transit operators. This is a 
challenge because many of the Lifeline projects identified in Community Based 
Transportation Plans (CBTPs) are not traditional transit projects. In previous Lifeline 
cycles, the JARC funds in particular could more easily be directed to non-profits and 
local government agencies. However, in Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st 
Century Act (MAP-21), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) JARC program was 
rolled into the FTA Section 5307 Urbanized Area program, resulting in additional federal 
requirements that make it more difficult for non-FTA grantees to receive the funds 
(e.g., National Transit Database reporting, drug and alcohol testing, fare discount 
requirements). Non-profits and local government agencies are still eligible 
subrecipients of STA and Section 5307 (JARC) funds in Cycle 4, but they must partner 
with an entity that is an eligible direct recipient that is willing to pass-through the funds. 
 

• Means-Based Fare Project recommendation. MTC staff is proposing to set aside up to 
$700,000 in STA funds toward the potential development and implementation of a 
regional means-based transit fare program. In Lifeline Cycle 3, MTC set aside $300,000 
for Phase I of this project. In Phase I, MTC is conducting a study to develop the 
regional concept, including identifying who would be eligible, costs, funding, 
relationship to other discounts, and other policy elements. Depending on the results of 
the Phase I study, funds from the Cycle 4 $700,000 set-aside may be used for Phase II 
implementation activities. 
 

• Recognition of Mobility Managers/ Consolidated Transportation Service Agencies 
(CTSAs). Mobility management was a key coordination strategy recommended in the 
2013 Coordinated Plan update. The designation of lead mobility managers or 
Consolidated Transportation Service Agencies (CTSAs) at the county or subregional 

Page 60



  

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.7_Lifeline_Cycle4\6.7_Lifeline_Program_Memo.docx 

 

 

level was an essential component of that strategy. Consistent with those 
recommendations, the Lifeline Program Administrators may, at their discretion, choose 
to award extra points to—or otherwise give priority to—projects sponsored by or 
coordinated with county or subregional mobility managers or CTSAs.  
 

• Formula updates. Low-income population factors and transit ridership factors have 
been updated with 2012 data.  
 

• Communities of concern (CoC). An MTC mapping tool showing both the CoCs 
adopted with Plan Bay Area as well as the most recent socioeconomic data available 
from the Census Bureau is available at: 
http://gis.mtc.ca.gov/samples/Interactive_Maps/cocs.html. 
 

 

Project Selection Process 

Attachment C is the Alameda CTC’s proposed programming schedule for the Lifeline Cycle 
4 program. The Call for Projects is scheduled for release by early November. In light of the 
complex mix of funding sources and eligibility requirements, the Alameda CTC plans to hold 
an application workshop in mid-November. Applications will be due to Alameda CTC in mid-
December. Received applications for STA and Section 5307 (JARC) funding will be evaluated 
by a review panel consistent with MTC Guidelines.  

MTC has established standard evaluation criteria to be used to assess and select projects. 
The six criteria include (1) project need/goals and objectives, (2) community-identified 
priority, (3) implementation plan and project management capacity, (4) coordination and 
program outreach, (5) cost-effectiveness and performance indicators, and (6) project 
budget/sustainability. Lifeline Program Administrators may establish the weight to be 
assigned for each criterion in the assessment process. Per MTC Guidelines, additional criteria 
may be added to a county program but should not replace or supplant the regional criteria. 
MTC staff will review the proposed county program criteria to ensure consistency and to 
facilitate coordination among county programs. Attachment D details the evaluation criteria 
and weighting used for the Cycle 3 Lifeline Program and the proposed criteria for Cycle 4. No 
substantive changes are proposed for Cycle 4. 

The projects proposed for Proposition 1B funding will not be scored, but the proposed 
projects will require the concurrence of the Alameda CTC Board before being transmitted to 
MTC for approval. 

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact to the Alameda CTC budget due to this item.  
 
 
 
 

Page 61

http://gis.mtc.ca.gov/samples/Interactive_Maps/cocs.html


  

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.7_Lifeline_Cycle4\6.7_Lifeline_Program_Memo.docx 

 

 

 
 
Attachments  

A. MTC Cycle 4 Lifeline Transportation Program Guidelines 
B. Fund Estimate (MTC material) 
C. Lifeline Transportation Program Cycle 4 – Proposed Programming Schedule 
D. Evaluation Criteria and Weighting Lifeline Cycle 3 and Cycle 4 

 

Staff Contact  

Stewart Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 

Vivek Bhat, Senior Transportation Engineer 

Page 62

mailto:stewartng@alamedactc.org
mailto:vbhat@alamedactc.org


 
 Date: October 22, 2014 
 W.I.: 1310 
 Referred by: PAC 
  
 Attachment A 
 MTC Resolution No. 4159 
 Page 1 of 19 
 
 

 
 

 

Lifeline Transportation Program  
Cycle 4 Guidelines  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

October 2014 
 
 
 
 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

6.7A

Page 63



 Attachment A  
 MTC Resolution No. 4159 

Page 2 of 19 
 

  

LIFELINE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM CYCLE 4 GUIDELINES 
FY 2014 THROUGH FY 2016 

 
October 2014 

 
 
Table of Contents 
 
1.  PROGRAM GOAL. ............................................................................................................. 3 
2.  PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION. ...................................................................................... 4 
3.  FUNDING APPORTIONMENT AND AVAILABILITY. ................................................. 4 
4.  ELIGIBLE RECIPIENTS/SUBRECIPIENTS ..................................................................... 6 
5.  STA AND SECTION 5307 PROGRAMMING PROCESS. ............................................... 7 
6.  PROPOSITION 1B PROGRAMMING PROCESS. ............................................................ 7 
7.  ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES ..................................................................................................... 8 
8.  LOCAL MATCHING REQUIREMENTS. ......................................................................... 9 
9.  COORDINATED PLANNING. ........................................................................................... 9 
10.  GRANT APPLICATION. .................................................................................................. 10 
11.  APPLICATION EVALUATION ....................................................................................... 10 
12.  COUNTYWIDE PROGRAM OF PROJECTS. ................................................................. 11 
13.  POLICY BOARD ADOPTION ......................................................................................... 11 
14.  PROJECT DELIVERY. ..................................................................................................... 11 
15.  PROJECT OVERSIGHT. .................................................................................................. 12 
16.  PERFORMANCE MEASURES. ....................................................................................... 12 
17.  FUND ADMINISTRATION ............................................................................................. 13 
18.  COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS. ................................................... 13 
19.  TIMELINE. ........................................................................................................................ 14 
 
Appendix 1. Funding Source Information 
Appendix 2. Standard Evaluation Criteria 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



 Attachment A  
 MTC Resolution No. 4159 

Page 3 of 19 
 

  

 
METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

LIFELINE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM CYCLE 4 GUIDELINES 
FY 2014 THROUGH FY 2016 

 
October 2014 

 
1. PROGRAM GOAL. The Lifeline Transportation Program is intended to fund projects that 

result in improved mobility for low-income residents of the nine San Francisco Bay Area 
counties. 

 
The Lifeline Program supports community-based transportation projects that: 

 
 Are developed through a collaborative and inclusive planning process that includes 

broad partnerships among a variety of stakeholders such as public agencies, transit 
operators, community-based organizations and other community stakeholders, and 
outreach to underrepresented stakeholders. 

 Improve a range of transportation choices by adding a variety of new or expanded 
services including but not limited to: enhanced fixed route transit services, shuttles, 
taxi voucher programs, improved access to autos, and capital improvement projects.  

 Address transportation gaps and/or barriers identified in Community-Based 
Transportation Plans (CBTP) or other substantive local planning efforts involving 
focused outreach to low-income populations. While preference will be given to 
community-based plan priorities, strategies emerging from countywide or regional 
welfare-to-work transportation plans, the Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services 
Transportation Plan or other documented assessment of need within the designated 
communities of concern will also be considered. Findings emerging from one or more 
CBTPs or other relevant planning efforts may also be applied to other low-income 
areas, or otherwise be directed to serve low-income constituencies within the county, 
as applicable. A communities of concern (CoC) mapping tool showing both CoCs 
adopted with Plan Bay Area as well as the most recent socioeconomic data available 
from the Census Bureau is available at: 
http://gis.mtc.ca.gov/samples/Interactive_Maps/cocs.html.1 

 
 

                                                 
1 There is a user’s guide available to aid in the use of this tool.  

Page 65



 Attachment A  
 MTC Resolution No. 4159 

Page 4 of 19 
 

  

2. PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION. The Lifeline Program will be administered by county 
congestion management agencies (CMAs) or other designated county-wide agencies as 
follows: 

 
County Lifeline Program Administrator 
Alameda  Alameda County Transportation Commission 
Contra Costa Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
Marin Transportation Authority of Marin 
Napa Napa County Transportation Planning Agency 
San Francisco San Francisco County Transportation Authority 
San Mateo City/County Association of Governments 

Santa Clara Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority and Santa 
Clara County 

Solano Solano Transportation Authority 
Sonoma Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

 
3. FUNDING APPORTIONMENT AND AVAILABILITY. Fund sources for the Cycle 4 

Lifeline Transportation Program include State Transit Assistance (STA), Proposition 1B - 
Transit, and Section 5307 Job Access and Reverse Commute (JARC)2 funds. Cycle 4 will 
cover a three-year programming cycle, FY2013-14 to FY2015-16.  

 
a. STA and Section 5307 (JARC). Funding for STA and Section 5307 (JARC) will be 

assigned to counties by each fund source, based on the county’s share of the regional 
low-income population (see Figure 1).3 Lifeline Program Administrators will assign 
funds to eligible projects in their counties. See Section 5 for details about the STA and 
Section 5307 (JARC) programming process and Appendix 1 for detailed eligibility 
requirements by fund source.  

 

                                                 
2 The Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21) federal transportation authorizing legislation 
eliminated the Job Access and Reverse Commute (JARC) program (Section 5316) and combined JARC functions 
and funding with the Urbanized Area Formula (Section 5307) and the Non-urbanized Area Formula (Section 5311) 
programs. JARC projects were made eligible for 5307 funding, and, consistent with MTC’s Transit Capital Priorities 
(TCP) Process and Criteria (MTC Resolution Nos. 4072 and 4140), in the FY2013-14, FY2014-15 and FY2015-16 
Section 5307 programs, a portion of the Bay Area’s large urbanized area funds have been set aside for the Lifeline 
program. 
3 FTA Section 5307 funds are apportioned by urbanized area (UA), so the distribution of 5307 funds will also need 
to take UA boundaries into consideration. 

Page 66



 Attachment A  
 MTC Resolution No. 4159 

Page 5 of 19 
 

  

Figure 1. County and Share of Regional Poverty Population 

 
 
County 

Share of Regional Low 
Income (<200% Poverty) 

Population 
Alameda 22.6% 
Contra Costa 14.3% 
Marin 2.6% 
Napa 2.0% 
San Francisco 12.5% 
San Mateo 8.4% 
Santa Clara 23.1% 
Solano 6.4% 
Sonoma 7.9% 
Total 100% 
Source: ACS 2010 and 2012 1-Year Estimates 

 
b. Proposition 1B. Proposition 1B funding will be assigned by MTC directly to transit 

operators and counties based on a formula that distributes half of the funds according to 
the transit operators’ share of the regional low-income ridership, and half of the funds 
according to the transit operators’ share of the regional low-income population. The 
formula distribution is shown in Figure 2. See Section 6 for details about the Proposition 
1B programming process and Appendix 1 for detailed eligibility requirements by fund 
source.  

 
Figure 2. Transit Operator & Hybrid Formula 

(Share of Regional Low Income Ridership & Share of Regional Low Income Population) 

 
Transit Operator 

Hybrid Formula 
Share 

AC Transit 17.3% 
BART 18.5% 
County Connection (CCCTA) 1.0% 
Golden Gate Transit/Marin Transit 3.2% 
Wheels (LAVTA) 0.5% 
Muni (SFMTA) 24.9% 
SamTrans 5.0% 
Tri Delta Transit (ECCTA) 0.7% 
VINE (NCTPA) 1.2% 
VTA 19.5% 
WestCat (WCCTA) 0.3% 
Solano County Operators 3.6% 
Sonoma County Operators 4.2% 
Total 100% 
Note: Only transit operators who have previously received Proposition 1B 
Lifeline funds are included in the formula distribution 

 
 

c. Regional Means-Based Transit Fare Program. MTC will set aside up to $700,000 in 
Cycle 4 STA funds toward the potential development and implementation of a regional 

Page 67



 Attachment A  
 MTC Resolution No. 4159 

Page 6 of 19 
 

  

means-based transit fare program. In Lifeline Cycle 3, MTC set aside $300,000 for  
Phase I of this project. In Phase I, MTC is conducting a study to develop the regional 
concept, including identifying who would be eligible, costs, funding, relationship to other 
discounts, and other policy elements. Depending on the results of the Phase I study, funds 
from the Cycle 4 $700,000 set-aside may be used for Phase II implementation activities. 
 

d. Local Fund Exchanges. Consistent with MTC Resolution No. 3331, MTC will allow County 
Lifeline Program Administrators to use local fund exchanges to fund projects that are not 
otherwise eligible for the state and federal funds in Cycle 4. Lifeline Program Administrators 
must notify MTC about their intent to exchange funds, and MTC staff will review and 
approve the exchanges on a case-by-case basis. MTC staff is supportive of these fund 
exchanges to the extent that the exchange projects meet the spirit of the Lifeline 
Transportation Program. 

 
4. ELIGIBLE RECIPIENTS/SUBRECIPIENTS 
 

a. STA. There are three categories of eligible recipients of STA funds: a) transit operators; 
b) Consolidated Transportation Service Agencies (CTSAs); and c) Cities and Counties 
that are eligible to claim Transportation Development Act (TDA) Article 4, 4.5 or 8 
funds. 

 
Non-profit organizations and Cities/Counties that are not eligible TDA Article 4, 4.5 or 8 
claimants are only eligible for STA funds if they partner with an eligible STA recipient 
(e.g., a transit operator) that is willing to serve as the recipient of the funds and pass 
through the funds to the non-profit or City/County, and if they have a project eligible to 
use. 

 
b. Section 5307 (JARC). Transit operators that are FTA grantees are the only eligible 

recipients of Section 5307 (JARC) funds.  
 

Non-profit organizations and public agencies that are not FTA grantees are only eligible 
for Section 5307 (JARC) funds if they partner with an FTA grantee (transit operator) that 
is willing to serve as the direct recipient of the Section 5307 (JARC) funds and pass 
through the funds to the subrecipient non-profit or public agency. 
 
Section 5307 (JARC) recipients/subrecipients will be required to have a Dun and 
Bradstreet (D&B) Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number and provide it 
during the application process.4 A DUNS number may be obtained from D&B by 
telephone (866-705-5711) or the Internet (http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform). 
 

c. Proposition 1B. Transit operators are the only eligible recipients of Proposition 1B funds.  
 

                                                 
4 A Dun and Bradstreet (D&B) Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number is a unique, non-indicative 9-
digit identifier issued and maintained by D&B that verifies the existence of a business entity. The DUNS number is 
a universal identifier required for Federal financial assistance applicants, as well as recipients and their direct 
subrecipients. 

Page 68



 Attachment A  
 MTC Resolution No. 4159 

Page 7 of 19 
 

  

5. STA AND SECTION 5307 PROGRAMMING PROCESS. For STA and Section 5307 funds, 
Lifeline Program Administrators are responsible for soliciting applications for the Lifeline 
Transportation Program.  

 
Consistent with MTC’s Public Participation Plan and FTA’s Title VI Circular (FTA C 
4702.1B), MTC encourages Lifeline Program Administrators to conduct a broad, inclusive 
public involvement process, and use multiple methods of public outreach. Unlike previous 
cycles of the Lifeline Transportation Program, the funds in the Cycle 4 program are 
predominantly restricted to transit operators (see Section 4 for recipient eligibility 
restrictions). Therefore, MTC also acknowledges that each Lifeline Program Administrator’s 
public outreach strategy will be tailored accordingly. 
 
Methods of public outreach may include, but are not limited to, highlighting the program and 
application solicitation on the CMA website, and sending targeted postcards and e-mails to 
all prospective applicants, including those that serve predominantly minority and low-income 
populations. 

 
Further guidance for public involvement is contained in MTC’s Public Participation Plan. 
 
a. Competitive Process. STA and Section 5307 (JARC) projects must be selected through 

an open, competitive process with the following exception: In an effort to address the 
sustainability of fixed-route transit operations, Lifeline Program Administrators may elect 
to allocate some or all of their STA and/or Section 5307 (JARC) funds directly to transit 
operators for Lifeline transit operations within the county. Projects must be identified as 
Lifeline projects before transit operators can claim funds, and will be subject to Lifeline 
Transportation Program reporting requirements. 
 

b. STA Contingency Programming. Due to the uncertainty of forecasting STA revenues, the 
Lifeline Program Administrators will program 95 percent of their county's estimated STA 
amount, and develop a contingency plan for the remaining five percent should it be 
available. 

 
 
6. PROPOSITION 1B PROGRAMMING PROCESS. In most cases, Proposition 1B Transit 

funds will be allocated directly to transit operators by MTC, due to the limited eligibility and 
uses of this fund source. Upon concurrence from the applicable CMA,5 transit operators may 
program funds to any capital project that is consistent with the Lifeline Transportation 
Program and goals, and is eligible for this fund source. Transit operators are encouraged to 
consider needs throughout their service area. Projects must be identified as Lifeline projects 
before transit operators can claim funds, and, at the discretion of the Lifeline Program 
Administrators, may be subject to Lifeline Transportation Program reporting requirements. 
For Marin, Solano and Sonoma counties, Proposition 1B funds are being directed to the 
CMA, who should include these funds in the overall Lifeline programming effort (keeping in 
mind the limited sponsor and project eligibility of Proposition 1B funds). 

 
                                                 
5 CMA concurrence may be provided via a board resolution or a letter from an authorized representative. 

Page 69



 Attachment A  
 MTC Resolution No. 4159 

Page 8 of 19 
 

  

7. ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES 
  
a. Eligible operating projects. Eligible operating projects, consistent with requirements of 

funding sources, may include (but are not limited to) new or enhanced fixed route transit 
services, restoration of Lifeline-related transit services eliminated due to budget 
shortfalls, shuttles, taxi voucher programs, auto loan programs, etc. See Appendix 1 for 
additional details about eligibility by funding source. 

 
b. Eligible capital projects. Eligible capital projects, consistent with requirements of funding 

sources, may include (but are not limited to) purchase of vehicles; bus stop 
enhancements; rehabilitation, safety or modernization improvements; or other 
enhancements to improve transportation access for residents of low-income communities. 
See Appendix 1 for additional details about eligibility by funding source. 

 
c. Section 5307 restrictions 

 
(1) Job Access and Reverse Commute requirement. For the Lifeline Transportation 

Program, the use of Section 5307 funds is restricted solely to Job Access and 
Reverse Commute (JARC) projects. For details regarding eligible JARC projects, 
see the FTA Section 5307 Circular (FTA C 9030.1E), Chapter IV, Section 5 
available at http://www.fta.dot.gov/documents/FINAL_FTA_circular9030.1E.pdf. 
Also see Appendix 1 for detailed eligibility requirements by fund source 

 
(2) New and existing services. Consistent with FTA’s Section 5307 circular (FTA C 

9030.1E), Chapter IV, Section 5.a, eligible job access and reverse commute 
projects must provide for the development or maintenance of eligible job access 
and reverse commute services. Recipients may not reclassify existing public 
transportation services that have not received funding under the former Section 
5316 program as job access and reverse commute services in order to qualify for 
operating assistance. In order to be eligible as a job access and reverse commute 
project, a proposed project must qualify as either a “development project” or 
“maintenance project” as follows:  

 
i. Development Projects. “Development of transportation services” means 

new projects that meet the statutory definition and were not in service as 
of the date MAP-21 became effective October 1, 2012. This includes 
projects that expand the service area or hours of operation for an existing 
service.  

 
ii. Maintenance Projects. “Maintenance of transportation services” means 

projects that continue and maintain job access and reverse commute 
projects and services that received funding under the former Section 5316 
Job Access and Reverse Commute program.  

 
 

Page 70



 Attachment A  
 MTC Resolution No. 4159 

Page 9 of 19 
 

  

8. LOCAL MATCHING REQUIREMENTS. The Lifeline Transportation Program requires a 
minimum local match of 20% of the total project cost. Lifeline Transportation Program funds 
may cover a maximum of 80% of the total project cost. 
 
a. Exceptions to 20% requirement. There are two exceptions to the 20% local match 

requirement: 
 

(1) FTA Section 5307 (JARC) operating projects require a 50% match. However, 
consistent with MTC’s approach in previous funding cycles, Lifeline Program 
Administrators may use STA funds to cover the 30% difference for projects that 
are eligible for both JARC and STA funds. 

 
(2) All auto-related projects require a 50% match. 

 
b. Sources of local match. Project sponsors may use certain federal, state or local funding 

sources (Transportation Development Act, operator controlled State Transit Assistance, 
local sales tax revenue, etc.) to meet the match requirement. In-kind contributions such as 
the market value of in-kind contributions integral to the project may be counted as a 
contribution toward local share. 
 
For Section 5307 JARC projects, the local match can be non-Department of 
Transportation (DOT) federal funds. Eligible sources of non-DOT federal funds include: 
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF), Community Services Block Grants 
(CSBG) and Social Services Block Grants (SSBG) administered by the US Department 
of Health and Human Services or Community Development Block grants (CDBG) and 
HOPE VI grants administered by the US Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD). Grant funds from private foundations may also be used to meet the 
match requirement. 

 
Transportation Development Credits (“Toll Credits”) are not an eligible source of local 
match for the Lifeline Transportation Program. 

 
9. COORDINATED PLANNING. Under MAP-21, projects funded with Section 5307 JARC 

funds are no longer required by FTA to be derived from a locally developed, coordinated 
public transit-human services transportation plan (“Coordinated Plan”); however, in the Bay 
Area’s Coordinated Plan, MTC continues to identify the transportation needs of individuals 
with disabilities, older adults, and people with low incomes, and to provide strategies for 
meeting those local needs. Therefore, projects funded with Lifeline Transportation Program 
funds should be consistent with the transportation needs, proposed solutions, and enhanced 
coordination strategies presented in the Coordinated Plan to the extent practicable 
considering any other funding source restrictions. 

 
The Bay Area’s Coordinated Plan was updated in March 2013 and is available at 
http://www.mtc.ca.gov/planning/pths/.  
 

Page 71



 Attachment A  
 MTC Resolution No. 4159 

Page 10 of 19 
 

  

Mobility management was a key coordination strategy recommended in the 2013 plan 
update. The designation of lead mobility managers or Consolidated Transportation Service 
Agencies (CTSAs) at the County or subregional level was an essential component of that 
strategy. Consistent with those recommendations, the Lifeline Program Administrators may, 
at their discretion, choose to award extra points to—or otherwise give priority to—projects 
sponsored by or coordinated with County or subregional Mobility Managers or CTSAs. 
 
Transportation needs specific to senior and disabled residents of low-income communities 
may also be considered when funding Lifeline projects. 

 
10. GRANT APPLICATION. To ensure a streamlined application process for project sponsors, a 

universal application form will be used, but, with review and approval from MTC, may be 
modified as appropriate by the Lifeline Program Administrator for inclusion of county-
specific grant requirements.  

 
Applicants with multi-county projects must notify the relevant Lifeline Program 
Administrators and MTC about their intent to submit a multi-county project, and submit 
copies of their application to all of the relevant counties. If the counties have different 
application forms, the applicant can submit the same form to all counties, but should contact 
the Lifeline Program Administrators to determine the appropriate form. If the counties have 
different application deadlines, the applicant should adhere to the earliest deadline. The 
Lifeline Program Administrators will work together to score and rank the multi-county 
projects, and, if selected, to determine appropriate funding. (Note: Multi-county operators 
with projects that are located in a single county need only apply to the county where the 
project is located.) 

 
11. APPLICATION EVALUATION 

 
a. Evaluation criteria. Standard evaluation criteria will be used to assess and select projects. 

The six criteria include (1) project need/goals and objectives, (2) community-identified 
priority, (3) implementation plan and project management capacity, (4) coordination and 
program outreach, (5) cost-effectiveness and performance indicators, and (6) project 
budget/sustainability. Lifeline Program Administrators will establish the weight to be 
assigned for each criterion in the assessment process. 

 
Additional criteria may be added to a county program but should not replace or supplant 
the regional criteria. MTC staff will review the proposed county program criteria to 
ensure consistency and to facilitate coordination among county programs. 
 
See Appendix 2 for the detailed standard evaluation criteria. 

 
b. Evaluation panel. Each county will appoint a local evaluation panel of CMA staff, the 

local low-income or minority representative from MTC’s Policy Advisory Council (if 
available), and representatives of local stakeholders, such as transit operators, other 
transportation providers, community-based organizations, social service agencies, and 
local jurisdictions, to score and select projects. Counties are strongly encouraged to 
appoint a diverse group of stakeholders for their local evaluation panel. Each county will 

Page 72



 Attachment A  
 MTC Resolution No. 4159 

Page 11 of 19 
 

  

assign local priorities for project selection by establishing the weight for each criterion 
and, at the CMA’s discretion, adding local criteria to the standard regional criteria. 

 
 
12. COUNTYWIDE PROGRAM OF PROJECTS. A full program of projects is due to MTC 

from each Lifeline Program Administrator on March 13, 2015. However, given state and 
federal funding uncertainties, sponsors with projects selected for FY2015 and FY2016 
Section 5307 (JARC) funds and FY2016 STA funds should plan to defer the start of those 
projects until the funding is appropriated and secured. Lifeline Program Administrators, at 
their discretion, may opt to allot FY2014 and FY2015 funds to high scoring projects so they 
can be started quickly. MTC staff will work with Lifeline Program Administrators on this 
sequencing; MTC staff expects that more will be known about the FY2015 Section 5307 
(JARC) funds and the FY2016 STA and Section 5307 (JARC) funds in calendar year 2015. 

 
13. POLICY BOARD ADOPTION 

  
a. Project sponsor resolution of local support. Prior to MTC’s programming of Lifeline 

Cycle 4 funds (STA, Section 5307 JARC and/or Proposition 1B) to any project, MTC 
requires that the project sponsor adopt and submit a resolution of local support. The 
resolution shall state that approved projects not only exemplify Lifeline Program goals, 
but that the local project sponsors understand and agree to meeting all project delivery, 
funding match and eligibility requirements, and obligation and reporting deadlines and 
requirements. MTC will provide a resolution of local support template. The County 
Lifeline Program Administrators have the option of collecting the resolutions of local 
support from project sponsors along with the project applications, or after the project is 
selected by the County for funding. 
 
Caltrans requires that Proposition 1B - Transit projects either be consistent with the 
project sponsor’s most recent short-range transit plan (SRTP), as evidenced by attaching 
the relevant SRTP page to the allocation request, or be accompanied by a certified Board 
Resolution from the project sponsor’s governing board.  
 

b. Lifeline Program Administrator/CMA Board Resolution and Concurrence 
   

(1) STA and Section 5307 (JARC). Projects recommended for STA and Section 5307 
(JARC) funding must be submitted to and approved by the respective governing 
board of the Lifeline Program Administrator.  

  
(2) Proposition 1B. Projects funded with Proposition 1B Transit funds must have 

concurrence from the applicable Lifeline Program Administrator/CMA. 
Concurrence may be provided by a board resolution or by a letter from an 
authorized representative. 

 
14. PROJECT DELIVERY. All projects funded under the county programs are subject to the 

following MTC project delivery requirements: 
 

Page 73



 Attachment A  
 MTC Resolution No. 4159 

Page 12 of 19 
 

  

a. Section 5307 (JARC). Project sponsors must expend the Lifeline Transportation Program 
Section 5307 (JARC) funds within three years of the FTA grant award or execution of 
agreement with pass-through agency, whichever is applicable. To prevent the Section 
5307 (JARC) funds from lapsing on the federal obligation deadline, MTC reserves the 
right to reprogram funds if direct recipients fail to submit their FTA grant by the 
following dates: 

 June 30, 2015 for FY2014 and FY2015 funds (the deadline to submit grants for 
FY15 funds may be extended depending on the availability of FY15 
apportionments.) 

 June 30, 2016 for FY2016 funds 
 

Direct recipients are responsible for carrying out the terms of their grants. 
 

b. STA. Project sponsors must expend the Lifeline Transportation Program STA funds 
within three years of the date that the funds are programmed by MTC or the date that the 
agreement with pass-through agency is executed, whichever is applicable. 
 

c. Proposition 1B. Project sponsors must expend the Lifeline Transportation Program 
Proposition 1B funds within three years of the date that funds are available. Disbursement 
timing depends on the timing of State bond sales. 

 
 
15. PROJECT OVERSIGHT. For Lifeline projects funded by STA and Section 5307 (JARC), 

Lifeline Program Administrators are responsible for programmatic and fiscal oversight, and 
for monitoring project sponsors in meeting the MTC obligation deadlines and project 
delivery requirements. In addition, Lifeline Program Administrators will ensure that projects 
substantially carry out the scope described in the grant applications for the period of 
performance. All project budget and scope of work changes must be approved by the MTC 
Commission; however the Lifeline Program Administrators are responsible for approving 
budget and scope of work changes prior to MTC’s authorization. All scope changes must be 
fully explained and must demonstrate consistency with Lifeline Transportation Program 
goals.  

 
For projects funded by Proposition 1B, the Lifeline Program Administrators are encouraged 
to continue coordination efforts with the project sponsors if they determine that it would be 
beneficial toward meeting the Lifeline goals; however, this may not be necessary or 
beneficial for all Proposition 1B projects. 

 
See Appendix 1 for detailed accountability and reporting requirements by funding source. 

 
16. PERFORMANCE MEASURES. As part of the Call for Projects, applicants will be asked to 

establish project goals, and to identify basic performance indicators to be collected in order 
to measure the effectiveness of the Lifeline projects. At a minimum, performance measures 
for service-related projects would include: documentation of new “units” of service provided 
with the funding (e.g., number of trips, service hours, workshops held, car loans provided), 
cost per unit of service, and a qualitative summary of service delivery procedures employed 
for the project. For capital projects, project sponsors are responsible for establishing 

Page 74



 Attachment A  
 MTC Resolution No. 4159 

Page 13 of 19 
 

  

milestones and reporting on the status of project delivery. Project sponsors are responsible 
for satisfying all reporting requirements, as referenced in Appendix 1. Lifeline Program 
Administrators will forward all reports containing performance measures to MTC for review 
and overall monitoring of the Lifeline Transportation Program. 

 
17. FUND ADMINISTRATION 
 

a. Section 5307 (JARC). MTC will enter all Lifeline Section 5307 (JARC) projects into the 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). Transit operators that are FTA grantees are 
the only eligible recipients of Section 5307 (JARC) funds. FTA grantees will act as direct 
recipients, and will submit grant applications directly to FTA.  
 
For Section 5307 (JARC) projects sponsored by non-FTA grantees (e.g., nonprofits or 
other local government entities), the FTA grantee who was identified as the partner 
agency at the time of the application will submit the grant application to FTA directly 
and, following FTA approval of the grant, will enter into funding agreements with the 
subrecipient project sponsor.  

 
FTA recipients are responsible for following all applicable federal requirements and for 
ensuring that their subrecipients comply with all federal requirements. See Section 18 for 
federal compliance requirements. 

 
b. STA. For transit operators receiving STA funds, MTC will allocate funds directly 

through the annual STA claims process. For other STA eligible projects administered by 
sponsors who are not STA eligible recipients, the project sponsor is responsible for 
identifying a local transit operator who will act as a pass-through for the STA funds, and 
will likely enter into a funding agreement directly with the project sponsor. Project 
sponsors are responsible for entering their own STA projects into the TIP. 

 
c. Proposition 1B Transit. Project sponsors receiving Proposition 1B funds must submit a 

Proposition 1B allocation request to MTC for submittal to Caltrans with prior review by 
MTC. The state will distribute funds directly to the project sponsor. Note that although 
the Proposition 1B Transit Program is intended to be an advance-payment program, 
actual disbursement of funds is dependent on the State budget and State bond sales. 
Project sponsors are responsible for entering their own Proposition 1B projects into the 
TIP.  

 
18. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS.  

 
a. Lifeline Program Administrator Responsibilities. For the selection of FTA Section 5307 

(JARC) projects, in accordance with federal Title VI requirements, Lifeline Program 
Administrators must distribute the Section 5307 (JARC) funds without regard to race, 
color, and national origin, and must assure that minority populations are not being denied 
the benefits of or excluded from participation in the program. Lifeline Program 
Administrators shall develop the program of projects or competitive selection process to 
ensure the equitable distribution of FTA Section 5307 (JARC) funds to project sponsors 

Page 75



 Attachment A  
 MTC Resolution No. 4159 

Page 14 of 19 
 

  

that serve predominantly minority populations. Equitable distribution can be achieved by 
engaging in outreach to diverse stakeholders regarding the availability of funds, and 
ensuring the competitive process is not itself a barrier to selection of applicants that serve 
predominantly minority populations. 

 
b. Project Sponsor Responsibilities. FTA Section 5307 (JARC) applicants should be 

prepared to abide by all applicable federal requirements as specified in 49 U.S.C. Section 
5307; FTA Circulars C 9030.1E, 4702.1B and 4703.1; the most current FTA Master 
Agreement; and the most current Certifications and Assurances for FTA Assistance 
Programs. 

 
FTA Section 5307 (JARC) direct recipients will be responsible for adhering to FTA 
requirements through their agreements and grants with FTA directly and for ensuring that 
all subrecipients and third-party contractors comply with FTA requirements. 

 
19. TIMELINE. The anticipated timeline for Cycle 4 is as follows: 
 

Program Action Anticipated Date* 
All Commission approves Cycle 4 Program 

Guidelines 
October 22, 2014 

All MTC issues guidelines to counties October 22, 2014 
Prop 1B Transit operators submit draft project lists to 

County Lifeline Program Administrators 
January 15, 2015 

Prop 1B Allocation requests due to MTC (concurrence** 
from the CMA is required) 

March 13, 2015 

5307 (JARC)  
& STA 

Board-approved** programs due to MTC from 
CMAs 

March 13, 2015 

All Commission approval of Program of Projects April 22, 2015 
5307 (JARC) MTC submits TIP amendment for FY14, FY15 

and FY16 projects 
End of April – Deadline TBD 

Prop 1B & STA Project sponsors submit TIP amendments End of April – Deadline TBD 
Prop 1B MTC submits allocation requests to Caltrans Deadline TBD by Caltrans* 
STA Operators can file claims for FY14 and FY15 After 4/22/15 Commission 

Approval 
5307 (JARC) Deadline for transit operators (FTA grantees) to 

submit FTA grants for FY14 and FY15 funds 
June 30, 2015 

 
STA Operators can file claims for FY16 After July 1, 2015 
5307 (JARC) Deadline for transit operators (FTA grantees) to 

submit FTA grants for FY16 funds 
June 30, 2016 

 
* Dates subject to change depending on State and Federal deadlines and availability of funds. 
** CMA Board approval and concurrence may be pending at the time of deadline.

Page 76



 
A

tta
ch

m
en

t A
  

 
M

TC
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 4

15
9 

Pa
ge

 1
5 

of
 1

9  

 
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

L
ife

lin
e 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

 C
yc

le
 4

 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
  

 St
at

e 
Tr

an
si

t A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

(S
TA

) 
 Pr

op
os

iti
on

 1
B

 –
 T

ra
ns

it 
Se

ct
io

n 
53

07
  

Jo
b 

A
cc

es
s a

nd
 R

ev
er

se
 C

om
m

ut
e 

(J
A

R
C

) 
Pu

rp
os

e 
of

 F
un

d 
So

ur
ce

 
T

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
pu

bl
ic

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 r
eg

io
na

l 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

co
or

di
na

tio
n 

T
o 

he
lp

 a
dv

an
ce

 th
e 

St
at

e’
s g

oa
ls

 o
f 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
m

ob
ili

ty
 c

ho
ic

es
 fo

r 
al

l 
re

si
de

nt
s, 

re
du

ci
ng

 c
on

ge
st

io
n,

 a
nd

 
pr

ot
ec

tin
g 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

T
o 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 c

on
tin

ua
tio

n 
an

d 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
St

at
es

  
 

D
et

ai
le

d 
G

ui
de

lin
es

 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.d

ot
.c

a.
go

v/
hq

/M
as

sT
ra

ns
/D

oc
s-

Pd
fs

/S
T

IP
/T

D
A

_4
-1

7-
20

13
.p

df
 

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.d
ot

.c
a.

go
v/

hq
/M

as
sT

ra
ns

/D
oc

s-
Pd

fs
/P

ro
p%

20
1B

/P
T

M
IS

E
A

-
G

ui
de

lin
es

_2
01

3.
pd

f 

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.ft
a.

do
t.g

ov
/d

oc
um

en
ts

/F
IN

A
L

_F
T

A
_c

ir
cu

la
r9

03
0.

1E
.p

df
 

U
se

 o
f F

un
ds

 
Fo

r p
ub

lic
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

pu
rp

os
es

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

 tr
an

si
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

Fo
r p

ub
lic

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
pu

rp
os

es
 

Fo
r t

he
 L

ife
lin

e 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

, t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

Se
ct

io
n 

53
07

 fu
nd

s i
s r

es
tri

ct
ed

 so
le

ly
 to

 Jo
b 

A
cc

es
s 

an
d 

R
ev

er
se

 C
om

m
ut

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 th

at
 su

pp
or

t t
he

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f t

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 tr
an

sp
or

t w
el

fa
re

 re
ci

pi
en

ts
 a

nd
 

el
ig

ib
le

 lo
w

 in
co

m
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
s t

o 
an

d 
fr

om
 jo

bs
 a

nd
 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 th

ei
r e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t. 

El
ig

ib
le

 R
ec

ip
ie

nt
s 

 
Tr

an
si

t o
pe

ra
to

rs
 

 
C

on
so

lid
at

ed
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
e 

A
ge

nc
ie

s (
C

TS
A

s)
 

 
C

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
ou

nt
ie

s i
f e

lig
ib

le
 to

 c
la

im
 T

D
A

 
A

rti
cl

e 
4,

 4
.5

 o
r 8

 fu
nd

s 

 
Tr

an
si

t o
pe

ra
to

rs
  

 
Tr

an
si

t o
pe

ra
to

rs
 th

at
 a

re
 F

TA
 g

ra
nt

ee
s 

El
ig

ib
le

 S
ub

re
ci

pi
en

ts
 

(m
us

t p
ar

tn
er

 w
ith

 
an

 e
lig

ib
le

 r
ec

ip
ie

nt
 

th
at

 w
ill

 se
rv

e 
as

 a
 

pa
ss

-t
hr

ou
gh

 a
ge

nc
y)

 

 
C

iti
es

 a
nd

 c
ou

nt
ie

s t
ha

t a
re

 n
ot

 e
lig

ib
le

 to
 

cl
ai

m
 T

D
A

 A
rti

cl
e 

4,
 4

.5
 o

r 8
 fu

nd
s 

 

 
N

/A
 

 
Pr

iv
at

e 
no

n-
pr

of
it 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

 
 

Pu
bl

ic
 a

ge
nc

ie
s t

ha
t a

re
 n

ot
 F

TA
 g

ra
nt

ee
s (

e.
g.

, 
ci

tie
s, 

co
un

tie
s)

 

Page 77



 
A

tta
ch

m
en

t A
  

 
M

TC
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 4

15
9 

Pa
ge

 1
6 

of
 1

9  

 
 

 
 St

at
e 

Tr
an

si
t A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
(S

TA
) 

 Pr
op

os
iti

on
 1

B
 –

 T
ra

ns
it 

Se
ct

io
n 

53
07

  
Jo

b 
A

cc
es

s a
nd

 R
ev

er
se

 C
om

m
ut

e 
(J

A
R

C
) 

El
ig

ib
le

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
T

ra
ns

it 
C

ap
ita

l a
nd

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

: 
 

N
ew

, c
on

tin
ue

d 
or

 e
xp

an
de

d 
fix

ed
-r

ou
te

 
se

rv
ic

e 
 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 o
f v

eh
ic

le
s 

 
Sh

ut
tle

 se
rv

ic
e 

if 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r u

se
 b

y 
th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l p
ub

lic
 

 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 o

f t
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

(e
.g

., 
G

PS
, o

th
er

 
IT

S 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
) 

 
C

ap
ita

l p
ro

je
ct

s s
uc

h 
as

 b
us

 st
op

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 b
us

 b
en

ch
es

, 
sh

el
te

rs
, e

tc
. 

 
V

ar
io

us
 e

le
m

en
ts

 o
f m

ob
ili

ty
 m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
if 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 S

TA
 p

ro
gr

am
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 

al
lo

w
ab

le
 u

se
. T

he
se

 m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

, 
co

or
di

na
tin

g,
 c

ap
ita

l o
r o

pe
ra

tin
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

. 

Tr
an

si
t C

ap
ita

l (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

a 
m

in
im

um
 

op
er

ab
le

 se
gm

en
t o

f a
 p

ro
je

ct
) f

or
: 

 
R

eh
ab

, s
af

et
y,

 o
r m

od
er

ni
za

tio
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
 

C
ap

ita
l s

er
vi

ce
 e

nh
an

ce
m

en
ts

 o
r 

ex
pa

ns
io

ns
 

 
N

ew
 c

ap
ita

l p
ro

je
ct

s 
 

B
us

 ra
pi

d 
tra

ns
it 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
 

R
ol

lin
g 

st
oc

k 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t, 
re

ha
b,

 o
r 

re
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
 m

us
t b

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 m
os

t 
re

ce
nt

ly
 a

do
pt

ed
 sh

or
t-r

an
ge

 tr
an

si
t p

la
n 

or
 o

th
er

 p
ub

lic
ly

 a
do

pt
ed

 p
la

n 
th

at
 

in
cl

ud
es

 tr
an

si
t c

ap
ita

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. 

N
ew

 a
nd

 e
xi

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
. E

lig
ib

le
 jo

b 
ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 
re

ve
rs

e 
co

m
m

ut
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 m
us

t p
ro

vi
de

 fo
r t

he
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

r m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f e

lig
ib

le
 jo

b 
ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 
re

ve
rs

e 
co

m
m

ut
e 

se
rv

ic
es

. R
ec

ip
ie

nt
s m

ay
 n

ot
 

re
cl

as
si

fy
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 th
at

 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 re

ce
iv

ed
 fu

nd
in

g 
un

de
r t

he
 fo

rm
er

 S
ec

tio
n 

53
16

 p
ro

gr
am

 a
s j

ob
 a

cc
es

s a
nd

 re
ve

rs
e 

co
m

m
ut

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 q
ua

lif
y 

fo
r o

pe
ra

tin
g 

as
si

st
an

ce
. I

n 
or

de
r t

o 
be

 e
lig

ib
le

 a
s a

 jo
b 

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 re

ve
rs

e 
co

m
m

ut
e 

pr
oj

ec
t, 

a 
pr

op
os

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
 m

us
t q

ua
lif

y 
as

 
ei

th
er

 a
 “

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ro
je

ct
” 

or
 a

 “
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

pr
oj

ec
t”

 (s
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

7.
c.

(2
) o

f t
he

se
 g

ui
de

lin
es

 fo
r 

de
ta

ils
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

“d
ev

el
op

m
en

t”
 a

nd
 “

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

” 
pr

oj
ec

ts
). 

 C
ap

ita
l a

nd
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. P
ro

je
ct

s t
ha

t c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
bo

ve
 m

ay
 in

cl
ud

e,
 b

ut
 a

re
 n

ot
 

lim
ite

d 
to

: 
 

La
te

-n
ig

ht
 &

 w
ee

ke
nd

 se
rv

ic
e;

 
 

G
ua

ra
nt

ee
d 

rid
e 

ho
m

e 
se

rv
ic

e;
 

 
Sh

ut
tle

 se
rv

ic
e;

 
 

Ex
pa

nd
in

g 
fix

ed
 ro

ut
e 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
si

t r
ou

te
s, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ho

ur
s o

f s
er

vi
ce

 o
r c

ov
er

ag
e;

 
 

D
em

an
d-

re
sp

on
si

ve
 v

an
 se

rv
ic

e;
 

 
R

id
es

ha
rin

g 
an

d 
ca

rp
oo

lin
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

; 
 

Tr
an

si
t-r

el
at

ed
 a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f b
ic

yc
lin

g;
 

 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

an
d 

ex
pe

ns
es

 fo
r v

ou
ch

er
 p

ro
gr

am
s;

 
 

Lo
ca

l c
ar

 lo
an

 p
ro

gr
am

s;
 

 
In

te
lli

ge
nt

 T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

s (
IT

S)
; 

 
M

ar
ke

tin
g;

 a
nd

 
 

M
ob

ili
ty

 m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

 
Se

e 
FT

A
 C

 9
03

0.
1E

, C
ha

pt
er

 IV
, S

ec
tio

n 
5 

fo
r d

et
ai

ls
 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
el

ig
ib

le
 JA

R
C

 p
ro

je
ct

s. 

Page 78



 
A

tta
ch

m
en

t A
  

 
M

TC
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 4

15
9 

Pa
ge

 1
7 

of
 1

9  

 
 

 
 St

at
e 

Tr
an

si
t A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
(S

TA
) 

 Pr
op

os
iti

on
 1

B
 –

 T
ra

ns
it 

Se
ct

io
n 

53
07

  
Jo

b 
A

cc
es

s a
nd

 R
ev

er
se

 C
om

m
ut

e 
(J

A
R

C
) 

Li
fe

lin
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

  
Lo

ca
l M

at
ch

 
  

20
%

 

  
20

%
 

 
50

%
 fo

r o
pe

ra
tin

g 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 (m

ay
 u

se
 S

TA
 fu

nd
s t

o 
co

ve
r u

p 
to

 3
0%

 if
 p

ro
je

ct
 is

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r b

ot
h 

JA
R

C
 a

nd
 S

TA
) 

 
50

%
 fo

r a
ut

o 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

 
20

%
 fo

r c
ap

ita
l p

ro
je

ct
s 

Es
tim

at
ed

 ti
m

in
g 

fo
r 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 fu

nd
s  

to
 p

ro
je

ct
 sp

on
so

r 

Tr
an

si
t o

pe
ra

to
rs

, C
TS

A
s a

nd
 e

lig
ib

le
 c

iti
es

 
an

d 
co

un
tie

s c
an

 in
iti

at
e 

cl
ai

m
s f

or
 F

Y
14

 a
nd

 
FY

15
 fu

nd
s i

m
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
M

TC
 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f p

ro
gr

am
 o

f p
ro

je
ct

s, 
an

d 
ca

n 
in

iti
at

e 
cl

ai
m

s f
or

 F
Y

16
 fu

nd
s a

fte
r  

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5.

 

Fo
r s

ub
re

ci
pi

en
ts

, t
he

 e
lig

ib
le

 re
ci

pi
en

t a
ct

in
g 

as
 fi

sc
al

 a
ge

nt
 w

ill
 li

ke
ly

 in
iti

at
e 

a 
fu

nd
in

g 
ag

re
em

en
t f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
M

TC
 a

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
pr

og
ra

m
 o

f p
ro

je
ct

s. 
Fu

nd
s w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

on
 

a 
re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t b

as
is

 a
fte

r e
xe

cu
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ag
re

em
en

t. 
 

Pr
oj

ec
t s

po
ns

or
s m

us
t s

ub
m

it 
a 

Pr
op

os
iti

on
 1

B
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

es
t t

o 
M

TC
 

fo
r s

ub
m

itt
al

 to
 C

al
tra

ns
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 1
3,

 
20

15
. D

is
bu

rs
em

en
t t

im
in

g 
de

pe
nd

s o
n 

bo
nd

 sa
le

s. 

Fo
llo

w
in

g 
M

TC
 a

pp
ro

va
l o

f t
he

 p
ro

gr
am

 o
f p

ro
je

ct
s, 

M
TC

 w
ill

 a
dd

 p
ro

je
ct

s t
o 

th
e 

TI
P.

 F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

TI
P 

ap
pr

ov
al

, F
TA

 g
ra

nt
ee

s m
us

t s
ub

m
it 

FT
A

 g
ra

nt
s f

or
 

FY
14

 a
nd

 F
Y

15
 fu

nd
s b

y 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
5.

 (T
he

 d
ea

dl
in

e 
to

 su
bm

it 
gr

an
ts

 fo
r F

Y
15

 fu
nd

s m
ay

 b
e 

ex
te

nd
ed

 
de

pe
nd

in
g 

on
 th

e 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
of

 F
Y

15
 a

pp
or

tio
nm

en
ts

.) 
FT

A
 g

ra
nt

ee
s m

us
t s

ub
m

it 
FT

A
 g

ra
nt

s f
or

 F
Y

16
 fu

nd
s 

by
 Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6.

 
  FT

A
 g

ra
nt

ee
s c

an
 b

eg
in

 th
ei

r p
ro

je
ct

s a
fte

r t
he

 fu
nd

s 
ar

e 
ob

lig
at

ed
 in

 a
n 

FT
A

 g
ra

nt
 (e

st
im

at
ed

 F
al

l 2
01

5 
fo

r 
FY

14
 &

 F
Y

15
 fu

nd
s;

 e
st

im
at

ed
 F

al
l 2

01
6 

fo
r F

Y
16

 
fu

nd
s)

. F
or

 su
br

ec
ip

ie
nt

s, 
th

e 
FT

A
 g

ra
nt

ee
 a

ct
in

g 
as

 
fis

ca
l a

ge
nt

 w
ill

 li
ke

ly
 in

iti
at

e 
a 

fu
nd

in
g 

ag
re

em
en

t 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

FT
A

 g
ra

nt
 a

w
ar

d.
 F

un
ds

 w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
on

 
a 

re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t b
as

is
 a

fte
r e

xe
cu

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ag

re
em

en
t. 

A
cc

ou
nt

ab
ili

ty
  

&
 R

ep
or

tin
g 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 

Tr
an

si
t o

pe
ra

to
rs

 a
nd

 e
lig

ib
le

 c
iti

es
 a

nd
 

co
un

tie
s m

us
t s

ub
m

it 
an

nu
al

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 (i
.e

., 
rid

er
sh

ip
) s

ta
tis

tic
s f

or
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
fir

st
 to

 
Li

fe
lin

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
 A

dm
in

is
tra

to
rs

 fo
r r

ev
ie

w
, 

an
d 

th
en

 to
 M

TC
 a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 a
nn

ua
l c

la
im

. 

D
ep

en
di

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

pa
ss

-
th

ro
ug

h 
ag

en
cy

, s
ub

re
ci

pi
en

ts
 w

ill
 li

ke
ly

 
su

bm
it 

qu
ar

te
rly

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 re
po

rts
 w

ith
 

in
vo

ic
es

, f
irs

t t
o 

th
e 

pa
ss

-th
ro

ug
h 

ag
en

cy
 fo

r 
re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t, 

an
d 

th
en

 to
 L

ife
lin

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

A
dm

in
is

tra
to

rs
 fo

r r
ev

ie
w

. 

U
si

ng
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
C

al
tra

ns
 fo

rm
s, 

pr
oj

ec
t 

sp
on

so
rs

 a
re

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 su

bm
it 

pr
oj

ec
t 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

gr
es

s r
ep

or
ts

 to
 th

e 
st

at
e 

ev
er

y 
si

x 
m

on
th

s, 
as

 w
el

l a
s a

 p
ro

je
ct

 
cl

os
e-

ou
t f

or
m

. C
al

tra
ns

 w
ill

 tr
ac

k 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

iz
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 v
ia

 th
ei

r w
eb

si
te

. 

Pr
oj

ec
t s

po
ns

or
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 
su

bm
it 

pr
og

re
ss

 re
po

rts
 to

 th
e 

Li
fe

lin
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

 A
dm

in
is

tra
to

r u
nl

es
s t

he
 L

PA
 

be
lie

ve
s t

ha
t c

ou
nt

y-
le

ve
l p

ro
je

ct
 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

be
ne

fic
ia

l. 
M

TC
 

an
d/

or
 th

e 
Li

fe
lin

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

A
dm

in
is

tra
to

rs
 m

ay
 re

qu
es

t t
o 

be
 c

op
ie

d 
on

 p
ro

gr
es

s r
ep

or
ts

 th
at

 a
re

 su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 

C
al

tra
ns

. 

FT
A

 g
ra

nt
ee

s a
re

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
al

l 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 fe
de

ra
l r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 fo
r p

re
pa

rin
g 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 th
ei

r S
ec

tio
n 

53
07

 (J
A

R
C

) g
ra

nt
s. 

M
TC

 
an

d/
or

 th
e 

Li
fe

lin
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

 A
dm

in
is

tra
to

rs
 m

ay
 

re
qu

es
t c

op
ie

s o
f F

TA
 g

ra
nt

ee
s’

 q
ua

rte
rly

 S
ec

tio
n 

53
07

 
(J

A
R

C
) g

ra
nt

 re
po

rts
 to

 F
TA

. 

D
ep

en
di

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

pa
ss

-th
ro

ug
h 

ag
en

cy
, s

ub
re

ci
pi

en
ts

 w
ill

 li
ke

ly
 su

bm
it 

qu
ar

te
rly

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 re

po
rts

 w
ith

 in
vo

ic
es

, f
irs

t t
o 

Li
fe

lin
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

 A
dm

in
is

tra
to

rs
 fo

r r
ev

ie
w

, a
nd

 th
en

 to
 th

e 
pa

ss
-th

ro
ug

h 
ag

en
cy

 fo
r r

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

t. 
Su

br
ec

ip
ie

nt
s 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
su

bm
it 

Ti
tle

 V
I r

ep
or

ts
 a

nn
ua

lly
 to

 th
e 

pa
ss

-
th

ro
ug

h 
ag

en
cy

.  

N
ot

e:
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 th
is

 c
ha

rt 
is

 a
cc

ur
at

e 
as

 o
f O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
4.

 M
TC

 w
ill

 st
riv

e 
to

 m
ak

e 
Li

fe
lin

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
 A

dm
in

is
tra

to
rs

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 a

ny
 c

ha
ng

es
 to

 fu
nd

 so
ur

ce
 g

ui
de

lin
es

 th
at

 m
ay

 
be

 e
na

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tin
g 

ag
en

ci
es

 (i
.e

. S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
, F

ed
er

al
 T

ra
ns

it 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n)

. 

Page 79



 Attachment A  
 MTC Resolution No. 4159 

Page 18 of 19 
 

  

Appendix 2 
Lifeline Transportation Program Cycle 4  

Standard Evaluation Criteria 
 
The following standard evaluation criteria are intended to provide consistent guidance to each 
county in prioritizing and selecting projects to receive Lifeline Transportation Program funds. Each 
county, in consultation with other stakeholder representatives on the selection committee, will 
consider these criteria when selecting projects, and establish the weight to be assigned to each of the 
criterion. Additional criteria may be added to a county program but should not replace or supplant 
the regional criteria. MTC staff will review the proposed county program criteria to ensure 
consistency and to facilitate coordination among county programs. 

 
a. Project Need/Goals and Objectives: Applicants should describe the unmet transportation need 

or gap that the proposed project seeks to address and the relevant planning effort that documents 
the need. Describe how project activities will mitigate the transportation need. Project 
application should clearly state the overall program goals and objectives, and demonstrate how 
the project is consistent with the goals of the Lifeline Transportation Program.  

 
b. Community-Identified Priority: Priority should be given to projects that directly address 

transportation gaps and/or barriers identified through a Community-Based Transportation Plan 
(CBTP) or other substantive local planning effort involving focused outreach to low-income 
populations. Applicants should identify the CBTP or other substantive local planning effort, as 
well as the priority given to the project in the plan.  

 
Other projects may also be considered, such as those that address transportation needs identified 
in countywide or regional welfare-to-work transportation plans, the Coordinated Public Transit-
Human Services Transportation Plan, or other documented assessment of needs within 
designated communities of concern. Findings emerging from one or more CBTPs or other 
relevant planning efforts may also be applied to other low-income areas, or otherwise be directed 
to serve low-income constituencies within the county, as applicable.  

 
A communities of concern (CoC) mapping tool showing both CoCs adopted with Plan Bay Area 
as well as the most recent socioeconomic data available from the Census Bureau is available at: 
http://gis.mtc.ca.gov/samples/Interactive_Maps/cocs.html.1

                                                 
1 There is a user’s guide available to aid in the use of this tool.  

 
c. Implementation Plan and Project Management Capacity: For projects seeking funds to 

support program operations, applicants must provide a well-defined service operations plan, and 
describe implementation steps and timelines for carrying out the plan.  

 
For projects seeking funds for capital purposes, applicants must provide an implementation plan, 
milestones and timelines for completing the project. 
 
Priority should be given to projects that are ready to be implemented in the timeframe that the 
funding is available. 
 

Page 80



 Attachment A  
 MTC Resolution No. 4159 

Page 19 of 19 
 

  

Project sponsors should describe and provide evidence of their organization’s ability to provide 
and manage the proposed project, including experience providing services for low-income 
persons, and experience as a recipient of state or federal transportation funds. For continuation 
projects that have previously received Lifeline funding, project sponsor should describe project 
progress and outcomes. 

 
d. Coordination and Program Outreach: Proposed projects will be evaluated based on their 

ability to coordinate with other community transportation and/or social service resources. 
Applicants should clearly identify project stakeholders, and how they will keep stakeholders 
involved and informed throughout the project. Applicants should also describe how the project 
will be marketed and promoted to the public.  

 
e. Cost-Effectiveness and Performance Indicators: The project will be evaluated based on the 

applicant’s ability to demonstrate that the project is the most appropriate way in which to address 
the identified transportation need, and is a cost-effective approach. Applicants must also identify 
clear, measurable outcome-based performance measures to track the effectiveness of the service 
in meeting the identified goals. A plan should be provided for ongoing monitoring and 
evaluation of the service, as well as steps to be taken if original goals are not achieved.  

 
f. Project Budget/Sustainability: Applicants must submit a clearly defined project budget, 

indicating anticipated project expenditures and revenues, including documentation of matching 
funds. Proposals should address long-term efforts and identify potential funding sources for 
sustaining the project beyond the grant period. 

 
 

Page 81



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 82



A
ge

nd
a 

It
em

 2
d 

T
ab

le
 A

 

Fu
nd

 S
ou

rc
e

FY
20

14
FY

20
15

FY
20

16
To

ta
l

S
TA

1
10

,4
46

,3
92

$ 
   

   
   

   
10

,5
41

,2
89

$ 
   

   
   

   
10

,5
41

,2
89

$ 
   

   
   

   
31

,5
28

,9
70

$ 
   

   
   

   

P
ro

p 
1B

2
-

24
,8

27
,3

59
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
24

,8
27

,3
59

$ 
   

   
   

   

53
07

 L
ife

lin
e 

S
et

-A
si

de
 (J

A
R

C
)3

2,
68

1,
77

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
2,

88
9,

85
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

2,
93

6,
09

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
8,

50
7,

72
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

53
07

 L
ife

lin
e 

S
et

-A
si

de
 (J

A
R

C
) 

S
m

al
l U

A
 C

ar
ry

ov
er

4
46

9,
97

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

46
9,

97
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  

To
ta

l
13

,5
98

,1
38

$ 
   

   
   

   
38

,2
58

,5
04

$ 
   

   
   

   
13

,4
77

,3
83

$ 
   

   
   

   
65

,3
34

,0
25

$ 
   

   
   

   

N
ot

es
:

10
/8

/2
01

4
(4

) F
Y

14
 5

30
7 

S
m

al
l U

A
 C

ar
ry

ov
er

 a
m

ou
nt

 is
 F

Y
13

 a
ct

ua
l s

m
al

l U
A

 a
pp

or
tio

nm
en

ts
 th

at
 w

er
e 

no
t p

ro
gr

am
m

ed
 in

 L
ife

lin
e 

C
yc

le
 3

.

(1
) F

Y
14

 &
 F

Y
15

 to
ta

l S
TA

 re
ve

nu
e 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
am

ou
nt

s 
ar

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 th
os

e 
in

 th
e 

m
os

t r
ec

en
t M

TC
 F

un
d 

E
st

im
at

e 
(M

TC
 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

N
o.

 4
13

3)
. A

s 
su

ch
, t

he
 F

Y
14

 S
TA

 re
ve

nu
e 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
$3

92
 m

ill
io

n 
in

 th
e 

en
ac

te
d 

FY
20

13
-1

4 
S

ta
te

 
B

ud
ge

t a
nd

 th
e 

FY
15

 S
TA

 re
ve

nu
e 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
$3

73
 m

ill
io

n 
es

tim
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 F
Y

20
14

-1
5 

S
ta

te
 B

ud
ge

t. 
Th

e 
FY

14
 S

TA
 a

m
ou

nt
 d

oe
s 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
 th

e 
$1

.0
5 

m
ill

io
n 

th
at

 w
as

 u
se

d 
fo

r t
he

 C
yc

le
 3

 J
A

R
C

 fu
nd

in
g 

re
st

or
at

io
n.

 T
he

 F
Y

16
 S

TA
 

es
tim

at
e 

as
su

m
es

 n
o 

gr
ow

th
. T

he
se

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
up

da
te

d 
as

 th
e 

M
TC

 F
un

d 
E

st
im

at
e 

(R
es

. 4
13

3)
 is

 u
pd

at
ed

.

T
ab

le
 A

 –
 L

ife
lin

e 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
C

yc
le

 4
 F

un
di

ng
FY

20
13

-1
4 

th
ro

ug
h 

FY
20

15
-1

6

(3
) F

Y
14

 5
30

7 
am

ou
nt

s 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 a

ct
ua

l a
pp

or
tio

nm
en

ts
. F

Y
14

 a
m

ou
nt

 d
oe

s 
no

t i
nc

lu
de

 th
e 

$2
08

K
 th

at
 w

as
 u

se
d 

fo
r t

he
 

C
yc

le
 3

 J
A

R
C

 fu
nd

in
g 

re
st

or
at

io
n.

 F
Y

15
 a

ss
um

es
 a

 0
%

 g
ro

w
th

 ra
te

 o
ve

r F
Y

14
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 $
20

8K
 th

at
 w

as
 u

se
d 

fo
r t

he
 C

yc
le

 3
 

JA
R

C
 fu

nd
in

g 
re

st
or

at
io

n)
 a

nd
 F

Y
16

 a
ss

um
es

 a
 1

.6
%

 g
ro

w
th

 ra
te

 o
ve

r F
Y

15
. T

he
se

 g
ro

w
th

 ra
te

s 
ar

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 

gr
ow

th
 ra

te
s 

fo
r t

he
 F

Y
15

 &
 F

Y
16

 T
ra

ns
it 

C
ap

ita
l P

rio
rit

ie
s 

pr
og

ra
m

. P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 re
vis

io
n.

(2
) F

Y
15

 P
ro

p 
1B

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
th

e 
on

ly
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 fo
r C

yc
le

 4
 a

nd
 th

e 
fin

al
 P

ro
p 

1B
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 fo
r t

he
 L

ife
lin

e 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

P
ro

gr
am

.

6.7B

Page 83



A
ge

nd
a 

It
em

 2
d 

T
ab

le
 B

 

S
TA

FY
13

 S
m

al
l U

A
 

C
ar

ry
ov

er
 J

A
R

C
 

(5
30

7)
FY

14
 J

A
R

C
 

(5
30

7)
S

TA
JA

R
C

 (5
30

7)
S

TA
JA

R
C

 (5
30

7)
A

ct
ua

l
A

ct
ua

l
A

ct
ua

l
E

st
im

at
e

E
st

im
at

e
E

st
im

at
e

E
st

im
at

e
E

st
im

at
e

A
la

m
ed

a
22

.6
%

2,
36

5,
59

8
   

   
  

31
,8

00
   

   
   

   
61

5,
46

5
   

   
   

2,
38

7,
08

7
   

   
  

64
6,

82
9

   
   

   
  

2,
22

8,
57

1
   

   
  

65
7,

17
8

   
   

   
  

8,
93

2,
52

8
   

   
   

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

14
.3

%
1,

49
5,

90
5

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
38

9,
19

4
   

   
   

1,
50

9,
49

4
   

   
  

40
9,

02
8

   
   

   
  

1,
40

9,
25

6
   

   
  

41
5,

57
2

   
   

   
  

5,
62

8,
44

9
   

   
   

M
ar

in
2.

6%
27

3,
85

7
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
71

,2
50

   
   

   
  

27
6,

34
5

   
   

   
  

74
,8

81
   

   
   

   
25

7,
99

4
   

   
   

  
76

,0
79

   
   

   
   

1,
03

0,
40

6
   

   
   

N
ap

a
2.

0%
21

2,
40

6
   

   
   

  
71

,6
32

   
   

   
   

72
,6

21
   

   
   

  
21

4,
33

6
   

   
   

  
72

,6
21

   
   

   
   

20
0,

10
3

   
   

   
  

73
,7

83
   

   
   

   
91

7,
50

2
   

   
   

  
S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

12
.5

%
1,

30
9,

66
7

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
34

0,
74

0
   

   
   

1,
32

1,
56

4
   

   
  

35
8,

10
4

   
   

   
  

1,
23

3,
80

5
   

   
  

36
3,

83
4

   
   

   
  

4,
92

7,
71

4
   

   
   

S
an

 M
at

eo
8.

4%
88

0,
69

9
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
22

9,
13

4
   

   
   

88
8,

70
0

   
   

   
  

24
0,

81
1

   
   

   
  

82
9,

68
5

   
   

   
  

24
4,

66
4

   
   

   
  

3,
31

3,
69

3
   

   
   

S
an

ta
 C

la
ra

23
.1

%
2,

41
5,

23
7

   
   

  
61

,1
11

   
   

   
   

64
2,

38
3

   
   

   
2,

43
7,

17
7

   
   

  
64

2,
38

3
   

   
   

  
2,

27
5,

33
5

   
   

  
65

2,
66

1
   

   
   

  
9,

12
6,

28
7

   
   

   
S

ol
an

o
6.

4%
66

8,
85

8
   

   
   

  
27

3,
83

1
   

   
   

  
27

7,
61

2
   

   
   

67
4,

93
4

   
   

   
  

27
7,

61
2

   
   

   
  

63
0,

11
5

   
   

   
  

28
2,

05
4

   
   

   
  

3,
08

5,
01

6
   

   
   

S
on

om
a

7.
9%

82
4,

16
5

   
   

   
  

31
,6

00
   

   
   

   
43

,3
73

   
   

   
  

83
1,

65
2

   
   

   
  

16
7,

58
7

   
   

   
  

77
6,

42
5

   
   

   
  

17
0,

26
8

   
   

   
  

2,
84

5,
07

0
   

   
   

M
TC

 - 
M

ea
ns

-B
as

ed
 F

ar
e 

P
ro

je
ct

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
-

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
70

0,
00

0
   

   
   

  
-

70
0,

00
0

   
   

   
  

To
ta

l
10

0.
0%

10
,4

46
,3

92
   

   
46

9,
97

4
   

   
   

  
2,

68
1,

77
2

   
   

10
,5

41
,2

89
   

   
2,

88
9,

85
6

   
   

  
10

,5
41

,2
89

   
   

2,
93

6,
09

3
   

   
  

40
,5

06
,6

65
   

   
 

10
/8

/2
01

4

FY
20

14

T
ab

le
 B

 –
 E

st
im

at
ed

 S
T

A
 &

 J
A

R
C

 (5
30

7)
 F

un
di

ng
 T

ar
ge

ts
 b

y 
C

ou
nt

y
FY

20
16

FY
20

15

C
ou

nt
y 

&
 S

ha
re

 o
f R

eg
io

na
l L

ow
 In

co
m

e 
P

op
ul

at
io

n1

To
ta

l

 
 

S
TA

1
JA

R
C

 (5
30

7)
FY

20
14

FY
20

15
FY

20
16

To
ta

l
E

st
im

at
e

E
st

im
at

e
E

st
im

at
e

E
st

im
at

e
E

st
im

at
e

E
st

im
at

e
A

la
m

ed
a

22
.6

%
6,

98
1,

25
6

   
   

 
1,

95
1,

27
2

   
   

 
2,

24
7,

31
8

   
   

 
2,

26
7,

73
3

   
   

 
2,

11
7,

14
3

   
   

 
6,

63
2,

19
4

   
   

  
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
14

.3
%

4,
41

4,
65

5
   

   
 

1,
21

3,
79

4
   

   
 

1,
42

1,
11

0
   

   
 

1,
43

4,
02

0
   

   
 

1,
33

8,
79

3
   

   
 

4,
19

3,
92

2
   

   
  

M
ar

in
2.

6%
80

8,
19

6
   

   
   

 
22

2,
21

0
   

   
   

 
26

0,
16

4
   

   
   

 
26

2,
52

7
   

   
   

 
24

5,
09

4
   

   
   

 
76

7,
78

6
   

   
   

  
N

ap
a

2.
0%

62
6,

84
5

   
   

   
 

29
0,

65
7

   
   

   
 

20
1,

78
6

   
   

   
 

20
3,

61
9

   
   

   
 

19
0,

09
8

   
   

   
 

59
5,

50
3

   
   

   
  

S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
12

.5
%

3,
86

5,
03

6
   

   
 

1,
06

2,
67

8
   

   
 

1,
24

4,
18

4
   

   
 

1,
25

5,
48

6
   

   
 

1,
17

2,
11

5
   

   
 

3,
67

1,
78

4
   

   
  

S
an

 M
at

eo
8.

4%
2,

59
9,

08
4

   
   

 
71

4,
60

9
   

   
   

 
83

6,
66

4
   

   
   

 
84

4,
26

5
   

   
   

 
78

8,
20

1
   

   
   

 
2,

46
9,

13
0

   
   

  
S

an
ta

 C
la

ra
23

.1
%

7,
12

7,
74

9
   

   
 

1,
99

8,
53

8
   

   
 

2,
29

4,
47

5
   

   
 

2,
31

5,
31

8
   

   
 

2,
16

1,
56

8
   

   
 

6,
77

1,
36

1
   

   
  

S
ol

an
o

6.
4%

1,
97

3,
90

7
   

   
 

1,
11

1,
10

9
   

   
 

63
5,

41
5

   
   

   
 

64
1,

18
8

   
   

   
 

59
8,

60
9

   
   

   
 

1,
87

5,
21

2
   

   
  

S
on

om
a

7.
9%

2,
43

2,
24

2
   

   
 

41
2,

82
8

   
   

   
 

78
2,

95
7

   
   

   
 

79
0,

06
9

   
   

   
 

73
7,

60
4

   
   

   
 

2,
31

0,
63

0
   

   
  

M
TC

 - 
M

ea
ns

-B
as

ed
 F

ar
e 

P
ro

je
ct

70
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

66
5,

00
0

   
   

   
 

66
5,

00
0

   
   

   
  

To
ta

l
10

0.
0%

31
,5

28
,9

70
   

   
8,

97
7,

69
5

   
   

 
9,

92
4,

07
2

   
   

 
10

,0
14

,2
25

   
   

10
,0

14
,2

25
   

   
29

,9
52

,5
22

   
   

10
/8

/2
01

4

Th
re

e-
Y

ea
r T

ot
al

95
%

 S
TA

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
Ta

rg
et

s

C
ou

nt
y 

&
 S

ha
re

 o
f R

eg
io

na
l L

ow
 In

co
m

e 
P

op
ul

at
io

n1

 

(1
) N

ot
e 

th
at

 th
e 

"S
ha

re
 o

f R
eg

io
na

l L
ow

 In
co

m
e 

P
op

ul
at

io
n"

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
es

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
m

os
t r

ec
en

t p
op

ul
at

io
n 

da
ta

 fr
om

 th
e 

20
12

 A
m

er
ic

an
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
ur

ve
y,

 
as

 is
 p

ro
po

se
d 

in
 th

e 
Li

fe
lin

e 
C

yc
le

 4
 p

ro
gr

am
 g

ui
de

lin
es

; h
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 c
ou

nt
y 

S
TA

 d
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
s 

in
 th

e 
M

TC
 F

un
d 

E
st

im
at

e 
(R

es
. 4

13
3)

 h
av

e 
no

t 
be

en
 u

pd
at

ed
 to

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
m

os
t r

ec
en

t p
op

ul
at

io
n 

da
ta

. I
f u

pd
at

ed
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

es
 a

re
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 L
ife

lin
e 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
P

ro
gr

am
 C

yc
le

 4
 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, t

he
 c

ou
nt

y 
S

TA
 d

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

s 
in

 th
e 

FY
20

15
-1

6 
M

TC
 F

un
d 

E
st

im
at

e 
w

ill 
be

 s
ho

w
n 

ac
co

rd
in

gl
y 

in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
15

.
 

Page 84



 
 

A
ge

nd
a 

It
em

 2
d 

T
ab

le
 C

  

 
 

 

FY
20

14
FY

20
15

FY
20

16
To

ta
l

A
C

 T
ra

ns
it

17
.3

%
-

4,
29

9,
82

8
   

   
   

 
-

4,
29

9,
82

8
   

   
   

 
B

A
R

T
18

.5
%

-
4,

60
4,

65
3

   
   

   
 

-
4,

60
4,

65
3

   
   

   
 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
on

ne
ct

io
n 

(C
C

C
TA

)
1.

0%
-

25
5,

19
4

   
   

   
   

 
-

25
5,

19
4

   
   

   
   

 
G

ol
de

n 
G

at
e 

Tr
an

si
t/M

ar
in

 T
ra

ns
it

3.
2%

-
78

7,
19

6
   

   
   

   
 

-
78

7,
19

6
   

   
   

   
 

W
he

el
s 

(L
A

V
TA

)
0.

5%
-

12
5,

62
5

   
   

   
   

 
-

12
5,

62
5

   
   

   
   

 
M

un
i (

S
FM

TA
)

24
.9

%
-

6,
18

9,
05

4
   

   
   

 
-

6,
18

9,
05

4
   

   
   

 
S

am
Tr

an
s

5.
0%

-
1,

23
0,

53
3

   
   

   
 

-
1,

23
0,

53
3

   
   

   
 

Tr
i D

el
ta

 T
ra

ns
it 

(E
C

C
TA

)
0.

7%
-

17
8,

75
4

   
   

   
   

 
-

17
8,

75
4

   
   

   
   

 
V

IN
E

 (N
C

TP
A

)
1.

2%
-

29
9,

07
0

   
   

   
   

 
-

29
9,

07
0

   
   

   
   

 
V

TA
19

.5
%

-
4,

83
2,

06
2

   
   

   
 

-
4,

83
2,

06
2

   
   

   
 

W
es

tC
at

 (W
C

C
TA

)
0.

3%
-

81
,1

13
   

   
   

   
   

-
81

,1
13

   
   

   
   

   
S

ol
an

o 
C

ou
nt

y 
O

pe
ra

to
rs

3.
6%

-
89

9,
21

7
   

   
   

   
 

-
89

9,
21

7
   

   
   

   
 

S
on

om
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

O
pe

ra
to

rs
4.

2%
-

1,
04

5,
06

1
   

   
   

 
-

1,
04

5,
06

1
   

   
   

 
To

ta
l

10
0.

0%
0

24
,8

27
,3

59
0

24
,8

27
,3

59

10
/8

/2
01

4

Tr
an

si
t O

pe
ra

to
r2  &

 H
yb

rid
 F

or
m

ul
a 

(S
ha

re
 o

f R
eg

io
na

l 
Lo

w
 In

co
m

e 
R

id
er

sh
ip

 &
 S

ha
re

 o
f R

eg
io

na
l L

ow
 In

co
m

e 
20

12
 P

op
ul

at
io

n)

P
ro

p 
1B

1

(1
) F

Y
15

 P
ro

p 
1B

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 a

re
 th

e 
on

ly
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 in
 C

yc
le

 4
.

(2
) O

nl
y 

tra
ns

it 
op

er
at

or
s 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 re
ce

ive
d 

P
ro

po
si

tio
n 

1B
 L

ife
lin

e 
fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
fo

rm
ul

a 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n.

Ta
bl

e 
C

 –
 P

ro
po

si
ti

on
 1

B
 T

ra
ns

it
 F

un
di

ng
 T

ar
ge

ts
 b

y 
Tr

an
si

t O
pe

ra
to

r 
an

d 
C

ou
nt

y

Page 85



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 86



 
 

 

Alameda CTC Proposed Programming Schedule for Lifeline Cycle 4 

 

Programming Activities Proposed Date 

Draft fund estimate and schedule to ACTAC September 4, 2014 

MTC to approve final guidelines October 22, 2014 

Program information / Process to Alameda CTC 

Committees & Board 
October 2014 

Alameda CTC to release Call for Projects (CFP) Early November 2014 

Alameda CTC to hold application workshop Mid-November 2014 

Applications due to Alameda CTC Mid-December 2014 

Final program to Alameda CTC Committees and Board March 2015 

Alameda CTC approved program due to MTC March 2015 

MTC approval of program April 2015 

 

6.7C

Page 87

vbhat
Cross-Out



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 88



E
va

lu
at

io
n 

C
rit

er
ia

M
TC

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
C

rit
er

ia
: 

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

TC
-

Pr
op

os
ed

 
W

ei
gh

t
M

TC
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

C
rit

er
ia

: 
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
TC

-
Pr

op
os

ed
 

W
ei

gh
t

P
ro

je
ct

 n
ee

d/
go

al
s 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 

30
%

P
ro

je
ct

 n
ee

d/
go

al
s 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 

30
%

P
ro

je
ct

 is
 a

 C
B

TP
1  p

rio
rit

y 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
P

rio
rit

y 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 lo
ca

l p
la

nn
in

g 
ef

fo
rts

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 o

n 
a 

ca
se

-b
y-

ca
se

 b
as

is
2

10
%

P
ro

je
ct

 is
 a

 C
B

TP
-id

en
tif

ie
d 

pr
io

rit
y 

or
 a

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

pr
io

rit
y 

fro
m

 o
th

er
 lo

ca
l p

la
nn

in
g 

ef
fo

rt2
10

%

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pl

an
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
 m

an
ag

em
en

t c
ap

ac
ity

10
%

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pl

an
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
 m

an
ag

em
en

t c
ap

ac
ity

10
%

P
ro

je
ct

 b
ud

ge
t/s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

10
%

P
ro

je
ct

 b
ud

ge
t/s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

10
%

C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
an

d 
pr

og
ra

m
 o

ut
re

ac
h

5%
C

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

an
d 

pr
og

ra
m

 o
ut

re
ac

h
5%

C
os

t-e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
an

d 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs
10

%
C

os
t-e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

an
d 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 in

di
ca

to
rs

10
%

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

TC
 A

dd
iti

on
al

 C
rit

er
ia

: 
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
TC

-P
ro

po
se

d 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 C
rit

er
ia

: 
D

em
an

d 
10

%
D

em
an

d 
10

%

M
at

ch
in

g 
fu

nd
s 

ab
ov

e 
m

in
im

um
 re

qu
ire

d
5%

M
at

ch
in

g 
fu

nd
s 

ab
ov

e 
m

in
im

um
 re

qu
ire

d
5%

P
ro

je
ct

 R
ea

di
ne

ss
 

10
%

P
ro

je
ct

 R
ea

di
ne

ss
 

10
%

10
0%

10
0%

Li
fe

lin
e 

C
yc

le
 3

 
Li

fe
lin

e 
C

yc
le

 4
 

N
ot

es
:

1)
 

2)
 C

om
m

un
ity

-B
as

ed
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

P
la

n

M
TC

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
cr

ite
ria

 is
 c

om
m

un
ity

-id
en

tif
ie

d 
pr

io
rit

y.
 D

ue
 to

 th
e 

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
B

TP
s,

 it
 is

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

fro
m

 o
th

er
 lo

ca
l 

pl
an

ni
ng

 e
ffo

rts
 a

ls
o 

be
 in

cl
ud

ed
 a

s 
m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
cr

ite
ria

.

6.7D

Page 89



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 90



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.8_SR2S_AnnualReport\6.8_SR2S_Annual_Update_Memo_9.24.14.docx 

 

 

Memorandum  6.8 

 

DATE: October 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Safe Routes to Schools Program Annual Update 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an annual update on Safe Routes to Schools Program. 

 

Summary  

The purpose of this item is to provide the Commission with information related to the 
Alameda County Safe Routes to Schools (SR2S) Program for 2013-2014 Year-End Report and 
key activities for 2014-2015 school year. This item is for information only. 

This staff report and presentation will briefly review the following key areas: 

• Growth of the SR2S Program over the past eight years; 
• An update on the High School Program; 
• How students are traveling; and, 
• A look ahead to 2014-15 school year. 

Background 

Alameda County’s SR2S Program is a countywide program that promotes and encourages 
safe walking and bicycling to school, as well as carpooling and public transit use. As part of 
the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s Climate Initiatives program, the eight year-old 
Alameda County Safe Routes to Schools Program has expanded and will reach over 175 
schools across the county in the upcoming 2014-15 school year, engaging students from 
kindergarten through 12th grade. 

The Alameda County SR2S program promotes safe and healthy transportation choices for 
parents and children. The program began in 2006 as a pilot at four schools, funded with a 
Caltrans SR2S grant and Measure B funds. Since then, the program has expanded 
dramatically, in 2013-2014 it reached more than 150 schools across Alameda County. The 
current program is administered by the Alameda County Transportation Commission and 
funded by Federal Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality funds, Federal Surface 
Transportation Program funds, and local Measure B funds. 

 

Page 91



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.8_SR2S_AnnualReport\6.8_SR2S_Annual_Update_Memo_9.24.14.docx 

 

 

During the 2013-2014 school year, Alameda County’s SR2S team organized and delivered 
over 400 individual events to 105 schools. Similar to the FY2013-2014 program, a selection 
process was used to select the school locations with the dual goals of distributing the 
programming equitably throughout the County and identifying schools with optimal chances 
of success.  Schools were evaluated based on socio-economic characteristics,  land use, 
barriers to active transportation, collision history, and the presence of a school champion 
and task force to assist with program implementation.  The extensive SR2S program provided 
a comprehensive program to 105 elementary, middle, and high schools and technical 
assistance to 50 elementary and middle schools in Alameda County. 

The Alameda County SR2S program was primarily structured around three big events: 
International Walk and Roll to School Day in October, the Golden Sneaker Contest in March, 
and Bike to School Day in May.  The 2013-14 school year saw increased participation and 
engagement of students for these events throughout the County.  To maintain the 
enthusiasm generated by these coordinated events, Alameda County SR2S worked with 
schools to organize ongoing walking and biking activities. In 2013-2014, 39 schools held 
regular Walk and Roll to School Days and 16 schools had parent-led Walking School Buses.  

In 2012, Alameda County Transportation Commission launched the BikeMobile, a free mobile 
bicycle repair service. This service is independent of but coordinated with Alameda County 
SR2S programs. During the 2013-2014 school year, the BikeMobile made 115 visits throughout 
Alameda County, including 67 visits at schools participating in Alameda County’s Safe 
Routes to Schools program. The BikeMobile made over 2,100 repairs, and follow-up surveys 
indicate bicycle ridership has more than doubled at these locations after the visits. 
 
During the 2013-2014 school year, the high school program shifted into a fully integrated 
aspect of the Alameda County Safe Routes to Schools program. In 2014, the high school 
program will expand from six to eight schools.  Integrating Alameda County SR2S into existing 
clubs and classes has helped establish program activities as part of the ongoing school 
curriculum. Furthermore, there is a demonstrated level of interest and enthusiasm in the topic 
area of public health and the environment, and  about projects that impact behavior 
changes. 
 
The primary goal of the Alameda County SR2S program is to increase the percentage of 
students that travel to and from school by walking, biking, carpooling, school bus and transit. 
To measure these changes, the program has conducted student hand tallies and parent 
surveys since 2008.  Beginning the spring semester 2012, the evaluation effort expanded, with 
all schools enrolled in the comprehensive program asked to complete standardized surveys 
which provides a basis to measure mode shift. 

According to the student tally data, thirty-six percent of trips are via active transportation, 
with 30 percent of trips by foot and 3.5 percent of trips by bike.  
 

Page 92



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.8_SR2S_AnnualReport\6.8_SR2S_Annual_Update_Memo_9.24.14.docx 

 

 

During the 2014-2015 school year, Alameda County SR2S will focus on the following 
improvements and new items: 

• Strengthen program evaluation by collecting more data and continuing to build data 
collection into programming. 

• Expand participation at the three key events (International Walk and Roll to School 
Day in October, the Golden Sneaker Contest in March, and Bike to School Day in 
May). 

• Provide two new outreach programs: pedestrian safety rodeos and a theatre show 
focused on pedestrian and bicycle safety skills for elementary students.  

• Provide and present information to School Districts and Cities about the program in 
their respective jurisdiction to facilitate better coordination and further growth of the 
program. 

 

Fiscal Impact: There is no significant fiscal impact to the Alameda CTC budget due to this 
item. 

 

Attachments 

A. Draft Alameda County Safe Routes to Schools Program 2013-2014 Year-End Report 
(Introduction only, full report hyperlinked to the web)  

Staff Contact  

Stewart Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 

Arun Goel, Program Manager (Safe Routes to School)  

 

Page 93

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14578/5.3A_DRAFTAlameda_County_SR2S_2013-2014_FullReport-ForWeb.pdf
mailto:stewartng@alamedactc.org
mailto:agoel@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 94



A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

 S
af

e 
Ro

ut
es

 to
 S

ch
oo

ls
 

20
13

-2
01

4 
Ye

ar
-E

nd
 R

ep
or

t

w
w

w
.a

la
m

ed
ac

ou
nt

ys
r2

s.
or

g

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

C
om

m
is

si
on

6.8A 

Page 95



Ta
bl

e 
of

 C
on

te
nt

s

A
L

A
M

E
D

A
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 S

A
F

E
 R

O
U

T
E

S
 T

O
 S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 2
0

13
-2

0
14

 Y
E

A
R

-E
N

D
 R

E
P

O
R

T

A
ck

no
w

le
dg

em
en

ts
Ci

ty
 o

f H
ay

w
ar

d
Ba

rb
ar

a 
H

al
lid

ay
, M

ay
or

Ci
ty

 o
f L

iv
er

m
or

e
Jo

hn
 M

ar
ch

an
d,

 M
ay

or

Ci
ty

 o
f N

ew
ar

k
Lu

is
 F

re
ita

s,
 C

ou
nc

ilm
em

be
r

Ci
ty

 o
f O

ak
la

nd
La

rr
y 

Re
id

, V
ic

e 
M

ay
or

Ci
ty

 o
f P

ie
dm

on
t

M
ar

ga
re

t F
uj

io
ka

, M
ay

or

Ci
ty

 o
f P

le
as

an
to

n
Je

rr
y 

Th
or

ne
, M

ay
or

Ci
ty

 o
f S

an
 L

ea
nd

ro
M

ic
ha

el
 G

re
go

ry
, C

ou
nc

ilm
em

be
r

Ci
ty

 o
f U

ni
on

 C
ity

Ca
ro

l D
ut

ra
-V

er
na

ci
, M

ay
or

A
la

m
ed

a 
CT

C 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

A
rt

 D
ao

A
la

m
ed

a 
CT

C 
Pr

og
ra

m
 M

an
ag

er
A

ru
n 

G
oe

l

Pr
og

ra
m

 C
on

su
lta

nt
 T

ea
m

A
lta

 P
la

nn
in

g 
+ 

D
es

ig
n,

 T
ra

ns
Fo

rm
,

Cy
cl

es
 o

f C
ha

ng
e,

 B
ik

e 
Ea

st
 B

ay
,

Fi
ng

er
 D

es
ig

n,
 C

on
ve

y

A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

’s 
Sa

fe
 R

ou
te

s 
to

 S
ch

oo
ls 

Pr
og

ra
m

 w
ish

es
  

to
 th

an
k 

al
l s

ch
oo

l d
ist

ric
t, 

sc
ho

ol
 st

aff
, s

ch
oo

l t
ea

ch
er

s, 
pa

re
nt

 
ch

am
pi

on
s 

an
d 

st
ud

en
ts

 w
ho

 s
up

po
rt

 a
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

sh
ar

ed
 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

to
 sc

ho
ol

.

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
ti

on
 C

om
m

is
si

on
Co

m
m

is
si

on
 C

ha
ir 

 
Sc

ot
t H

ag
ge

rt
y,

 A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

 D
is

tr
ic

t 1
 S

up
er

vi
so

r
Co

m
m

is
si

on
 V

ic
e 

Ch
ai

r  
Re

be
cc

a 
Ka

pl
an

, C
ity

 o
f O

ak
la

nd
 C

ou
nc

ilm
em

be
r

A
C 

Tr
an

si
t

El
sa

 O
rt

iz
, D

ire
ct

or

A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

Su
pe

rv
is

or
s

Ri
ch

ar
d 

Va
lle

—
D

is
tr

ic
t 2

W
ilm

a 
Ch

an
—

D
is

tr
ic

t 3
N

at
e 

M
ile

y—
D

is
tr

ic
t 4

Ke
ith

 C
ar

so
n—

D
is

tr
ic

t 5

BA
RT

Th
om

as
 B

la
lo

ck
, D

ire
ct

or

Ci
ty

 o
f A

la
m

ed
a

M
ar

ie
 G

ilm
or

e,
 M

ay
or

Ci
ty

 o
f A

lb
an

y
Pe

te
r M

aa
ss

, V
ic

e 
M

ay
or

Ci
ty

 o
f B

er
ke

le
y

La
ur

ie
 C

ap
ite

lli
, C

ou
nc

ilm
em

be
r

Ci
ty

 o
f D

ub
lin

Ti
m

 S
br

an
ti,

 M
ay

or

Ci
ty

 o
f E

m
er

yv
ill

e
Ru

th
 A

tk
in

, V
ic

e 
M

ay
or

Ci
ty

 o
f F

re
m

on
t

W
ill

ia
m

 H
ar

ris
on

, M
ay

or

In
tr

od
uc

ti
on

 
H

ig
hl

ig
ht

s 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...1

 
A

bo
ut

 th
is

 R
ep

or
t..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..4

 
 Pr

og
ra

m
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 
H

is
to

ry
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

5 
Pr

og
ra

m
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
nd

 D
el

iv
er

y 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.7
 

 El
em

en
ta

ry
 a

nd
 M

id
dl

e 
Sc

ho
ol

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
Se

le
ct

io
n P

ro
ce

ss
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

9 
Pr

og
ra

m
 D

el
iv

er
y 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.11
 

Pr
og

ra
m

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...1
1

H
ig

h 
Sc

ho
ol

 P
ro

gr
am

 
Pr

og
ra

m
 A

pp
ro

ac
h.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 2
2 

Se
le

ct
io

n 
Pr

oc
es

s 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..2
3 

Pr
og

ra
m

 D
el

iv
er

y.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.2
4

Pr
og

ra
m

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

24
H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
 H

ig
hl

ig
ht

s 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
25

 

H
ow

 S
tu

de
nt

s 
Tr

av
el

 
D

at
a 

So
ur

ce
s.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.2
7 

Co
un

ty
w

id
e 

Re
su

lts
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.2

8 
Co

m
pa

ris
on

 to
 P

rio
r Y

ea
rs

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..3
1 

 A
 L

oo
k 

A
he

ad
 

M
ee

tin
g 

G
oa

ls
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..3
6   

Ex
pa

nd
in

g 
th

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.3

6 
M

od
el

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

39

Page 96



A
L

A
M

E
D

A
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 S

A
F

E
 R

O
U

T
E

S
 T

O
 S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 2
0

13
-2

0
14

 Y
E

A
R

-E
N

D
 R

E
P

O
R

T

Li
st

 o
f F

ig
ur

es
Li

st
 o

f T
ab

le
s

Fi
gu

re
 1

5 
W

al
ki

ng
 M

od
e 

Sh
ar

e 
an

d 
W

al
ki

ng
 

Sc
ho

ol
 B

us
 P

ro
gr

am
s 

 .
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
34

Fi
gu

re
 1

6 
Bi

ki
ng

 M
od

e 
Sh

ar
e 

by
 N

um
be

r o
f  

   
 

Bi
ki

ng
 P

ro
gr

am
s.

 . 
. .

 . 
. .

 . 
. .

 . 
. .

 . 
. .

 . 
. .

 . 
. .

 . 
. .

 . 
. .

 . 
. .

34
Fi

gu
re

 1
7 

Pa
re

nt
 C

on
ce

rn
s 

w
ith

 W
al

ki
ng

/B
ik

in
g 

to
 S

ch
oo

l, 
20

14
 P

ar
en

t S
ur

ve
y  .

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.3
5

Fi
gu

re
 1

 
 S

ch
oo

ls
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

in
g 

in
 C

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
Ev

en
ts

 .
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.2
Fi

gu
re

 2
 

 N
um

be
r o

f E
ve

nt
s 

at
 P

ar
tic

ip
at

in
g 

Sc
ho

ol
s,

 2
01

3-
20

14
 S

ch
oo

l Y
ea

r  .
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
3

Fi
gu

re
 3

 
 G

ro
w

th
 o

f A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

 S
R2

S 
   

 
Pr

og
ra

m
 2

00
6-

07
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

13
-1

4  
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

6
Fi

gu
re

 4
 

 2
01

3-
20

14
 A

la
m

ed
a 

Co
un

ty
 S

af
e 

Ro
ut

es
 to

 S
ch

oo
ls

 P
ar

tic
ip

at
in

g 
Sc

ho
ol

s  
..

..
..

..
..

7
Fi

gu
re

 5
 

Co
m

pa
ris

on
 o

f P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
Ta

rg
et

s 
by

 
D

is
tr

ic
t a

nd
 2

01
3-

20
14

 S
ch

oo
ls

 .
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.1
0

Fi
gu

re
 6

 
H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
 P

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 C

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
Ev

en
ts

 .
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

23
Fi

gu
re

 7
 

M
od

e 
Sp

lit
 fo

r C
ou

nt
yw

id
e 

Sc
ho

ol
 T

rip
s,

 
H

an
d 

Ta
lly

 a
nd

 P
ar

en
t S

ur
ve

y 
D

at
a 

 ..
..

..
..

..
..

.2
8

Fi
gu

re
 8

 
M

od
e 

Sp
lit

 b
y 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 A
re

a,
 F

al
l 2

01
3 

H
an

d 
Ta

lly
 D

at
a  .

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
29

Fi
gu

re
 9

 
M

od
e 

Sp
lit

 b
y 

D
is

ta
nc

e 
to

 S
ch

oo
l, 

Sp
rin

g 
20

14
 P

ar
en

t S
ur

ve
y 

D
at

a  
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
30

 
Fi

gu
re

 1
0 

M
od

e 
Sh

ift
 A

cr
os

s 
Se

m
es

te
rs

 .
..

..
.3

1
Fi

gu
re

 1
1 

N
or

th
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
re

a 
M

od
e 

Sh
ift

, H
an

d 
Ta

lly
 D

at
a  

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

32
Fi

gu
re

 1
2 

Ce
nt

ra
l P

la
nn

in
g 

A
re

a 
M

od
e 

Sh
ift

, 
H

an
d 

Ta
lly

 D
at

a  .
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

32
Fi

gu
re

 1
3 

So
ut

h 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 A

re
a 

M
od

e 
Sh

ift
, H

an
d 

Ta
lly

 D
at

a 
 ..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
32

Fi
gu

re
 14

 
Ea

st
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
re

a 
M

od
e 

Sh
ift

, H
an

d 
Ta

lly
 D

at
a  

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

32

Ta
bl

e 
1 

Pr
og

ra
m

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
 fo

r 2
01

3-
20

14
 .

..
..

.8
Ta

bl
e 

2 
H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
 P

ro
gr

am
 D

el
iv

er
y  

..
..

..
..

24
Ta

bl
e 

3 
H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
 P

ro
gr

am
 H

ig
hl

ig
ht

s  
..

..
..

25
Ta

bl
e 

4 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 2

01
3-

20
14

 G
oa

ls
 .

..
..

..
37

Page 97



Page 98



CHAPTER 1
A

L
A

M
E

D
A

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 S
A

F
E

 R
O

U
T

E
S

 T
O

 S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 2

0
13

-2
0

14
 Y

E
A

R
-E

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T

  
• 

 C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 1

 –
 I

N
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N 1

 
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n

20
13

-2
01

4 
H

ig
hl

ig
ht

s
A

la
m

ed
a 

Co
un

ty
 

SR
2S

 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

to
 

pr
om

ot
e 

w
al

ki
ng

, 
bi

ki
ng

, 
an

d 
ca

rp
oo

lin
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

w
el

l-
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
co

un
ty

w
id

e 
ev

en
ts

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 t
es

tin
g 

ou
t n

ew
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

gr
am

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

st
ud

en
t 

an
d 

sc
ho

ol
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t. 
In

 t
he

 2
01

3-
20

14
 s

ch
oo

l 
ye

ar
, A

la
m

ed
a 

Co
un

ty
 S

R2
S 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 s
ch

oo
ls

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
in

g 
in

 t
he

 o
ve

ra
ll 

pr
og

ra
m

 a
nd

 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

pr
og

ra
m

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 c
or

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 to

 
re

co
rd

 le
ve

ls
. S

uc
ce

ss
es

 fr
om

 th
e 

20
13

-2
01

4 
sc

ho
ol

 
ye

ar
 in

cl
ud

e:

 ●
10

5 
sc

ho
ol

s 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 
pr

og
ra

m
 .

 ●
50

 s
ch

oo
ls

 re
ce

iv
ed

 te
ch

ni
ca

l a
ss

is
ta

nc
e

 ●
84

%
 o

f s
ch

oo
ls

 h
el

d 
th

re
e 

or
 m

or
e 

ev
en

ts
, a

nd
 

46
%

 h
el

d 
fiv

e 
or

 m
or

e 
ev

en
ts

. 

 ●
91

%
 o

f s
ch

oo
ls

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
ed

 in
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l W

al
k 

&
 R

ol
l t

o 
Sc

ho
ol

 D
ay

, a
 1

0%
 in

cr
ea

se
 f

ro
m

 f
al

l 
20

12
.

 ●
68

%
 

of
 

sc
ho

ol
s 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
ed

 
in

 
th

e 
G

ol
de

n 
Sn

ea
ke

r C
on

te
st

 in
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

4,
 a

 1
4%

 in
cr

ea
se

 
fro

m
 s

pr
in

g 
20

13
.

 ●
84

%
 o

f 
sc

ho
ol

s 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

ed
 i

n 
Bi

ke
 t

o 
Sc

ho
ol

 
D

ay
 i

n 
M

ay
 2

01
4,

 a
 2

4%
 i

nc
re

as
e 

fro
m

 2
01

3.
 

O
ve

r 5
,0

00
 s

tu
de

nt
s 

bi
ke

d 
to

 s
ch

oo
l, 

m
or

e 
th

an
 

tw
ic

e 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
th

at
 r

od
e 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
ev

en
t 

in
 

20
13

. 

 ●
Th

e 
Bi

ke
M

ob
ile

 m
ob

ile
 b

ic
yc

le
 r

ep
ai

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
m

ad
e 

11
5 

vi
si

ts
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 y
ea

r, 
re

pa
ire

d 
ov

er
 2

,10
0 

bi
ke

s,
 a

nd
 m

or
e 

th
an

 d
ou

bl
ed

 b
ic

yc
le

 
rid

er
sh

ip
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

co
un

ts
 o

f b
ic

yc
le

s 
be

fo
re

 a
nd

 
af

te
r t

he
 v

is
it.

 ●
39

 K
-8

 s
ch

oo
ls

 h
el

d 
re

gu
la

r 
W

al
k 

an
d 

Ro
ll 

to
 

Sc
ho

ol
 D

ay
s.

 ●
16

 
el

em
en

ta
ry

 
sc

ho
ol

s 
or

ga
ni

ze
d 

pa
re

nt
-le

d 
W

al
ki

ng
 S

ch
oo

l B
us

es
.

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
 

Ro
ut

es
 

to
 

Sc
ho

ol
s 

pr
om

ot
es

 
sa

fe
 

an
d 

he
al

th
y 

tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
ch

oi
ce

s a
s b

ei
ng

 fu
n 

an
d 

ea
sy

 o
pt

io
ns

 f
or

 p
ar

en
ts

 a
nd

 c
hi

ld
re

n 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y.
  

Th
e 2

01
3-

20
14

 sc
ho

ol
 ye

ar
 w

as
 A

la
m

ed
a C

ou
nt

y S
af

e 
Ro

ut
es

 to
 S

ch
oo

ls
’ (

SR
2S

) 
ei

gh
th

 y
ea

r o
f p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
ac

tiv
e 

tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
ch

oi
ce

s 
to

 
st

ud
en

ts
. 

Th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

 h
as

 e
xp

an
de

d 
an

nu
al

ly
 a

nd
 n

ow
 r

ea
ch

es
 

m
or

e 
th

an
 10

0 
sc

ho
ol

s a
cr

os
s a

ll a
re

as
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nt
y.

 

Th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

 
is

 
ad

m
in

is
te

re
d 

by
 

th
e 

A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

 (A
la

m
ed

a 
CT

C)
 

an
d 

fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
Fe

de
ra

l f
un

ds
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l M

ea
su

re
 B

 
fu

nd
s.

Se
ar

le
s 

El
em

en
ta

ry
 

(U
ni

on
 C

ity
) s

tu
de

nt
s 

lin
e 

up
 to

 g
iv

e 
th

e 
Bi

ke
 

Sa
fe

ty
 T

riv
ia

 W
he

el
 a

 
sp

in
. 

Page 99



A
L

A
M

E
D

A
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 S

A
F

E
 R

O
U

T
E

S
 T

O
 S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 2
0

13
-2

0
14

 Y
E

A
R

-E
N

D
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  
• 

 C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 1

 –
 I

N
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 2Fi
gu

re
 1

 s
ho

w
s 

th
e 

gr
ow

th
 in

 n
um

be
r 

of
 s

ch
oo

ls
 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
in

g 
in

 t
he

 c
ou

nt
yw

id
e 

ev
en

ts
 o

ff
er

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

 S
R2

S 
pr

og
ra

m
. 

M
os

t 
sc

ho
ol

s 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

in
g 

in
 t

he
 A

la
m

ed
a 

Co
un

ty
 

SR
2S

 p
ro

gr
am

 h
av

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

ra
te

s 
of

 w
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 
bi

cy
cl

in
g,

 a
cc

or
di

ng
 t

o 
th

e 
on

go
in

g 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 

ho
w

 s
tu

de
nt

s 
ge

t t
o 

sc
ho

ol
 (

ba
se

d 
on

 a
 p

ar
tia

l d
at

a 
se

t)
.

Fi
gu

re
 1

 
Sc

ho
ol

s 
Pa

rt
ic

ip
at

in
g 

in
 C

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
Ev

en
ts

Th
e 

an
al

ys
is

 a
ls

o 
fo

un
d 

a 
co

rr
el

at
io

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 w
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 b
ik

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

s 
an

d 
ac

tiv
e 

tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
m

od
e 

sh
ar

e.
 

St
ro

ng
 re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 e

xi
st

 b
et

w
ee

n 
Sa

fe
 R

ou
te

s 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

nd
 e

ve
nt

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r i

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
st

ud
en

t 
tr

av
el

 b
eh

av
io

rs
: 

	
•	

Sc
ho
ol
s	
w
ith

	m
or
e	
w
al
ki
ng
	p
ro
gr
am

s	
	

	
 

 
te

nd
 to

 h
av

e 
a 

hi
gh

er
 a

ct
iv

e 
m

od
e 

sh
ar

e.
 

	
•	

Sc
ho
ol
s	
w
ith

	m
or
e	
bi
cy
cl
in
g	
pr
og
ra
m
s	
	

	
 

 
te

nd
 to

 h
av

e 
a 

hi
gh

er
 b

ik
in

g 
m

od
e 

sh
ar

e.

02040608010
0

12
0

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l W
al

k 
&

 R
ol

l t
o 

Sc
ho

ol
 D

ay
G

ol
de

n 
Sn

ea
ke

r C
on

te
st

Bi
ke

 to
 S

ch
oo

l D
ay

gnit api citr a P  sl oohc S

20
10

-2
01

1

20
11

-2
01

2

20
12

-2
01

3

20
13

-2
01

4

Page 100



A
L

A
M

E
D

A
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 S

A
F

E
 R

O
U

T
E

S
 T

O
 S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 2
0

13
-2

0
14

 Y
E

A
R

-E
N

D
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  
• 

 C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 1

 –
 I

N
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 

3

Fi
gu

re
 2

 
 N

um
be

r o
f E

ve
nt

s 
at

 P
ar

ti
ci

pa
ti

ng
 S

ch
oo

ls
, 2

01
3-

20
14

 S
ch

oo
l Y

ea
r

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

Fr
em

on
t

O
ak

la
nd

Su
no

l

H
ay

w
ar

d

Li
ve

rm
or

e
Pl

ea
sa

nt
on

D
ub

lin

N
ew

ar
k

U
ni

on
 C

ity

Be
rk

el
ey

C
as

tr
o 

Va
lle

y
Sa

n 
Le

an
dr

o

Al
am

ed
a

Al
ba

ny

Sa
n 

Lo
re

nz
o

Pi
ed

m
on

t

Em
er

yv
ill

e

C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
C

ou
nt

y

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o 
Ba

y

Sa
n 

M
at

eo
C

ou
nt

y
Sa

nt
a 

C
la

ra
C

ou
nt

y

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o
C

ou
nt

y

[
0

4.
5

9
M

ile
s

N
um

be
r 

of
 E

ve
n

ts

!
0

 -
 2

!
3 

- 
4

!
5

!
6 

- 
7

!
8

 -
 1

0

Page 101



A
L

A
M

E
D

A
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 S

A
F

E
 R

O
U

T
E

S
 T

O
 S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 2
0

13
-2

0
14

 Y
E

A
R

-E
N

D
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  
• 

 C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 1

 –
 I

N
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 4A
bo

ut
 th

is
 R

ep
or

t 
Th

is
 re

po
rt

 c
ov

er
s 

pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

20
13

-2
01

4 
sc

ho
ol

 y
ea

r. 
Sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

, i
t:

 ●
Pr

es
en

ts
 a

n 
ov

er
vi

ew
 o

f 
K-

8 
an

d 
hi

gh
 s

ch
oo

l 
pr

og
ra

m
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 ●
Re

po
rt

s 
th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f t

hr
ee

 y
ea

rs
 o

f t
ra

ve
l d

at
a,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

an
 a

na
ly

si
s 

of
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 c
or

re
la

te
d 

w
ith

 
m

od
e 

sh
ift

 ●
Tr

ac
ks

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
m

ad
e 

to
w

ar
d 

go
al

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
fo

r t
he

 2
01

3-
20

14
 s

ch
oo

l y
ea

r

 ●
M

ak
es

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

fo
r 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

to
 

en
ha

nc
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g 
an

d 
pr

og
ra

m
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
re

m
ai

nd
er

 o
f 

th
e 

th
re

e-
ye

ar
 g

ra
nt

 c
yc

le

Th
is

 re
po

rt
 is

 o
rg

an
iz

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ch
ap

te
rs

:

 ●
Ch

ap
te

r 
2,

 P
ro

gr
am

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
, 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 b

rie
f 

hi
st

or
y 

an
d 

ov
er

vi
ew

 o
f 

A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

’s 
Sa

fe
 

Ro
ut

es
 to

 S
ch

oo
ls

 P
ro

gr
am

.

 ●
Ch

ap
te

r 
3,

 
El

em
en

ta
ry

 
an

d 
M

id
dl

e 
Sc

ho
ol

 
Pr

og
ra

m
, 

de
sc

rib
es

 
th

e 
se

le
ct

io
n 

pr
oc

es
s,

 
pr

og
ra

m
 d

el
iv

er
y,

 a
nd

 p
ro

gr
am

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

to
 e

le
m

en
ta

ry
 a

nd
 m

id
dl

e 
sc

ho
ol

s.

 ●
Ch

ap
te

r 
4,

 H
ig

h 
Sc

ho
ol

 P
ro

gr
am

, d
es

cr
ib

es
 t

he
 

pr
og

ra
m

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
at

 h
ig

h 
sc

ho
ol

s 
an

d 
th

e 
gr

ow
th

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
gr

am
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
tw

o-
ye

ar
 tr

ia
l p

er
io

d 
in

 s
pr

in
g 

20
13

.

 ●
Ch

ap
te

r 5
, T

ra
ve

l C
ho

ic
e,

 d
is

cu
ss

es
 h

ow
 st

ud
en

ts
 

ge
t 

to
 s

ch
oo

l, 
id

en
tifi

es
 p

ro
gr

am
 e

le
m

en
ts

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 h
ig

he
r 

th
an

 t
yp

ic
al

 w
al

ki
ng

, 
bi

ki
ng

, a
nd

 c
ar

po
ol

in
g 

ra
te

s,
 a

nd
 p

re
se

nt
s 

m
od

e 
sh

ift
 s

in
ce

 2
01

1.

 ●
Ch

ap
te

r 
6,

 A
 L

oo
k 

A
he

ad
, e

xp
an

ds
 o

n 
pr

og
ra

m
 

pl
an

s 
fo

r t
he

 n
ex

t t
w

o 
ye

ar
s.

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ap

pe
nd

ic
es

 s
up

po
rt

 th
is

 re
po

rt
:

 ●
A

pp
en

di
x 

A
: 

Sc
ho

ol
 

Pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
M

at
rix

 
su

m
m

ar
iz

es
 

th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

at
 

A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

 
sc

ho
ol

s 
en

ro
lle

d 
in

 
th

e 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 p
ro

gr
am

.

 ●
A

pp
en

di
x 

B:
 

Sc
ho

ol
 

Pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

es
 

on
e-

pa
ge

 s
he

et
s 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
in

g 
sc

ho
ol

, 
de

sc
rib

in
g 

ho
w

 t
he

 s
ch

oo
l p

ar
tic

ip
at

ed
 in

 2
01

3-
20

14
.

St
ud

en
ts

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
in

g 
in

 a
 

m
id

dl
e 

sc
ho

ol
 D

riv
e 

Yo
ur

 B
ik

e 
cl

as
s

Page 102



A
L

A
M

E
D

A
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 S

A
F

E
 R

O
U

T
E

S
 T

O
 S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 2
0

13
-2

0
14

 Y
E

A
R

-E
N

D
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  
• 

 C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 2

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W

2CHAPTER  
Pr

og
ra

m
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

5

In
 2

01
3-

20
14

, 
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y’

s 
Sa

fe
 

Ro
ut

es
 to

 S
ch

oo
ls

 p
ro

gr
am

 o
ffe

re
d 

th
re

e 

m
aj

or
 c

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
ev

en
ts

: I
nt

er
na

tio
na

l 

W
al

k &
 R

ol
l t

o S
ch

oo
l D

ay
 in

 O
ct

ob
er

, t
he

 

G
ol

de
n 

Sn
ea

ke
r 

C
on

te
st

 in
 M

ar
ch

, a
nd

 

Bi
ke

 to
 S

ch
oo

l D
ay

 in
 M

ay
. T

hr
ou

gh
ou

t 

th
e 

ye
ar

, 
sc

ho
ol

s 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

ed
 

in
 

a 

va
ri

et
y 

of
 

on
go

in
g 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 

en
co

ur
ag

em
en

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
.

H
is

to
ry

A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

’s 
Sa

fe
 R

ou
te

s 
to

 S
ch

oo
ls

 (
SR

2S
) 

pr
og

ra
m

 b
eg

an
 in

 2
00

6 
as

 a
 C

al
tr

an
s 

gr
an

t-
fu

nd
ed

 
pi

lo
t 

pr
og

ra
m

 a
t 

tw
o 

sc
ho

ol
s 

in
 O

ak
la

nd
. I

n 
20

07
, 

th
e 

A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 $
1.3

 m
ill

io
n 

in
 M

ea
su

re
 B

 g
ra

nt
 

fu
nd

in
g 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
 t

he
 p

ro
gr

am
1 . 

W
ith

 r
en

ew
ed

 
fu

nd
s,

 b
y 

Ju
ly

 2
01

1 t
he

 p
ro

gr
am

 h
ad

 e
xp

an
de

d 
to

 8
8 

sc
ho

ol
s 

an
d 

al
l f

ou
r o

f t
he

 C
ou

nt
y’

s 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

re
as

.

1  
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t A
ut

ho
rit

y 
an

d 
th

e 

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

on
ge

st
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t A
ge

nc
y 

m
er

ge
d 

in
 2

01
0 

to
 

fo
rm

 th
e 

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

C
om

m
is

si
on

.

In
 J

ul
y 

20
11

,  
as

 a
 p

ro
gr

am
 o

f 
th

e 
A

la
m

ed
a 

CT
C,

 
A

la
m

ed
a 

Co
un

ty
 S

R2
S 

w
as

 f
un

de
d 

w
ith

 F
ed

er
al

 
Co

ng
es

tio
n 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
an

d 
A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y 
(C

M
A

Q
) 

fu
nd

s,
 

Fe
de

ra
l 

Su
rfa

ce
 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

fu
nd

s,
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l M

ea
su

re
 B

 fu
nd

s.
 

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t p

ro
gr

am
 fu

nd
in

g 
cy

cl
e 

ru
ns

 fr
om

 2
01

3-
20

16
, w

ith
 p

la
ns

 t
o 

in
cr

em
en

ta
lly

 e
xp

an
d 

pr
og

ra
m

 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

an
d 

br
ea

dt
h 

of
 e

ve
nt

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 

off
er

ed
 to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
in

g 
sc

ho
ol

s.
 

Th
e 

5 
E’

s
 A

la
m

ed
a 

Co
un

ty
’s 

SR
2S

 p
ro

gr
am

 is
 g

ui
de

d 
by

  
th

e 
5 

E’
s 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
th

at
 is

 a
 h

al
lm

ar
k 

of
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l 
SR

2S
 p

ro
gr

am
s:

En
co

ur
ag

em
en

t p
ro

gr
am

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 W

al
k 

an
d 

Ro
ll 

to
 

Sc
ho

ol
 D

ay
s,

 p
ro

vi
de

 in
ce

nt
iv

es
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
 to

 h
el

p 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
th

ei
r p

ar
en

ts
 tr

y 
w

al
ki

ng
 o

r b
ic

yc
lin

g 
in

st
ea

d 
of

 d
riv

in
g.

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
s,

 s
uc

h 
as

 th
e 

pu
pp

et
 s

ho
w

 
as

se
m

bl
y,

 te
ac

h 
ke

y 
m

es
sa

ge
s 

ab
ou

t p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

an
d 

bi
cy

cl
is

t s
af

et
y,

 h
ea

lth
, a

nd
 th

e 
jo

ys
 o

f a
ct

iv
e 

tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n.
 C

la
ss

ro
om

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 te

ac
h 

st
ud

en
ts

 
ho

w
 to

 n
av

ig
at

e 
bu

sy
 s

tr
ee

ts
 a

nd
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

co
nn

ec
tio

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
ac

tiv
e 

tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n,
 h

ea
lth

, 
an

d 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t.

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 s

ch
oo

l s
ite

 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
, h

el
p 

id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

ad
dr

es
s 

ph
ys

ic
al

 
ba

rr
ie

rs
 to

 a
ct

iv
e 

tr
an

sp
or

t.

En
fo

rc
em

en
t p

ro
gr

am
s 

re
in

fo
rc

e 
le

ga
l a

nd
 re

sp
ec

tfu
l 

w
al

ki
ng

, b
ic

yc
lin

g,
 a

nd
 d

riv
in

g 
be

ha
vi

or
s.

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
w

ith
 la

w
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t o

ffi
ci

al
s 

im
pr

ov
e 

tr
affi

c 
sa

fe
ty

 
ar

ou
nd

 s
ch

oo
ls

.

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

he
lp

 s
ch

oo
ls

 m
ea

su
re

 th
ei

r 
su

cc
es

s 
at

 e
nc

ou
ra

gi
ng

 w
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 b
ic

yc
lin

g.
 

St
ud

en
ts

 a
t H

ai
gh

t E
le

m
en

ta
ry

 (C
ity

 o
f A

la
m

ed
a)

 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

in
g 

in
 a

 b
ik

e 
fe

st
iv

al

Page 103



A
L

A
M

E
D

A
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 S

A
F

E
 R

O
U

T
E

S
 T

O
 S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 2
0

13
-2

0
14

 Y
E

A
R

-E
N

D
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  
• 

 C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 2

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W

 6C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 v

s 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l A

ss
is

ta
nc

e
A

la
m

ed
a 

Co
un

ty
 S

R2
S 

pr
ov

id
es

 tw
o 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
as

si
st

an
ce

 a
s 

pr
og

ra
m

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
cu

rr
en

tly
 c

an
no

t 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

th
e 

de
m

an
d 

fo
r c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 S
R2

S 
pr

og
ra

m
m

in
g 

in
 th

e 
Co

un
ty

. T
he

re
fo

re
, a

 c
om

pe
tit

iv
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

is
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
to

 p
ut

 s
ch

oo
ls

 in
to

 
tw

o 
ca

te
go

rie
s:

 

Sc
ho

ol
s 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 p

ro
gr

am
 

re
ce

iv
e 

on
e-

on
-o

ne
 s

ch
oo

l-b
as

ed
 a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
fr

om
 

a 
si

te
 c

oo
rd

in
at

or
, a

re
 e

lig
ib

le
 fo

r a
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f h
ig

h-
qu

al
ity

 p
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
fr

ee
 o

f c
ha

rg
e,

 a
nd

 m
ay

 re
ce

iv
e 

su
pp

or
t m

at
er

ia
ls

 s
uc

h 
as

 p
os

te
rs

, b
an

ne
rs

, s
af

et
y 

in
ce

nt
iv

es
, a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
ve

st
s.

 E
ac

h 
si

te
 c

oo
rd

in
at

or
 

w
or

ks
 w

ith
 b

et
w

ee
n 

15
-2

0 
sc

ho
ol

s.
 

Sc
ho

ol
s 

no
t a

cc
ep

te
d 

in
to

 th
e 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

pr
og

ra
m

 m
ay

 re
ce

iv
e 

te
ch

ni
ca

l a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

fr
om

 th
e 

si
te

 c
oo

rd
in

at
or

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

ei
r s

ch
oo

l d
is

tr
ic

t’s
 S

af
e 

Ro
ut

es
 to

 S
ch

oo
l T

as
k 

Fo
rc

e,
 b

ut
 a

re
 g

en
er

al
ly

 n
ot

 
el

ig
ib

le
 fo

r f
re

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

in
g 

or
 in

ce
nt

iv
es

. S
ch

oo
ls

 
ac

ce
pt

in
g 

te
ch

ni
ca

l a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

ag
re

e 
to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 

a 
m

in
im

um
 n

um
be

r o
f e

ve
nt

s 
ea

ch
 y

ea
r. 

6

Fi
gu

re
 3

 
 G

ro
w

th
 o

f A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
SR

2S
 P

ro
gr

am
 2

00
6-

07
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

13
-1

4

In
 2

01
3-

20
14

, t
he

 A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

 S
R2

S 
pr

og
ra

m
 

ex
pa

nd
ed

 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

in
g 

to
 

99
 

el
em

en
ta

ry
 a

nd
 m

id
dl

e 
sc

ho
ol

s.
 T

he
 h

ig
h 

sc
ho

ol
 

pr
og

ra
m

, 
w

hi
ch

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
pi

lo
t 

te
st

ed
 f

ro
m

 2
01

1-
20

13
, 

tr
an

si
tio

ne
d 

to
 

a 
pe

rm
an

en
t 

pa
rt

 
of

 
th

e 
A

la
m

ed
a 

Co
un

ty
 S

R2
S 

pr
og

ra
m

, 
w

ith
 s

ix
 s

ch
oo

ls
 

en
ro

lle
d.

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

pr
og

ra
m

 
fu

nd
in

g 
cy

cl
e 

in
cl

ud
es

 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 s

ev
er

al
 p

ro
gr

am
 e

le
m

en
ts

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
:

 ●
N

um
be

r o
f s

ch
oo

ls
 in

 th
e c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 p
ro

gr
am

 
by

 a
t l

ea
st

 10
%

 e
ve

ry
 s

ch
oo

l y
ea

r

 ●
Bi

ke
M

ob
ile

 v
is

its
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

Co
un

ty

 ●
Bi

cy
cl

e 
sa

fe
ty

 t
ra

in
in

g,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ro
de

os
, f

am
ily

 
cy

cl
in

g 
cl

in
ic

s,
 a

du
lt 

sa
fe

ty
 c

ou
rs

es
, 

an
d 

th
e 

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
f a

 d
iv

er
si

on
 p

ro
gr

am
 fo

r t
ic

ke
te

d 
bi

cy
cl

is
ts

 ●
M

or
e 

ro
bu

st
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
tr

ac
ki

ng
 a

nd
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
, 

to
 b

et
te

r 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 p
ro

gr
am

 e
le

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 fu

tu
re

 p
ro

gr
am

 
di

re
ct

io
n

Page 104



A
L

A
M

E
D

A
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 S

A
F

E
 R

O
U

T
E

S
 T

O
 S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 2
0

13
-2

0
14

 Y
E

A
R

-E
N

D
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  
• 

 C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 2

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W

 

7

Pr
og

ra
m

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

nd
 

D
el

iv
er

y
A

la
m

ed
a 

Co
un

ty
 S

R2
S 

pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g 
off

er
s 

a 
va

rie
ty

 
of

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

nd
 e

ve
nt

s 
fo

r 
sc

ho
ol

s 
an

d 
st

ud
en

ts
. 

Sc
ho

ol
s 

se
le

ct
ed

 t
o 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
e 

in
 t

he
 p

ro
gr

am
 a

re
 

as
si

gn
ed

 a
 S

ite
 C

oo
rd

in
at

or
. T

he
 S

ite
 C

oo
rd

in
at

or
s 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
Sc

ho
ol

 C
ha

m
pi

on
s,

 w
ho

 a
re

 
vo

lu
nt

ee
r 

pa
re

nt
s,

 t
ea

ch
er

s,
 o

r 
sc

ho
ol

 s
ta

ff 
th

at
 

as
si

st
 i

n 
pr

og
ra

m
 i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
at

 a
 s

pe
ci

fic
 

sc
ho

ol
 s

ite
.

Ta
bl

e 
1 

sh
ow

s 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 o

ffe
re

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

20
13

-
20

14
 s

ch
oo

l y
ea

r. 

Sc
ho

ol
s 

no
t 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 
in

to
 

th
e 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

pr
og

ra
m

 m
ay

 re
ce

iv
e 

te
ch

ni
ca

l a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

fro
m

 th
e 

Si
te

 C
oo

rd
in

at
or

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

ei
r 

sc
ho

ol
 d

is
tr

ic
t’s

 
Sa

fe
 R

ou
te

s 
to

 S
ch

oo
l T

as
k 

Fo
rc

e 
or

 b
y 

co
ns

ul
tin

g 
w

ith
 a

 S
af

e 
Ro

ut
es

 to
 S

ch
oo

ls
 s

ta
ff 

m
em

be
r. 

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

20
13

-2
01

4 
sc

ho
ol

 y
ea

r, 
50

 s
ch

oo
ls

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
te

ch
ni

ca
l 

as
si

st
an

ce
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 A

la
m

ed
a 

Co
un

ty
 

SR
2S

 p
ro

gr
am

.

Fi
gu

re
 4

 
 2

01
3-

20
14

 A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
 R

ou
te

s 
to

 S
ch

oo
ls

 P
ar

ti
ci

pa
ti

ng
 S

ch
oo

ls

[
0

4.
5

9
M

ile
s

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

Fr
em

on
t

O
ak

la
nd

Su
no

l

H
ay

w
ar

d

Li
ve

rm
or

e
Pl

ea
sa

nt
on

D
ub

lin

N
ew

ar
k

U
ni

on
 C

ity

Be
rk

ele
y

C
as

tro
 V

al
ley

Sa
n 

Le
an

dr
o

Al
am

ed
a

Al
ba

ny

Sa
n 

Lo
re

nz
o

Pi
ed

m
on

t

Em
er

yv
ill

e

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

C
ou

nt
y

Sa
n 

Fr
an

cis
co

 
Ba

y

Sa
n 

M
at

eo
 

C
ou

nt
y

Sa
nt

a 
C

la
ra

C
ou

nt
y

G
ra

de
 L

ev
el

!
A

ll

!
E

le
m

en
ta

ry
 

!
H

ig
h

!
M

id
dl

e

Page 105



A
L

A
M

E
D

A
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 S

A
F

E
 R

O
U

T
E

S
 T

O
 S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 2
0

13
-2

0
14

 Y
E

A
R

-E
N

D
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  
• 

 C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 2

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W

8 Ta
bl

e 
1 

Pr
og

ra
m

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

fo
r 2

01
3-

20
14

El
e
m

e
n

ta
ry

M
id

d
le

H
ig

h
T

o
ta

l
N

o
te

s

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l W
al

k 
&

 R
ol

l 
to

 S
ch

oo
l D

ay
78

12
6

96
M

or
e 

th
an

 2
1,

00
0 

pa
rti

ci
pa

te
d

G
ol

de
n 

Sn
ea

ke
r C

on
te

st
56

9
6

71
M

or
e 

th
an

 3
4,

00
0 

pa
rti

ci
pa

te
d

B
ik

e 
to

 S
ch

oo
l D

ay
69

13
6

88
M

or
e 

th
an

 5
,0

00
 

pa
rti

ci
pa

te
d

B
ik

eM
ob

ile
 V

is
it

41
10

6
57

1,
60

0 
bi

cy
cl

es
 re

pa
ire

d
W

al
k 

an
d 

R
ol

l t
o 

Sc
ho

ol
 

D
ay

s
34

5
0

39
W

al
ki

ng
 S

ch
oo

l B
us

15
1

0
16

B
ik

e 
R

od
eo

s
19

0
0

19

D
riv

e 
Y

ou
r B

ik
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

0
7

2
9

Fa
m

ily
 C

yc
lin

g 
W

or
ks

ho
p

3
1

0
4

Ed
uc

at
or

 T
ra

in
in

g
17

3
0

20

Sc
ho

ol
 S

ite
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t
4

3
0

7

A
ct

iv
it

y
/E

v
e

n
t

Core Activities School-Specific Activities

S
ch

o
o

ls
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

n
g

Page 106



CHAPTER

9

3
A

L
A

M
E

D
A

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 S
A

F
E

 R
O

U
T

E
S

 T
O

 S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 2

0
12

-2
0

13
 Y

E
A

R
-E

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T

  
• 

 C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 3

 –
 E

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
 A

N
D

 M
ID

D
L

E
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
IN

G

 
El

em
en

ta
ry

 a
nd

 M
id

dl
e 

Sc
ho

ol
 P

ro
gr

am
m

in
g

CHAPTER Th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

 te
am

 c
om

pi
le

d 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
, l

an
d 

us
e,

 
an

d 
co

lli
si

on
 d

at
a 

fo
r 

al
l a

pp
lic

an
ts

, w
hi

ch
 r

es
ul

te
d 

in
 a

 sc
or

e 
an

d 
ra

nk
 fo

r e
ac

h 
sc

ho
ol

. I
n 

ad
di

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
99

 e
le

m
en

ta
ry

 a
nd

 m
id

dl
e 

sc
ho

ol
s 

se
le

ct
ed

 fo
r 

th
e 

A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

 S
R2

S 
pr

og
ra

m
, a

ll 
si

x 
hi

gh
 s

ch
oo

ls
 

th
at

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
20

12
-2

01
3 

hi
gh

 s
ch

oo
l p

ilo
t 

pr
og

ra
m

 w
er

e 
in

vi
te

d 
to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 t

he
 2

01
3-

20
14

 s
ch

oo
l y

ea
r. 

In
 th

e 
20

13
-2

01
4 

sc
ho

ol
 y

ea
r, 

99
 e

le
m

en
ta

ry
 a

nd
 m

id
dl

e 
sc

ho
ol

s 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

ed
 in

 th
e S

af
e 

Ro
ut

es
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 p
ro

gr
am

. 

Th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

 o
ffe

re
d 

th
re

e 
m

aj
or

 c
ou

nt
yw

id
e 

ev
en

ts
, w

ith
 o

ng
oi

ng
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l a
nd

 en
co

ur
ag

em
en

t 
ev

en
ts

 a
nd

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 s

ch
oo

l i
nt

er
es

t a
nd

 c
ap

ac
ity

.

Se
le

ct
io

n 
Pr

oc
es

s
Th

e 
A

la
m

ed
a 

Co
un

ty
 

SR
2S

 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

se
ek

s 
to

 
di

st
rib

ut
e 

Sa
fe

 
Ro

ut
es

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

in
g 

eq
ui

ta
bl

y 
ar

ou
nd

 th
e 

Co
un

ty
. A

ll 
sc

ho
ol

s 
in

 th
e 

Co
un

ty
 w

er
e 

in
vi

te
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
su

m
m

er
 m

on
th

s 
of

 2
01

3 
to

 a
pp

ly
 

to
 th

e 
20

13
-2

01
4 

pr
og

ra
m

. 

W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

st
ud

en
ts

 (B
er

ke
le

y)
 e

nj
oy

 
a 

he
al

th
y 

sn
ac

k 
at

 th
e 

Bi
ke

 to
 W

or
k 

D
ay

 
w

el
co

m
e 

ta
bl

e

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 A

re
as

 

N
or

th
: O

ak
la

nd
, B

er
ke

le
y,

 A
lb

an
y,

 P
ie

dm
on

t, 
Em

er
yv

ill
e,

 A
la

m
ed

a

Ce
nt

ra
l: 

A
sh

la
nd

, C
as

tr
o 

Va
lle

y,
 C

he
rr

yl
an

d,
 H

ay
w

ar
d,

 
Sa

n 
Le

an
dr

o,
 S

an
 L

or
en

zo

So
ut

h:
 F

re
m

on
t, 

U
ni

on
 C

ity
, N

ew
ar

k

Ea
st

: D
ub

lin
, P

le
as

an
to

n,
 L

iv
er

m
or

e

W
el

ls
 M

id
dl

e 
Sc

ho
ol

 G
ol

de
n 

Sn
ea

ke
r C

la
ss

ro
om

 C
ha

m
pi

on
 

Page 107



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 108



 
 
 

  

  
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.9_EastBay_Greenway\6.9_EBGreenway_maintenance_MOU_amendment.docx 

 

Memorandum 6.9 

 

DATE: October 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: East Bay Greenway Project  - Coliseum BART to 85th Avenue (635.1): 
Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) A12-0029 
with San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District and the City of 
Oakland 

RECOMMENDATION: Authorize the Executive Director or designee of the Executive Director, 
to: 1) Amend MOU A12-0029 to modify limits of maintenance 
responsibilities, and 2) modify and/or execute any necessary 
agreements to fulfill the stipulations of the amended MOU.  

   

Summary  

The Alameda CTC is the sponsor of the East Bay Greenway Project – Segment 7A. The East 
Bay Greenway – Segment 7A, is a half-mile segment of the East Bay Greenway Trail and is 
located between 75th and 85th Avenues, adjacent to San Leandro Street and beneath the 
aerial BART tracks in the City of Oakland.   

On June 28, 2012, Alameda CTC entered into MOU A12-0029, with San Francisco Bay Area 
Rapid Transit District (BART) and the City of Oakland for the project.  Adjacent to the project, 
BART and the City are concurrently constructing improvements to the Coliseum BART station.  
As part of the BART station improvements, 200 feet of sidewalk/ bicycle path extension is 
being constructed to provide connectivity and access from the Greenway termination at 
75th Avenue to the Coliseum BART facility.  BART and the City of Oakland have requested 
Alameda CTC add the maintenance of the 200 feet path extension to Alameda CTC’s 
maintenance responsibilities. 

The cost associated with the maintenance of the 200 feet path extension is anticipated to be 
minimal and could be funded by the current maintenance budget of $350,000 for the East 
Bay Greenway Project.  

Background 

The East Bay Greenway – Segment 7A project is a half-mile segment of the East Bay 
Greenway Trail and is located between 75th and 85th Avenues, adjacent to San Leandro 

Page 109



  
  
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.9_EastBay_Greenway\6.9_EBGreenway_maintenance_MOU_amendment.docx 

 

Street and beneath the aerial BART tracks in the City of Oakland.  The project started 
construction in October, 2013 and is anticipated to be completed by November 2014. 

Concurrent with the construction of the East Bay Greenway Project, BART and the City are 
constructing the improvements to the Coliseum BART station.  As construction of the two 
projects progressed, BART and the City of Oakland identified a gap between the termination 
of the Greenway at 75th Avenue and the Coliseum BART station access.  BART and the City 
agreed to construct a 200 foot sidewalk/ bicycle path extension to provide a continuous 
paved path from the Greenway to the Coliseum BART station access.  Under the terms of the 
existing MOU, Alameda CTC is responsible for the maintenance of the half-mile segment of 
the East Bay Greenway Trail ending at 75th Avenue.  BART and the City of Oakland have 
requested Alameda CTC add the maintenance of the 200 feet sidewalk/bicycle path 
extension beyond 75th Avenue to Alameda CTC’s maintenance responsibilities. 

On January 27, 2014, the Commission authorized staff to procure and execute a contract to 
provide the required maintenance services stipulated in the MOU after the East Bay 
Greenway project is completed.   The Request for Proposals (RFP) is in final stages of 
development and an agreement is expected to be in place by December 2014.  Due to the 
overlap in the timing of the MOU amendment, modifications to the resulting agreement from 
the maintenance RFP may be required.   

Staff recommends amending the existing MOU (A12-0029) among BART, City of Oakland and 
Alameda CTC for the East Bay Greenway Project to include the maintenance of the 200 feet 
sidewalk/bicycle path extension, as shown in Attachment A and the authorization  to modify 
and/or execute any necessary agreements to fulfill the stipulations of the amended MOU.    

Fiscal Impact:  There is no significant fiscal impact to the Alameda CTC budget due to this 
item. 

 

Attachments 

A. Coliseum Station – Transition Station Sidewalks 
 

 

Staff Contact  

Stewart Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 

Trinity Nguyen, Sr. Transportation Engineer 

 

Page 110

mailto:stewartng@alamedactc.org
mailto:tnguyen@alamedactc.org


6.9A

Page 111



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 112



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.10_I880SBHOV_Project\6.10_880SBHOVHardscape_20141006.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 6.10 

 

DATE: October 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: I-880 Southbound HOV Lane Project (730.1/730.2): Hardscape 
Component 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the programming actions and authorize the Executive 
Director to execute agreements required to advance the Hardscape 
component of the project.  

 
The approval of the recommendation will:  

1) Approve a CMA TIP Exchange Agreement with the City of San Leandro to provide $1 
million in Local Transportation Direct Local Distribution funds to the Alameda CTC; 

2) Approve a total of $2 million of CMA TIP funds for the I-880 Southbound HOV Lane Project 
to complete the hardscape slope paving component, including: 

a. Amendment of the CMA TIP program to shift $1 million of CMA TIP programming 
from the E. 14th St./Hesperian Blvd./150th St. Intersection Improvement Project to the 
I-880 Southbound HOV Lane Project; and  

b. Add an additional $1 million of CMA TIP program funds to the I-880 Southbound 
HOV Lane Project; 

3) Authorize the encumbrance of $2 million in project agreement amendments to implement 
the hardscape component scope, including:  

a. Amendment to agreement 04-2445-A1 with Caltrans for related construction capital 
and support costs; and 

b. Amendment to agreement CMA #A08.017 with WMH Corporation for related 
design services during construction; and 

Summary  

The 880 Southbound HOV Lane Project will widen the southbound I-880 mainline from 
Hegenberger Road to Marina Boulevard for a High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) lane.  The 
project is currently in construction and is anticipated to be completed by winter 2014 on 
the north segment and summer 2015 on the south segment.  The Alameda CTC provided 
the project development for the project, and the California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans) is administering the construction contracts. 

The City of San Leandro has expressed a strong desire to add slope paving as an 
additional hardscape component (in addition to specialty bridge fencing and lighting) to 
be constructed within the existing schedule. The slope paving hardscape component is 

Page 113



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.10_I880SBHOV_Project\6.10_880SBHOVHardscape_20141006.docx 

 

 

proposed to be implemented by contract change order and it is estimated that $2 million 
of additional funding will be required to provide for design services during construction, 
construction management and capital costs associated with the added slope paving 
scope.  

A $2 M funding plan has been identified, comprised of reprogramming $1 million of CMA 
TIP funds from the San Leandro Route 85/Hesperian Blvd/150th Ave Channelization 
Improvements project and $1 million through a CMA TIP Exchange Agreement.  In 
addition to funding agreements with the City of San Leandro for the CMA TIP Exchange, 
an amendment to the project cooperative agreement with Caltrans and an amendment 
with WMH Corporation, the Design Engineer of Record, will be required to facilitate the 
delivery of the hardscape scope. 

Background 

The 880 Southbound HOV Lane Project will widen the southbound I-880 mainline from 
Hegenberger Road to Marina Boulevard for a High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) lane ($112 
million).  The project is currently in construction and is anticipated to be completed by 
winter 2014 on the north segment and summer 2015 on the south segment.  The Alameda 
CTC provided the project development for the project, and the California Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans) is administering the construction contracts. 

Throughout the project development process, Alameda CTC has been working with the 
City of San Leandro to fund and incorporate locally requested interchange 
improvements (at Marina Blvd. and Davis St.)  and hardscape components (bridge 
fencing, lighting, logo, corbel, and slope paving) into the project. All the locally 
requested improvements, except for the slope paving, are included in the current 
contract. The funds programmed for the hardscape components were not sufficient to 
include the slope paving. The City of San Leandro has expressed a strong desire for the 
slope paving to be constructed within the existing contract schedule. In order to 
construct the slope paving scope by summer 2015, within the schedule of the south 
segment project, the work is proposed to be implemented by contract change order. 
Based on the latest cost estimates, an additional $2 million is required to fund design 
services during construction, construction management and capital costs associated with 
the slope paving scope.  

Working with the City of San Leandro, a $2 M funding plan has been identified.  The City 
of San Leandro has agreed to contribute $1 million of Local Transportation Direct Local 
Distribution (DLD) funds to assist in funding the requested hardscape improvements. 
Approval of a CMA TIP Exchange Agreement with the City of San Leandro will provide $1 
million in CMA TIP funds to be available for the I-880 Southbound HOV Lane Project 
through the CMA TIP. Another $1 million will be provided by amending the existing CMA 
TIP program to shift $1 million of funding from the E. 14th St./Hesperian Blvd./150th St. 
Intersection Improvement Project to the I-880 Southbound HOV Lane Project. The 
proposed funding plan will allow the I-880 Southbound HOV Lane Project, including the 

Page 114



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.10_I880SBHOV_Project\6.10_880SBHOVHardscape_20141006.docx 

 

 

slope paving scope, to be completed by the summer of 2015, consistent with the project 
delivery schedule. Through the CMA TIP Exchange Agreement, the Alameda CTC will 
withhold 36 equal payments from the City of San Leandro Local Transportation DLD funds, 
starting with the sales tax distribution in January 2015. The withholding of payments, 
totaling $1 million, is anticipated to occur through December 2017.  

In addition to funding agreements with the City of San Leandro for the CMA TIP 
exchange, an amendment to the project agreement 04-2445-A1 with Caltrans and an 
amendment to agreement CMA #A08.017 with WMH Corporation, the Design Engineer of 
Record, will be required to facilitate the delivery of the hardscape scope. 

Associated Impacts 

The City of San Leandro is the project sponsor for the E. 14th St./Hesperian Blvd./150th St. 
Intersection Improvement Project.  The project is proposed to be funded with a 
combination of Measure B capital funds (ACTIA 19), CMA TIP, and other local funds, with 
construction proposed to begin in 2016/17. Based on the CMA TIP program amendment 
proposed, the City of San Leandro will need to identify $1 million of funding to replace the 
CMA TIP funds. Potential project funding options the City of San Leandro could pursue 
include State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) and, in the event the 2014 TEP is 
approved by the voters in November 2014, Congestion Relief (Hesperian Blvd noted in the 
plan) or Local Streets Maintenance and Safety Direct Local Distribution Programs. 
Identifying additional construction phase funds would allow the project to maintain the 
construction delivery in FY 2016/17.  

Delivery of the I-880 Southbound HOV Lane Project 

The recommended funding will be used for design support services during construction, 
construction management and capital costs. The above actions will allow Caltrans to 
mobilize the contractor to construct the hardscape elements and Alameda CTC to 
mobilize WMH Corporation to provide design support services during construction as 
required.  

Approval of this item will address the programming actions and authorize the Executive 
Director to execute agreements required to implement the Hardscape component of the I-
880 Southbound HOV Lane Project. 

Fiscal Impact:  The fiscal impact for approving this item is $2,000,000; the action will authorize 
the programming and the encumbrance of additional project funding for subsequent 
expenditure and will be reflected in the mid-year budget update of the Alameda CTC 
Adopted FY 2014-2015 Operating and Capital Program Budget.  

Attachments 

A. City of San Leandro Letter 

Page 115



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.10_I880SBHOV_Project\6.10_880SBHOVHardscape_20141006.docx 

 

 

 

Staff Contact  

Stewart Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 

Matt Todd, Principal Transportation Engineer 

 

Page 116

mailto:stewartng@alamedactc.org
mailto:mtodd@alamedactc.org


6.10A

Page 117



Page 118



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.11_Time_Extensions\6.11_Time_Ext_Amend_Memo_final.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 6.11 

 

DATE: October 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Time Extension Only Amendments  

RECOMMENDATION: Approve and authorize the Executive Director to execute amendments 
for requested time extensions (as shown in Table A) in support of the 
Alameda CTC’s Capital Projects and Program delivery commitments. 

 

Summary  

Alameda CTC enters into agreements with local, regional, state, and federal entities, as 
required, to provide the services necessary to meet the Capital Projects and Program 
delivery commitments. Agreements are entered into based upon estimated known 
project needs for scope, cost, and schedule. 

Two agreements have been identified with justifiable needs for a time extension and are 
recommended for approval. 

Background 

Through the life of an agreement, situations may arise that warrant the need for a time 
extension.  The most common and justifiable reasons include (1) project delays and (2) 
extended project closeout activities. 

Staff recommends that the Commission authorize the Executive Director of Alameda CTC 
to amend the listed agreement as shown in Table A (Attachment A). 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no significant fiscal impact to the Alameda CTC budget due to this 
item. 

Attachments 

A. Table A:  Contract Time Extension Summary 
 

Staff Contact  

Stewart Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 

Trinity Nguyen, Sr. Transportation Engineer 

Page 119

mailto:stewartng@alamedactc.org
mailto:tnguyen@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 120



A
. 

Ta
b

le
 A

: 
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

Ti
m

e
 E

x
te

n
si

o
n

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 

 

 
 

R
:\

A
la

C
TC

_
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s\

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

\
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
\

2
0
1
4

1
0

2
3

\
C

o
n

se
n

t 
It

em
s\

6
.1

1
_T

im
e_

Ex
te

n
si

o
n

s\
6

.5
A

_A
tt

ac
h

m
en

tA
_r

ev
2

.d
o

cx
 

 

 In
d

e
x

 

N
o

. 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

N
o

. 

F
ir

m
/
A

g
e

n
c

y
 

P
ro

je
c

t/
S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

C
o

n
tr

a
c

t 
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

H
is

to
ry

 
R

e
q

u
e

st
e

d
 

E
x

te
n

si
o

n
 

R
e

a
so

n
 

C
o

d
e

 

F
is

c
a

l 

Im
p

a
c

t 

1
 

A
0

6
-0

0
2

2
 

A
la

m
e

d
a

 

C
o

u
n

ty
 

P
u

b
lic

 W
o

rk
s 

A
g

e
n

c
y

 

L
e

w
e

lli
n

g
 B

o
u

le
v

a
rd

/E
a

st
 

L
e

w
e

lli
n

g
 B

o
u

le
v

a
rd

 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
je

c
t 
–
 

S
e

g
m

e
n

t 
1

 (
A

C
TI

A
 N

o
. 

1
3

) 

A
1

: 
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

n
d

 t
im

e
 f

o
r 

C
o

n
st

ru
c

ti
o

n
 

 

1
2

/3
1

/2
0

1
4

 
2

 
N

o
n

e
 

2
 

A
0

9
-0

0
2

2
 

C
it

y
 o

f 

N
e

w
a

rk
 

C
it

y
 o

f 
N

e
w

a
rk

 P
e

d
e

st
ri
a

n
 

a
n

d
 B

ic
y
c

le
 M

a
st

e
r 

P
la

n
 

A
1

: 
 A

d
ju

st
 t

a
sk

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

s.
 

A
2

: 
 A

d
ju

st
 t

a
sk

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

s.
 

A
3

: 
 A

d
ju

st
 t

a
sk

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

s.
 

A
4

: 
 A

d
ju

st
 t

a
sk

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

s.
 

A
5

: 
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
ti

m
e

. 

A
6

: 
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
ti

m
e

. 

A
7

: 
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
ti

m
e

. 

 

1
0

/3
1

/2
0

1
5

 
1

 
N

o
n

e
 

 

(1
) 

P
ro

je
c

t 
d

e
la

y
s.

 

(2
) 

E
x
te

n
d

e
d

 p
ro

je
c

t 
c

lo
se

o
u

t 
a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s.

 

  

 

6.11A

Page 121



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 122



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.12_SDRMA_Participation\6.12_SDRMA_Property_Liability_and_WC_Participation_20141006.d
ocx 

 

 

Memorandum 6.12 

 

DATE: October 16 , 2014 

SUBJECT:  Alameda CTC’s participation in the Special District Risk Management  
 Authority (SDRMA) Risk Management Program 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 14-015 approving the form of and authorizing the 
execution of a Sixth Amended Joint Powers Agreement and 
authorizing participation in the Special District Risk Management 
Authority’ Risk Management Program, and Resolution 14-016 
authorizing application to the Director of Industrial Relations, State of 
California for a Certificate of Consent to Self-Insure Workers’ 
Compensation Liabilities. 

 

Summary  

Alameda CTC’s participation with the California Special District Association (CSDA) would 
make it eligible for insurance programs for workers’ compensation, general liability, public 
officials errors and omissions, employment practices liability, auto, property, crime and 
fidelity coverages through the Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA).  
Alameda CTC’s participation in SDRMA’s risk management program should result in 
annual cost-savings of up to 48% or $90,000. 
 
Staff presented this item to the FAC at its meeting on October 13, 2014, and this item was 
unanimously approved by the Committee. However, Commissioner Fujioka requested 
clarification on the three-year term mentioned in the first statement of Alameda CTC 
Resolution No. 14-015 (Attachment A). The specific language of this provision is covered in 
Article 19, Withdrawal, in the Sixth Amended Joint Powers Agreement (Attachment B). The 
provision sets forth the SDRMA’s minimum requirement of its participants in its Risk 
Management Program before it is allowed to voluntarily withdrawal without incurring any 
financial penalties. Should the Alameda CTC choose to withdrawal from the program 
within three years, Alameda CTC will be obligated to pay all Contributions and 
Assessments as if the agency had remained in the program for the full three years from 
the inception of its participation in the SDRMA program.  
 
  

Page 123



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.12_SDRMA_Participation\6.12_SDRMA_Property_Liability_and_WC_Participation_20141006.docx 

  

 

Background 

In April 2014, Alameda CTC registered with the CSDA, an association that provides a 
strong voice for all independent special districts in California, to participate in, and 
benefit from, some of its cost saving programs. One such program that CSDA offers 
through the SDRMA is its risk management program which includes comprehensive 
coverage protection such as workers’ compensation, general liability, public officials 
errors and omissions, employment practices liability, auto, property, crime, fidelity, and 
health insurance coverages. 
 
SDRMA is a not-for-profit public agency formed under California Government Code 
Section 6500 et seq. for the purpose of providing public agencies with risk financing and risk 
management programs.  For over 25 years, SDRMA has provided participants with 
comprehensive coverage protection coverages with rates that are consistently 15% 
below average market rates.  Their primary objective is to serve as a single resource to meet 
all risk management needs of its participants, and they currently serve over 900 diversified 
members with over $3.8 billion in member insured property. Current SDRMA program 
participants in the Bay Area include the Alameda County Water District, Contra Costa 
Resource Conservation District, First 5 Santa Clara County, Santa Clara County Local 
Agency Formation Commission, Santa Clara County Open Space Authority, Sonoma 
Resource Conservation District, and Transbay Joint Powers Authority.  
 
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. has been providing insurance brokerage services for the 
Alameda CTC since January 2013, following a competitive bid process which began in 
May 2012. Alameda CTC’s total insurance premiums, including the broker’s commission of 
$18,032, totaled $172,491 for the current fiscal year. By participating in SDRMA’s risk 
management program, the agency should save up to 48% or $90,000 in insurance 
premiums per year since costs are anticipated to be at much reduced rates for local 
governments. 
 

Fiscal Impact: 

The fiscal impact for approving this item should reduce the need in the FY14-15 budget by 
approximately $90,000. 
 

Attachments 

A. Alameda CTC Resolution No. 14-015 approving the Form of and authorizing the 
Execution of a Sixth Amended Joint Powers Agreement; and Authorizing Participation 
in the Special District Risk Management Authority Property/Liability and Workers’ 
Compensation Programs 

Page 124

http://www.sdrma.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/08/SDRMA_AR-member-chart.pdf


R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\Consent 
Items\6.12_SDRMA_Participation\6.12_SDRMA_Property_Liability_and_WC_Participation_20141006.docx 

  

 

B. Joint Powers Agreement – Execution of the Sixth Amended and Restated Joint Powers 
Agreement between the Alameda CTC and Special District Risk Management 
Authority 

C. Alameda CTC Resolution No. 14-016 Authorizing Application to the Director of 
Industrial Relations, State of California for a Certificate of Consent to Self-Insure 
Workers’ Compensation Liabilities 

Staff Contact  

Patricia Reavey, Director of Finance and Administration 

Seung Cho, Contracting, Administration, and Fiscal Resource Manager  

Page 125

mailto:preavey@alamedactc.org
mailto:scho@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 126



 
 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-015 

 

APPROVING THE FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 
OF A SIXTH AMENDED JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT AND 

AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN THE SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK 
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY PROPERTY/LIABILITY AND 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROGRAMS 

 

WHEREAS, Alameda County Transportation Commission, a joint powers 
agency duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of 
the State of California (the “Agency”), and a member of the California 
Special Districts Association, has determined that it is in the best interest 
and to the advantage of the Agency to participate for at least three full 
years in the Property/Liability Program and Workers’ Compensation 
Program offered by the Special District Risk Management Authority (the 
“Authority”); and 

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 6500 et seq., provides 
that two or more public agencies may by agreement jointly exercise 
any power common to the contracting parties; and 

WHEREAS, Special District Risk Management Authority was formed in 
1986 in accordance with the provisions of California Government Code 
6500 et seq., for the purpose of providing its members with risk financing 
and risk management programs; and  

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 990.4 provides that a 
local public entity may self-insure, purchase insurance through an 
authorized carrier, or purchase insurance through a surplus lines broker, 
or any combination of these; and 

WHEREAS, participation in Special District Risk Management Authority 
programs requires the Agency to execute and enter into a Sixth 
Amended Joint Powers Agreement (the “Amended JPA Agreement”); 
which states the purpose and powers of the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by the laws of the 
State of California to exist, to have happened and to have been 
performed precedent to and in connection with the consummation of 
the transactions authorized hereby do exist, have happened and have 
been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as required 
by law, and the Agency is now duly authorized and empowered, 

Commission Chair 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, District 1 
 
Commission Vice Chair 
Councilmember Rebecca Kaplan, 
City of Oakland 
 
AC Transit 
Director Elsa Ortiz 
 
Alameda County 
Supervisor Richard Valle, District 2 
Supervisor Wilma Chan, District 3 
Supervisor Nate Miley, District 4 
Supervisor Keith Carson, District 5 
 
BART 
Director Thomas Blalock 
 
City of Alameda 
Mayor Marie Gilmore 
 
City of Albany 
Vice Mayor Peter Maass 
 
City of Berkeley 
Councilmember Laurie Capitelli 
 
City of Dublin 
Mayor Tim Sbranti 
 
City of Emeryville 
Vice Mayor Ruth Atkin 
 
City of Fremont 
Mayor Bill Harrison 
 
City of Hayward 
Mayor Barbara  Halliday 
 
City of Livermore 
Mayor John Marchand 
 
City of Newark 
Councilmember Luis Freitas 
 
City of Oakland 
Vice Mayor Larry Reid 
 
City of Piedmont 
Mayor Margaret Fujioka 
 
City of Pleasanton 
Mayor Jerry Thorne  
 
City of San Leandro 
Councilmember Michael Gregory 
 
City of Union City 
Mayor Carol Dutra-Vernaci 
 
 
Executive Director 
Arthur L. Dao 
 

6.12A

Page 127



Alameda County Transportation Commission 
Resolution No. 14-015 
Page 2 of 2 

pursuant to each and every requirement of law, to consummate such transactions for the 
purpose, in the manner and upon the terms herein provided. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF THE AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Findings.  The Agency’s governing body (“Commission”) hereby specifically finds 
and determines that the actions authorized hereby relate to the public affairs of the 
Agency. 

Section 2.  Sixth Amended JPA Agreement.  The Amended JPA Agreement, proposed to be 
executed and entered into by and between the Agency and members of the Special 
District Risk Management Authority, in the form presented at this meeting and on file with 
the Agency Secretary, is hereby approved.  The Agency Commission and/or Authorized 
Officers (“The Authorized Officers”) are hereby authorized and directed, for and in the 
name and on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver to the Authority the Amended 
JPA Agreement in substantially said form, with such changes therein as such officers may 
require or approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and 
delivery thereof. 

Section 3. Program Participation.  The Agency Commission approves participating for three 
full program years in Special District Risk Management Authority Property/Liability Program 
and Workers’ Compensation Program. 

Section 4. Other Actions.  The Authorized Officers of the Agency are each hereby 
authorized and directed to execute and deliver any and all documents which is necessary 
in order to consummate the transactions authorized hereby and all such actions heretofore 
taken by such officers are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved. 

Section 5. Effective Date.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 

Duly passed and adopted by the Alameda County Transportation Commission at the 
regular meeting of the Commission held on Thursday, October 23, 2014 in Oakland, 
California by the following vote: 

AYES:     NOES:        ABSTAIN:  ABSENT: 

 

SIGNED:      ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________  _____________________________________ 
Scott Haggerty, Chairperson   Vanessa Lee, Clerk of the Commission 

 
 
 
 

Page 128



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTH AMENDED  
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 

 
 

RELATING TO THE 
 
 
 

SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Adopted        August 1, 1986 
 1st Amended  February 5, 1988 
 2nd Amended     March 31, 1990 
 3rd Amended           July 1, 1993 
 4th Amended  February 9, 1998 
                                                                                                      5th Amended and Restated 
 - Approved    March 24, 2003 
 - Effective            July 1, 2003 
 6th Amended  October  2, 2007 
 
 

6.12B

Page 129



SDRMA 6th Amended JPA  Effective October 2, 2007 

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT - TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Article 1.  Definitions ........................................................................................................................2 
Article 2.  Purposes ............................................................................................................................3 
Article 3.  Parties to Agreement.........................................................................................................4 
Article 4.  Term of Agreement...........................................................................................................4 
Article 5.  Creation of Authority........................................................................................................4 
Article 6.  Powers of Authority..........................................................................................................4 
Article 7.  Board of Directors ............................................................................................................6 
Article 8.  Compliance with the Brown Act ......................................................................................6 
Article 9.  Powers of the Board of Directors .....................................................................................6 
Article 10.  Officers of the Authority.................................................................................................8 
Article 11.  Provision for Bylaws ......................................................................................................8 
Article 12.  [Reserved].......................................................................................................................8 
Article 13.  Coverage Programs.........................................................................................................9 
Article 14.  Implementation of the Programs.....................................................................................9 
Article 15.  Accounts And Records ...................................................................................................9 
Article 16.  Services Provided by the Authority ................................................................................10 
Article 17.  Responsibilities of Members ..........................................................................................10 
Article 18.  New Members.................................................................................................................11 
Article 19.  Withdrawal......................................................................................................................11 
Article 20.  Involuntary Termination .................................................................................................12 
Article 21.  Effect of Withdrawal or Involuntary Termination..........................................................13 
Article 22.  Termination and Distribution; Assignment ....................................................................13 
Article 23.  Enforcement....................................................................................................................14 
Article 24.  Nonliability of Directors, Officers and Employees ........................................................14 
Article 25.  Provisions Relating to CSDA .........................................................................................14 
Article 26.  Notices ............................................................................................................................15 
Article 27.  Amendment.....................................................................................................................15 
Article 28.  Prohibition Against Assignment.....................................................................................15 
Article 29.  Agreement Complete ......................................................................................................15 
Article 30.  Counterparts....................................................................................................................15 
Article 31.  California Law ................................................................................................................15 
Article 32.  Severability .....................................................................................................................15 
Article 33.  Effective Date .................................................................................................................15 
 

 

Page 130



SDRMA 6th Amended JPA 1 Effective October 2, 2007 

 
 
 

SIXTH AMENDED JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 
RELATING TO THE 

SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
 

THIS SIXTH AMENDED JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is 
made and entered into by and among the public agencies (the “Members”) organized and 
existing under the laws of the State of California, which are signatories to this Agreement. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 6500 et seq. (the “Act”) provides that 
two or more public agencies may by agreement jointly exercise any power common to the 
contracting parties; and 

WHEREAS, California Labor Code Section 3700(c) permits pooling by public agencies 
of self insurance for Workers’ Compensation liability; and  

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 990.4 provides that a local public 
entity may self-insure, purchase insurance through an authorized carrier, purchase insurance 
through a surplus line broker, or any combination of these; and 

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 990.8 provides that two or more local 
entities may, by a joint powers agreement, provide insurance for any purpose by any one or more 
of the methods specified in Government Code Section 990.4; and 

WHEREAS, the parties to this Agreement desire to join together for the purposes set 
forth in Article 2 hereof, including establishing pools for self-insured losses and purchasing 
Excess or Re-Insurance and administrative services in connection with joint protection programs 
(the “Programs”) for members of the California Special Districts Association (“CSDA”); and 

WHEREAS, it appears economically feasible and practical for the parties to this 
Agreement to do so; and 

WHEREAS, the Members have previously executed that certain Fifth Amended and 
Restated Joint Powers Agreement (the “Original JPA”), which Original JPA the Members desire 
to amend and restate by this Agreement; provided that such amendment and restatement shall not 
affect the existence of the Authority; and  

WHEREAS, CSDA exists to assist and promote special districts, and has been 
responsible for the original creation of the Special District Risk Management Authority 
(“Authority”) and Special District Workers Compensation Authority (“SDWCA”), and 
determined the consolidation of SDWCA and the Authority on July 1, 2003 was in the best 
interests of special districts and other public agencies throughout the State. 

Page 131



SDRMA 6th Amended JPA 2 Effective October 2, 2007 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of all of the mutual benefits, covenants 
and agreements contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

Article 1.  Definitions.  The following definitions shall apply to the provisions of this 
agreement: 

“Act” means Articles 1 through 4 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5, 
Division 7, Title 1 of the California Government Code, as amended or supplemented. 

“Alliance Executive Council” means the council organized pursuant to the MOU. 

“Assessment” means an additional amount, in addition to the Member’s or Former 
Member’s original contribution, which the Board of Directors determines in accordance herewith 
and/or with the Bylaws that a Member or Former Member owes on account of its participation in 
a Program for a given Program year.  

“Authority” shall mean the Special District Risk Management Authority created by the 
original version of this Agreement. 

“Board of Directors” or “Board” shall mean the governing body of the Authority. 

“Bylaws” means the Bylaws of the Authority adopted by the Board of Directors, as they 
may be amended from time to time. 

“Chief Executive Officer” shall mean that employee of the Authority who is so appointed 
by the Board of Directors. 

“Claim” shall mean a demand made by or against a Member or Former Member which is 
or may be covered by one of the Programs approved by the Board of Directors. 

“Contribution” means the amount determined by the Board of Directors to be the 
appropriate sum which a Member should pay at the commencement of or during the Program 
Year in exchange for the benefits provided by the Program. 

“Coverage Documents” shall mean the Declarations, Memorandum of Coverages, 
Coverage Agreements, Endorsements, Policies of Insurance or any other documents that provide 
the terms, conditions, limits and exclusions of coverage afforded by a Program. 

“CSDA” means the California Special Districts Association. 

“District” shall mean a special district, public agency or public entity within the State of 
California which is both a Member of the CSDA and a signatory to this Agreement. 

“Duly Constituted Board Meeting” shall mean any Board of Directors meeting noticed 
and held in the required manner and at which a Quorum was determined to be present at the 
beginning of the meeting. 

Page 132



SDRMA 6th Amended JPA 3 Effective October 2, 2007 

“Estimated Contribution” means the amount which the Board of Directors estimates will 
be the appropriate contribution for a Member’s participation in a Program for a Program Year. 

“Excess or Re-Insurance” shall mean that insurance which may be purchased on behalf of 
the Authority and/or the Members to protect the funds of the Members or Former Members 
against catastrophic losses or an unusual frequency of losses during a single year in excess of the 
self-insurance retention maintained by the Authority. 

“Fiscal Year” shall mean that period of twelve months which is established as the fiscal 
year of the Authority. 

“Former Member” shall mean a District which was a signatory to the Agreement but 
which has withdrawn from, or been involuntarily terminated from participating in, the Authority.   

“Joint Protection Program” means a Program offered by the Authority, separate and 
distinct from other Programs, wherein Members will jointly pool their losses and claims, jointly 
purchase Excess or Re-Insurance and administrative and other services, including claims 
adjusting, data processing, risk management consulting, loss prevention, legal and related 
services. 

“Member” shall mean a signatory to this Agreement, which is qualified as a Member 
under the provisions of this Agreement and the Bylaws.   

“MOU” means the Memorandum of Understanding - Alliance Executive Council, dated 
as of September 20, 2001, among the Authority, CSDA, the CSDA Finance Corporation and 
SDWCA. 

“Program” or “Programs” means the specific type of protection plan as set forth in the 
terms, conditions and exclusions of the Coverage Documents for self-insured losses, and the 
purchasing of Excess or Re-Insurance and administrative services.  

“Program Year” shall mean a period of time, usually 12 months, determined by the Board 
of Directors, in which a Program is in effect. 

“Retained Earnings,” as used herein, shall mean an equity account reflecting the 
accumulated earnings of a Joint Protection Program. 

“SDWCA” means the Special Districts Workers Compensation Authority, and its 
successors or assigns. 

Article 2.  Purposes.  This Agreement is entered into by the Members pursuant to the 
provisions of California Government Code section 990, 990.4, 990.8 and 6500 et seq. in order to 
provide, subject to the provisions of the Coverage Documents, economical public liability and 
workers’ compensation coverage, or coverage for other risks which the Board of Directors may 
determine. 

Additional purposes are to reduce the amount and frequency of losses, and to decrease 
the cost incurred by Members in the handling and litigation of claims.  These purposes shall be 

Page 133



SDRMA 6th Amended JPA 4 Effective October 2, 2007 

accomplished through the exercise of the powers of such Members jointly in the creation of a 
separate entity, the Special District Risk Management Authority (the “Authority”), to establish 
and administer Programs as set forth herein and in the Bylaws. 

It is also the purpose of this Agreement to provide, to the extent permitted by law, for the 
inclusion, at a subsequent date, and subject to approval by the Board of Directors, of such 
additional Members organized and existing under the laws of the State of California as may 
desire to become parties to the Agreement and Members of the Authority. 

Article 3.  Parties to Agreement.  Each party to this Agreement certifies that it intends 
to and does contract with all other parties who are signatories to this Agreement and, in addition, 
with such other parties as may later be added as parties to and signatories of this Agreement 
pursuant to Article 18.  Each party to this Agreement also certifies that the withdrawal from or 
cancellation of membership by any Member, pursuant to Articles 19 and 20 or otherwise, shall 
not affect this Agreement nor such party’s intent, as described above, to contract with the other 
remaining parties to the Agreement. 

Article 4.  Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall become effective as to existing 
Members of the Authority as set forth in Article 33 hereof.  This Agreement shall continue 
thereafter until terminated as hereinafter provided.  This Agreement shall become effective as to 
each new Member upon: (i) approval of its membership by the Board of Directors, (ii) the 
execution of this Agreement by the Member, and (iii) upon payment by the Member of its initial 
Contribution for a Program.  Any subsequent amendments to the Agreement shall be in 
accordance with Article 27 of this Agreement. 

Article 5.  Creation of Authority.  Pursuant to the Act, there is hereby created a public 
entity separate and apart from the parties hereto, to be known as the Special District Risk 
Management Authority.  Pursuant to Section 6508.1 of the Act, the debts, liabilities and 
obligations of the Authority, including but not limited to, debts, liabilities and obligations of any 
of the Programs shall not constitute debts, liabilities or obligations of any party to this 
Agreement or to any Member or Former Member. 

The Authority is not an insurer, and the coverage programs offered by the Authority do 
not provide insurance, but instead provide for pooled joint protection programs among the 
members of the Authority.  The Joint Protection Programs offered by the Authority constitute 
negotiated agreements among the Members which are to be interpreted according to the 
principles of contract law, giving full effect to the intent of the Members, acting through the 
Board of Directors in establishing the Programs. 

Article 6.  Powers of Authority.  (a)  The Authority shall have all of the powers 
common to Members and is hereby authorized to do all acts necessary for the exercise of said 
common powers, including, but not limited to, any or all of the following: 

(1) to make and enter into contracts, including the power to accept the 
assignment of contracts or other obligations which relate to the purposes 
of the Authority, or which were entered into by a Member or Former 

Page 134



SDRMA 6th Amended JPA 5 Effective October 2, 2007 

Member prior to joining the Authority, and to make claims, acquire assets 
and incur liabilities; 

(2) to accept an assignment from SDWCA of all its assets, obligations and 
liabilities prior to the dissolution of SDWCA (including claims and 
contracts in existence prior to such dissolution) in order to benefit the 
Members or Former Members participating in the SDWCA workers 
compensation program; provided, that except for the fair and equitable 
allocation of administrative and overhead expenses, funds from such 
assignment shall not be co-mingled and shall be separately accounted for 
as provided for in this Agreement and the Bylaws.  

(3) to incur debts, liabilities, or other obligations, including those which are 
not debts, liabilities or obligations of the Members or Former Members, or 
any of them; 

(4) to charge and collect Contributions and Assessments from Members or 
Former Members for participation in Programs; 

(5) to receive grants and donations of property, funds, services and other 
forms of assistance from persons, firms, corporations and governmental 
entities; 

(6) to acquire, hold, lease or dispose of property, contributions and donations 
of property and other forms of assistance from persons, firms, corporations 
and governmental entities 

(7) to acquire, hold or dispose of funds, services, donations and other forms of 
assistance from persons, firms, corporations and governmental entities; 

(8) to employ agents and employees, and/or to contract for such services; 

(9) to incur debts, liabilities or other obligations to finance the Programs and 
any other powers available to the Authority under Article 2 or Article 4 of 
the Act;  

(10) to enter into agreements for the creation of separate public entities and 
agencies pursuant to the Act; 

(11) to sue and be sued in its own name;  

(12) to exercise all powers necessary and proper to carry out the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement (including the provision of all other 
appropriate ancillary coverages for the benefit of the Members or Former 
Members), or otherwise authorized by law or the Act; and  

(13) to exercise all powers and perform all acts as otherwise provided for in the 
Bylaws. 

Page 135



SDRMA 6th Amended JPA 6 Effective October 2, 2007 

(b)  Said powers shall be exercised pursuant to the terms hereof, in the manner provided 
by law and in accordance with Section 6509 of the Act.  The foregoing powers shall be subject to 
the restrictions upon the manner of exercising such powers pertaining to the Member or Former 
Member designated in the Bylaws.   

Article 7.  Board of Directors.  Subject to the limitations of this Agreement and the laws 
of the State of California, the powers of this Authority shall be vested in and exercised by, and its 
property controlled and its affairs conducted by, the Board of the Authority, which is hereby 
established and designated as the agency to administer this Agreement pursuant to Section 6506 
of the Act.  The powers of the Authority shall be exercised through the Board of Directors, who 
may, from time to time, adopt and modify Bylaws and other rules and regulations for that 
purpose and for the conduct of its meetings as it may deem proper.  The officers of the Board 
shall be as set forth in the Bylaws. 

So long as the MOU has not been terminated or the Authority has not withdrawn from the 
MOU, the Board of Directors shall be composed of seven (7) directors elected by the Member 
entities who have executed the current operative Agreement and are participating in a Joint 
Protection Program.  The terms of directors, procedures for election of directors, procedures for 
meetings and provisions for reimbursement of Director expenses shall be as set forth in the 
Bylaws.  Each Member of the Board of Directors shall have one vote.  Each Member of the 
Board shall serve as set forth in the Bylaws. 

So long as the Authority is a participant in the MOU, the Board of Directors of the 
Authority shall appoint three (3) members of its board to serve as members of the Alliance 
Executive Council.  No member of the Board of Directors of the Authority shall serve as a 
director on any other board of directors of an entity or organization that is a signatory to the 
MOU during the term of the MOU.  In the event a director is elected to such a board, that 
director shall immediately resign from the Board of Directors of the Authority. 

In the event SDRMA withdraws from the MOU, the Board of Directors of the Authority 
shall consist of those seven (7) Directors who hold seats on the Authority’s Board of Directors at 
the time of the withdrawal and who were duly appointed by the Board, or elected or re-elected by 
the Member entities of SDRMA plus the additional directors appointed by CSDA as provided in 
Article 25.   

Article 8.  Compliance with the Brown Act.  All meetings of the Board, including, 
without limitation, regular, adjourned regular and special meetings, shall be called, noticed, held 
and conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act, California 
Government Code Section 54950 et seq.   

Article 9.  Powers of the Board of Directors.  The Board of Directors shall have such 
powers and functions as provided for pursuant to this Agreement and the Bylaws and such 
additional powers as necessary or appropriate to fulfill the purposes of this Agreement and the 
Bylaws, including, but not limited to, the following:  

 (a) to determine details of and select the Program or Programs to be offered, 
from time to time, by the Authority; 

Page 136



SDRMA 6th Amended JPA 7 Effective October 2, 2007 

 (b) to determine and select all insurance, including Excess or Re-insurance, 
necessary to carry out the programs of the Authority; 

 (c) to contract for, develop or provide through its own employees various 
services for the Authority; 

 (d) to prepare or cause to be prepared the operating budget of the Authority 
for each fiscal year; 

 (e) to receive and act upon reports of committees and from the Chief 
Executive Officer; 

 (f) to appoint staff, including a Chief Executive Officer, and employ such 
persons as the Board of Directors deems necessary for the administration of this 
Authority; 

 (g) to direct, subject to the terms and conditions of the Coverage Documents, 
the payment, adjustment, and defense of all claims involving a Member during 
their period of membership in and coverage under a Program; 

 (h) to fix and collect Contributions and Assessments for participation in the 
Programs; 

 (i) to expend funds of the Authority for the purpose of carrying out the 
provisions of the Agreement and the Bylaws as they now exist or may be 
hereafter amended; 

 (j) to purchase excess insurance, liability insurance, stop loss insurance, 
officers and directors liability insurance, and such other insurance as the 
Authority may deem necessary or proper to protect the Program, employees of the 
Authority and employees of the Members; 

 (k) to defend, pay, compromise, adjust and settle all claims as provided for in 
the Coverage Documents; 

 (l) to obtain a fidelity bond in such amount as the Board of Directors may 
determine for any person or persons who have charge of or the authority to 
expend funds for the Authority; 

 (m) to establish policies and procedures for the operation of the Authority and 
the Programs; 

 (n) to engage, retain, and discharge agents, representatives, firms, or other 
organizations as the Board of Directors deems necessary for the administration of 
the Authority; 

 (o) to enter into any and all contracts or agreements necessary or appropriate 
to carry out the purposes and functions of the Authority; 

Page 137



SDRMA 6th Amended JPA 8 Effective October 2, 2007 

 (p) to acquire, hold, lease, manage and dispose of, as provided by law, any 
and all property necessary or appropriate to carry out the purposes and functions 
of the Authority; 

 (q) to transact any other business which is within the powers of the Board of 
Directors; 

 (r) to invest funds on hand in a manner authorized by law, the Agreement and 
the Bylaws; 

 (s) to provide financial administration, claims management services, legal 
representations, safety engineering, actuarial services, and other services 
necessary or proper to carry out the purposes of the Authority either through its 
own employees or contracts with one or more third parties; 

 (t) to exercise general supervisory and policy control over the Chief 
Executive Officer; 

 (u) to establish committees and sub-committees as it deems necessary to best 
serve the interests of the Authority; and 

 (v) to have such other powers and functions as are provided for pursuant to 
the Act, this Agreement or necessary or appropriate to fulfill the purpose of this 
Agreement and the Bylaws. 

Article 10.  Officers of the Authority.  The officers of the Authority shall be as set forth 
in the Bylaws.  The Board may elect or authorize the appointment of such other officers than 
those described in the Bylaws as the business of the Authority may require, each of whom shall 
hold office for such period, have such authority and perform such duties as are provided in this 
Agreement, or as the Board, from time to time, may authorize or determine. 

Any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, by a majority of the directors 
of the Board at any regular or special meeting of the Board.  Should a vacancy occur in any 
office as a result of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or any other cause, the Board 
may delegate the powers and duties of such office to any officers or to any Members of the 
Board until such time as a successor for said office has been appointed. 

Article 11.  Provision for Bylaws. The Board shall promulgate Bylaws to govern the 
day-to-day operations of the Authority.  The Board may amend the Bylaws from time to time as 
it deems necessary, and as provided in the Bylaws.  Each Member shall receive a copy of any 
Bylaws and agrees to be bound by and to comply with all of the terms and conditions of the 
Bylaws as they exist or as they may be modified.  The Bylaws shall be consistent with the terms 
of this Agreement.  In the event any provision of the bylaws conflicts with a provision of this 
Agreement, the provision contained in this Agreement shall control. 

Article 12.  [Reserved].   

 

Page 138



SDRMA 6th Amended JPA 9 Effective October 2, 2007 

Article 13.  Coverage Programs. 

(a) The Authority shall maintain such types and levels of coverage for Programs as 
determined by the Board of Directors.  Such coverage may provide for binding arbitration before 
an independent arbitration panel of any disputes concerning coverage between the Authority and 
a Member. 

(b) The coverage afforded under one or more Programs may include protection for 
general liability, auto liability, property, boiler and machinery, public officials errors and 
omissions, employment practices, employee benefits liability coverage, employee dishonesty 
coverage, public officials personal liability coverage and workers’ compensation, as well as 
coverage for other risks which the Board of Directors may determine to be advisable.  More than 
one type of coverage may be afforded under a single Program. 

(c) The Board of Directors may arrange for group policies to be issued for Members, their 
board members and employees interested in obtaining additional coverage, at an appropriate 
additional cost to those participating Members. 

(d) The Board of Directors may arrange for the purchase of Excess or Re-Insurance.  The 
Authority shall not be liable to any Member or to any other person or organization if such excess 
or reinsurance policies are terminated, canceled or non-renewed without prior notice to one or 
more Members, or if there is a reduction in the type of coverage afforded under a program by 
reason of any change in coverage in a succeeding excess or reinsurance policy, even if such 
reduction occurs without prior notice to one or more Members. 

Article 14.  Implementation of the Programs.  The Board of Directors shall establish 
the coverage afforded by each Program, the amount of Contributions and Assessments, the 
precise cost allocation plans and formulas, provide for the handling of claims, and specify the 
amounts and types of Excess or Re-Insurance to be procured.  The Contributions and 
Assessments for each Program shall be determined by the Board of Directors as set forth herein, 
in the Bylaws or in the operating policies established for a Program. 

Article 15.  Accounts And Records.  

(a) Annual Budget.  The Authority shall, pursuant to the Bylaws, annually adopt an 
operating budget, including budgets for each Joint Protection Program. 

(b) Funds and Accounts.  The Authority shall establish and maintain such funds and 
accounts as required by the Board of Directors and as required by generally accepted accounting 
principles, including separate funds and accounts for each Program, including Joint Protection 
Programs.  Books and records of the Authority shall be open to any inspection at all reasonable 
times by authorized representatives of Members, or as otherwise required by law. 

(c) Investments.  Subject to the applicable provisions of any indenture or resolution 
providing for the investment of moneys held thereunder, the Authority shall have the power to 
invest any money in the treasury that is not required for the immediate necessities of the 
Authority, as the Board determines is advisable, in the same manner as local agencies pursuant to 

Page 139



SDRMA 6th Amended JPA 10 Effective October 2, 2007 

California Government Code Sections 53601 et seq. (as such provisions may be amended or 
supplemented). 

(d) No Commingling.  The funds, reserves and accounts of each Program shall not 
be commingled and shall be accounted for separately; provided, however, that administration and 
overhead expenses of the Authority not related to a specific Program or Programs may be fairly 
and equitably allocated among Programs as determined by the Board of Directors.  Investments 
and cash accounts may be combined for administrative convenience, but a separate accounting 
shall be made for balances of individual funds and Program revenues and expenses.   

(e) Annual Audit.  The Board shall provide for a certified, annual audit of the 
accounts and records of the Authority, in the manner set forth in the Bylaws. 

Article 16.  Services Provided by the Authority.  The Authority may provide, at the 
sole discretion of the Board of Directors, the following services in connection with this 
Agreement: 

(a) to provide or procure coverage, including but not limited to self-insurance funds 
and commercial insurance, as well as excess coverage, re-insurance and umbrella insurance, by 
negotiation or bid, and purchase; 

(b) to assist Members in obtaining insurance coverage for risks not included within 
the coverage of the Authority; 

(c) to assist risk managers with the implementation of risk management functions as 
it relates to risks covered by the Programs in which the Member participates; 

(d) to provide loss prevention and safety consulting services to Members; 

(e) to provide claims adjusting and subrogation services for Claims covered by the 
Programs; 

(f) to provide loss analysis and control by the use of statistical analysis, data 
processing, and record and file keeping services, in order to identify high exposure operations 
and to evaluate proper levels of self-retention and deductibles; 

(g) to review Member contracts to determine sufficiency of indemnity and insurance 
provisions when requested; 

(h) to conduct risk management audits relating to the participation of Members in the 
Programs; and 

(i) to provide such other services as deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors. 

Article 17.  Responsibilities of Members.  Members or Former Members shall have the 
following responsibilities, which shall survive the withdrawal from, or involuntary termination 
of participation in, this Agreement: 

Page 140



SDRMA 6th Amended JPA 11 Effective October 2, 2007 

(a) Each Member shall designate a person to be responsible for the risk management 
function within that Member and to serve as a liaison between the Member and the Authority as 
to risk management. 

(b) Each Member shall maintain an active safety officer and/or committee, and shall 
consider all recommendations of the Authority concerning unsafe practices and/or hazard 
mitigation. 

(c) Each Member shall maintain its own set of records, including a loss log, in all 
categories of risk covered by each Program in which it participates to insure accuracy of the 
Authority’s loss reporting system, unless it is no longer deemed necessary by the Board of 
Directors. 

(d) Each Member shall pay its Contribution, and any adjustments thereto, and any 
Assessments within the specified period set forth in the invoice, or as otherwise may be set forth 
herein or in the Bylaws.  After withdrawal or termination, each Former Member or its successor 
shall pay promptly to the Authority its share of any additional Contribution, adjustments or 
Assessments, if any, as required of it by the Board of Directors under Article 21 or 22 of this 
Agreement or the Bylaws. 

(e) Each Member or Former Member shall provide the Authority with such other 
information or assistance as may be necessary for the Authority to carry out the Programs under 
this Agreement in which the Member or Former Member participates or has participated. 

(f) Each Member or Former Member shall in any and all ways cooperate with and 
assist the Authority and any insurer of the Authority, in all matters relating to this Agreement 
and covered claims. 

(g) Each Member or Former Member will comply with all Bylaws, rules and 
regulations adopted by the Board of Directors. 

(h) Each Member shall remain a member in good standing of CSDA. 

Article 18.  New Members.  The Authority shall allow entry into its Programs of new 
Members only upon approval of the Board, with any conditions or limitations as the Board 
deems appropriate.  In order to become a Member and remain a Member, any District must be a 
member in good standing of CSDA, shall participate in at least one (1) Joint Protection Program 
and shall be authorized to exercise the common powers set forth in this Agreement.  

Article 19.  Withdrawal.   

(A) Any Member may voluntarily withdraw from this Agreement only at the end of 
any applicable Program Year and only if: 

(i) The Member has been a signatory to this Agreement for not less than three 
(3) full Program Years as of the date of the proposed withdrawal;  

Page 141



SDRMA 6th Amended JPA 12 Effective October 2, 2007 

(ii)  The Member submits a written withdrawal notification in accordance with 
the Bylaws;  

(iii) In order to withdraw from the agreement the member must have 
completed the three (3) full program year participation requirement for 
each Joint Protection Program the member participated in at the time of 
withdrawal.   

(B) Any Member may voluntarily withdraw from any particular Joint Protection 
Program; and 

(i) It has participated in such Joint Protection Program for at least three (3) 
full Program Years;  

 (ii) it is a participant in another Joint Protection Program; and  

(iii) the Member submits a written withdrawal notification in accordance with 
the Bylaws. 

 (C) In the event that the three year participation requirement as required by (A)(i) or 
(B)(i) as to any such Joint Protection Program above has not been met, for each Program the 
withdrawing Member participated in at the time of its withdrawal, for less than three years such 
withdrawing member shall be obligated to pay all Contributions and Assessments as if that 
Member had remained in each such Program for the full three years from the inception of its 
membership in the Authority.   

(D) In the event that the notice is not provided as required by (A)(ii) or (B)(iii) above, 
any such withdrawing Member shall, with respect to each Program the Member participated in, 
be obligated to pay any and all Contributions and Assessments for the next full Program Year. 

(E) A Member may withdraw from any Program (other than a Joint Protection 
Program) as provided by the Coverage Documents relating to such Program. 

(F) Withdrawal of one or more Members shall not serve to terminate this Agreement. 

(G) A Member may not withdraw as a party to this Agreement until it has withdrawn, 
as provided in the Bylaws from all of the Programs of the Authority. 

Article 20.  Involuntary Termination. 

(a) Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 19, the Authority shall have the right to 
involuntarily terminate any Member’s participation in any Program, or terminate membership in 
the Authority, as provided in the Bylaws. 

(b) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, the participation of any 
Member of the Authority, including participation in any of the Authority’s Programs, may be 
involuntarily terminated at the discretion of the Board of Directors whenever such Member is 
dissolved, consolidated, merged or annexed.  A reasonable time shall be afforded, in the 

Page 142



SDRMA 6th Amended JPA 13 Effective October 2, 2007 

discretion of the Board of Directors, to place coverage elsewhere.  Any such involuntary 
termination shall not relieve the Member or Former Member of its responsibilities as provided 
for in Articles 17 or 21. 

Article 21.  Effect of Withdrawal or Involuntary Termination.  The withdrawal from 
or involuntary termination of any Member from this Agreement shall not terminate this 
Agreement, and such Member, by withdrawing or being involuntarily terminated, shall not be 
entitled to payment, return or refund of any Contribution, Assessment, consideration, or other 
property paid, or donated by the Member to the Authority, or to any return of any loss reserve 
contribution, or to any distribution of assets (except payment of any Retained Earnings, as set 
forth in the following paragraph). 

The withdrawal from or involuntary termination of any Member after the effective date 
of any Program shall not terminate its responsibility to pay its unpaid Contribution adjustments, 
or Assessments to such Program.  The Board of Directors shall determine the final amount due 
from the Member or Former Member by way of contribution or assessments, if any, or any credit 
due on account thereof, to the Member or Former Member for the period of its participation.  
Such determination shall not be made by the Board of Directors until all Claims, or other unpaid 
liabilities, have been finally resolved.  In connection with this determination, the Board of 
Directors may exercise similar powers to those provided for in Article 22(b) of this Agreement, 
or as otherwise set forth in the Bylaws.  Upon such withdrawal from or cancellation of 
participation in any Program by any Member, said Member shall be entitled to receive its pro 
rata share of any Retained Earnings declared by the Board of Directors after the date of said 
Member withdraws or is involuntarily terminated. 

Article 22.  Termination and Distribution; Assignment. 

(a) This Agreement may be terminated any time with the written consent of two-
thirds of the voting Members; provided, however, that this Agreement and the Authority shall 
continue to exist for the purpose of disposing of all claims, distribution of net assets and all other 
functions necessary to wind up the affairs of the Authority. 

(b) The Board of Directors is vested with all powers of the Authority for the purpose 
of winding up and dissolving the business affairs of the Authority.  These powers shall include 
the power to require Members or Former Members, including those which were signatory hereto 
at the time the subject Claims arose or was/were incurred, to pay any Assessment in accordance 
with loss allocation formulas for final disposition of all Claims and losses covered by this 
Agreement or the Bylaws.  A Member or Former Member’s Assessment shall be determined as 
set forth in the Bylaws or the applicable Coverage Documents. 

(c) Upon termination of a Program, all net assets of such Program other than 
Retained Earnings shall be distributed only among the Members that are participating in such 
Program at the time of termination, in accordance with and proportionate to their cash payments 
(including Contributions, adjustments, Assessments and other property at market value when 
received) made during the term of this Agreement for such Program.  The Board of Directors 
shall determine such distribution within six (6) months after disposal of the last pending Claim or 
loss covered by such Program, or as otherwise set forth in the Bylaws. 

Page 143



SDRMA 6th Amended JPA 14 Effective October 2, 2007 

(d) Upon termination of this Agreement all net assets of the Authority, other than of 
any Program distributed pursuant to (c) above, shall be distributed only among the Members in 
good standing at the time of such termination in accordance with and proportionate to their cash 
contributions and property at market value when received.  The Board of Directors shall 
determine such distribution within six (6) months after disposal of the last pending Claim or loss 
covered by this Agreement, or as otherwise set forth in the Bylaws.  

(e) In the event the Board of Directors is no longer able to assemble a quorum, the 
Chief Executive Officer shall exercise all powers and authority under this Article.  The decision 
of the Board of Directors or Chief Executive Officer under this Article shall be final. 

(f) In lieu of terminating this Agreement, the Board, with the written consent of two-
thirds of the voting Members, may elect to assign and transfer all of the Authority’s rights, 
assets, liabilities and obligations to a successor joint powers authority created under the Act. 

Article 23.  Enforcement.  The Authority is hereby granted authority to enforce this 
Agreement.  In the event action is instituted to enforce the terms of this Agreement, the Bylaws 
and/or any policies and/or procedures of the Board of Directors and the nondefaulting party(s) 
should employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of moneys or the enforcement 
or performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on the part of the defaulting 
party(s) herein contained, the defaulting party agrees that it will on demand therefore pay to the 
nondefaulting party(s) the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other expenses so incurred 
by the nondefaulting party(s).  

Article 24.  Nonliability of Directors, Officers and Employees.  The Board of 
Directors, and the officers and employees of the Authority, including former directors, officers 
and employees, shall not be liable to the Authority, to any Member or Former Member, or to any 
other person, for actual or alleged breach of duty, mistake of judgment, neglect, error, 
misstatement, misleading statement, or any other act or omission in the performance of their 
duties hereunder; for any action taken or omitted by any employee or independent contractor; for 
loss incurred through the investment or failure to invest funds; or for loss attributable to any 
failure or omission to procure or maintain insurance; except in the event of fraud, gross 
negligence, or intentional misconduct of such director, officer or employee.  No director, officer 
or employee, including former directors, officers and employees, shall be liable for any action 
taken or omitted by any other director, officer or employee.  The Authority shall defend and shall 
indemnify and hold harmless its directors, officers and employees, including former directors, 
officers and employees, from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, and damages arising 
out of their performance of their duties as such directors, officers or employees of the Authority 
except in the event of fraud, gross negligence, corruption, malice or intentional misconduct, and 
the funds of the Authority shall be used for such purpose.  The Authority may purchase 
conventional insurance to protect the Authority, and its participating Members or Former 
Members, against any such acts or omissions by its directors, officers and employees, including 
former directors, officers and employees. 

Article 25.  Provisions Relating to CSDA.  It is agreed and understood the mandatory 
membership in CSDA provision in Article 18 is in consideration of CSDA’s exclusive 
endorsement of SDRMA’s programs as they exist or may be modified. CSDA and the Authority 

Page 144



SDRMA 6th Amended JPA 15 Effective October 2, 2007 

may from time to time exchange services or enter into separate service agreements pursuant to 
Section 6505 of the Act, including, but not limited to, services relating to educational programs, 
marketing, web-site graphics and conferences. 

So long as the Authority is a participant in the MOU, the Board of the Authority shall 
appoint three members of the Board to serve as members of the Alliance Executive Council.  In 
the event the MOU has been terminated or the Authority has withdrawn from the MOU, the 
composition of the Authority Board of Directors shall be increased by two (2) additional 
directors to be appointed by CSDA.  CSDA appointees shall be a director serving on the CSDA 
Board of Directors and said director(s) shall be a member of an agency who is a signatory to the 
current SDRMA Joint Powers Agreement.  

CSDA shall be a third party beneficiary to Sections 18, 25, 27 of this Agreement. 

Article 26.  Notices.  Notices to Members or Former Members hereunder shall be 
sufficient if delivered to the principal office of the respective Member or Former Member. 

Article 27.  Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended at any time by a two-thirds 
vote of the Members; provided, that any amendment to Article 18, Article 25, or Article 27 shall 
require the prior written consent of CSDA.  The Bylaws may be amended as provided therein.  
Upon the effective date of any validly approved amendment to this Agreement, such amendment 
shall be binding on all Members.   

Article 28.  Prohibition Against Assignment.  No person or organization shall be 
entitled to assert the rights, either direct or derivative, of any Member or Former Member under 
any coverage agreement or memorandum.  No Member or Former Member may assign any right, 
claim or interest it may have under this Agreement, and no creditor, assignee or third party 
beneficiary of any Member or Former Member shall have any right, claim or title or any part, 
share, interest, fund, contribution or asset of the Authority. 

Article 29.  Agreement Complete.  The foregoing constitutes the full and complete 
Agreement of the parties.  There are no oral understandings or agreements not set forth in writing 
herein.  This Agreement supersedes and replaces the Fifth Amended Joint Powers Amendment. 

Article 30.  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more 
counterparts and shall be as fully effective as though executed in one document. 

Article 31.  California Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State 
of California. 

Article 32.  Severability.  Should any part, term or provisions of this Agreement be 
determined by any court of component jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law of the 
State of California or otherwise be rendered unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the 
remaining portions or provisions shall not be affected thereby. 

Article 33.  Effective Date.  This Agreement shall become effective as to existing 
Members of the Authority on the date on which the last of two-thirds of such Members have 
executed this Agreement.   

Page 145



Page 146



SDRMA 6th Amended JPA 17 Effective October 2, 2007 

EXECUTION BY MEMBER 

The Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement of the Special District Risk Management 
Authority, has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Member listed below, on the date 
shown, and said Member agrees to be subject to all of the terms and conditions set forth in said 
Agreement. 

Entity Name:______________________________________________________________ 

 

By:_______________________________________     President 

By:_______________________________________     Clerk 

Date:  

 

EXECUTION BY AUTHORITY 

The Special District Risk Management Authority (the “Authority”), operating and functioning 
pursuant to this Sixth Amended Joint Powers Agreement, hereby accepts the entity named above 
as a participating member in the Authority, subject to all of the terms and conditions set forth in 
this Sixth Amended Joint Powers Agreement and in the Bylaws, effective as of  

_____________________________. 

 

 

SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

By:________________________________ 
David Aranda, President 
Board of Directors 

 

Date:  

 

 
 

Page 147

gparmelee
Typewritten Text

gparmelee
Typewritten Text

gparmelee
Typewritten Text

gparmelee
Typewritten Text
alameda County Transportation Commission

gparmelee
Typewritten Text
Scott Haggerty, 

gparmelee
Typewritten Text
--------

gparmelee
Typewritten Text

gparmelee
Typewritten Text
Chair

gparmelee
Typewritten Text
Vanessa Lee



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 148



State of California
Department of Industrial Relations
Self Insurance Plans
2265 Watt Avenue, Suite 1
Sacramento, CA 95825
Phone (916) 483-3392
FAX (916) 483-1535

APPLICATION  FOR  A  PUBLIC  ENTITY
CERTIFICATE  OF  CONSENT  TO  SELF  INSURE

Page 1

      Our File:

NOTE:  All questions must be answered. If not applicable, enter “N/A”.
Workers’ compensation insurance must be maintained until certificate is effective.

Form No. A4-2 (2/92)

APPLICANT  INFORMATION

Legal Name of Applicant (show exactly as on Charter or other official documents):

Street Address of Main Headquarters:

Mailing Address (if different from above):                                                                                                  Federal Tax ID No.:

City: State: Zip + 4:

TO WHOM DO YOU WANT CORRESPONDENCE REGARDING THIS APPLICATION ADDRESSED?

Name:

Title:

Company Name:

Mailing Address:

City:   State:  Zip + 4:

Type of Public Entity (check one):

       City and/or County            School District            Police and/or Fire District             Hospital District            Joint Powers Authority

       Other (describe):

Type of Application (check one):

       New Application              Reapplication due to Merger or Unification                  Reapplication due to Name Change Only

       Other (specify):

Date Self Insurance Program will begin:

6.12C

Page 149



Page 2

      Currently Insured with State Compensation Insurance Fund, Policy Number:

       Policy Expiration Date:                                                                                Yearly Premium: $

       Current Yearly Incurred (paid & unpaid) Losses: $                                                                                       (FY or CY)

       Currently Self Insured, Certificate Number:

       Name of Current Certificate Holder:

       Other (describe):

Will the applicant be a member of a workers’ compensation Joint Powers Authority for the purpose of pooling workers’
compensation liabilities?

        Yes               No      If yes, then complete the following:

Effective date of JPA Membership:                                                         JPA Certificate No.:

Name and Title of JPA Executive Officer:

Name of Joint Powers Authority Agency:

Mailing Address of JPA:

City:   State: Zip + 4:

Telephone Number:  (            )

Who will be administering your agency’s workers’ compensation claims? (check one)

       JPA will administer, JPA Certificate No.:

       Third party agency will administer, TPA Certificate No.:

       Public entity will self administer                            Insurance carrier will administer

Name of Individual Claims Administrator:

Name of Administrative Agency:

Mailing Address:

City:                                                                                               State:                                Zip + 4:

Telephone Number:  (            )                                                      FAX Number:  (            )

CURRENT  PROGRAM  FOR  WORKERS’  COMPENSATION  LIABILITIES

PROPOSED  CLAIMS  ADMINISTRATOR

JOINT  POWERS  AUTHORITY

Page 150

marketingassistant
Note
Accepted set by marketingassistant



Page 3

AGENCY  EMPLOYMENT

INJURY  AND  ILLNESS  PREVENTION  PROGRAM

SUPPLEMENTAL  COVERAGE

Yes              No

Yes                  No

Number of claims reporting locations to be used to handle the agency’s claims:

Will all agency claims be handled by the administrator listed on previous page?                        Yes             No

Current Number of Agency Employees:

Number of Public Safety Officers (law enforcement, police or fire):

If a school district, number of certificated employees:

Will all agency employees be included in this self insurance program?                     Yes            No

If no, explain who is not included and how workers’ compensation coverage is to be provided to the excluded
agency employees:

Does the agency have a written Injury and Illness Prevention Program?

Individual responsible for agency Injury and Illness Prevention Program:

Name and Title:

Company or Agency Name:

Mailing Address:

City:                                                                                                 State:                              Zip + 4:

Telephone Number:  (            )

Will your self insurance program be supplemented by any insurance or pooled coverage under a standard
workers’ compensation insurance policy?

If yes, then complete the following:

Name of Carrier or Excess Pool:

Policy Number:

Effective Date of Coverage:

Page 151



Page 4

Will your self insurance program be supplemented by any insurance or pooled coverage under a specific excess workers’
compensation insurance policy?

If yes, then complete the following:

Name of Carrier or Excess Pool:

Policy Number:

Effective Date of Coverage:

Retention Limits:

Will your self insurance program be supplemented by any insurance or pooled coverage under an aggregate excess (stop loss)
workers’ compensation insurance policy?

If yes, then complete the following:

Name of Carrier or Excess Pool:

Policy Number:

Effective Date of Coverage:

Retention Limits:

See Attached Resolution—Page 5

The undersigned on behalf of the applicant hereby applies for a Certificate of Consent to Self Insure the payment of
workers’ compensation liabilities pursuant to Labor Code Section 3700. The above information is submitted for the
purpose of procuring said Certificate from the Director of Industrial Relations, State of California. If the Certificate is
issued, the applicant agrees to comply with applicable California statutes and regulations pertaining to the payment of
compensation that may become due to the applicant’s employees covered by the Certificate.

Signature of Authorized Official:                                                                      Date:

Typed Name:

                                                                                                                                                                  Seal
Title:

Agency Name:

                                                                                                                                             (Emboss seal above or Notarize signature)

Yes              No

Yes              No

RESOLUTION  OF  GOVERNING  BOARD

CERTIFICATION

Page 152



Page 5

RESOLUTION  NO.:                             DATED:

A  RESOLUTION  AUTHORIZING  APPLICATION
TO  THE  DIRECTOR  OF  INDUSTRIAL  RELATIONS,  STATE  OF  CALIFORNIA

FOR  A  CERTIFICATE  OF  CONSENT  TO  SELF  INSURE
WORKERS’  COMPENSATION  LIABILITIES

At a meeting of the Board of
                                                                                                                              (enter title)

of the                                                                                                                                                                                               ,
                                                                                        (enter name of public agency, district)

a                                                                                                 organized and existing under the laws of the State of California,
                             (enter type of agency)

held on the                                   day of                                                                         ,   20          , the following resolution

was adopted:

RESOLVED, that the
                                                                                                  (enter position titles)

be and they are hereby severally authorized and empowered to make application to the Director of Industrial
Relations, State of California, for a Certificate of Consent to Self Insure workers’ compensation liabilities
on behalf of the

                                                                              (enter name of district)

and to execute any and all documents required for such application.

I,                                                                                           ,    the undersigned
                                    (enter name)                                                                                                        (enter title)

of the Board of the said                                                                                                                                                                ,
                                                                                               (enter name of agency)

a                                                                                       ,    hereby certify that I am the
                            (enter type of agency)                                                                                                     (enter title)

of said                                                                                        , that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of the
                                    (enter type of agency)
resolution duly passed by the Board at the meeting of said Board held on the day and at the place therein specified
and that said resolution has never been revoked, rescinded, or set aside and is now in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF:  I HAVE SIGNED MY NAME AND AFFIXED THE SEAL OF THIS

                               Seal                                                                                                                                        ,
                                                                                                                     (enter type of agency)

                                                                                         THIS                                DAY OF                                       ,   20          .

                                                                                                                                                (Signature)

Page 153



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 154



6.13

Page 155



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 156



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\BPAC\20141009\3.1_Minutes\3.1_BPAC_Minutes_20140710.
docx 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, July 10, 2014, 5:30 p.m.

 
1. Welcome and Introductions 

BPAC Chair Midori Tabata called the meeting to order at 5:35 p.m. The meeting began 
with introductions, and the chair confirmed a quorum. All BPAC members were present, 
except the following: Mike Ansell, Mike Bucci, Preston Jordan, Ben Schweng, and Matt 
Turner. Midori welcomed new member Diane Shaw.  

Matt Turner arrived prior to the vote on agenda item 4.2. 

2. Public Comment: There were no public comments. 
 

3. Approval of April 10, 2014 Minutes 
David Fishbaugh moved to approve the April 10, 2014 minutes as written. Sara 
Zimmerman seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously 7-0 (Mike Ansell, Mike 
Bucci, Preston Jordan, Ben Schweng, and Matt Turner were absent). 

4. Organizational Meeting 
4.1. Election of Officers 

Jeremy Johansen nominated Midori Tabata for chair. David Fishbaugh seconded 
the motion. The motion passed unanimously 7-0 (Mike Ansell, Mike Bucci, Preston 
Jordan, Ben Schweng, and Matt Turner were absent).

Midori Tabata nominated Sara Zimmerman for vice chair. Jeremy Johansen 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously 7-0 (Mike Ansell, Mike Bucci, 
Preston Jordan, Ben Schweng, and Matt Turner were absent).

4.2. Review and Approval of BPAC Bylaws 
Matt Bomberg led the discussion on the BPAC Bylaws. He mentioned that there were 
significant changes to the BPAC Bylaws this year as a result of the discussions with 
BPAC on the “Committee Purpose,” Article 2.1 and “Roles and Responsibilities,” 
Article 2.2. He requested the committee review the illustration of committee roles 
and responsibilities on page 23 in the agenda packet for an easy way to view staff’s 
proposed changes. 

Committee members and staff discussed the bylaws, and members requested the 
following changes: 

Section 3.3 – Staff made the recommendation to add “and non-profit” after 
“agency.” However, the committee did not agree on the modifications to this 
section. The committee requested that staff review this section and bring 
back a recommendation to the committee at a later date. 
Section 8.2 – The committee requested staff to review this section in relation to 
Section 3.3 in terms of members having a conflict of interest when affiliated 

7.1

Page 157



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\BPAC\20141009\3.1_Minutes\3.1_BPAC_Minutes_20140710.
docx 

with projects, programs, and policies that members evaluate. Staff agreed to 
bring back a recommendation to the committee at a later date. 
Midori requested modifying the committee name to “Alameda Countywide 
Bicyclists and Pedestrian Advisory Committee.” Staff informed the committee 
that changing the name has more ramifications because of the agency 
Administrative Code. 

Sara Zimmerman moved to approve the BPAC Bylaws, with the exception of Articles 
3.3 and 8.2, which staff will presented to the committee at a later meeting. David 
Fishbaugh seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously 8-0 (Mike Ansell, 
Mike Bucci, Preston Jordan, and Ben Schweng were absent). 

4.3. Review of FY 14-15 BPAC Meeting Calendar 
Matt Bomberg reviewed the FY 14-15 calendar with the committee.  

Public comment: Ken Bukowski suggested BPAC meet bi-monthly instead of 
quarterly, since the committee reviews projects. Staff stated that Alameda CTC does 
not have many active projects at this time to review. Many Alameda CTC projects 
are near completion and are past the point of bringing to the BPAC for review.  

Committee members discussed the calendar and made the following 
recommendations: 

A member suggested Alameda CTC hold workshops between the quarterly 
meetings to assist with the process of members reviewing projects. Midori 
stated that due to the new role of the BPAC, we need to see how the new 
process will work and then reevaluate it at the end of the year. 
A member requested that staff explain how the new process outlined in the 
Project Review Guidelines works for the chair and vice chair to preselect 
projects for the BPAC to review. Staff mentioned that this discussion will take 
place in agenda item 5. 
The committee inquired if the calendar only highlights large topics and not 
smaller topics, such as Bike to Work Day. Staff said yes. The topics may also 
change, and committee members may request the addition of a particular 
item to any agenda. 
A member suggested adding another category called “input” when items 
are not information or action. 
A request was made to change the meeting date to any day other than 
Thursday. Staff informed members that considerable review of other local 
BPACs, planning committees, and other public meetings led to the selection 
of the second Thursday date.  The committee agreed to keep the meeting 
date as is. 

The committee agreed to accept the calendar. A formal action was not taken on 
this agenda item. 

5. Update on BPAC Project Review Look-Ahead 
Matt Bomberg reviewed the BPAC project review lookahead with the committee. He 
noted that the list is an inventory of all active projects receiving Measure B/VRF funds and 

Page 158



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\BPAC\20141009\3.1_Minutes\3.1_BPAC_Minutes_20140710.
docx 

contains information related to whether the project would be a good candidate to 
receive BPAC review.  He reviewed each project on the list and explained why the 
project was or wasn’t recommended to receive BPAC review. 

Questions/feedback from the members about process for developing inventory: 
How did staff decide on which projects to select? Matt noted that there was a 
sequential consideration of the criteria that had been discussed with the 
committee previously.  First staff looked at whether the project fell within the “BPAC 
project review window” of its project development – scoping, environmental, or 
preliminary design phases.  If the project was still within this window, then other 
factors such as countywide significance and bike/ped nexus were considered. 
A member noted that the Cross Alameda Trail project is having public meetings 
related to design during the summer of 2014.  Matt noted that for projects from the 
2013 coordinated call for projects, staff used the schedule from the grant 
application to determine the project phase and status, and that project may have 
fallen behind this schedule. Staff will contact these project sponsors to obtain 
correct information. 
The committee requested an updated spreadsheet of projects on a regular basis 
and suggested that staff should make the project list available on the website. 
Also, members suggested it would be helpful to adjust the spreadsheet to include 
links to the project for BPAC to follow.  Staff agreed that both of these requests wre 
possible to respond to. 
How can a project from 1986 in design be 65 percent complete, and a more 
recent project is in final design? Staff noted that projects can encounter a variety 
of hurdles and that many lessons were learned from the 1986 projects about timely 
use of fund policies that now apply to Alameda CTC projects. 
A member suggested that until the concrete is poured, BPAC can have input on a 
project.   Staff noted that generally speaking, the opportunities for incorporating 
input diminish as a project is in more advanced stages, which is why the BPAC 
project review focuses on earlier stages as shown in the diagram on page 34. 
A member suggested that projects in jurisdictions without local BPACs should be 
highest priority. 
A member suggested that non-bike/ped projects such as arterial projects may be 
highest priority as bicycle/pedestrian considerations may be possible but not a 
primary focus of the project. For example, a project in Castro Valley eliminated the 
bicycle and pedestrian connections to BART; therefore, if someone had 
commented before project completion, something could have been done. 

Staff recommended five projects for BPAC review starting in January 2015.  Staff noted 
that there are fewer projects recommended for BPAC review because Alameda CTC has 
delivered most of the projects from its 2000 expenditure plan and because recent 
programming actions contained many projects that were already in advanced stages.   
Staff requested input from the committee on the project they would like to review first.  

During the discussion, staff noted that BPAC will review at least one project per meeting. 
The committee stated that BPAC will provide detailed comments on approximately four 
projects a year; however, remaining projects will not receive any comments from BPAC. 
Midori and staff stated that once BPAC is familiar with the process, BPAC can complete 

Page 159



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\BPAC\20141009\3.1_Minutes\3.1_BPAC_Minutes_20140710.
docx 

more than one project in a meeting. Staff assured the committee that the process will be 
reviewed and adjusted if necessary.  

As a result of the discussion, the committee agreed that the following projects have lower 
priority for BPAC review: 

Kains Street and Adams Street Bicycle Facility Study 
Clement Avenue Complete Streets 

The following three projects out of the five recommended by staff have a higher priority 
for BPAC review and will begin in January, subject to the project’s staying on schedule: 

I-880/Broadway-Jackson Interchange Improvements 
Fruitvale Alive Gap Closure Streetscape Project 
Iron Horse Connectivity to BART 

Staff will verify the status of the other projects and update the inventory to include 
additional columns requested and hyperlinks to the projects. 

 
6. Measure B/Vehicle Registration Fee Local Direct Program Distribution Compliance Report, 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Expenditure Analysis 
Item was deferred to October due to lack of time. 

7. Commission Actions and Staff Reports 
Tess Lengyel informed the committee that Alameda CTC received unanimous approval 
of the Transportation Expenditure Plan from all 14 cities in Alameda County and the Board 
of Supervisors. In addition, the Board of Supervisors approved placing the measure on the 
November 2014 ballot. 

8. BPAC Member Reports 
Sara Zimmerman discussed a report recently released report and accompanying webinar 
from the Safe Routes to Schools National partnership called “Buses, Boots, and Bicycles: 
Exploring Collaboration between Safe Routes to School and School Busing Professionals to 
Get Children to School Safely and Healthily.” 

Midori said Walk Oakland Bike Oakland has an event scheduled on Saturday July 12, 2014 
called “Love Our Neighborhood Day.” 

9. Meeting Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. The next meeting is scheduled for October 9, 2014 at 
the Alameda CTC offices. 

Page 160



A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

C
om

m
iss

io
n

Bi
cy

cl
e 

an
d 

Pe
de

st
ria

n 
A

dv
iso

ry
 C

om
m

itt
ee

Ro
st

er
 a

nd
 A

tte
nd

an
ce

 F
isc

al
 Y

ea
r 2

01
4-

20
15

Su
ffi

x
La

st
 N

am
e

Fi
rs

t N
am

e
C

ity
A

pp
oi

nt
ed

 B
y

Te
rm

 
Be

ga
n

Re
-

ap
pt

m
t.

Te
rm

 
Ex

pi
re

s
M

tg
s 

M
iss

ed
  

Si
nc

e 
Ju

l '
14

*

1
M

s.
Ta

ba
ta

, C
ha

ir
M

id
or

i
O

ak
la

nd
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

M
ay

or
s' 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 D
-4

Ju
l-0

6
Se

p-
13

Se
p-

15
0

2
M

s.
Zi

m
m

er
m

an
,

Vi
ce

-C
ha

ir
Sa

ra
Be

rk
el

ey
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

M
ay

or
s' 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 D
-5

A
pr

-1
4

A
pr

-1
6

0

3
M

r.
Bu

cc
i 

M
ik

e
N

ew
ar

k
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y

Su
p

er
vi

so
r R

ic
ha

rd
 V

al
le

, D
ist

ric
t 2

Se
p-

12
Se

p-
14

2

4
M

r.
Fi

sh
ba

ug
h

D
av

id
Fr

em
on

t
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y

Su
pe

rv
iso

r S
co

tt 
Ha

gg
er

ty
, D

ist
ric

t 1
Ja

n-
14

Ja
n-

16
0

5
M

s.
G

ig
li

Lu
cy

A
la

m
ed

a
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y

Su
pe

rv
iso

r W
ilm

a 
C

ha
n,

 D
ist

ric
t 3

Ja
n-

07
O

ct
-1

2
O

ct
-1

4
1

6
M

r.
Jo

ha
ns

en
Je

re
m

y
Sa

n 
Le

an
dr

o
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

M
ay

or
s' 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 D
-3

Se
p

-1
0

Se
p

-1
3

Se
p

-1
5

0

7
M

r.
Jo

rd
an

Pr
es

to
n

A
lb

an
y

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y
Su

pe
rv

iso
r K

ei
th

 C
ar

so
n,

 D
ist

ric
t 5

O
ct

-0
8

Se
p-

12
Se

p-
14

2

8
M

r.
Sc

hw
en

g
Be

n
A

la
m

ed
a

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
M

ay
or

s' 
C

on
fe

re
nc

e,
 D

-2
Ju

n-
13

Ju
n-

15
1

9
M

s.
Sh

aw
D

ia
ne

Fr
em

on
t

Tr
a

ns
it 

A
ge

nc
y

(A
la

m
ed

a 
C

TC
)

A
pr

-1
4

A
pr

-1
6

0

10
M

r.
Tu

rn
er

M
at

t
C

as
tro

 V
al

le
y

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y
Su

pe
rv

iso
r N

a
te

 M
ile

y,
 D

ist
ric

t 4
A

pr
-1

4
A

pr
-1

6
1

11
Va

ca
nc

y
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

M
ay

or
s' 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 D
-1

R:
\A

laC
TC

_M
ee

tin
gs

\C
om

m
un

ity
_T

A
Cs

\B
PA

C\
Re

co
rd

s_
A

dm
in

\M
em

be
rs

\M
em

be
rR

os
te

r\
BP

A
C_

Ro
st

er
 a

nd
 A

tte
nd

an
ce

_F
Y

14
-1

5_
20

14
09

03

Page 161



This page intentionally left blank 

Page 162



 
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
C

om
m

iss
io

n
C

iti
ze

ns
 W

at
ch

do
g 

C
om

m
itt

ee
Ro

st
er

 - 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 2
01

4-
20

15

Tit
le

La
st

Fi
rs

t
C

ity
A

pp
oi

nt
ed

 B
y

Te
rm

 B
eg

an
Re

-a
pp

tm
t.

Te
rm

 E
xp

ire
s

M
tg

s 
M

iss
ed

  
Si

nc
e 

Ju
ly

 '1
4*

1
M

r.
Pa

xs
on

, C
ha

ir
Ja

m
es

 
Pl

ea
sa

nt
on

Ea
st

 B
ay

 E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

lli
an

ce
A

pr
-0

1
N

/A
0

2
M

s.
Ta

yl
or

, V
ic

e 
C

ha
ir

De
bo

ra
h

O
ak

la
nd

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y
Su

pe
rv

iso
r W

ilm
a 

C
ha

n,
 D

-3
Ja

n-
13

Ja
n-

15
0

3
M

s.
D

or
se

y
C

yn
th

ia
O

ak
la

nd
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

M
ay

or
s' 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 D
-5

Ja
n-

14
Ja

n-
16

0

4
M

r.
G

ee
n

A
rth

ur
 B

. 
O

ak
la

nd
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

Ta
xp

ay
er

s A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

Ja
n-

01
N

/A
1

5
M

s.
Ha

m
la

t
Sa

nd
ra

O
ak

la
nd

Bi
ke

 E
as

t B
ay

A
pr

-1
3

N
/A

0

6
M

r.
Ha

st
in

gs
He

rb
D

ub
lin

Pa
ra

tra
ns

it 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 a
nd

 P
la

nn
in

g 
C

om
m

itt
ee

Ju
l-1

4
N

/A
0

7
M

s.
Ha

w
le

y
M

iri
am

Be
rk

el
ey

Le
ag

ue
 o

f W
om

en
 V

ot
er

s
A

pr
-1

4
N

/A
1

8
M

r.
Jo

ne
s

St
ev

en
D

ub
lin

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
M

ay
or

s' 
C

on
fe

re
nc

e,
 D

-1
D

ec
-1

2
De

c-
14

0

9
M

r.
Kl

in
ke

W
illi

am
Be

rk
el

ey
A

la
m

ed
a 

La
bo

r C
ou

nc
il A

FL
-C

IO
Fe

b-
13

N
/A

1

10
M

r.
Le

st
er

Br
ia

n
Pl

ea
sa

nt
on

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y
Su

pe
rv

iso
r S

co
tt 

Ha
gg

er
ty

, D
-1

Se
p-

13
Se

p-
15

1

11
M

s.
Le

w
Jo

 A
nn

Un
io

n 
C

ity
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

M
ay

or
s' 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 D
-2

O
ct

-0
7

Se
p-

13
Se

p-
15

0

12
M

s.
Sa

un
d

er
s

Ha
rri

et
te

 
A

la
m

ed
a

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
M

ay
or

s' 
C

on
fe

re
nc

e,
 D

-3
Ju

l-0
9

Ju
l-1

4
Ju

l-1
6

0

13
M

r.
Tu

ck
no

tt
Ro

be
rt 

A
.

Pl
ea

sa
nt

on
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

M
ay

or
s' 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 D
-4

Ju
n-

14
Ju

n-
16

0

14
M

r.
M

at
t

Tu
rn

er
C

as
tro

 V
al

le
y

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y
Su

pe
rv

iso
r N

at
e 

M
ile

y,
 D

-4
Se

p-
14

Se
p-

16
0

15
M

r. 
Zu

ka
s

Ha
le

Be
rk

el
ey

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y
Su

pe
rv

iso
r K

ei
th

 C
ar

so
n,

 D
-5

Ju
n-

09
M

ay
-1

4
M

ay
-1

6
0

16
Va

ca
nc

y
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y

Su
pe

rv
iso

r R
ic

ha
rd

 V
al

le
, D

-2

17
Va

ca
nc

y
Si

er
ra

 C
lu

b

7.2

Page 163



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 164



 

 
H:\Board_Docs\2014\10_October\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20140728.docx  

 

Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee 
Meeting Minutes 
Monday, July 28, 2014, 1:00 p.m.  

MEETING ATTENDEES 
Attendance Key (A = Absent, P = Present) 

Members: 
_P_ Sylvia Stadmire, 

Chair 
_P_ Will Scott,  

Vice-Chair 
_A_ Aydan Aysoy 
_A_ Larry Bunn 
_P_ Shawn Costello 
_P_ Herb Hastings 
_P_ Joyce 

Jacobson 

_P Sandra  
Johnson-Simon 

_P Jonah Markowitz 
_A Rev. Carolyn Orr 
_P Suzanne Ortt 
_P Thomas Perez 
_P Sharon Powers 
_A Vanessa Proee 
 

_P Carmen Rivera-
Hendrickson 

_P Michelle Rousey 
_P Harriette 

Saunders 
_A Margaret Walker 
_P Esther Waltz 
_P Hale Zukas

 
Staff:  
_P_ Jacki Taylor, Program Analyst 
_P_ Naomi Armenta, Paratransit Coordinator 
_P_ Krystle Pasco, Paratransit Coordination Team 
_P_ Christina Ramos, Alameda CTC Projects/Programs Team 
 
Guests:  
Dana Bailey, City of Hayward Paratransit Program; Lee Conway, Public 
Advocate; Jennifer Cullen, Senior Support Program of the Tri-Valley; Elena 
Nicklasson, On Lok Lifeways 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 
1. Welcome and Introductions 

Sylvia Stadmire, PAPCO Chair, called the meeting to order at 
1:10 p.m. The meeting began with introductions and a review of the 
meeting outcomes. 
 

  

7.3

Page 165



 

 
H:\Board_Docs\2014\10_October\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20140728.docx  

 

2. Public Comment 
Lee Conway noted that he is a resident of the Montclair 
neighborhood of Oakland and was introduced to Alameda CTC’s 
work at the Montclair Farmers’ Market. He is interested in getting more 
information about paratransit and getting involved with PAPCO to 
share with his neighbors. He is also interested in a bicycle path in the 
Oakland hills area. Lastly, he noted that he received his PhD from UC 
Berkeley in the area of mobility and would like to use his expertise in 
PAPCO as much as possible. 

 
3. Administration 

 
3.1. June 23, 2014 PAPCO Meeting Minutes 

Harriette Saunders moved to approve the June 23, 2014 PAPCO 
Meeting minutes as written. Sandra Johnson-Simon seconded the 
motion. The motion passed (12-0-1; Member Carmen Rivera-
Hendrickson abstained). Members Shawn Costello, Herb Hastings, 
Joyce Jacobson, Sandra Johnson-Simon, Suzanne Ortt, Thomas 
Perez, Sharon Powers, Carmen Rivera-Hendrickson, Harriette 
Saunders, Will Scott, Sylvia Stadmire, Esther Waltz and Hale Zukas 
were present. 
 

3.2. PAPCO Bylaws 
Naomi Armenta reviewed the PAPCO Bylaws and members 
discussed and proposed amendments. 
 

Questions and feedback from PAPCO members: 
 Section 1.1.3 – Include “incorporated” to now read “One 

representative from each of the other 13 incorporated cities 
in Alameda County.” 

 Section 1.7 – Remove “Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC)” 
section. 

 Section 1.7 (formerly Section 1.8) – Include “personally” and 
remove “in any way” to now read “Citizens Watchdog 
Committee members are private citizens who are not 
elected officials at any level of government, nor individuals in 
a position to personally benefit from the sales tax.” 

Page 166



 

 
H:\Board_Docs\2014\10_October\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20140728.docx  

 

 Section 1.15 – Include “The” to now read “The transportation 
or transportation-related program specified in the 
Expenditure Plan for funding on a percentage-of-revenues 
basis or grant allocation. 

 Section 4.2 – Remove “In the event of multiple nominations, 
the vote shall be by roll call.” 

Esther Waltz moved to approve the PAPCO Bylaws with the 
exception of Section 4.2 as written. Jonah Markowitz seconded 
the motion. The motion passed (10-2-3; Members Sandra Johnson-
Simon and Harriette Saunders opposed; Members Herb Hastings, 
Suzanne Ortt and Carmen Rivera-Hendrickson abstained).  
 
Esther Waltz moved to approve the amendments made to Section 
4.2 of the PAPCO Bylaws. Jonah Markowitz seconded the motion. 
The motion passed (11-3-1; Members Shawn Costello, Joyce 
Jacobson and Suzanne Ortt opposed; Member Carmen Rivera-
Hendrickson abstained). Members Shawn Costello, Herb Hastings, 
Joyce Jacobson, Sandra Johnson-Simon, Jonah Markowitz, 
Suzanne Ortt, Thomas Perez, Sharon Powers, Carmen Rivera-
Hendrickson, Michelle Rousey, Harriette Saunders, Will Scott, Sylvia 
Stadmire, Esther Waltz and Hale Zukas were present. 

 
3.3. FY 2014-15 PAPCO Elections 

Naomi Armenta reviewed the PAPCO Officer roles and 
responsibilities. She also noted that the memo is located in the 
agenda packet. 
 
Naomi then reviewed the Brown Act and noted that PAPCO will 
be updating their elections process moving forward and will no 
longer use secret ballots. Staff believes that PAPCO’s previous 
officer elections were valid, but Alameda CTC’s legal counsel has 
recommended redoing the election. Candidates were notified of 
the reelection. Naomi then commenced the nomination process. 

 
PAPCO members nominated the following members: 

 Herb Hastings, Will Scott and Sylvia Stadmire as Chair 
 Shawn Costello, Herb Hastings and Will Scott as Vice Chair 

Page 167



 

 
H:\Board_Docs\2014\10_October\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20140728.docx  

 

 Jonah Markowitz and Sharon Powers as the East Bay 
Paratransit Service Review Advisory Committee (SRAC) 
representative 

 Shawn Costello, Herb Hastings, and Esther Waltz as the 
Citizens Watchdog Committee (CWC) representative 

 
The committee elected the following officers and committee 
representatives: 

 Sylvia Stadmire, PAPCO Chair 
 Will Scott, PAPCO Vice Chair 
 Sharon Powers, SRAC Representative 
 Herb Hastings, CWC Representative 

 
4. Capital Gap Grant Application 

Naomi Armenta reviewed the Capital Gap Grant application 
submitted by the Ala Costa Centers. She noted that the application is 
for a request for $15,500 in Gap Grant funds to facilitate the purchase 
of a medium sized non-accessible van for ambulatory passengers. 

 
Questions and feedback from PAPCO members: 

 I am concerned that no staff member from the Ala Costa 
Centers has come to do a presentation with PAPCO for this 
funding. This was the second request for a presentation and they 
did not show up. 

 Although this organization failed to make a presentation to 
PAPCO, if awarded the Gap Grant funding, will they be required 
to make a report at a later time? Yes, all Gap Grant recipients 
are required to report their progress to PAPCO. 

 Are we paying for the difference between the vehicle cost and 
the funding that the organization already has? The organization 
already has $15,500 allotted for this vehicle. They are asking 
PAPCO for an additional $15,500. However, the vehicle is quoted 
at $22,000, therefore, our agency is only paying for the 
difference of the actual cost for the vehicle up to $15,500. 

 Has Alameda CTC staff communicated with the Ala Costa 
Centers’ staff? Yes, staff has been communicating with their 
Director. 

Page 168



 

 
H:\Board_Docs\2014\10_October\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20140728.docx  

 

 A PAPCO member suggested that Alameda CTC staff contact 
their Board of Directors to notify them that PAPCO members are 
hesitant and concerned with their lack of a representative. 

 Their work is worthy of the funding they are requesting from 
PAPCO. However, I am abstaining from voting. 

 
Hale Zukas moved to table this agenda item and action until the next 
PAPCO Meeting on September 22, 2014. Joyce Jacobson seconded 
the motion. The motion failed (2-11-2); Members Shawn Costello, 
Sandra Johnson-Simon, Jonah Markowitz, Suzanne Ortt, Thomas Perez, 
Carmen Rivera-Hendrickson, Michelle Rousey, Harriette Saunders, Will 
Scott, Sylvia Stadmire and Esther Waltz opposed; Member Herb 
Hastings and Sharon Powers abstained).  
 
Harriette Saunders moved to approve the Capital Gap Grant 
application from the Ala Costa Centers for the amount of $15,500. 
Esther Waltz seconded the motion. The motion passed (13-1-1); 
Member Hale Zukas opposed; Member Herb Hastings abstained). 
Members Shawn Costello, Herb Hastings, Joyce Jacobson, Sandra 
Johnson-Simon, Jonah Markowitz, Suzanne Ortt, Thomas Perez, Sharon 
Powers, Carmen Rivera-Hendrickson, Michelle Rousey, Harriette 
Saunders, Will Scott, Sylvia Stadmire, Esther Waltz and Hale Zukas were 
present. 

 
5. 2-1-1 Demonstration 

Cathleen Sullivan gave an update and demonstration on the 
transportation section of the Eden I&R website.  
 
Questions and feedback from PAPCO members: 

 Where are the new Access Alameda guides? They are in the 
process of getting printed. They will be available by mid-August. 
Eden I&R also publishes their own resource guide, the Big Blue 
Book, that is available from their main website. 

 How do we get to this website? Go to 
www.transportation.211alamedacounty.org for this website.  
Eventually it will be linked as the Resource Finder from 
www.edenir.org.  

Page 169



 

 
H:\Board_Docs\2014\10_October\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20140728.docx  

 

 Why is the glossary not in alphabetical order? Staff organized the 
glossary according to usage. 

 I like that you can access social service resources as well as 
transportation resources at the same time. 

 
6. Member Reports on PAPCO Mission, Roles, and Responsibilities 

Implementation 
Sylvia Stadmire attended the Mayor’s Commission on Aging meeting. 
They reviewed a presentation for the ADA curb ramp improvement 
plan. The City of Oakland is also convening their Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Advisory Committee. Lastly, Sylvia mentioned that she has 
been attending outreach events throughout the County and is also 
volunteer driving three days a week. 
 
Herb Hastings and Esther Waltz attended the Alameda County Fair 
Senior Day.  
 
Shawn Costello also attended the Alameda County Fair Senior Days. 
He attended the fair for the three days that the agency had a table 
with WHEELS and the City of Pleasanton Senior Center. 
 
Sandra Johnson-Simon attended USOAC’s annual Healthy Living 
Festival at the Oakland Zoo. 
 
Joyce Jacobson is working with the staff at the Ed Roberts Campus on 
an issue that took place recently at an event there. She was 
concerned about an opera event that she had attended. The opera 
staff was not aware of the accessibility features of the Ed Roberts 
Campus and the BART station location. 
 
Michelle Rousey also attended USOAC’s annual Healthy Living Festival 
at the Oakland Zoo. She also noted that there is a California Olmstead 
Meeting in Sacramento on July 30th. 
 
Carmen Rivera-Hendrickson noted that there is a paratransit 
emergency preparedness roundtable on July 31st at 1605 MLK Way. 
 

Page 170



 

 
H:\Board_Docs\2014\10_October\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20140728.docx  

 

Jonah Markowitz noted that the Oakland Center for the Blind is giving 
away tickets to the A’s game if anyone is interested. 

 
7. Committee Reports (Verbal) 

 
7.1. East Bay Paratransit Service Review Advisory Committee (SRAC) 

Harriette Saunders reported that Mark Weinstein has left East Bay 
Paratransit and Rashida Kamara will be taking his place. 

 
7.2. Citizens Watchdog Committee (CWC) 

Harriette Saunders reported that CWC Members finalized their 
Annual Report and will be meeting on October 27, 2014. 

 
8. ADA Mandated Program and Policy Reports 

PAPCO members were asked to review these items in their packets.  
 
9. Information Items 

 
9.1. Mobility Management – Can Travel Training Services Save Public 

Transportation Agencies Money? 
Naomi Armenta reviewed the mobility management attachment 
in the packet.  
 
Naomi also noted that the Regional Mobility Management group 
will be discussing travel training programs on a regional level. 
Members are also discussing volunteer programs in the region. 

 
9.2. Outreach Update 

Krystle Pasco gave an update on the following outreach events: 
 7/3/14 – Alameda County Fair Senior Days, Alameda County 

Fairgrounds from 1:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
 7/15/14 – Paratransit presentation, Allen Temple Arms from 

11:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 
 7/17/14 – USOAC Healthy Living Festival, Oakland Zoo from 

8:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. 
 7/23/14 – Paratransit presentation, Downtown Oakland 

Senior Center from 9:30 a.m. to 10:30 a.m. 

Page 171



 

 
H:\Board_Docs\2014\10_October\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20140728.docx  

 

 8/6/14 – Healthy Aging Fair, Chabot College from 10:00 a.m. 
to 2:30 p.m. 

 8/27/14 – Open House and Resource Fair, Mastick Senior 
Center from 4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. 

 9/19/14 – Senior Resource Fair, San Leandro Senior 
Community Center from 10:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. 

 
9.3. Transportation Expenditure Plan Update 

Laurel Poeton gave an update on the Transportation Expenditure 
Plan (TEP). She noted that staff has received unanimous approval 
from the Alameda County Board of Supervisors to place the 
measure on the November 2014 ballot. She noted that a recent 
study done by the Bay Area Council of Economic Institute stated 
that the measure will create150,000  jobs in Alameda County. 
Copies of this report are available if members are interested. 
Lastly, she noted that all of the TEP postcards have been 
translated into both Spanish and Chinese and are now available 
for distribution. If you would like the Alameda CTC to be at any of 
the meetings or events that your affiliated organizations are 
hosting, please contact staff with more information.  

 
9.4. 2014 Annual Mobility Workshop Update 

Cathleen Sullivan gave a brief update on the 2014 Annual Mobility 
Workshop and reminded members that the Workshop is scheduled 
for October 17, 2014 at the Ed Roberts Campus. Staff is still 
finalizing the program and the speakers for the event. Currently, 
the program includes discussions around issues like the 
Transportation Network Companies (TNCs) and access to 
healthcare.  

 
9.5. Other Staff Updates 

There were no other staff updates. 
 

10. Draft Agenda Items for September 22, 2014 PAPCO Meeting 
10.1. Develop and Approve PAPCO Work Plan for FY 2014-15 
10.2. Discuss Update to Funding Formula 
10.3. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Program Report: Volunteer Assisted Senior 

Transportation Program 

Page 172



 

 
H:\Board_Docs\2014\10_October\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20140728.docx  

 

10.4. 2014 Annual Mobility Workshop Update 
 

11. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 3:30 p.m. The next PAPCO meeting is 
scheduled for September 22, 2014 at Alameda CTC’s offices located 
at 1111 Broadway, Suite 800, in Oakland. 

Page 173



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 174



A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

C
om

m
iss

io
n

Pa
ra

tra
ns

it 
A

dv
iso

ry
 a

nd
 P

la
nn

in
g 

C
om

m
itt

ee
Ro

st
er

 - 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 2
01

4-
20

15

Tit
le

La
st

Fi
rs

t
C

ity
A

pp
oi

nt
ed

 B
y

Te
rm

Be
ga

n
Re

-a
pp

tm
t.

Te
rm

Ex
pi

re
s

M
tg

s 
M

iss
ed

 
Si

nc
e 

Ju
ly

 '1
4

1
M

s.
St

ad
m

ire
, C

ha
ir

Sy
lv

ia
 J

.
O

ak
la

nd
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y

Su
pe

rv
iso

r W
ilm

a 
C

ha
n,

 D
-3

Se
p-

07
Ja

n-
13

Ja
n-

15
0

2
M

r.
Sc

ot
t, 

Vi
ce

 C
ha

ir
W

ill
O

ak
la

nd
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y

Su
pe

rv
iso

r K
ei

th
 C

ar
so

n,
 D

-5
M

ar
-1

0
M

ay
-1

4
M

ay
-1

6
0

3
M

r.
Bu

nn
La

rry
Un

io
n 

C
ity

Un
io

n 
C

ity
 T

ra
ns

it
W

ils
on

 L
ee

, T
ra

ns
it 

M
an

ag
er

Ju
n-

06
D

ec
-1

3
De

c-
15

2

4
M

r.
C

os
te

llo
Sh

aw
n

D
ub

lin
C

ity
 o

f D
ub

lin
M

ay
or

 T
im

 S
ab

ra
nt

i
Se

p-
08

M
ay

-1
4

M
ay

-1
6

0

5
M

r.
Ha

st
in

gs
He

rb
D

ub
lin

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y
Su

pe
rv

iso
r S

co
tt 

Ha
gg

er
ty

, D
-1

M
ar

-0
7

Ja
n-

14
Ja

n-
16

0

6
M

s.
Ja

co
bs

on
Jo

yc
e

Em
er

yv
ille

C
ity

 o
f E

m
er

yv
ille

C
ou

nc
ilm

em
be

r R
ut

h 
A

tk
in

M
ar

-0
7

Ja
n-

14
Ja

n-
16

0

7
M

s.
Jo

hn
so

n-
Si

m
on

Sa
nd

ra
 

Sa
n

Le
an

d
ro

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y
Su

pe
rv

iso
r N

at
e 

M
ile

y,
 D

-4
Se

p-
10

D
ec

-1
3

De
c-

15
0

8
M

r.
M

ar
ko

w
itz

Jo
na

h
Be

rk
el

ey
C

ity
 o

f A
lb

an
y

V
ac

an
t

D
ec

-0
4

O
ct

-1
2

O
ct

-1
4

0

9
Re

v.
O

rr
C

ar
ol

yn
 M

.
O

ak
la

nd
C

ity
 o

f O
ak

la
nd

C
ou

nc
ilm

em
be

r R
eb

ec
ca

 K
ap

la
n

O
ct

-0
5

Ja
n-

14
Ja

n-
16

2

10
M

s.
O

rtt
Su

za
nn

e
Un

io
n 

C
ity

C
ity

 o
f U

ni
on

 C
ity

M
ay

or
 C

ar
ol

 D
ut

ra
-V

er
na

ci
Se

p-
12

Se
p-

14
0

11
M

r.
Pe

re
z

Th
om

as
 M

.
Fr

em
on

t
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y

Su
pe

rv
iso

r R
ic

ha
rd

 V
al

le
, D

-2
Fe

b-
14

Fe
b-

16
0

12
M

s.
Po

w
er

s
Sh

ar
on

Fr
em

on
t

C
ity

 o
f F

re
m

on
t

M
ay

or
 W

illi
am

 H
ar

ris
on

D
ec

-0
7

Ja
n-

14
Ja

n-
16

0

Page 175



A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

C
om

m
iss

io
n

Pa
ra

tra
ns

it 
A

dv
iso

ry
 a

nd
 P

la
nn

in
g 

C
om

m
itt

ee
Ro

st
er

 - 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 2
01

4-
20

15

Tit
le

La
st

Fi
rs

t
C

ity
A

pp
oi

nt
ed

 B
y

Te
rm

Be
ga

n
Re

-a
pp

tm
t.

Te
rm

Ex
pi

re
s

M
tg

s 
M

iss
ed

 
Si

nc
e 

Ju
ly

 '1
4

13
M

s.
Pr

oe
e

V
an

es
sa

Ha
yw

ar
d

C
ity

 o
f H

ay
w

ar
d

C
ou

nc
ilm

em
be

r M
ar

vi
n 

Pe
ixo

to
M

ar
-1

0
Ja

n-
14

Ja
n-

16
2

14
M

s.
Ri

ve
ra

-H
en

d
ric

ks
on

C
ar

m
en

Pl
ea

sa
nt

on
C

ity
 o

f P
le

as
an

to
n

M
ay

or
 J

er
ry

 T
ho

rn
e

Se
p-

09
Fe

b-
14

Fe
b-

16
1

15
M

s.
Ro

us
ey

M
ic

he
lle

O
ak

la
nd

BA
RT

D
ire

ct
or

 T
om

 B
la

lo
ck

M
ay

-1
0

Ja
n-

14
Ja

n-
16

0

16
M

s.
Sa

un
d

er
s

Ha
rri

et
te

A
la

m
ed

a
C

ity
 o

f A
la

m
ed

a
M

ay
or

 M
ar

ie
 G

ilm
or

e
Ju

n-
08

O
ct

-1
2

O
ct

-1
4

0

17
M

s.
W

al
ke

r
M

ar
ga

re
t

Sa
n

Le
an

d
ro

C
ity

 o
f S

an
 L

ea
nd

ro
V

ic
e 

M
ay

or
 M

ic
ha

el
 G

re
go

ry
Ju

l-1
3

Ju
l-1

5
2

18
M

s.
W

al
tz

Es
th

er
 A

nn
Liv

er
m

or
e

LA
V

TA
In

te
rim

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 K

at
hl

ee
n 

Ke
lly

Fe
b-

11
M

ay
-1

4
M

ay
-1

6
0

19
M

r.
Zu

ka
s

Ha
le

Be
rk

el
ey

A
. C

. T
ra

ns
it

D
ire

ct
or

 E
lsa

 O
rti

z
A

ug
-0

2
Ja

n-
14

Ja
n-

16
0

20
Va

ca
nc

y
C

ity
 o

f B
er

ke
le

y
C

ou
nc

ilm
em

be
r L

au
rie

 C
ap

ite
lli

21
Va

ca
nc

y
C

ity
 o

f L
iv

er
m

or
e

M
ay

or
 J

oh
n 

M
ar

ch
an

d

22
Va

ca
nc

y
C

ity
 o

f N
ew

ar
k

C
ou

nc
ilm

em
be

r L
ui

s 
Fr

ei
ta

s

23
Va

ca
nc

y
C

ity
 o

f P
ie

dm
on

t
M

ay
or

 M
ar

ga
re

t F
uj

io
ka

Page 176



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\8.2_MTC_ExpressLane_Update\8.2_MTC_ExpLn_Oct2014-
PPCUpdate_20140923_Final.docx 

 

Memorandum 8.2 

 

DATE: October 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) I-880 Express Lane 
Project 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on the Project. 

 

Summary  

At the March 2013 Commission meeting, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) 
staff provided an update on Bay Area Express Lane network development, including two 
express lanes in Alameda County: I-80 and I-880.  MTC staff will share additional details of I-
880 express lane implementation at the committee meeting. 

Background 

Bay Area agencies are authorized to develop and operate 550 miles of High Occupancy 
Vehicle (HOV)/Express Lanes within four Bay Area Counties (see Attachment A – Map of Bay 
Area Express Lane Network).  Express lanes are expected to provide the following benefits: 
 

• Expand travel choices by allowing solo drivers to use the underutilized capacity in 
the HOV lane for a fee when time saving is of a value; 

• Optimize the existing corridor capacity and improve efficiency of the corridor; 
• Provide better travel time reliability; and  
• When positive net revenue exists, create a revenue source to pay for future 

corridor improvements, including closing gaps in the HOV network, transit 
investments and other improvements to increase connectivity. 

 

On January 1, 2005, Assembly Bill 2032 (AB 2032) authorized the Alameda CTC and Santa 
Clara Valley Transportation Authority (VTA) to implement express lanes on two corridors each. 
As a result, the two agencies are planning for express lanes on 280 miles of freeway in the I-
680, I-580, US 101 and SR-85/SR-237 corridors.  Alameda CTC and Sunol Smart Carpool Lane 
JPA have been implementing express lanes in the I-580 and I-680 corridors.  The I-680 
Southbound Express Lane is currently in operation while project development activities are 
underway to implement similar projects in the I-680 Northbound and I-580 corridors.  On a 
monthly basis, Alameda CTC staff provides updates at the Sunol Smart Carpool Lane JPA 
and I-580 Policy Committee meetings.  The Alameda CTC Commission continues to review 
the updates provided at the Committees. 

Page 177



  
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\8.2_MTC_ExpressLane_Update\8.2_MTC_ExpLn_Oct2014-
PPCUpdate_20140923_Final.docx 

In October 2011, the California Transportation Commission (CTC) authorized MTC to develop 
and operate 270 additional miles of express lanes within Alameda, Contra Costa and Solano 
counties on I-80, I-880 (Alameda County only) and I-680 (Solano and Contra Costa Counties) 
as well as the westbound approaches to the Bay Bridge, San Mateo Bridge and Dumbarton 
Bridge.  Express lanes on I-880 are among the first projects being developed by MTC and are 
currently in the preliminary engineering and environmental studies phase with a scheduled 
opening in 2017.  The I-880 Express Lane Project will also include installation of traffic 
monitoring stations, changeable message signs and closed circuit television elements, where 
gaps in this equipment exist today, to improve freeway performance.  In addition, MTC will 
construct a communications backbone for express lanes, also known as the Backhaul.   The 
construction of express lanes on I-80, which would extend from the Carquinez Bridge to the 
Bay Bridge toll plaza, will be addressed in a future phase following implementation of the I-80 
Integrated Corridor Mobility Project. 

In recent months, MTC staff has been sharing preliminary project information with Alameda 
CTC staff to seek review comments/input.    MTC staff has also met with engineering and 
public works staff from Oakland, San Leandro, Hayward, Union City, Fremont, Alameda 
County and AC Transit to discuss project improvements, its benefits and implementation.    

MTC staff will attend the October PPC meeting to provide a presentation about the I-880 
Express Lane development.  

Fiscal Impact: There is no significant fiscal impact to the Alameda CTC budget due to this 
item. This is information only. 

Attachments 

A. Map of Bay Area Express Lane Network 

Staff Contact 

Stewart D. Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 
Kanda Raj, Project Controls Team 

 

Page 178

mailto:stewartng@alamedactc.org
mailto:kraj@alamedactc.org


San
Mateo

Marin

Sonoma

Napa

Solano

Contra
Costa

Alameda

Santa Clara

Miles

HOT net System projection no gap  
Street base map © Thomas Bros. Maps. All rights reserved.
MTC Graphics/pb — 1.24.2013

3020100

N

Kilometers
3020100

Operational Gap ClosureExpress Lanes in operation

Express Lanes to be operated 
by other agencies

Express Lanes to be operated 
by MTC

San
Francisco

Palo
Alto

Fremont

San
Rafael

Novato Rio
Vista

Livermore

Brentwood

Danville

Walnut
Creek

Concord

Pleasanton

Morgan Hill

San
Jose

San
Mateo

Oakland

Richmond

Vallejo

Fairfield

Vacaville

Napa

Healdsburg

Petaluma

Santa
Rosa

580

238

101

101

101

101 505
80

780

580 580

205680

680

280

280

580

680

80

80

29

29

29

121

121

37

24

37

12

12

12

12

113

116

13

4

85
9

35

130

87

237
82

1

25

152

17

35

92

23892

 4

84

84

4

4

1

116

128

128

116

Map of Bay Area Express Lanes

8.2A

Page 179



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 180



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\8.3_CIP\8.3_CIP_Principles_Programming_Estimate.docx  
 

Memorandum  8.3 

 

DATE: October 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Comprehensive Investment Plan Development  

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Comprehensive Investment Plan’s guiding principles, 
development process, and programming fund estimate 

 

Summary  

In March 2013, the Alameda CTC adopted a Strategic Planning and Programming Policy to 
consolidate existing planning and programming processes to improve the efficiency and 
effectiveness of future policy decisions on transportation investments in Alameda County.  
This policy would result in the integration of existing planning and programming practices 
performed by Alameda CTC into a single streamlined strategic planning and programming 
document that identifies short and long-term transportation solutions that meet the vision 
and goals established in the Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP).  The vehicle document to 
implement this policy is the development of a Comprehensive Investment Plan (CIP) that 
translates long-range plans into short-range implementation by establishing a list of short-
range (5-year period) priority transportation improvements to enhance and maintain 
Alameda County’s transportation system.   

The Commission-approved policy goals for the CIP are designed to: 

• streamline the Alameda CTC’s planning, programming and delivery efforts; 
• facilitate strategic programming of funds managed by the Alameda CTC; 
• establish effective feedback loops into decision making through monitoring, data 

collection, evaluation and collaborative information sharing; and 
• improve the public understanding of the benefits of projects and programs 

delivered by Alameda CTC. 

As a programming document, the CIP will identify anticipated transportation funding over a 
five-year period, and strategically match these funding sources to targeted transportation 
priorities.  Projects and programs will utilize an objective evaluation process to formulate 
programming recommendations and financing decisions. The CIP will consist of a two-year 
allocation plan that will be consistent with the Alameda CTC’s budget. 

Each year, the CIP will be updated with current financial projections and included in the 
annual agency budget for project and program allocations.  Every two years, the CIP will be 

Page 181



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\8.3_CIP\8.3_CIP_Principles_Programming_Estimate.docx  
  

 

updated and approved by the Commission for new project and program additions through 
a public process.  The CIP will ensure that public funds are strategically invested in projects 
and programs that provide public benefits, advance the development of projects and 
programs to construction and implementation, and support leveraging of regional, state and 
federal dollars for Alameda County’s priority transportation projects and programs.  

Discussion 

CIP Objectives, Guiding Principles and Development Process 

The Alameda CTC is responsible for strategically planning and programming local, regional, 
state and federal funds to transportation improvements that facilitate safe, reliable, 
convenient, and accessible travel.  To identify and plan for these investments, the Alameda 
CTC prepares long-range planning documents such as the CTP and transportation 
expenditure plans that identify project and program priorities generally over a 25 to 30 year 
horizon.  These plans focus on specific types of transportation needs, such as transit, arterials, 
goods movement, bicycle, pedestrian, community based transportation, and local voter 
approved transportation projects and programs, such as those funded by local 
transportation sales tax and vehicle registration fee measures.   

In March 2013, the Commission adopted the Strategic Planning and Programming Policy 
framework to streamline agency planning, programming and delivery efforts. This policy 
promotes a better relationship between countywide long-term visions and goals and short-
range planning efforts.  Thus, the policy framework seeks to integrate existing Alameda CTC 
planning and programming processes such as those for the preparation of the Measure B 
and Vehicle Registration Fee Strategic Plans, the Congestion Management Program’s 
performance report, the State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) candidate project 
submission, and the Alameda CTC discretionary programs, into a single process that will be 
documented by the Comprehensive Investment Plan (CIP).  The adopted policy framework is 
depicted in Attachment A.  

CIP Objectives:  The CIP is a programming document that strategically invests public funds 
under Alameda CTC’s purview.  It replaces multiple planning and programming efforts, at 
both the local and countywide level, to create a comprehensive near-term transportation 
planning/programming tool that local agencies and Alameda CTC can use to better direct 
their staffing and financial resources. The objectives of the CIP are to: 

1. Translate long-range plans into short-range implementation: The CIP transitions long-
range plans into focused project/program delivery over a five-year period with a two-
year allocation program.   
  

2. Serve as the Strategic Plan: The CIP serves as the Alameda CTC’s strategic plan for 
voter-approved transportation funding. This includes identifying uses and finance 
strategies for Alameda CTC’s transportation sales tax measures and the vehicle 
registration fee collections to implement priority projects and programs over time. 

Page 182



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\8.3_CIP\8.3_CIP_Principles_Programming_Estimate.docx  
  

 

 
3. Establish a Comprehensive and Consolidated Programming Document: The CIP is a 

programming decision document that will be used to strategically program funding 
sources under the Alameda CTC’s authority for capital improvements, operations and 
maintenance projects and programs, as appropriate.  Integrating all funding sources 
into one programming document permits Alameda CTC to comprehensively and 
strategically allocate funds to improvements that accomplish long-range objectives 
more effectively.  

The CIP is a dynamic document that will be periodically updated to address changing 
transportation needs, revenue projections, available funding sources, and policy changes.  
Every year, the CIP will update financial projections.  Every two years, a comprehensive 
update of the CIP will be conducted to provide an opportunity to include new projects and 
programs.  The Alameda CTC will monitor CIP investments through performance feedback 
mechanisms built into the CIP and other countywide planning processes. 

CIP Policy Principles: The CIP’s five fundamental policy principles guiding the document’s 
development and the ultimate selection of projects and programs include the following: 

1. Implementing the County’s Adopted Vision:   All funding decisions will support 
implementation of the Alameda CTC’s adopted long-range transportation vision.  The 
Alameda CTC’s vision (adopted 2012) is: 

“Alameda County will be served by a premier transportation system that supports a vibrant 
and livable Alameda County through a connected and integrated multimodal transportation 
system promoting sustainability, access, transit operations, public health and economic 
opportunities”. 

This CTP’s countywide goals includes prioritizing and investing in projects and programs 
that promote economic, health, and transportation access and sustainability in 
relation to land-use patterns.  The CIP will support implementation of the CTP’s 
transportation vision and goals to build and maintain a fully integrated multimodal 
transportation system by strategically translating the long-range plan priorities into a 
five-year investment strategy.   

2. Balanced Strategic Program Across Project Delivery Phases: Alameda CTC 
strategically invests the limited financial resources available to the agency to optimize 
its transportation planning, project delivery process and performance analysis. The CIP 
will identify investments in all stages of project development, from scoping/initiation, 
environmental, and design, and into capital project phases including right-of-way, 
construction and project closeout.  It is desired to strike a balance between project 
development and capital phases that will provide for the delivery of a combination of 
project phase that can efficiently utilize the available programming capacity 
available. This will position the county to leverage the federal, state and regional 
funding sources as they become available, and that the strategic program can 

Page 183



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\8.3_CIP\8.3_CIP_Principles_Programming_Estimate.docx  
  

 

provide a sustainable inventory of deliverable project phases. This will include 
considering the delivery status of projects/programs and to optimize competitiveness 
for future grant opportunities.  The CIP will also include countywide 
program/operational investments, including, but not limited to, Safe Routes to Schools, 
senior travel training/mobility management, and system performance monitoring 
efforts.  The Alameda CTC will identify direct fund allocations to ongoing program and 
operational activities to maintain essential services to Alameda County. 
 

3. Maximizing Transportation Investments: The Alameda CTC will work with local agencies 
to focus financial investments on project and programs that are implementation 
ready, have a credible funding plan, are able to meet the requirements of the 
funding source, and provide a maximize benefit to the transportation network.  The 
CIP will examine opportunities to leverage local fund sources to the maximum extent 
possible.    In addition, the Alameda CTC will use the CIP to identify projects and 
programs for funding that have a synergistic effect, where practical and feasible to 
maximize the benefit of investments to the public.  
 

4. Investments in All Modes: The CIP will identify appropriate levels of investment in all 
transportation modes, project phases, and geographic areas to the maximum extent 
possible. The CIP will be constrained to the revenue projected for the five-year 
programming cycle. Alameda CTC and local jurisdictions will collaborate throughout 
the CIP process to define appropriate and feasible levels of investments.  The CIP will 
be used to monitor geographic equity and modal equity investments over time.  More 
detail on geographic equity will be brought to the Commission for approval at a 
future date. 
 

5. Delivering Solutions While Ensuring Accountability:  Projects/Programs included in the 
CIP will support the CTP’s vision and goals.  The CIP’s selection criteria will consider 
needs/benefits, project readiness, and community support.  Specific evaluation 
criteria will come to the Commission for consideration in early 2015.   The Alameda 
CTC will require timely and cost-effective project and program delivery, and will 
monitoring their implementation.  The CIP will promote the timely delivery of projects 
and programs, and the benefits including investments in our transportation system, 
leveraging of local funds, and minimizing cost increases due to delays. 
 

CIP Process: The CIP process will integrate existing planning and programming practices 
performed by the Alameda CTC into a single concerted planning and programming effort, 
where feasible and appropriate. With the first CIP and future biennial updates, the process 
begins by extrapolating the CTP’s identified projects and programs inventory into the CIP’s 
five-year horizon. For this first CIP, Alameda CTC will use projects and programs in the 
adopted 2012 CTP that demonstrate readiness within the five-year programming horizon (FY 
2015/16 to 2019/20). This fall, the Alameda CTC will work with local agencies to confirm 

Page 184



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\8.3_CIP\8.3_CIP_Principles_Programming_Estimate.docx  
  

 

project/program inventories, project status, and implementation  readiness. Refer to 
Attachment B for a summary of the integrated planning and programming Process. 

Upon the establishment of the initial inventory, the Alameda CTC will screen and evaluate 
the projects/programs for incorporation into the CIP and its allocation plan. The evaluation 
criteria will come to the Commission for consideration in early 2015.  The Alameda CTC’s 
programming assessment will take into account criteria mandated by particular funding 
sources, as required and appropriate.   The final CIP programming and fund allocation 
recommendations will include a public process and ultimate approval at an Alameda CTC 
Commission meeting.   

Alameda CTC’s programming capacity is limited to the available programming revenue 
during a given five-year CIP cycle to establish a fiscally constrained plan. Projects and 
programs outside the Alameda CTC’s programming availability will be considered for 
inclusion in future CIP updates.   

The CIP will contain a two-year allocation plan to reflect funding appropriations to projects 
and programs in the CIP’s first two-years. This allocation plan incorporates all current and 
anticipated programming under Alameda CTC’s responsibilities into a coordinated 
programming effort that streamlines the programming decision making process.  
Additionally, the allocation plan’s appropriations will tie directly into the agency’s annual 
budgetary process to facilitate cash-flow distributions and financing strategies.  Each year, 
Alameda CTC will update the CIP to provide the latest financial projections and fund 
commitments to the CIP projects and programs.   

In subsequent comprehensive biennially CIP updates, the Alameda CTC will reassess the CIP 
development process, prioritization methodology and allocation process for consistency with 
any updated policies and goals.  Alameda CTC will update and amend the CIP accordingly 
to account for project/program changes resulting from schedule modifications, change in 
priorities, and funding adjustments.  Programmed funds may be re-prioritized, with 
Commission approval, if there are fund balances or projects/programs are not meeting the 
CIP delivery requirements.  More detail on CIP delivery requirements will come to the 
Commission for consideration in early 2015. Future updates will also include performance 
feedback summaries gathered from project/program reporting and ongoing countywide 
monitoring studies such as CMP level of services reports.   

Programming Fund Estimate 

Over the first five-year CIP, Alameda CTC will be responsible for over $1.5 billion for capital 
projects and programs investments, which includes Measure B/Vehicle Registration Fee 
Direct Local Distributions, set allocations to Measure B Capital Projects, 2014 Transportation 
Expenditure Plan allocations, and other discretionary fund sources. Attachment C, Annual 
Programming Revenue, describes the programming estimate available (fiscal year 2015/16 
to 2019/20) and highlights the discretionary funding available within the two-year Allocation 
Plan.   

Page 185



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\8.3_CIP\8.3_CIP_Principles_Programming_Estimate.docx  
  

 

The Alameda CTC anticipates enhanced coordination between local agencies through the 
implementation of the policy framework and the CIP development process. The CIP process 
will streamline requests for project and program submissions, thereby reducing administrative 
efforts at both the local and countywide levels.  As a result, the CIP provides all agencies a 
fiscally constrained and prioritized programs/projects inventory to serve as a roadmap of 
transportation investments for the county.    

Feedback from the Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee (PPLC), and the Programs and 
Projects Committee (PPC) 

On October 13th, this item was presented to the PPLC and PPC, and the following comments 
were made: 

1. The CIP will be a valuable tool for all partnering agencies and will benefit the county.  
2. It is important to analyze equity on several levels to accommodate the county’s 

diverse population areas, utilization, and transportation needs.   
3. Alameda CTC selection process should be as streamlined as possible to 

accommodate the different efforts required for smaller and larger projects. 
4. Alameda CTC should coordinate with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

and other agencies regarding potential new funding policies or requirements so that 
they can be included in the CIP evaluation process and are favorable to Alameda 
County.  

5. Alameda CTC’s performance feedback should include an evaluation post-
construction, if feasible, to learn about the effectiveness of projects that have been 
completed.   

6. Alameda CTC’s selection process and monitoring should examine the impact on 
creating modal shifts and changing travel behaviors. 

Feedback from the Alameda County Technical Advisory Committee (ACTAC) 

On October 9th, this item was presented to the ACTAC and the following comments were 
made: 

1. CIP is a good idea and a large undertaking that provides multiple benefits to local 
agencies. It provides a financial budgeting tool and reduces the administrative 
workload associated with call-for-projects applications.  

2. CIP schedule is aggressive. However, its development process sets aside time for 
committee/public input, and correlates with local agencies’ budgetary timing. 

3. Consider examining geographic equity on multiple levels, where feasible, including 
population, lane miles, County use perspective, travel (pass-through) utilization, fund 
types, number of travelers, modal equity and other equity elements.   

4. Ensure an all inclusive selection process to capture smaller projects, previously 
unidentified improvements, or emerging needs 

5. Develop selection criteria to consider varying needs including local roads, rural roads, 
and arterial needs, maintenance requirements, benefit to the public, socio-economic 

Page 186



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\8.3_CIP\8.3_CIP_Principles_Programming_Estimate.docx  
  

 

factors, environmental issues, economic benefits, future specific funding 
criteria/requirements, cost-feasibility, project schedules, safety and relationship to 
countywide goals.  

6. Consider using the 2-year allocation Plan as a funding agreement to help cities with 
forecasting and budgeting 

Next Steps 

Alameda CTC will bring components of the CIP for consideration to the Commission over the 
coming months.  Each approval step will feed into the development and finalization of the 
following components of the CIP as detailed in the schedule below.   

Month No. Task 

October 2014 1. Approve DRAFT CIP guiding principles, development process, and 
programming fund estimate 

Nov/Dec 2014 2. 
 

3. 

Approve FINAL CIP guiding principles, development process, and 
programming fund estimate 
Approve DRAFT Project Selection Methodology 

January 2015 4. 
5.  
6. 

Approve FINAL Project Selection Methodology 
Approve Funding Levels by project types/categories 
Approve DRAFT Selection Criteria 

February 2015 7. Approve FINAL Selection Criteria 
March 2015 8. Approve DRAFT Project/Programs Inventory Recommendations 

April 2015 9. Approve DRAFT CIP Document including prioritization recommendations and 
two-year allocation plan 

May 2015 10. Approve FINAL CIP Document including prioritization recommendations and 
two-year allocation plan 

 

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact.  

Attachments 

A. Alameda CTC Policy Framework for Planning, Programming, and Monitoring 
Feedback Flowchart 

B. Integrated Planning and Programming Processes 
C. Summary of Annual Programming Revenue 

 
Staff Contact  

Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy 

Page 187

mailto:tlengyel@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 188



A
la
m
ed

a
CT
C
Po

lic
y
Fr
am

ew
or
k

Pl
an

ni
n g

,P
ro
gr
am

m
in
g
an

d
M
on

it
or
in
g
Pr
oc
es
s

2
ye
ar

A
llo

ca
ti
on

Pl
an

fo
r
Pr
oj
ec
ts

Co
un

ty
w
id
e

Tr
an

sp
or
ta
ti
on

Co
ng
es
ti
on

M
an

ag
em

en
t

Pr
og
ra
m
/S
tr
at
eg
ic
Pl
an

g
g

g
g

an
d
Pr
og
ra
m
s

Pl
an

o
Ca
pi
ta
lI
m
pr
ov
em

en
tP

ro
gr
am

o
Pr
og
ra
m
s
In
ve
st
m
en

tP
la
n

Pr
oj
ec
ta

nd
Pr
og
ra
m

Im
pl
em

en
ta
ti
on

N
ee
ds

id
en

ti
fie

d
by

lo
ca
l

O
n
G
oi
ng

M
on

it
or
in
g
of

A
la
m
ed

a
Co

un
ty

Tr
an

sp
or
ta
ti
on

Sy
st
em

Im
pl
em

en
ta
ti
on

y
ag
en

ci
es

O
ut
co
m
es

of
l

d

Tr
an

sp
or
ta
ti
on

Sy
st
em

o
Bi
cy
cl
e
an
d
Pe

de
st
ri
an

Co
un

ts
(a
nn

ua
l)

o
Ca
pi
ta
lP
ro
je
ct
M
on

ito
ri
ng

an
d
Re

po
rt
in
g
(o
n
go
in
g)

o
Le
ve
lo
fS
er
vi
ce

M
on

ito
ri
ng

(a
nn

ua
li
n
ev
en

ye
ar
s)

o
A
nn

ua
lP
er
fo
rm

an
ce

Re
po

rt
(a
nn

ua
l)

o
Pr
io
ri
ty
Co

ns
er
va
tio

n
A
re
a
Pl
an

M
on

ito
ri
ng

(a
nn

ua
l)

Pl
an

ni
ng

st
ud

ie
s

fo
r
sp
ec
ifi
c

m
od

es
/c
or
ri
do

rs

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 C
om

m
is

si
on

p
(

)

Th
is

 fl
ow

ch
ar

t o
nl

y 
ill

us
tra

te
s 

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

TC
’s

 ro
le

 in
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l  
pr

oc
es

s.

8.3A

Page 189



This page intentionally left blank 

Page 190



Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

  
Fe

ed
ba

ck
 L

oo
p 

 M
ea

su
re

 B
  

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 

 

Co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 In

ve
st

m
en

t P
la

n 
(T

w
o 

Ye
ar

 C
om

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
Up

da
te

, 
Ad

op
te

d 
on

 o
dd

 y
ea

rs
) 

An
nu

al
 P

ro
ce

ss
es

 

Co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 In

ve
st

m
en

t P
la

n 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

in
g 

Pr
oc

es
se

s 
 

Co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 In

ve
st

m
en

t P
la

n 
(A

nn
ua

l U
pd

at
e)

 

 V
eh

ic
le

 R
eg

ist
ra

tio
n 

Fe
e 

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 

An
nu

al
 F

isc
al

 Y
ea

r  
Bu

dg
et

 A
do

pt
io

n 

ST
IP

 U
pd

at
e 

 
(a

do
pt

ed
 o

n 
od

d 
ye

ar
s)

 

Bi
en

ni
al

 P
ro

ce
ss

es
 

 C
M

P 
U

pd
at

e 
(a

do
pt

ed
 o

n 
od

d 
ye

ar
s)

 
Co

un
ty

w
id

e 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

Pl
an

 
(a

do
pt

ed
 o

n 
ev

en
 y

ea
rs

) 

Ev
er

y 
Fo

ur
 Y

ea
rs

 

Su
bm

is
sio

n 
of

 N
ew

  
CI

P 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
/P

ro
gr

am
s 

 

An
nu

al
 U

pd
at

e 
on

 C
as

h-
flo

w
 to

 
CI

P 
 P

ro
je

ct
s/

Pr
og

ra
m

s 

Co
un

ty
w

id
e 

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
 

 M
ea

su
re

 B
  

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 

 V
eh

ic
le

 R
eg

is
tr

at
io

n 
Fe

e 
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 

8.3B

Page 191



This page intentionally left blank 

Page 192



FU
N

DI
N

G
 S

O
U

RC
ES

FY
 1

5/
16

FY
 1

6/
17

FY
 1

7/
18

FY
 1

8/
19

FY
 1

9/
20

TO
TA

L

FE
DE

RA
L

Fe
de

ra
l S

af
e 

Ro
ut

e 
to

 S
ch

oo
l (

SR
TS

)
1,

57
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
57

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

57
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
57

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

57
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

7,
87

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

ST
P/

CM
AQ

 (i
nc

 T
E 

Pr
og

ra
m

) 
13

,5
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
13

,5
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
13

,5
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
13

,5
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
13

,5
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
67

,5
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

Su
bt

ot
al

 F
ed

er
al

15
,0

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

  
15

,0
75

,0
00

$ 
   

   
  

15
,0

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

  
15

,0
75

,0
00

$ 
   

   
  

15
,0

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

  
75

,3
75

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

ST
AT

E
St

at
e 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

 (S
TI

P)
14

,7
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
14

,7
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
15

,0
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
15

,0
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
15

,0
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
74

,5
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

Su
bt

ot
al

 S
ta

te
14

,7
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
  

14
,7

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

  
15

,0
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
  

15
,0

00
,0

00
$ 

   
   

  
15

,0
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
  

74
,5

00
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

LO
CA

L/
RE

GI
O

N
AL

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Fu

nd
 fo

r C
le

an
 A

ir 
(T

FC
A)

1,
71

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

71
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
71

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

71
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
71

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
8,

55
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Li
fe

lin
e 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
3,

05
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

3,
05

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
3,

05
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

3,
05

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
3,

05
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

15
,2

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

N
ET

 2
00

0 
M

B 
RE

VE
N

U
E

12
4,

38
9,

15
3

$ 
   

   
   

12
6,

87
6,

93
6

$ 
   

   
   

12
9,

41
4,

47
4

$ 
   

   
   

13
2,

00
2,

76
4

$ 
   

   
   

13
4,

64
2,

81
9

$ 
   

   
   

64
7,

32
6,

14
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
M

B 
Pr

og
ra

m
s (

59
.9

%
 o

f N
et

)
73

,7
50

,7
93

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

75
,2

25
,8

09
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
76

,7
30

,3
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

78
,2

64
,9

31
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
79

,8
30

,2
30

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

38
3,

80
2,

08
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

M
B 

Ca
pi

ta
l P

ro
je

ct
s (

40
.1

%
 o

f N
et

)
50

,6
38

,3
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

51
,6

51
,1

27
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
52

,6
84

,1
49

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

53
,7

37
,8

32
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
54

,8
12

,5
89

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

26
3,

52
4,

05
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

N
ET

 2
01

4 
TE

P 
RE

VE
N

U
E

12
6,

94
1,

35
1

$ 
   

   
   

12
9,

48
0,

17
8

$ 
   

   
   

13
2,

06
9,

78
2

$ 
   

   
   

13
4,

71
1,

17
8

$ 
   

   
   

13
7,

40
5,

40
1

$ 
   

   
   

66
0,

60
7,

89
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
TE

P 
Pr

og
ra

m
s (

64
.9

8%
 o

f N
et

)
82

,4
86

,4
90

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

84
,1

36
,2

20
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
85

,8
18

,9
44

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

87
,5

35
,3

23
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
89

,2
86

,0
30

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

42
9,

26
3,

00
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

TE
P 

Ca
pi

ta
l P

ro
je

ct
s (

35
.0

2%
 o

f N
et

)
44

,4
54

,8
61

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

45
,3

43
,9

58
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
46

,2
50

,8
38

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

47
,1

75
,8

54
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
48

,1
19

,3
71

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

23
1,

34
4,

88
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

N
ET

 V
RF

 R
EV

EN
U

E
11

,4
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
11

,4
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
11

,4
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
11

,4
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
11

,4
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
57

,0
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
VR

F 
Lo

ca
l R

oa
d 

Di
re

ct
 L

oc
al

 P
ro

gr
am

 D
ist

. (
60

%
)

6,
84

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

6,
84

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

6,
84

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

6,
84

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

6,
84

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

34
,2

00
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

VR
F 

Co
rr

id
or

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 (L

oc
al

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 (1

0%
)

1,
14

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
14

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
14

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
14

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
14

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
70

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

VR
F 

Di
sc

re
tio

na
ry

 P
ro

gr
am

s (
30

%
)

3,
42

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
42

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
42

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
42

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
42

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

17
,1

00
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

Su
bt

ot
al

 L
oc

al
/R

eg
io

na
l

26
9,

38
1,

55
0

$ 
   

   
27

4,
44

5,
98

1
$ 

   
   

27
9,

61
1,

70
1

$ 
   

   
28

4,
88

0,
73

5
$ 

   
   

29
0,

25
5,

14
9

$ 
   

   
1,

39
8,

57
5,

11
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

TO
TA

L 
29

7,
31

5,
50

4
$ 

  
30

2,
34

2,
11

4
$ 

  
30

7,
71

9,
25

6
$ 

  
31

2,
94

8,
94

1
$ 

  
31

8,
28

3,
22

0
$ 

  
1,

53
8,

60
9,

03
6

$ 
   

   
   

 

Co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 In

ve
st

m
en

t P
la

n
Su

m
m

ar
y 

An
nu

al
 P

ro
gr

am
m

in
g 

Re
ve

nu
e 

Ta
bl

e 
1 

Su
m

m
ar

y:
Th

e 
Al

am
ed

a 
CT

C 
is 

re
sp

on
sib

le
 fo

r a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

$3
07

.7
 m

ill
io

n 
in

 fu
nd

in
g 

an
nu

al
ly

 fo
r c

ap
ita

l p
ro

je
ct

s a
nd

 p
ro

gr
am

s.
 

O
ve

r t
he

 fi
ve

-y
ea

r C
om

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

t P
la

n 
(F

Y 
15

/1
6 

th
ro

ug
h 

FY
 1

9/
20

), 
th

is 
am

ou
nt

s t
o 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
$1

.5
 b

ill
io

n.
  

Th
e 

An
nu

al
 R

ev
en

ue
 P

ro
je

ct
io

ns
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

pr
io

r y
ea

r's
 re

ve
nu

e 
di

st
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
.

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

N
ot

e:
 

   
  1

. T
he

 M
ea

su
re

 B
, 2

01
4 

TE
P,

 a
nd

 V
RF

 n
et

 re
ve

nu
es

 d
o 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
 g

en
er

al
 a

dm
in

ist
ra

tiv
e,

 co
re

 fu
nc

tio
ns

 a
nd

/o
r p

ro
gr

am
 m

an
ag

em
en

t f
ee

s r
es

er
ve

d 
fo

r A
la

m
ed

a 
CT

C 
fu

nc
tio

ns
.

8.3C

Page 193



FU
N

DI
N

G 
SO

U
RC

ES
FY

 1
5/

16
FY

 1
6/

17
FY

 1
7/

18
FY

 1
8/

19
FY

 1
9/

20
TO

TA
L

LO
CA

L/
RE

GI
O

N
AL

20
00

 M
ea

su
re

 B
 P

ro
gr

am
s 

Lo
ca

l S
tr

ee
ts

 a
nd

 R
oa

ds
27

,5
05

,7
21

$ 
   

   
   

   
28

,0
55

,8
36

$ 
   

   
   

   
28

,6
16

,9
53

$ 
   

   
   

   
29

,1
89

,2
92

$ 
   

   
   

   
29

,7
73

,0
77

$ 
   

   
   

   
14

3,
14

0,
87

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
M

as
s T

ra
ns

it
26

,1
26

,7
42

$ 
   

   
   

   
26

,6
49

,2
77

$ 
   

   
   

   
27

,1
82

,2
62

$ 
   

   
   

   
27

,7
25

,9
07

$ 
   

   
   

   
28

,2
80

,4
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
13

5,
96

4,
61

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Pa

ra
tr

an
sit

11
,1

05
,7

12
$ 

   
   

   
   

11
,3

27
,8

26
$ 

   
   

   
   

11
,5

54
,3

83
$ 

   
   

   
   

11
,7

85
,4

70
$ 

   
   

   
   

12
,0

21
,1

80
$ 

   
   

   
   

57
,7

94
,5

72
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Bi
ke

/P
ed

es
tr

ia
n

4,
61

7,
12

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
4,

70
9,

46
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

4,
80

3,
65

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
4,

89
9,

72
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

4,
99

7,
71

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
24

,0
27

,6
77

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

20
14

 T
EP

 P
ro

gr
am

s 
Lo

ca
l S

tr
ee

ts
 a

nd
 R

oa
ds

25
,3

88
,2

70
$ 

   
   

   
   

25
,8

96
,0

36
$ 

   
   

   
   

26
,4

13
,9

56
$ 

   
   

   
   

26
,9

42
,2

36
$ 

   
   

   
   

27
,4

81
,0

80
$ 

   
   

   
   

13
2,

12
1,

57
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

M
as

s T
ra

ns
it

27
,3

55
,8

61
$ 

   
   

   
   

27
,9

02
,9

78
$ 

   
   

   
   

28
,4

61
,0

38
$ 

   
   

   
   

29
,0

30
,2

59
$ 

   
   

   
   

29
,6

10
,8

64
$ 

   
   

   
   

14
2,

36
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Pa
ra

tr
an

sit
11

,4
24

,7
22

$ 
   

   
   

   
11

,6
53

,2
16

$ 
   

   
   

   
11

,8
86

,2
80

$ 
   

   
   

   
12

,1
24

,0
06

$ 
   

   
   

   
12

,3
66

,4
86

$ 
   

   
   

   
59

,4
54

,7
10

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Bi

ke
/P

ed
es

tr
ia

n
3,

80
8,

24
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

3,
88

4,
40

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
3,

96
2,

09
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

4,
04

1,
33

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
4,

12
2,

16
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

19
,8

18
,2

37
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Ve
hi

cl
e 

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

Fe
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
Lo

ca
l R

oa
d 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t &

 R
ep

ai
r  

6,
84

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
84

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
84

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
84

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
84

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

34
,2

00
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Co
rr

id
or

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 (L

oc
al

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
)

1,
14

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
14

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
14

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
14

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
14

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

5,
70

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

TO
TA

L
14

5,
31

2,
38

9
$ 

   
14

8,
05

9,
03

6
$ 

   
15

0,
86

0,
61

7
$ 

   
15

3,
71

8,
22

9
$ 

   
15

6,
63

2,
99

4
$ 

   
75

4,
58

3,
26

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

FU
N

DI
N

G 
SO

U
RC

ES
FY

 1
5/

16
FY

 1
6/

17
FY

 1
7/

18
FY

 1
8/

19
FY

 1
9/

20
TO

TA
L

FE
DE

RA
L ST

P/
CM

AQ
 (i

nc
 T

E 
Pr

og
ra

m
 a

nd
 S

R2
S)

15
,0

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

15
,0

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

15
,0

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

15
,0

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

15
,0

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

75
,3

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

ST
AT

E
St

at
e 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

 (S
TI

P)
14

,7
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
14

,7
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
74

,5
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

LO
CA

L/
RE

GI
O

N
AL

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Fu

nd
 fo

r C
le

an
 A

ir
Ci

ty
/C

ou
nt

y 
Sh

ar
e 

(7
0%

)
1,

19
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
19

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

19
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
19

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

19
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

5,
98

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Tr
an

sit
 D

isc
re

tio
na

ry
 (3

0%
)

51
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
51

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

51
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
51

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

51
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

56
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

Li
fe

lin
e 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
3,

05
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

3,
05

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
3,

05
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

3,
05

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
3,

05
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

15
,2

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
00

 M
ea

su
re

 B
Ex

pr
es

s B
us

 (0
.7

%
)

86
1,

86
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
87

9,
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

89
6,

68
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
91

4,
61

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

93
2,

90
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
4,

48
5,

16
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Pa

ra
tr

an
sit

 (1
.4

3%
)

1,
76

0,
66

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

79
5,

87
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
83

1,
79

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

86
8,

42
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
90

5,
79

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
9,

16
2,

55
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Bi

ke
/P

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
(2

5%
 o

f t
he

 5
%

)
1,

53
9,

04
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
56

9,
82

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

60
1,

21
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
63

3,
24

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

66
5,

90
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

8,
00

9,
22

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Tr
an

sit
 C

en
te

r D
ev

el
op

m
en

t (
0.

19
%

)
23

3,
93

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

23
8,

61
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

3,
38

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
8,

25
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

3,
21

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
21

7,
40

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
14

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 P

la
n

Tr
an

sit
 In

no
va

tiv
e 

Gr
an

ts
 (2

.2
4%

)
2,

84
3,

48
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

2,
90

0,
35

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
2,

95
8,

36
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

3,
01

7,
53

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
3,

07
7,

88
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

14
,7

97
,6

17
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ga
p 

Co
or

di
na

tio
n 

(1
.0

%
)

1,
26

9,
41

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

29
4,

80
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
32

0,
69

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

34
7,

11
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
37

4,
05

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
6,

60
6,

07
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Bi

ke
/P

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
(2

%
)

2,
53

8,
82

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
2,

58
9,

60
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

2,
64

1,
39

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
2,

69
4,

22
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

2,
74

8,
10

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
13

,2
12

,1
58

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Fr

ei
gh

t a
nd

 E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t (

1%
)

1,
26

9,
41

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

29
4,

80
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
32

0,
69

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

34
7,

11
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
37

4,
05

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
6,

60
6,

07
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

, I
nn

ov
at

io
n 

an
d 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t (

1%
)

1,
26

9,
41

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

29
4,

80
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
32

0,
69

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

34
7,

11
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
37

4,
05

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
6,

60
6,

07
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Co

m
m

un
ity

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 - 
Tr

an
sit

 to
 Jo

bs
 a

nd
 S

ch
oo

ls 
(4

%
)

5,
07

7,
65

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
5,

17
9,

20
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

5,
28

2,
79

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
5,

38
8,

44
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

5,
49

6,
21

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
26

,4
24

,3
16

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Af

fo
rd

ab
le

 S
tu

de
nt

 T
ra

ns
it 

Pa
ss

 P
ro

gr
am

 (0
.1

9%
)

24
1,

18
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

6,
01

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
0,

93
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

5,
95

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

26
1,

07
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

25
5,

15
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

Ve
hi

cl
e 

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

Fe
e 

M
as

s T
ra

ns
it 

(2
5%

)
2,

85
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

2,
85

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
2,

85
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

2,
85

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
2,

85
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

14
,2

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Bi
ke

/P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

Sa
fe

ty
 (5

%
)

57
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
57

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

57
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
57

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

57
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

85
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

Su
bt

ot
al

 L
oc

al
/R

eg
io

na
l

27
,0

84
,8

94
$ 

   
   

   
  

27
,4

62
,9

92
$ 

   
   

   
  

27
,8

48
,6

52
$ 

   
   

   
  

28
,2

42
,0

25
$ 

   
   

   
  

28
,6

43
,2

66
$ 

   
   

   
  

13
9,

28
1,

83
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

TO
TA

L 
56

,9
09

,8
94

$ 
   

  
57

,2
87

,9
92

$ 
   

  
57

,9
23

,6
52

$ 
   

  
58

,3
17

,0
25

$ 
   

  
58

,7
18

,2
66

$ 
   

  
28

9,
15

6,
83

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

N
ot

e:
 

   
  1

. S
ha

de
d 

(G
RE

EN
) b

ox
es

 a
re

 a
nt

ici
pa

te
d 

di
sc

re
tio

na
ry

 fu
nd

s r
eq

ui
rin

g 
Al

am
ed

a 
CT

C 
pr

og
ra

m
m

in
g 

ac
tio

ns
 th

at
 a

re
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

tim
ef

ra
m

e 
of

 th
e 

tw
o-

ye
ar

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
pl

an
.

   
  2

. T
ab

le
 2

a 
an

d 
2b

 d
o 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
 M

ea
su

re
 B

 o
r T

EP
 C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s.

Co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 In

ve
st

m
en

t P
la

n
Su

m
m

ar
y 

An
nu

al
 P

ro
gr

am
m

in
g 

Re
ve

nu
e 

TA
BL

E 
2a

  D
ire

ct
 L

oc
al

 D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 R

ev
en

ue
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r

TA
BL

E 
2b

  D
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
 F

un
di

ng
 R

ev
en

ue

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

Page 194



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\9.1_Semi_Annual_Programs_Projects_Update\9.1_Memo_Semi_Annu
al_Programs_Update_combined_20141001_Final.docx 

Memorandum 9.1 

 

DATE: October 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Alameda CTC Semi-Annual Programs and Projects Update 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive a semi-annual update on the Alameda CTC’s Measure B and 
Vehicle Registration Fee Programs and the Capital Projects Program. 

 
 

Summary  

In 1986, Alameda County voters approved the Measure B half-cent transportation sales 
tax, which was later reauthorized in November 2000. Alameda CTC allocates 
approximately 60 percent of the net sales tax revenues to essential programs and services 
in Alameda County. The remaining balance, approximately 40 percent, of the net sales 
tax revenues are earmarked for specific capital projects as set forth in the 2000 Measure B 
Transportation Expenditure Plan.  

In November 2010, voters approved the Measure F Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF) 
Program, authorizing the collection of an annual $10 per vehicle registration fee for 
transportation purposes.  

The Alameda CTC provides the Commission a semi-annual update on the status of the 
Measure B/VRF programs, capital projects implemented by Alameda CTC, and projects 
that are being funded with Measure B Capital funds. 

Measure B/VRF Programs 

The Alameda CTC is responsible for administering the Measure B and the VRF Programs. 
Measure B/VRF funds are distributed by formula allocations to 20 eligible local jurisdictions 
and transit agencies as Direct Local Distributions (DLD) and through discretionary grant 
allocations. DLD funds are provided to local agencies to implement locally prioritized 
transportation projects and programs. Measure B/VRF revenues finance local 
transportation needs, bicycle/pedestrian, mass transit, and paratransit improvements to 
maintain and enhance Alameda County’s transportation system.   At the end of each 
calendar year, Alameda CTC requires recipients to submit Audited Financial Statements 
and compliance reports to monitor Measure B/VRF expenditures and planned uses. 

Page 195



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\9.1_Semi_Annual_Programs_Projects_Update\9.1_Memo_Semi_Annu
al_Programs_Update_combined_20141001_Final.docx 

Through fiscal year 2013-2014 (FY 13-14), the DLD fund recipients received approximately 
$66.6 million in Measure B and $7.2 million in VRF distributions, as summarized by program 
in Table 1. 

Table 1: Measure B/VRF Direct Local Distributions (FY 13-14) 
 

Measure B Programs 
Measure B 

Funds 
(in millions) 

Vehicle Registration Fee 
Program 

VRF 
Funds 

(in millions) 

Total 
Funds 

(in millions) 
Local Transportation Funds 
(includes Local Streets and Roads) $26.4 Local Road Improvement 

and Repair Program $7.2 $33.6 

Mass Transit $25.1   $25.1 
Special Transportation for Senior 
and People with Disabilities 
(Paratransit) 

$10.7   $10.7 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety $4.4   $4.4 

TOTAL $66.6  $7.2 $73.8 

 

Alameda CTC also sets aside a portion of Measure B/VRF funds specifically for 
competitive grant programs.  Grant recipients are required to submit progress reports 
every six months providing grant status and expenditure updates.  

Capital Projects Program 

The Alameda CTC Capital Projects Program includes both capital projects implemented 
by Alameda CTC, and projects that are being funded with Measure B Capital funds; 
including projects funded through the 1986 Measure B, 2000 Measure B, and the 
Proposition 1B (Prop 1B) “I-Bond” Programs. The update discusses the overall status of 
each funding program and major milestones achieved since the previous semi-annual 
update.   

The Alameda CTC’s capital projects program is listed in Attachment C.  Since the last 
update, $300 million of countywide improvements have been substantially completed 
and are in the project closeout phase. The current list of projects includes 35 active 
capital projects funded by $3.2 billion in federal, state, regional and local fund sources.  A 
project with activities from scoping through construction phase is defined as an active 
project.  Since the passage of Measure B in 1986 and its reauthorization in 2000, it has 
provided a consistent source of vital transportation funding to numerous capital projects 
in Alameda County.  

Over the last 3 decades, local Measure B funding has successfully attracted 400% of 
external funding sources to its original investment to provide significant transportation 
improvements and advancements in Alameda County. Alameda CTC has executed on 
96% of the 2000 Measure B capital investments and successfully moved projects through 
the development, design, right-of-way and construction phases. In 2006, this local funding 
source was critical to securing over $400 million in state Prop 1B Bond funding and 
created thousands of much needed construction jobs in Alameda County during the 

Page 196



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\9.1_Semi_Annual_Programs_Projects_Update\9.1_Memo_Semi_Annu
al_Programs_Update_combined_20141001_Final.docx 

recent recession. This update provides an overview, current status and highlights of the 
Alameda CTC capital program which are summarized in the following three groups: 

1. 1986 Measure B Projects 
2. 2000 Measure B Projects 
3. Proposition 1B “I-Bond” and Other Projects 

 

Background 

Measure B Direct Local Distribution Program 

Since the start of 2000 Measure B half-cent sales tax collections from April 1, 2002 through 
June 30, 2014, Alameda CTC has distributed approximately $706.1 million in Measure B 
Direct Local Distribution (DLD) funds to twenty local jurisdictions and transit agencies for 
transportation purposes.   

For FY 13-14, Measure B sales tax revenues generated approximately $119.6 million in net 
sales tax revenues.  Of this amount, local jurisdictions received approximately $66.6 million 
in DLD funds to support their bicycle/pedestrian, local transportation, mass transit, and 
paratransit programs.  

Measure B is a flexible funding source that allows Alameda CTC and local jurisdictions to 
address a variety of Alameda County’s transportation needs.  The Master Programs 
Funding Agreement (MPFA) states that Local Transportation funds are eligible on a variety 
of improvements include traditional roadway improvements such as pavement 
maintenance and rehabilitation, as well as other improvements including geometric 
improvements, transportation mitigation, access improvements, and other eligible 
transportation needs. Thus, Local Transportation funds are an option for improvements 
that support bicycle/pedestrian, paratransit and transit enhancements. Additionally, 
there are also examples of the Alameda CTC assisting in project delivery using Measure B 
DLD funds or grant funds. These include implementing programs such as the countywide 
Safe Routes to School Program or the Same Day Transportation Program in Hayward. 
There may be additional projects or programs with regional benefits that are prioritized in 
the future that the Alameda CTC may want to implement through Measure B programs.   

In 2012, new timely use of funds and reserve policies were approved by the Alameda CTC 
and incorporated into updated MPFA contracts. As a result, local agencies are utilizing 
the DLD funds expeditiously on transportation improvement projects and programs. 
Overall, the fund balances have decreased by over 25% since the timely use of funds and 
reserve policy implementation. Further reductions of the Measure B/VRF DLD fund 
balances are expected.  Alameda CTC will continue to implement the reserve policies 
and monitor jurisdictions’ DLD expenditure plans that are reported through the annual 
Compliance Reporting process. Compliance Reports for the FY 13-14 are due at the end 

Page 197



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\9.1_Semi_Annual_Programs_Projects_Update\9.1_Memo_Semi_Annu
al_Programs_Update_combined_20141001_Final.docx 

of December, and the Alameda CTC will provide a status update on the fund balances in 
the Spring.  

Vehicle Registration Fee Direct Local Distribution Program  

Since the start of Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF) collections on May 1, 2011 through 
December 31, 2013, Alameda CTC has distributed approximately $21.6 million in VRF DLD 
funds to fifteen local jurisdictions for local road improvements. These funds are eligible 
exclusively for locally prioritized street and road improvements that have a relationship or 
benefit to the owner of motor vehicles paying the vehicle registration fee. 

For FY 13-14, VRF receipts generated approximately $12.0 million in net revenues.  Of this 
amount, local jurisdictions received approximately $7.2 million in DLD funds to improve 
and maintain their local roadways.  Additionally, the Alameda CTC is also administering 
the Local Transportation Technology Program, a component of the VRF Program, as a 
DLD program.  These funds represent 10 percent of VRF revenues (approximately $1 
million annually) and are directed to Alameda CTC transportation management 
technology projects such as the “Smart Corridors Program” operated by the Alameda 
CTC.   

Measure B Grant Programs 

Alameda CTC distributes discretionary Measure B funds through four grant programs: 

1) Bicycle and Pedestrian Countywide Discretionary Fund Grant Program 
2) Express Bus Grant Program 
3) Paratransit Gap Grant Program 
4) Transit Center Development Program 

These grant funds are available to local agencies, transit agencies and nonprofit 
organizations for transportation improvements through a competitive process. Alameda 
CTC goes through an extensive evaluation process to award discretionary funding. 
Community advisory committees are also included in the funding process for the 
Bicycle/Pedestrian and Paratransit grant funds.  

In FY 13-14, the Alameda CTC reimbursed project sponsors approximately $1.7 million in 
Measure B grant funding.  The four competitive grant programs are described below.  

Bicycle and Pedestrian Countywide Discretionary Fund (CDF) Grant Program 

Through the Bicycle and Pedestrian CDF Grant Program, Alameda CTC provides 
funding to bicycle and pedestrian transportation projects which encourage and 
increase accessibility, safety, and mobility for bicyclists and pedestrians throughout 
the County.  

Page 198



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\9.1_Semi_Annual_Programs_Projects_Update\9.1_Memo_Semi_Annu
al_Programs_Update_combined_20141001_Final.docx 

Since the start of the program, Alameda CTC has allocated approximately $12.2 
million to 51 bicycle and pedestrian projects. Currently, there are eight active 
bicycle/pedestrian projects funded through this grant program.  

In FY 13-14, the Alameda CTC reimbursed approximately $150,000 to project 
sponsors.  

Express Bus Service Grant Program 

The Express Bus Service program is designed to improve rapid bus service 
throughout the County. Projects funded under this competitive grant program 
include transportation facilities improvements, operations, and transit 
center/connectivity expansion.  

Since the start of the program, Alameda CTC has allocated approximately $9.6 
million to 10 express bus service projects. Currently, there are four active express 
bus service projects.   

In FY 13-14, the Alameda CTC reimbursed approximately $975,000 to project 
sponsors. 

Paratransit Gap Grant Program 

The Paratransit Gap Grant program provides funding to local jurisdictions, transit 
agencies, and non-profit groups to improve transportation mobility and access to 
seniors and people with disabilities. The program funds a variety of projects from 
shuttle operations, same day/taxi service, transportation/outreach service 
(including special transportation service for individuals with dementia), volunteer 
driver services, travel escorts, and travel training. The Alameda CTC Paratransit 
Advisory and Planning Committee (PAPCO) makes recommendations to the 
Commission on the Paratransit Gap grant funding. 

Since the start of the program, Alameda CTC has allocated approximately $14.4 
million to 72 projects and programs for seniors and people with disabilities. 
Currently, there are fourteen active Paratransit Gap projects.  

In FY 13-14, Alameda CTC reimbursed over $1.0 million to project sponsors.  

Transit Center Development Grant Program 

The Transit Center Development (TCD) grant program focuses on development of 
mixed-use residential or commercial areas designed to maximize access to public 
transportation. These projects are also referred to as Transit Oriented Development 
Projects (TOD) or Priority Development Areas (PDA).  These funds are available to 
support development efforts near transit centers.  

Page 199



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\9.1_Semi_Annual_Programs_Projects_Update\9.1_Memo_Semi_Annu
al_Programs_Update_combined_20141001_Final.docx 

Since the start of the program, Alameda CTC allocated over $1 million to TCD 
projects throughout Alameda County.  TCD funds are currently supporting the 
Sustainable Communities Technical Assistance Program (SCTAP). 

VRF Grant Programs 

Alameda CTC distributes VRF funds through two grant programs: 

1) Pedestrian and Bicyclist Access and Safety Program  
2) Transit for Congestion Relief Program  

These grant funds are available through a competitive process to local jurisdictions and 
transit agencies for transportation improvements.  Alameda CTC goes through an 
extensive evaluation process to award discretionary funding.  

In May 2013, the first cycle of grant funding for these programs were allocated as part of 
the Coordinated Funding Program. The VRF funding allocation included $1.5 million to 
two Bicycle/Pedestrian Program projects and $10.0 million to four Transit Program projects.   

In FY 13-14, Alameda CTC has reimbursed approximately $236,000 to project sponsors.  

Capital Projects Program 

The Alameda CTC’s capital projects program is detailed in Attachment C.  The list of 
projects includes 35 active capital projects funded by $3.2 billion in federal, state, 
regional and local fund sources.  Of the active capital projects, 25 are funded in whole or 
in part with funding from either the 1986 Measure B (ACTA) or the 2000 Measure B (ACTIA) 
Capital Program.  Seven projects are categorized in the I-Bond program funded by Prop 1 
B funding, and another three projects are being implemented using non-Measure B 
funding sources.  The table in Attachment C provides a summary of current project status 
information including the current project phase, schedule, and funding. In Summary: 

• All capital projects in the 1986 Measure B program have been completed except 
for three projects which are still active and have remaining, unexpended 
commitments of 1986 Measure B funding. 

• Of the committed $786.4 million for 2000 Measure B capital projects, $753.4 million 
has been allocated, essentially delivering 96% of the program in just twelve (12) 
years.  

• Alameda CTC Measure B Sales Tax Revenue Bonds given an ‘AAA’ rating; Series 
2014 bonds were issued in March 2014 to provide required funding to advance the 
regionally significant projects such as BART Warm Springs Extension, Oakland Airport 
Connector, the I-580 Corridor Projects. 

• Measure B funding programmed for emerging projects was successfully utilized to 
secure $420 million in Prop 1B Bond funds towards the delivery of $800 million in 

Page 200



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\9.1_Semi_Annual_Programs_Projects_Update\9.1_Memo_Semi_Annu
al_Programs_Update_combined_20141001_Final.docx 

highway projects collectively termed as the I-Bond Highway Program. All of the 
Alameda CTC I-Bond projects are in construction or complete. The I-880 North 
Safety and Operational Improvements at 23rd and 29th Avenues project in Oakland 
was the final I-bond project to be awarded in April 2014, construction activities 
began in July 2014 and will continue through spring of 2018. 

The following is the funding breakdown by phase for the list of 35 active projects in the 
Alameda CTC Capital Project Program which total approximately $3.2 billion:  

• Fourteen (14) projects with total project costs of more than $2.5 billion are in the 
Construction phase; 

• Ten (10) projects are currently in the Design and/or Right of Way phases with total 
costs estimated at more than $552 million; 

• Five(5) projects are in the Preliminary Engineering/Environmental Studies phase with 
more than $57 million of funding; 

• Six (6) projects are in the Scoping phase, two of which are Planning projects with 
approximately $20 million in funding; and 

Additional project-specific, information is available in the Project Fact Sheets which are 
updated regularly and available on the Alameda CTC website. 

I. 1986 Measure B (ACTA) Capital Projects Program 

The 1986 Measure B program of capital projects included a mix of freeway, rail, and local 
roadway improvements throughout Alameda County. Collection of the sales tax for the 
1986 Measure B ended on March 31, 2002 (the day before collection for the 2000 
Measure B began).  To date, there have been two amendments to the 1986 Measure B 
Expenditure Plan. Amendment No. 1 to the 1986 Expenditure Plan, approved in 
December of 2005, deleted the Hayward Bypass Project and added four replacement 
projects. Amendment No. 2, approved in June 2006, deleted the Route 84 Historic 
Parkway Project, identified the three Mission Boulevard Spot Improvements projects and 
added the I-880 to Mission Boulevard East-West Connector Project to replace the Historic 
Parkway Project. 

Program Highlights: 

• Widened the Nimitz Freeway to eight and ten lanes, added auxiliary lanes and 
upgraded interchanges; 

• Built Airport Roadway from Harbor Bay/Maitland to Airport Drive adding alternative 
access to Oakland International Airport; 

• Constructed local road improvements in San Leandro and Hayward; 

Page 201



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\9.1_Semi_Annual_Programs_Projects_Update\9.1_Memo_Semi_Annu
al_Programs_Update_combined_20141001_Final.docx 

• Added freeway to freeway connections at the Route 13/24 Interchange; 

• Modified and upgraded the I-580/680 Interchange; 

• Realigned Route 84 and diverted cut through traffic out of downtown Livermore to 
the current Route 84 corridor; and 

• Extended BART from Bay Fair to Dublin/Pleasanton 

Current Status: 

All capital projects in the 1986 Measure B have been completed except for three projects 
which are still active and have remaining, unexpended commitments of funding from the 
1986 Measure B:  

• Castro Valley Local Area Traffic Circulation Improvement Project (MB241, Project 
No. 509): This “study only” project is in the scoping phase. The local area circulation 
project consists of multiple project phases and potentially, multiple projects.  The 
schedule for construction will be determined as the individual improvements to be 
funded are identified during the project development phases. 
 

• I-880 to Mission Boulevard East-West Connector Project (Project No. 505.0): This 
project is being implemented in cooperation with the cities of Union City and 
Fremont.  Final design is on hold, pending additional funding. The project is 
included in the 2014 Transportation Expenditure Plan which is currently on the 
November 2014 ballot as Measure BB. 
 

• I-880/Mission Boulevard (Route 262) Interchange Completion Project (Project No. 
501.0), The remaining portion of this project (Phase 1B) has been integrated into the 
Mission Boulevard – Warren Avenue Grade Separation – Truck Rail Transfer project 
implemented by the VTA. This project is currently under construction estimated to 
complete in spring 2015. 

 

II. 2000 Measure B (ACTIA) Capital Projects Program 

The 2000 Measure B (ACTIA) program of capital projects includes 27 original projects of 
various magnitude and complexity that incorporate all travel modes throughout 
Alameda County.  The projects in the 2000 Measure B provide for mass transit expansion, 
improvements to highway infrastructure, local streets and roads, and bicycle and 
pedestrian safety improvements. The 2000 Measure B has accomplished significant 
transportation improvements in Alameda County. Of the committed $786.4 million for 
2000 Measure B capital projects, $753.4 million has been allocated, essentially delivering 
96% of the program in just twelve (12) years. 

Page 202



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\9.1_Semi_Annual_Programs_Projects_Update\9.1_Memo_Semi_Annu
al_Programs_Update_combined_20141001_Final.docx 

 Program Highlights: 

• Implemented the first Rapid Bus Service and Bus Rapid Transit in the East Bay; 

• Widened  I-238 to six lanes; 

• Widened southbound I-680 and implemented the first Bay Area Express Lane; 

• Built the new Isabel Ave Interchange and added carpool lanes along I-580;  

• Widened Route 84 to expressway standards; 

• Provided for local street and road improvements in Oakland, Newark, San Leandro 
and Hayward; 

• Extending BART to Warm Springs to connect to San Jose; 

• Building the Oakland Airport Connector between BART and Oakland International 
Airport; 

• Converting carpool lanes to express lanes along I-580; and  

• Implementing major innovative traffic relief technology on 22 miles of I-80.  

Current Status: 

The current project construction schedules and total project funding amounts for the 
active capital projects included in this update are shown in Attachment C.   

Projects in the Project Development Phase 

1. Telegraph Avenue Corridor Bus Rapid Transit – (Project No. 607.0): AC Transit is the 
sponsor of the Telegraph Avenue Corridor BRT project.  The project is currently in 
the design phase with advance utilities and construction of parking lots and the 
Fruitvale Bypass scheduled to begin fall 2014 and construction of the primary 
construction contract starting in summer 2015.  

2. I-880/Broadway-Jackson Interchange Improvements Project (Project No. 610.0): This 
project is in the project approval and environmental document (PA&ED) phase 
and is sponsored by the Alameda CTC.  A request for proposals for consultant to 
complete the PA&ED phase was released in June 2014. The selection review panel 
ultimately recommended HNTB as the top ranked firm and the Alameda CTC 
Commission approved the ranking in September 2014. Contract negotiations are 
currently underway.  

3. Iron Horse Transit Route (Project No. 609.0): The project scope was revised in 2010 to 
reflect the changing project area in the vicinity of the Dublin-Pleasanton BART 

Page 203



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\9.1_Semi_Annual_Programs_Projects_Update\9.1_Memo_Semi_Annu
al_Programs_Update_combined_20141001_Final.docx 

Station.  The project is currently in the design and right of way phases.  Construction 
is scheduled to begin spring 2015. 

4. Route 92 / Clawiter-Whitesell Interchange and Reliever Route (Project No. 615.0): 
The City of Hayward is the project sponsor and is currently implementing the design 
and right of way phases funded by recent allocations of 2000 Measure B funding.  
Construction for the first phase is scheduled to begin early 2015. 

5. East 14th Street/Hesperian Blvd./150th Street Intersection Improvements (Project 
No. 619.0): The City of San Leandro is the project sponsor.  The project is currently in 
the design/right of way phase.  Construction is scheduled to begin in summer 2016. 

6. Dumbarton Corridor Improvements (Project No. 625.0): The Dumbarton Rail Corridor 
element (Study Only) of this project will extend rail service from San Mateo County 
to the Union City Intermodal Station.  The project is significantly under-funded.  The 
project sponsor, SamTrans, and the Project Development Team has placed the 
project on hold until funding shortfall has been addressed. MTC has reallocated the 
remaining RM2 funds programmed to the project. Interim bus operations are in 
place to enhance ridership on the Dumbarton Bridge. The Alameda CTC 
Commission has reallocated the remaining $15.8 million in 2000 Measure B capital 
funding to the City of Newark for project development of a railroad overpass 
project within the corridor known as the Central Avenue Overpass Project (625.1).   

7. Dumbarton Corridor Improvements - Central Avenue Overpass (Project No. 625.1): 
The project will construct a four-lane grade separated structure at the rail-road 
crossing on Central Ave. between Sycamore St. and Morton Ave. and will provide 
traffic relief and improve safety in the Dumbarton Corridor. Preliminary engineering 
and environmental studies are underway for the project. 

8. I-680 Sunol Express Lane - Northbound (Project No. 721.0): The northbound project is 
currently in the preliminary engineering and environmental studies phase. The Draft 
Environmental Document (DED) is expected to be released for public circulation in 
fall 2014 with final environmental approval expected by fall 2015. 
 

9. Route 84 Expressway – South Segment (Project No. 624.2): The project is currently in 
the design phase with right of way and utility relocation activities occurring 
concurrently with design. The project limits of the south segment are from North of 
Concannon Blvd. to Ruby Hills Dr.  

10. I-680 Cross Connector Studies (Study Only) (Project No. 770): This project is currently on 
hold; the project team is working to identify an approach to move this study forward. 

Projects in the Construction Phase 

1. Westgate Parkway Extension: The first phase was completed in 2006 and the 
remaining second phase is being coordinated with the larger project to 

Page 204



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\9.1_Semi_Annual_Programs_Projects_Update\9.1_Memo_Semi_Annu
al_Programs_Update_combined_20141001_Final.docx 

reconstruct the I-880/Davis Street interchange as part of the I-Bond funded I-880 
Southbound HOV Lane - South Segment, which is currently under construction. 

2. BART Warm Springs Extension (Project No. 602): Expected completion scheduled for 
December 2015. 

3. BART Oakland Airport Connector (Project No. 603): Expected completion 
scheduled for November 2014. 

4. Downtown Oakland Streetscape Improvement (Project No. 604): The City of 
Oakland has reported that progress has been made in working with individual 
property owners such that improvements at Latham square will proceed. Expected 
completion scheduled for December 2015. 

5. Altamont Commuter Express Rail (Project No. 725.1): Locomotive overhaul and 
maintenance facility improvements are currently underway. 

6. I-580 Express Lanes (Project No. 720.4/724.1): Construction of the civil infrastructure 
necessary to support express lane operations has been included as part of the 
current I-580 construction contracts. Work began in June 2014 and is currently 
underway as are education and outreach efforts. The new facility is scheduled to 
open to the public fall 2015. 

 
III.  Proposition 1B “I-Bond” and Other Projects 

In 2006, in response to the substantial demand for funding to improve the Bay Area’s 
highway system and aging infrastructure, the Alameda CTC embarked on an aggressive 
endeavor to attract funding from Prop 1B Program for vital highway projects throughout 
Alameda County.  Seven Alameda County candidate projects were selected by the CTC 
for funding under the Prop 1B program. Alameda CTC has successfully secured a total of 
$420 million in Prop 1B Bond funding towards the delivery of an $800 million highway 
program.  

The Alameda CTC took the lead on securing Proposition 1B funding, project 
development, right of way, and delivered these projects. Staff is monitoring the 
construction phase closely to ensure construction completion on schedule and within 
budget.  

Program Highlights: 

• 100% of Prop 1B bond funding committed to Alameda CTC projects has been 
allocated; 

• Constructed the new Isabel Ave – Route 84/I-580 Interchange;  

Page 205



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\9.1_Semi_Annual_Programs_Projects_Update\9.1_Memo_Semi_Annu
al_Programs_Update_combined_20141001_Final.docx 

• Added carpool lanes along I-580 in both the eastbound and westbound directions; 

• Widened Route 84 to four and six lanes between Jack London and Concannon 
Boulevards; 

• Constructing carpool lanes in the southbound direction along I-880 from 
Hegenberger Road to Marina Boulevard and reconstructing the Davis St. and 
Marina Blvd. interchange/overcrossings; and 

• Implementing added improvements at Marina Blvd. to facilitate increased 
demand generated by the new Kaiser hospital development which opened in 
spring 2014. 

Current Status: 

All Alameda CTC Prop 1 B Bond projects are in construction or complete. The final 
construction contract for the I-880 North Safety and Operational Improvements at 23rd - 
29th Project was awarded in April 2014 and construction activities began in July 2014. 
Four projects are being implemented by Alameda CTC using non Measure B capital 
funding. The detailed status of this suite of projects is listed below. 

Projects in the Project Development Phase (Other Projects) 

1. I-580 Westbound HOV Lane – Landscaping (Project No. 724.6): This landscape 
project will be completed after construction of the primary facility is completed. 

2. I-80 Gilman (Study Only) - (Project No. 765.0): The consultant analyzed traffic data 
and prepared conceptual designs for roundabouts and signalized intersection 
alternatives. The Project Study Report was completed summer 2014 and is awaiting 
approval by Caltrans. 

Projects in the Construction Phase (I-Bond and Other Projects) 

1. I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane – Segment 3 with Auxiliary Lane (Project No. 720.5): 
Construction began fall 2012 and is 74 percent complete. Due to inclusion of 
express lane civil construction, the project is scheduled to finish fall 2015. 

2. I-580 Westbound HOV Lane – East Segment (Project No. 724.4): Construction on the 
HOV lane from Greenville overcrossing to Isabel Avenue began fall 2012 and is 51 
percent complete. Due to inclusion of express lane civil construction, the project is 
scheduled to finish early 2016. 

3. I-580 Westbound HOV Lane – West Segment (Project No. 724.5): Construction on 
the HOV lane from Isabel Ave. to San Ramon/Foothill Road overcrossing began fall 
2012 and is 77 percent complete. Due to inclusion of express lane civil construction, 
the project is scheduled to finish summer 2015. 

Page 206



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\9.1_Semi_Annual_Programs_Projects_Update\9.1_Memo_Semi_Annu
al_Programs_Update_combined_20141001_Final.docx 

4. I-880 Southbound HOV Lane – South Segment (Project No. 730.1): Construction on 
the southbound HOV lane from Davis St. to Marina Blvd. began fall 2012 and is 63 
percent complete. The project is scheduled to finish summer 2015. 

5. I-880 Southbound HOV Lane – North Segment (Project No. 730.2): Construction on 
the southbound HOV lane from Hegenberger Rd. to Davis St. began fall 2012 and is 
81 percent complete. The project is scheduled to finish in December 2014. 

6. I-880 North Safety and Operational Improvements at 23rd - 29th (Project No. 717): 
Caltrans awarded the contract in April 2014 and construction activities began in 
July 2014. 

7. I-80 Integrated Corridor Mobility (ICM) (Project No. 791): The project will enable 
operational improvements and implement intelligent transportation (ITS) strategies, 
such as adaptive ramp metering and incident management on I-80 from the San 
Francisco-Oakland Bay Bridge Toll Plaza to the Carquinez Bridge in Alameda and 
Contra Costa Counties.  The project includes improvements to San Pablo Avenue 
and the arterials connecting with mainline I-80, administered by Alameda CTC. 
Eleven overhead sign gantries are being erected above I-80 during the months of 
August, September, and October 2014 under sub-project #5. Due to the 
complexity of the project, it is being implemented under separate construction / ITS 
contracts:   

a. Sub-project #1 (EA 3A7741): Software & Systems Integration (SI); Software 
implementation and SI activities will continue through spring 2015 

b. Sub-project #2 (EA 3A7751): Specialty Materials Procurement; the contract 
was awarded June 2012; sign manufacturing, contract management and 
administration activities underway. 

c. Sub-project  #3 (EA 3A7711): Traffic Operations Systems (TOS);  Work on this 
contract was completed summer 2012.  

d. Sub-project  #4 (EA 3A7764): Adaptive Ramp Metering (ARM);  contract 
awarded fall 2012 with expected completion in fall 2014. This contract is 
being administered by Caltrans.  

e. Sub-project  #5 (EA 3A7774): Active Traffic Management (ATM); contract 
awarded fall 2012 with expected completion in early 2015.  

f. Sub-project #6 (EA 3A7734): San Pablo Corridor and Arterial Improvements; 
construction is complete; with certain change order work expected to 
continue through December 2014 to facilitate system integration.  
 

2. Webster Street SMART Corridor  - (Project No. 740.0): Construction of the  project is 
complete. Final testing of system components was completed in early 2014. System 
integration is ongoing and contract closeout is underway. 

3. East Bay Greenway (Coliseum BART to 85th Avenue)  - (Project No. 635.2) - The East 
Bay Greenway project from the Coliseum BART station to 85th Avenue is a Measure 

Page 207



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20141023\9.1_Semi_Annual_Programs_Projects_Update\9.1_Memo_Semi_Annu
al_Programs_Update_combined_20141001_Final.docx 

B Bicycle and Pedestrian Grant funded project being implemented by the 
Alameda CTC.  Construction started in October 2013 and is nearing completion. 
Following completion of the project the Alameda CTC is responsible for 
maintaining this half-mile segment of the path. The project team is preparing to 
procure a contractor to perform the path maintenance and subsequently will be 
responsible for managing the ongoing maintenance contract. 

Since the passage of Measure B in 1986 and its reauthorization in 2000, it has provided 
a consistent source of vital transportation funding to numerous capital projects in 
Alameda County. The 2000 Measure B program alone has leveraged almost $3 billion 
in external funding sources which equates to almost four times the funding from 
Measure B to date for transportation investments.  Alameda CTC has executed on 96% 
of the 2000 Measure B capital investments and successfully moved projects through 
the development, design, right-of-way and construction phases. In 2006, this local 
funding source was critical to securing over $400 million in state Prop 1B Bond funding 
and created thousands of much needed construction jobs in Alameda County during 
the recent recession. Alameda CTC continues its mission to expand access and 
improve mobility; it has developed a plan to address immediate and future 
transportation needs through the 2014 Transportation Expenditure Plan. Measure BB 
has been placed on the ballot this November to extend and augment the current 
funding to provide an additional $8 billion in transportation program and project 
investments over the next 30 years.  

 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no significant fiscal impact to the Alameda CTC budget due to this 
item. 

Attachments 

A. Measure B Program Active Grants List 
B. Vehicle Registration Fee Program Active Grants List 
C. Alameda CTC Capital Projects Program Summary 

 

 

Staff Contact 

Stewart Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 

Matt Todd, Principal Transportation Engineer 

Raj Murthy, Program Manager, Project Controls Team 

 

Page 208

mailto:stewartng@alamedactc.org
mailto:mtodd@alamedactc.org
mailto:rmurthy@alamedactc.org


A
la

m
e

d
a 

C
o

u
n

ty
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
at

io
n

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 

M
e

as
u

re
 B

 G
ra

n
ts

 P
ro

gr
am

 
A

ct
iv

e
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

p
o

n
so

r 
A

gr
e

e
m

e
n

ts
 

In
d

e
x

A
gr

e
e

m
e

n
t 

N
u

m
b

e
r

P
ro

je
ct

 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

(A
P

N
)

Sp
o

n
so

r
P

ro
je

ct
 N

am
e

 M
e

as
u

re
 B

 

Fu
n

d
s 

A
w

ar
d

e
d

 
St

at
u

s

B
IC

Y
C

LE
 A

N
D

 P
ED

ES
TR

IA
N

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M

1
A

0
9

-0
0

2
2

6
3

4
.5

C
it

y 
o

f 
N

ew
ar

k
N

ew
ar

k 
P

ed
es

tr
ia

n
 a

n
d

 M
as

te
r 

P
la

n
1

1
9

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

2
A

1
3

-0
0

5
9

6
3

6
.2

C
it

y 
o

f 
Em

er
yv

ill
e

C
h

ri
st

ie
 A

ve
 B

ay
 T

ra
il 

G
ap

 C
lo

su
re

5
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s

3
A

1
3

-0
0

6
2

6
3

6
.5

C
it

y 
o

f 
A

la
m

ed
a

C
ro

ss
 A

la
m

ed
a 

Tr
ai

l (
R

al
p

h
 A

p
p

ez
at

to
 M

em
o

ri
al

 P
ar

kw
ay

, W
eb

st
er

 t
o

 P
o

gg
i)

7
9

3
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s

4
A

1
3

-0
0

6
3

6
3

6
.6

C
it

y 
o

f 
A

lb
an

y
B

u
ch

an
an

/M
ar

in
 B

ik
ew

ay
5

3
6

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

5
A

1
3

-0
0

6
4

6
3

6
.7

C
it

y 
o

f 
Sa

n
 L

ea
n

d
ro

W
. J

u
an

a 
P

ed
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

3
4

6
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s

6
A

1
3

-0
0

6
5

6
3

6
.8

C
it

y 
o

f 
O

ak
la

n
d

Fr
u

it
va

le
 A

liv
e 

G
ap

 C
lo

su
re

 S
tr

ee
ts

ca
p

e 
P

ro
je

ct
 (

Fr
u

it
va

le
 A

ve
 E

.1
2

th
 t

o
 E

st
u

ar
y)

1
1

3
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s

7
A

1
3

-0
0

6
6

6
3

6
.9

C
it

y 
o

f 
P

ie
d

m
o

n
t

P
ie

d
m

o
n

t 
P

ed
es

tr
ia

n
 a

n
d

 B
ic

yc
le

 M
as

te
r 

P
la

n
1

0
2

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

8
A

1
3

-0
0

6
7

6
3

7
.0

C
yc

le
s 

o
f 

C
h

an
ge

B
ik

e-
G

o
-R

o
u

n
d

 (
ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
/s

af
et

y 
p

ro
gr

am
)

2
4

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s

2
,2

9
9

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  

1
A

1
4

-0
0

2
6

6
5

1
.3

A
C

 T
ra

n
si

t
A

C
 T

ra
n

si
t 

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 o
f 

Tr
an

si
t 

C
en

te
r 

at
 S

an
 L

ea
n

d
ro

 B
A

R
T

3
2

1
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s

2
A

1
3

-0
0

6
0

6
3

6
.3

A
C

 T
R

A
N

SI
T

Ea
st

 B
ay

 B
u

s 
R

ap
id

 T
ra

n
si

t 
B

ik
e/

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n

 E
le

m
en

ts
2

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

3
A

1
3

-0
0

7
0

6
3

7
.3

LA
V

TA
R

o
u

te
 1

0
 &

 R
ap

id
 R

o
u

te
 O

p
er

at
io

n
s

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s

4
A

1
3

-0
0

7
1

6
3

7
.4

LA
V

TA
R

o
u

te
 1

2
v,

 2
0

x,
 a

n
d

 7
0

x 
O

p
er

at
io

n
s

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s

2
,5

2
1

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  

1
A

1
3

-0
0

4
1

6
6

8
.1

A
lz

h
ei

m
er

's
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

o
f 

th
e 

Ea
st

 B
ay

Sp
ec

ia
l T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
at

io
n

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
In

d
iv

id
u

al
s 

w
it

h
 D

em
en

ti
a

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  2
0

0
,0

0
0

 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s

2
A

1
3

-0
0

4
3

6
6

8
.2

C
en

te
r 

fo
r 

In
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
Li

vi
n

g,
 In

c.
 

M
o

b
ili

ty
 M

at
te

rs
 P

ro
je

ct
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  3

5
0

,0
0

0
 

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

3
A

1
3

-0
0

4
2

6
6

8
.3

B
ay

 A
re

a 
O

u
tr

ea
ch

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
 P

ro
gr

am
A

cc
es

si
b

le
 G

ro
u

p
 T

ri
p

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Yo
u

th
 a

n
d

 A
d

u
lt

s 
w

it
h

 D
is

ab
ili

ti
es

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  2
7

2
,0

0
0

 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s

4
A

1
3

-0
0

4
5

6
6

8
.4

C
it

y 
o

f 
Fr

em
o

n
t

Tr
i-

C
it

y 
M

o
b

ili
ty

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 T
ra

ve
l T

ra
in

in
g 

P
ro

gr
am

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  2
0

0
,0

0
0

 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s

5
A

1
3

-0
0

5
2

6
6

8
.5

Se
n

io
r 

Su
p

p
o

rt
 P

ro
gr

am
 o

f 
Th

e 
Tr

i V
al

le
y

V
o

lu
n

te
er

 A
ss

is
te

d
 S

en
io

r 
Tr

an
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 P

ro
gr

am
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  1

5
0

,0
0

0
 

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

6
A

1
3

-0
0

5
0

6
6

8
.6

C
it

y 
o

f 
P

le
as

an
to

n
D

o
w

n
to

w
n

 R
o

u
te

 S
h

u
tt

le
 (

D
TR

)
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  8
5

,5
4

4
 

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

7
A

1
3

-0
0

4
6

6
6

8
.7

C
it

y 
o

f 
Fr

em
o

n
t

Tr
i-

C
it

y 
V

o
lu

n
te

er
 D

ri
ve

r 
P

ro
gr

am
s

2
5

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s

8
A

1
3

-0
0

4
7

6
6

8
.8

C
it

y 
o

f 
Fr

em
o

n
t

Tr
i-

C
it

y 
Ta

xi
 V

o
u

ch
er

 P
ro

gr
am

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  1
5

0
,0

0
0

 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s

9
A

1
3

-0
0

4
4

6
6

8
.9

C
it

y 
o

f 
Em

er
yv

ill
e

8
-T

o
-G

o
: A

 D
em

an
d

 R
es

p
o

n
se

, D
o

o
r 

to
 D

o
o

r 
Sh

u
tt

le
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  1

0
6

,0
0

0
 

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

1
0

A
1

3
-0

0
5

1
6

6
9

.0
Se

n
io

r 
H

el
p

lin
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

R
id

es
 f

o
r 

Se
n

io
rs

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  1
5

0
,0

0
0

 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s

1
1

A
1

3
-0

0
4

8
6

6
9

.1
C

it
y 

o
f 

H
ay

w
ar

d
 

C
en

tr
al

 C
o

u
n

ty
 T

ax
i P

ro
gr

am
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  5
2

,1
0

0
 

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

1
2

A
1

3
-0

0
4

9
6

6
9

.2
C

it
y 

o
f 

O
ak

la
n

d
Ta

xi
-U

p
 &

 G
o

 P
ro

je
ct

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  1
8

5
,0

0
0

 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s

1
3

A
1

4
-0

0
2

9
6

6
9

.3
B

O
R

P
C

ap
it

al
 G

ra
n

t 
M

at
ch

in
g 

V
eh

ic
le

 P
u

rc
h

as
e

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  1

9
,3

7
3

 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s

1
4

A
1

4
-0

0
3

0
6

6
9

.4
A

C
 T

ra
n

si
t

M
ar

ke
ti

n
g 

M
o

b
ili

ty
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Th

ro
u

gh
 t

h
e 

2
1

1
 P

ro
je

ct
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  5
0

,0
0

0
 

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

2
,2

2
0

,0
1

7
$

   
   

   
   

  7
,0

4
0

,0
1

7
$

   
   

   
   

  

A
LL

 A
C

TI
V

E 
P

R
O

JE
C

TS
 S

U
M

M
A

TI
O

N

2
6

 A
ct

iv
e

 M
e

as
u

re
 B

 G
ra

n
t 

P
ro

je
ct

s

8
 A

ct
iv

e
 B

ik
e

/P
e

d
e

st
ri

an
 P

ro
je

ct
s

4
 A

ct
iv

e
 E

xp
re

ss
 B

u
s 

P
ro

je
ct

s

1
4

 A
ct

iv
e

 P
ar

at
ra

n
si

t 
P

ro
je

ct
s

EX
P

R
ES

S 
B

U
S 

P
R

O
G

R
A

M

P
A

R
A

TR
A

N
SI

T 
P

R
O

G
R

A
M

La
st

 U
p

d
a

te
d

: S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
5

, 2
0

1
4

9.1A

Page 209



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 210



A
la

m
e

d
a 

C
o

u
n

ty
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
at

io
n

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 

V
e

h
ic

le
 R

e
gi

st
ra

ti
o

n
 F

e
e

 G
ra

n
ts

 P
ro

gr
am

 
A

ct
iv

e
 P

ro
gr

am
s/

P
ro

je
ct

s

In
d

ex

A
gr

ee
m

e
n

t 

N
u

m
b

e
r

P
ro

je
ct

 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

(A
P

N
)

Sp
o

n
so

r
P

ro
je

ct
 N

am
e

 V
R

F 

Fu
n

d
s 

A
w

ar
d

e
d

 
St

at
u

s

B
IC

Y
C

LE
 A

N
D

 P
ED

ES
TR

IA
N

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M

1
A

13
-0

05
9

63
6

.2
C

it
y 

o
f 

Em
er

yv
ill

e
C

h
ri

st
ie

 A
ve

 B
ay

 T
ra

il 
G

ap
 C

lo
su

re
5

0
0

,0
0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

2
A

13
-0

06
1

63
6

.4
Ea

st
 B

ay
 R

eg
io

n
al

 P
ar

ks
 D

is
tr

ic
t

B
ay

 T
ra

il 
- 

G
ill

m
an

 t
o

 B
u

ch
an

an
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

1
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 

1
A

13
-0

05
7

63
6

.0
B

A
R

T
B

e
rk

el
ey

 B
A

R
T 

P
la

za
 &

 T
ra

n
si

t 
A

re
a 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 $

   
   

   
   

  3
,7

18
,0

00
 

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

2
A

13
-0

05
8

63
6

.1
C

it
y 

o
f 

U
n

io
n

 C
it

y 
U

C
 B

A
R

T 
St

at
io

n
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 &
 R

R
 P

ed
 X

in
g 

C
o

m
p

o
n

en
t

 $
   

   
   

   
  5

,7
30

,0
00

 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s

3
A

13
-0

06
8

63
7

.1
C

it
y 

o
f 

A
la

m
ed

a
Es

tu
ar

y 
C

ro
ss

in
g 

Sh
u

tt
le

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  2
00

,0
00

 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s

4
A

13
-0

06
9

63
7

.2
C

it
y 

o
f 

O
ak

la
n

d
B

ro
ad

w
ay

 S
h

u
tt

le
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  3

52
,0

00
 

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

1
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  1
1

,5
0

0
,0

0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
6

 A
ct

iv
e

 V
R

F 
G

ra
n

t 
P

ro
je

ct
s

TR
A

N
SI

T 
P

R
O

G
R

A
M

A
LL

 A
C

T
IV

E 
P

R
O

JE
C

T
S 

SU
M

M
A

TI
O

N

2
 A

ct
iv

e
 B

ik
e

/P
ed

e
st

ri
an

 P
ro

je
ct

s

4
 A

ct
iv

e
 T

ra
n

si
t 

P
ro

je
ct

s

La
st

 U
p

d
a

te
d

: S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
5,

 2
01

4

9.1B

Page 211



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 212



B
eg

in
En

d
19

86
 M

B
(A

C
TA

)
20

00
 M

B
(A

C
TI

A
)

Fe
de

ra
l 

St
at

e
R

eg
io

na
l

Lo
ca

l
O

th
er

1
50

1.
0

I-8
80

/M
is

si
on

 B
lv

d 
(R

ou
te

 2
62

) I
nt

er
ch

an
ge

 C
om

pl
et

io
n 

(P
ha

se
 1

B
)

H
w

y
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

Ju
l 2

01
2

M
ar

 2
01

5
3.

5
0.

0
3.

8
64

.3
0.

0
23

.3
57

.3
15

2.
2

2
50

5.
0

I-8
80

 to
 M

is
si

on
 B

lv
d 

E
as

t-W
es

t C
on

ne
ct

or
LS

R
D

es
ig

n 
M

ar
 2

01
9

S
ep

 2
02

1
88

.8
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
21

.0
0.

0
10

9.
8

3
50

9.
0

C
as

tro
 V

al
le

y 
Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

Tr
af

fic
 C

irc
ul

at
io

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
LS

R
S

co
pi

ng
TB

D
TB

D
5.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
5.

0

A
C

TI
VE

 S
U

B
 T

O
TA

L
97

.3
0.

0
3.

8
64

.3
0.

0
44

.3
57

.3
26

7.
0

4
60

2.
0

B
A

R
T 

W
ar

m
 S

pr
in

gs
 E

xt
en

si
on

M
T

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
S

ep
 2

00
9

D
ec

 2
01

5 (4
)

0.
0

22
4.

4
0.

0
29

5.
4

32
1.

0
49

.2
0.

0
89

0.
0

5
60

3.
0

B
A

R
T 

O
ak

la
nd

 A
irp

or
t C

on
ne

ct
or

M
T

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
S

ep
 2

01
0

N
ov

 2
01

4 (4
)

0.
0

89
.1

13
0.

7
78

.9
14

6.
2

39
.3

0.
0

48
4.

1

6
60

4.
0

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
O

ak
la

nd
 S

tre
et

sc
ap

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
B

P
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

S
ep

 2
00

7
D

ec
 2

01
5

0.
0

6.
4

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

8.
5

0.
0

14
.8

7
72

5.
1

A
lta

m
on

t C
om

m
ut

er
 E

xp
re

ss
 R

ai
l

M
T

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
V

ar
io

us
V

ar
io

us
0.

0
13

.2
12

3.
1

15
5.

3
0.

0
18

2.
6

0.
0

47
4.

2

8
72

0.
4/

 7
24

.1
I-5

80
 E

xp
re

ss
 (H

O
T)

 L
an

es
H

w
y

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Ju

n 
20

14
N

ov
 2

01
5

0.
0

30
.0

8.
5

0.
0

4.
1

10
.8

1.
7

55
.0

9
60

7.
1

Te
le

gr
ap

h 
A

ve
nu

e 
C

or
rid

or
 T

ra
ns

it 
P

ro
je

ct
M

T
D

es
ig

n
O

ct
 2

01
4

N
ov

 2
01

7(4
)

0.
0

11
.5

84
.1

13
.6

65
.7

0.
3

5.
0

18
0.

1

10
60

9.
0

Iro
n 

H
or

se
 T

ra
ns

it 
R

ou
te

B
P

D
es

ig
n

A
pr

 2
01

5
O

ct
 2

01
6

0.
0

6.
3

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

2.
1

0.
0

8.
4

11
62

4.
2

R
ou

te
 8

4 
E

xp
re

ss
w

ay
 - 

S
ou

th
 S

eg
m

en
t

H
w

y
D

es
ig

n
S

ep
 2

01
5

O
ct

 2
01

7
0.

0
71

.9
0.

0
10

.0
0.

0
10

.0
3.

5
95

.4

12
62

4.
3

R
ou

te
 8

4 
E

xp
re

ss
w

ay
 - 

La
nd

sc
ap

in
g

H
w

y
D

es
ig

n
TB

D
TB

D
0.

0
4.

1
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
4.

1

13
73

0.
3

I-8
80

 S
ou

th
bo

un
d 

H
O

V
 L

an
e 

La
nd

sc
ap

in
g/

H
ar

ds
ca

pi
ng

H
w

y
D

es
ig

n
TB

D
TB

D
0.

0
0.

1
0.

5
0.

4
0.

0
0.

4
0.

0
1.

4

14
61

5.
0

R
ou

te
 9

2/
C

la
w

ite
r -

 W
hi

te
se

ll 
In

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
an

d 
R

el
ie

ve
r R

ou
te

H
w

y
D

es
ig

n 
/ R

ig
ht

 o
f W

ay
Ja

n 
20

15
M

ay
 2

01
6

0.
0

27
.0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
7

0.
0

27
.7

15
61

9.
0

E
as

t 1
4t

h 
S

t/H
es

pe
ria

n 
B

lv
d/

15
0t

h 
S

t I
nt

er
se

ct
io

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
LS

R
D

es
ig

n 
/ R

ig
ht

 o
f W

ay
Ju

n 
20

16
S

ep
 2

01
7

0.
0

3.
2

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

2.
8

0.
0

6.
0

16
72

3.
0

I-5
80

 C
or

rid
or

 R
ig

ht
 o

f W
ay

 P
re

se
rv

at
io

n
H

w
y

R
ig

ht
 o

f W
ay

N
/A

N
/A

0.
0

3.
0

0.
0

4.
7

11
1.

0
0.

0
0.

0
11

8.
7

17
62

5.
0

D
um

ba
rto

n 
C

or
rid

or
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 (S

tu
dy

 O
nl

y)
M

T
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l

N
/A

N
/A

0.
0

3.
6

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

3.
6

18
62

5.
1

D
um

ba
rto

n 
C

or
rid

or
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 (C

en
tra

l A
ve

 O
ve

rp
as

s)
LS

R
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l

S
ep

 2
01

5
Ju

n 
20

16
0.

0
15

.8
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

6
3.

6
20

.0

19
62

6.
0

I-5
80

 C
or

rid
or

/B
A

R
T 

to
 L

iv
er

m
or

e 
S

tu
di

es
 (S

tu
dy

 O
nl

y)
M

T
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l

N
/A

N
/A

0.
0

6.
7

0.
0

0.
0

8.
6

0.
0

0.
0

15
.3

20
72

1.
0

I-6
80

 S
un

ol
 E

xp
re

ss
 L

an
es

 - 
N

or
th

bo
un

d 
(S

tu
dy

 O
nl

y)
H

w
y

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l
TB

D
TB

D
0.

0
14

.5
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
14

.5

21
78

0.
0

R
ou

te
 8

4 
- P

ig
eo

n 
P

as
s 

to
 I-

68
0 

H
w

y
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l

N
/A

N
/A

0.
0

1.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

2.
9

0.
0

3.
9

22
77

0.
0

I-6
80

/I-
88

0 
C

ro
ss

 C
on

ne
ct

or
 S

tu
di

es
 (S

tu
dy

 O
nl

y)
H

w
y

S
co

pi
ng

N
/A

N
/A

0.
0

1.
2

0.
0

1.
0

0.
0

0.
3

0.
0

2.
5

23
61

0.
0

I-8
80

/B
ro

ad
w

ay
-J

ac
ks

on
 In

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 (S

tu
dy

 O
nl

y)
H

w
y

S
co

pi
ng

 
N

/A
N

/A
0.

0
8.

1
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
2.

5
0.

0
10

.6

24
62

7.
4

C
W

TP
/T

E
P

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t (
S

tu
dy

 O
nl

y)
N

A
P

la
nn

in
g

N
/A

N
/A

0.
0

0.
1

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
1

25
62

7.
5

S
tu

di
es

 fo
r C

on
ge

st
ed

 S
eg

m
en

ts
/L

oc
at

io
ns

 o
n 

th
e 

C
M

P
 N

et
w

or
k

H
w

y
P

la
nn

in
g

N
/A

N
/A

0.
0

0.
6

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
6

A
C

TI
VE

 S
U

B
 T

O
TA

L
0.

0
54

1.
6

34
6.

9
55

9.
3

65
6.

6
31

3.
0

13
.7

2,
43

1.
0

26
71

7.
0

I-8
80

 N
or

th
 S

af
et

y 
an

d 
O

pe
ra

tio
na

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

t 2
3r

d 
an

d 
29

th
H

w
y

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
Ju

l 2
01

4
M

ar
 2

01
8

0.
0

4.
7

1.
8

79
.9

10
.0

3.
3

0.
0

99
.8

27
72

4.
4

I-5
80

 W
es

tb
ou

nd
 H

O
V

 L
an

e 
- E

as
t S

eg
m

en
t

H
w

y
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

N
ov

 2
01

2
Ja

n 
20

16
0.

0
4.

4
6.

3
63

.1
8.

7
0.

4
0.

0
82

.9

28
72

4.
5

I-5
80

 W
es

tb
ou

nd
 H

O
V

 L
an

e 
- W

es
t S

eg
m

en
t

H
w

y
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

O
ct

 2
01

2
Ju

l 2
01

5
0.

0
1.

8
0.

1
52

.7
5.

8
0.

6
0.

0
61

.0

29
79

1.
0

I-8
0 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 C

or
rid

or
 M

ob
ili

ty
 P

ro
je

ct
H

w
y

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
Ju

n 
20

11
M

ay
 2

01
5

0.
0

2.
8

3.
2

67
.6

1.
2

5.
2

0.
0

80
.0

30
73

0.
1

I-8
80

 S
ou

th
bo

un
d 

H
O

V
 L

an
e 

- S
ou

th
 S

eg
m

en
t

H
w

y
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

S
ep

 2
01

2
Ju

n 
20

15
0.

0
0.

9
5.

1
52

.8
0.

0
11

.0
0.

0
69

.8

31
73

0.
2

I-8
80

 S
ou

th
bo

un
d 

H
O

V
 L

an
e 

- N
or

th
 S

eg
m

en
t

H
w

y
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

N
ov

 2
01

2
D

ec
 2

01
4

0.
0

0.
3

2.
7

29
.8

0.
0

3.
9

0.
0

36
.7

32
72

0.
5

I-5
80

 E
as

tb
ou

nd
 H

O
V

 L
an

e 
- S

eg
m

en
t 3

 w
ith

 A
ux

ili
ar

y 
La

ne
H

w
y

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
N

ov
 2

01
2

O
ct

 2
01

5
0.

0
0.

7
0.

2
25

.1
5.

9
1.

6
6.

9
40

.4

A
C

TI
VE

 S
U

B
 T

O
TA

L
0.

0
15

.7
19

.4
37

1.
0

31
.5

26
.1

6.
9

47
0.

5

19
86

 M
EA

SU
R

E 
B

20
00

 M
EA

SU
R

E 
B

PR
O

P 
1B

 B
O

N
D

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

TC
 C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

To
ta

l F
un

di
ng

 
(A

ll 
So

ur
ce

s)

Pr
oj

ec
t F

un
di

ng
 S

ou
rc

es
 ($

 x
 m

ill
io

n)
 (N

ot
e 

3)

A
la

C
TC

Pr
oj

ec
t

N
o.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Sc

he
du

le
 (N

ot
e 

2)

C
ur

re
nt

 P
ha

se
(N

ot
e 

1)
In

de
x

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

Pr
oj

ec
t

Ty
pe

R:
\A
la
CT

C_
M
ee
tin

gs
\C
om

m
is
si
on

\P
PC

\2
01

41
01

3\
5.
5_
Se
m
i_
A
nn

ua
l_
Pr
og
ra
m
s_
Pr
oj
ec
ts
_U

pd
at
e\
5.
2C

_C
ap
ita

lP
ro
je
ct
Su
m
m
ar
y‐
Se
m
iA
nn

ua
lU
pd

at
e_
20

14
09

25
‐F
in
al

Pa
ge
 1

9.1C

Page 213



B
eg

in
En

d
19

86
 M

B
(A

C
TA

)
20

00
 M

B
(A

C
TI

A
)

Fe
de

ra
l 

St
at

e
R

eg
io

na
l

Lo
ca

l
O

th
er

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

TC
 C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

To
ta

l F
un

di
ng

 
(A

ll 
So

ur
ce

s)

Pr
oj

ec
t F

un
di

ng
 S

ou
rc

es
 ($

 x
 m

ill
io

n)
 (N

ot
e 

3)

A
la

C
TC

Pr
oj

ec
t

N
o.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Sc

he
du

le
 (N

ot
e 

2)

C
ur

re
nt

 P
ha

se
(N

ot
e 

1)
In

de
x

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

Pr
oj

ec
t

Ty
pe

33
63

5.
1

E
as

t B
ay

 G
re

en
w

ay
 (C

ol
is

eu
m

 B
A

R
T 

to
 8

5t
h 

A
ve

nu
e)

B
P

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
Ju

l 2
01

3
N

ov
 2

01
4

0.
0

0.
0

1.
4

0.
0

0.
1

2.
3

0.
0

3.
9

34
72

4.
6

I-5
80

 W
es

tb
ou

nd
 H

O
V

 L
an

e 
- L

an
ds

ca
pi

ng
H

w
y

D
es

ig
n

TB
D

TB
D

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
4

0.
0

0.
0

0.
4

35
76

5.
0

I-8
0 

G
ilm

an
 (S

tu
dy

 O
nl

y)
H

w
y

S
co

pi
ng

N
/A

N
/A

0.
0

0.
0

1.
1

0.
0

0.
0

0.
3

0.
0

1.
4

A
C

TI
VE

 S
U

B
 T

O
TA

L
0.

0
0.

0
2.

5
0.

0
0.

5
2.

6
0.

0
5.

7

36
74

0.
0

W
eb

st
er

 S
tre

et
 S

M
A

R
T 

C
or

rid
or

LS
R

P
ro

je
ct

 C
lo

se
ou

t
S

ep
 2

01
2

Fe
b 

20
14

0.
0

0.
0

0.
6

0.
0

1.
0

0.
1

0.
0

1.
7

37
50

6.
0

R
ou

te
 2

38
/M

is
si

on
-F

oo
th

ill
-J

ac
ks

on
 C

or
rid

or
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
LS

R
P

ro
je

ct
 C

lo
se

ou
t

Ju
ly

 2
01

0
Ju

l 2
01

3
80

.0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
14

.0
6.

5
10

0.
5

38
61

2.
0

I-5
80

/C
as

tro
 V

al
le

y 
In

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 (N

ot
e 

5)
H

w
y

P
ro

je
ct

 C
lo

se
ou

t
Ju

n 
20

08
Ju

n 
20

11
15

.0
11

.5
1.

9
4.

8
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
33

.2

39
61

3.
0

Le
w

el
lin

g/
E

as
t L

ew
el

lin
g 

B
lv

d 
W

id
en

in
g 

LS
R

P
ro

je
ct

 C
lo

se
ou

t
Ju

l 2
00

9
O

ct
 2

01
2

0.
0

13
.6

0.
0

4.
3

0.
0

13
.8

0.
1

31
.8

40
61

7.
1

H
es

pe
ria

n/
Le

w
el

lin
g 

B
lv

d 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t -
 S

ta
ge

 2
LS

R
P

ro
je

ct
 C

lo
se

ou
t

Ju
l 2

00
9

O
ct

 2
01

2
0.

0
0.

2
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

2

41
71

0.
4

I-6
80

 S
un

ol
 E

xp
re

ss
 L

an
es

 - 
S

ou
th

bo
un

d
H

w
y

P
ro

je
ct

 C
lo

se
ou

t
O

ct
 2

00
8

A
pr

 2
01

2
0.

0
19

.7
5.

4
8.

0
0.

0
8.

0
0.

0
41

.1

42
62

3.
0

Is
ab

el
 A

ve
nu

e 
- R

ou
te

 8
4/

I-5
80

 In
te

rc
ha

ng
e

H
w

y
P

ro
je

ct
 C

lo
se

ou
t

Ja
n 

20
09

M
ar

 2
01

2
0.

0
25

.1
11

.3
44

.4
0.

0
32

.4
0.

0
11

3.
2

43
62

4.
1

R
ou

te
 8

4 
E

xp
re

ss
w

ay
 - 

N
or

th
 S

eg
m

en
t 

H
w

y
P

ro
je

ct
 C

lo
se

ou
t

M
ar

 2
01

2
Ju

n 
20

14
0.

0
20

.5
0.

0
16

.1
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
36

.6

44
77

4.
1

I-5
80

 S
an

 L
ea

nd
ro

 L
an

ds
ca

pi
ng

H
w

y
P

ro
je

ct
 C

lo
se

ou
t

Ju
l 2

01
2

M
ay

 2
01

3
0.

0
0.

0
0.

4
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

4

45
72

0.
3

I-5
80

 C
or

rid
or

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l M
iti

ga
tio

n
H

w
y

P
ro

je
ct

 C
lo

se
ou

t /
 

V
ar

io
us

TB
D

TB
D

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

2.
3

0.
0

0.
0

2.
3

46
C

om
pl

et
e

U
ni

on
 C

ity
 In

te
rm

od
al

 S
ta

tio
n

M
T

C
om

pl
et

e
Ju

n 
20

07
M

ar
 2

01
2

0.
0

12
.6

20
.4

7.
7

0.
0

6.
3

0.
0

47
.0

47
C

om
pl

et
e

Fr
ui

tv
al

e 
Tr

an
si

t V
ill

ag
e

M
T

C
om

pl
et

e
O

ct
 2

00
2

M
ar

 2
00

4
0.

0
4.

4
0.

0
7.

7
0.

0
1.

4
0.

0
13

.5

48
C

om
pl

et
e

S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e 
C

or
rid

or
 T

ra
ns

it 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

je
ct

M
T

C
om

pl
et

e
M

ar
 2

00
8

D
ec

 2
00

9
0.

0
2.

3
0.

1
0.

1
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
2.

5

49
C

om
pl

et
e

Te
le

gr
ap

h 
A

ve
nu

e 
C

or
rid

or
 T

ra
ns

it 
P

ro
je

ct
 - 

S
ta

ge
 2

 R
ap

id
 B

us
 S

er
vi

ce
M

T
C

om
pl

et
e

Ju
n 

20
05

D
ec

 2
00

9
0.

0
10

.7
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
10

.7

50
C

om
pl

et
e

I-8
80

/W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

A
ve

nu
e 

In
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t

H
w

y
C

om
pl

et
e

A
pr

 2
00

9
M

ay
 2

01
0

0.
0

1.
3

0.
5

0.
0

0.
0

1.
4

0.
0

3.
2

51
C

om
pl

et
e

I-5
80

 W
B

 A
ux

ili
ar

y 
La

ne
 (F

al
lo

n 
R

oa
d 

to
 T

as
sa

ja
ra

 R
oa

d)
H

w
y

C
om

pl
et

e
M

ar
 2

00
9

D
ec

 2
00

9
0.

0
1.

8
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
1.

8

52
C

om
pl

et
e

I-5
80

 E
B

 A
ux

ili
ar

y 
La

ne
 (E

l C
ha

rr
o 

R
oa

d 
to

 A
irw

ay
 B

lv
d)

H
w

y
C

om
pl

et
e

Ja
n 

20
09

N
ov

 2
01

1
0.

0
7.

8
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
7.

8

53
C

om
pl

et
e

O
ak

la
nd

 L
oc

al
 S

tre
et

s 
R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n

LS
R

C
om

pl
et

e
Ju

l 2
00

4
D

ec
 2

00
6

0.
0

5.
3

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

5.
3

54
C

om
pl

et
e

H
es

pe
ria

n/
Le

w
el

lin
g 

B
lv

d 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t -
 S

ta
ge

 1
LS

R
C

om
pl

et
e

O
ct

 2
00

3
Ju

n 
20

04
0.

0
0.

6
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

1
0.

0
0.

7

55
C

om
pl

et
e

W
es

tg
at

e 
P

ar
kw

ay
 E

xt
en

si
on

 - 
S

ta
ge

 1
LS

R
C

om
pl

et
e

Ju
n 

20
04

O
ct

 2
00

6
0.

0
7.

9
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
7.

9

56
C

om
pl

et
e

N
ew

ar
k 

Lo
ca

l S
tre

et
s 

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n
LS

R
C

om
pl

et
e

Ju
n 

20
03

Fe
b 

20
06

0.
0

1.
4

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

4.
1

0.
0

5.
5

57
C

om
pl

et
e

I-2
38

 W
id

en
in

g
H

w
y

C
om

pl
et

e
S

ep
 2

00
6

O
ct

 2
00

9
0.

0
81

.0
18

.3
29

.2
0.

0
3.

3
0.

0
13

1.
8

58
C

om
pl

et
e

V
as

co
 R

oa
d 

S
af

et
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

LS
R

C
om

pl
et

e
Ja

n 
20

05
Ju

n 
20

09
0.

0
1.

5
4.

7
12

.2
0.

0
4.

0
0.

0
22

.4

59
C

om
pl

et
e

C
en

tra
l A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

Fr
ee

w
ay

 S
ys

te
m

 O
pe

ra
tio

na
l A

na
ly

si
s

H
w

y
C

om
pl

et
e

N
/A

N
/A

5.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
7

0.
0

5.
7

C
O

M
PL

ET
ED

 S
U

B
 T

O
TA

L
10

0.
0

22
9.

2
63

.6
13

4.
5

3.
3

89
.6

6.
6

62
6.

8

PR
O

G
R

A
M

 T
O

TA
L 

19
7.

3
$ 

   
   

78
6.

5
$ 

   
   

43
6.

2
$ 

   
   

1,
12

9.
0

$ 
   

69
1.

9
$ 

   
   

47
5.

6
$ 

   
   

84
.5

$ 
   

   
  

3,
80

0.
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

N
ot

es
:

1.
Th

e 
cu

rr
en

t p
ha

se
 s

ho
w

n 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

as
 o

f M
ar

ch
 2

01
4.

  T
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
lo

se
ou

t p
ha

se
 in

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
is

 c
om

pl
et

e 
an

d 
th

e 
fa

ci
lit

y 
is

 in
 u

se
 b

y 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 w
hi

le
 p

ro
je

ct
 fi

na
nc

ia
l a

nd
 o

th
er

 c
lo

se
ou

t r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 s
at

is
fie

d.

2.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

sc
he

du
le

s 
sh

ow
n 

ar
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ch

an
ge

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
pr

oj
ec

t d
el

iv
er

y 
ac

tiv
iti

es
.  

B
eg

in
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

da
te

 s
ho

w
n 

is
 ty

pi
ca

lly
 th

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 c

on
tra

ct
 a

w
ar

d 
da

te
.

3.
Th

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
am

ou
nt

s 
sh

ow
n 

ar
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ch

an
ge

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

in
g 

an
d 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 b

y 
va

rio
us

 fu
nd

in
g 

ag
en

ci
es

 o
th

er
 th

an
 th

e 
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
TC

.

4.
E

nd
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

da
te

s 
fo

r B
A

R
T 

or
 A

C
 T

ra
ns

it 
ca

pi
ta

l p
ro

je
ct

s 
re

fle
ct

 th
e 

po
in

t a
t w

hi
ch

 re
ve

nu
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

is
 e

st
im

at
ed

 to
 b

eg
in

.
U

pd
at

ed
 O

ct
ob

er
 1

, 2
01

4
5.

P
ro

je
ct

 C
lo

se
ou

t f
or

 th
e 

I-5
80

/C
as

tro
 V

al
le

y 
In

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 P

ro
je

ct
 (6

12
.0

) i
nc

lu
de

s 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

, f
ol

lo
w

 o
n 

co
nt

ra
ct

 to
 fu

lfi
ll 

a 
th

re
e-

ye
ar

 p
la

nt
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

bl
ig

at
io

n 
to

 C
al

tra
ns

.

C
O

M
PL

ET
ED

 

O
TH

ER

R:
\A
la
CT

C_
M
ee
tin

gs
\C
om

m
is
si
on

\P
PC

\2
01

41
01

3\
5.
5_
Se
m
i_
A
nn

ua
l_
Pr
og
ra
m
s_
Pr
oj
ec
ts
_U

pd
at
e\
5.
2C

_C
ap
ita

lP
ro
je
ct
Su
m
m
ar
y‐
Se
m
iA
nn

ua
lU
pd

at
e_
20

14
09

25
‐F
in
al

Pa
ge
 2

Page 214


	6.1_combo
	6.2_Combo
	6.3_Combo
	6.3_I580_HOV_EL_Update
	6.3A_G
	4.2A_I580EBHOVLaneStatusUpdate
	4.2B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate
	4.2C_I580EBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate
	4.2D_I580WBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate
	4.2E_I580ExpressLaneSystemIntegrationV2
	4.2F_I-580CorridorProjects_LocationMap
	4.2G_I580Express_LocationMap


	6.4_combo
	6.5_combo
	6.5_LegislativeUpdate
	6.5A_2014_Legislative_Platform_Table

	6.6_combo
	6.6_CMP_Elements_and_Update
	6.6A_CMP_and_Elements
	6.6B_CMP_Network
	6.6C_2015_CMP_UpdateSchedule
	Update Schedule

	6.6D_CMP_Conformance

	6.7_combo
	6.7_Lifeline_Program_Memo
	6.7A_Draft LTP4 Guidelines
	6.7B_Lifeline_Estimate
	6.7C_Lifeline_Cycle4_Schedule
	6.7D_Criteria&Weighting review-board
	Sheet1


	6.8_Combo
	6.8_SR2S_Annual_Update_Memo_9.24.14
	6.8A_Alameda_County_SR2S_2013-2014_Intro

	6.9_combo
	6.9_EBGreenway_maintenance_MOU_amendment
	6.9A_GreenwayExtensionDrawing

	6.10_Combo
	6.10_880SBHOVHardscape_20141006
	6.10-Attachment_SLeandroLetter

	6.11_Combo
	6.11_Time_Ext_Amend_Memo_final
	6.11A_AttachmentA_rev2

	6.12_Combo
	6.12_SDRMA_Property_Liability_and_WC_Participation_20141006
	6.12A_Reso14-015_20140702_GPdraft -- NAP
	ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
	RESOLUTION NO. 14-015
	AYES:     NOES:        ABSTAIN:  ABSENT:
	SIGNED:      ATTEST:
	_________________________________  _____________________________________
	Scott Haggerty, Chairperson   Vanessa Lee, Clerk of the Commission

	6.12B_Joint Powers Agreement 6th Amended
	6.12C_Reso14-016_State_Application_VL_v2
	1481 River Park Drive, Suite 110


	6.13_Combo
	7.1_Combo
	7.2_Combo
	7.3_Combo
	8.2_Combo
	8.2_MTC_ExpLn_Oct2014-PPCUpdate_20140923_Final
	8.2A_MapofBayAreaExpresssLanes

	8.3_combo
	8.3_CIP_Principles_Programming_Estimate
	8.3A-C_CIP_Attachment_A-C_20140930

	9.1_Combo
	9.1_Memo_Semi_Annual_Programs_Update_combined_20141001_Final
	9.1A_MBActive_Grants_20140915
	9.1B_VRFActive_Grants_20140915
	9.1C_CapitalProjectSummary-SemiAnnualUpdate_20140925-Final



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


	1: Alameda County Transportation Commission
	2: 1111 Broadway, Suite 800
	3: 
	6: CA
	7: 94607-4006
	5: Oakland
	4: 452184857
	8: Seung Cho
	9: Contracting, Administration, and Fiscal Resource Manager
	10: Alameda County Transportation Commission
	11: 1111 Broadway, Suite 800
	12: Oakland
	13: CA
	14: 94607-4006
	15a: Off
	15b: Off
	15c: Off
	15d: Off
	15e: Yes
	15f: Off
	16a: Yes
	16b: Off
	16c: Off
	16d: Off
	15g: 
	16e: 
	17: November 1, 2014
	18a: Off
	18f: Off
	18i: Yes
	18j: Hartford Underwriters Insurance Company, Policy#57 WE GC2646, $21,507 annual premium,  expires on 03/01/15 
	18h: 
	18g: 
	18e: 
	18d: 
	18c: 
	18b: 
	19a: Yes
	19b: Off
	19c: November 1, 2014
	19d: 5806
	19e: Gregory S. Hall, CEO
	19f: Special District Risk Management Authority
	19g: 1112 "I" Street, Suite 300
	19h: Sacramento
	19i: CA
	19j: 95814-2865 
	19k:     800      537-7790
	20a: Off
	20c: Yes
	20d: 132
	20e: Off
	20f: Off
	20b: 
	20g: York Risk Services Group, Inc.  Markus Beverly
	20h: York Risk Services Group, Inc.
	20i: Post Office Box 619058
	20j: Roseville
	20k: CA
	20l: 95661
	20m:    916      960-0900
	20n:   916      783-0338
	must_submit_original: *YOU MUST SUBMIT A SIGNED ORIGINAL WHICH HAS BEEN SEALED/NOTARIZED*
	20o: 1
	20p: Yes
	21d: Yes
	22a: Yes
	23b: Yes
	22b: Off
	21e: Off
	20q: Off
	21a: 21
	21b: N/A
	21c: N/A
	21f: 
	22c: Seung Cho, Contracting, Administration & Fiscal Resource Manager
	22d: Alameda County Transportation Commission
	22e: 1111 Broadway, Suite 800
	22f: Oakland
	22g: CA
	22h: 94607-4006
	22i:     510      208-7472
	24a: Yes
	24b: Off
	24c: California States Association of Counties - Excess Insurance Authority
	24d: EIA-PE 08 EWC-30
	24e: July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015
	24f: $ 4,500,000
	25b: Yes
	23c: 
	23d: 
	23e: 
	25f: 
	26a: 
	26b: Scott Haggerty
	26c: Chair
	26d: Alameda County Transportation Commission
	27: 14-016
	28: October 23, 2014
	29: Commissioners 
	30: Alameda County Transportation Commission 
	31: public transportation agency
	32: 23rd
	33: October
	34: 14
	35: Executive Director
	36: Alameda County Transportation Commission
	37: Vanessa Lee
	38: Clerk 
	39: Alameda County Transportation Commission
	40: public transportation agency
	41: Clerk 
	42: Alameda County Transportation Commission
	43: Joint Powers Authority
	44: 23rd
	45: October
	46: 14
	this_must_be_signed: *THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED AFTER PRINTING*
	affix_seal_here: AFFIX DISTRICT SEAL HERE OR ATTACH NOTARY CERTIFICATE


